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DISCIPLINARY EXCLUSION OF SERIOUSLY EMOTIONALLY DISTURBED
CHILDREN FROM PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Introduction

Background

Since the passage of federal legislation relating to the education
of handicapped children, it_has been necessary to scrutinize a variety of
common educational practices in order to irsure that they are compatible
with the requirements of the legislation. One such practice is the dis-
ciplinary exclusion of students from educational programs. Although dis-
ciplinary exclusion of students is not addressed 939.53 in federal man-
dates, it is particularly important because it doas confront two of the

key guarantees contained in the legislation: that of a free appropriate

education in the least restrictive enviromsent for handicapped children.

.Thus, it represents an area of potentially conflicting policies and actions

which has not yet been clearly addressed by the Office of Special Education
(OSE) in its policy decisions and interpretations.

Disciplinary exclusion of students has long been a practice and con-
cern of public schools, and it is Tikely to continue to surface frequently
in public school environments. Discipline and behavior management in gen-
eral are consistently identified as high priority concerns of both educa-
tors and the public that supports education (Gallup, 1981;‘Grosenisk and
Huntze, 1980). Certainly, disciplinary exclusion 6f students appears to
be a standard practice of nearly all school systems, a]tho&gh individual
procedures vary considerably from district to district. The concern for

maintaining discipline in school environments is particb]ar1y problematic




.where youngsters are involved who are or could potentially be jdentified

as be%ng seriously emotionally disturbed. Traditionally, many of these
students have been excluded from school programs, a fact which was one of
the provocations for federal legislation in the first place (Regal, Elliot,
Grossman and bese, 1972). While federal policy makers have been reluc-
tant to interfere with the schools' flexibility to deal with 'iscipline
.issues (and ironically, to some extent, because they have been reluctant),
the courts and the Office of Civil Rights (OCR) are becoming more involved
in the issue. As a result, it would appear that there is a tremendous need

for clarification of the policy issues surrounding the disciplinary exclu-

sion of handicapped (particularly seriously emotionally disturbed) students.

Purpose

The purpose of this paper is to explore and clarify issues surround-
ing the practice of disciplinary exclusion- of seriously emotionally disturbed
students. There is no doubt that the issues surrounding this practice are
of prime importance to policy makers at the local level, state ievel persons
who supervise local compliance with Federal.law and college and university
faculty who must train teachers concerning their responsibilities toemotionally
disturbed students. Thus, it is timely that professionals in the field
turn their attention to the examination of the practice in a systematic fashion.
Any clarifica*ion of these issues, should be comprised of several steps in-
cluding: 1) delineation of the relevant 1egis]ation;q2) a synopsis of the
most critical issues; 3) a review of court cases, OCR, OSE and State Educa-
tion Agency (SEA) findings that speak to those critical issues; and 4) a

suggestion of policies and/or guidelines for local policies and decision
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making based on current judicial and edministrative thinking. The purpose
of this paper js to address the first three steps. However, relative to
step three, only court and OCR decisions will be explored. This delimita-

tion occurs for two reasons. First, both the courts and OCR have investi-

gated and made decisions concerning this topic to a greater extent than

have SEAs or OSE. Secondly, given the lack of OSE dq;gzzjon and the con-

flicting mature of the SEA decisions that do exist more Consistent opinions
that are 1ikely to set precedent for all states can be found in court and

OCR decisions. The above three steps constitute a‘brief “state of the art"
on the topic and, hopefully, establish a base from which others may pur-sue

the critical step 4.

Definitions

Exclusion refers to the removal from or the prohibition of partici-
.pating in the public school program in part or entirety. A §ubstantia1
body of policy and 1itigation exists which relates to exclusion based on
such issues as health and immunization of students, educability and ac&de-
mic admicsiop criteria for students and existence of handicapping conditions.
While some of the judicial and administrative decisions relative to these
different causes for exclusion may be predicated upon principles similar to
those used for decisions on disciplinary exclusion, this paper focuses only
on disciplinary exc1d§?6n,\i<e., exclusion resulting from the student's be-
havior and desigred to protect the "decorum" and "educational environment"®
appropriate to a public _school. As will be ceen later, particular attention
should be paid to the environment from which a student is excluded, i.e.,

exclusion from what placement.




—— There are two broad types of disciplinary exclusion: suspensio: and
expulsion. As developed through recent practice, suspension usually refers
to a temporary (10 days or less) exE]usion of a student, typically as a re-

sult of a crisis or emergency situation.‘ Expulsion, on the other hand,

<

‘7L§ﬁ51]y refers to the more or less permanent exclysion of a student from
a particular program or placement typically as a result (con-equence or
punishment} of behavior which was viewed as being severely disruptive of
the school program or posing a threat to the physical or emotional well
being of faculty and other students.

Three factors differentiate these two types of exclusion. As noted
above, time is one differentiating factor. Suspension is a femporary mea-
sure, usually of a 3-10 day duration.'lExpu1sion is for a longer period of
time, i.e., for the remainder of a schoul yea} (although sometimes all fu-
ture i;vo]vement is prohibited). A second differentiating factor involves
the nature of the exc]usion: i.e., emergency vs. non-emergency. This dis-
tinction is dealt with in greater detail in a later section7qﬂ\the paper.
The third differentiating factor focuses upon due process requirements.

The due process procedures associated with expulsion are more stringent

‘than those required for suspension. Jue process prior to expulsion has a

long and clear case law history. It is accurate to say that no student
(handicapped or not) may be permanently excluded (excelled) from educational
participation without an opportunity for a formal evidentiary hearing. Sus-
pension—as opposed to expulsion, requires-minimal-due process, which most-- i
typitally involves: oral or written notice of the charges against the stu-

dent; an explanction of the evidence the school authorities have; and an

opportunity for the student to present his/her side of the story (Goss v.




Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 1975). Such minimal due Process procedures most

typically do not include a formal evidentiary hearing.

N App]lcab1e Federal Leglslatlon

0
In order to pinpoint specific issues related to the disciplinary

exclusion of serigusly emotionally disturbed students, it is first neces-
sary to identify the refévant legislation and regulations which impinge on,
this issue.' Two overlapping pieces of federal Tegislation and their accom-
panying regulations ;re pertirent: Education of the Handicapped Act as
amended by Public Law 94-142 (referred to hereafter as P.L. 94-142 or EHA),
Section 504 of Public Law 93-112, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (referred
to hereafter as Section 504). It {3 snstructive to examine these laws and °
regulations in more detail in order to become familiar with those sections

and discussions upon which the courts and OCR base their decisions and

findings.

Public Law 94-142 and implementing Reculations

The right to a free appropriate public education (FAPE) in the least

restrictive environment (LRE) is specifically guaranteed to all handicapped
children by P.L. 94-142.

Because disciplinary exc]us1on can violate these

guarantees, they are often the legal basis of court cases re]atlve to dis-

ciplinary exclusion. Because these r1ghts, as we]] as 14th amendment rights,

t

can be violated, and because exclusion constitutes a change of placement

(this will be discussed at a later time), any movement toward such exclu-




sion requires adequate procedural safequards {due process). The Taw speaks '
very clearly concerning the appropriate due process that is to be accorded
to handicapped individuals. Further, any student who has been referred for

evaluation and/or has an appeal pending is accorded these procedural safe-

guards until a determination is made regarding the evaluation or appeal.
Thus, Public Law 94-142 provides five relevant statutes to . :amine in rela-
tien to disciplinary exclusion:

Free Appropriate Pubiic Education

1401(18). [Free appropriate public education]

The term "free appropriate pudlic education" means special
education and relatedservices which (A) have been provided at
public expense, under public supervision and direction, and
without charge, (B) meet the standards of the State educational
agency, C) include an appropriate preschool, elementary, or
secondary school education in the State involved, and (D) are
provided in conformity with the individualized education prog-
ram required under section 1414(a)(5) of this title.

Least Restrictive Environment
1412(5)(B). [Least restrictive environment]

(B) procedures to assure that, to the maximum extent
appropriate, handicapped children, including children in
public or private institutions or other care facilities,
are educated with children who are not handicapped, and that
special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of han-
dicapped children from the reqular educational environments
occurs only when the nature or severity of the handicap is
such that education in regular classes with the use of sup-
plementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfacto-
vily, and .

Due Process

1415, Procedural safeguards
1415(a). [Establishment and maintenance]

(a) Any State educational agency, any local educational
agency, and any intermediate educatioral unit which receives
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assistance under this subchapter shall establish and main-
tain procedures in accordance with subsection (b) through
subsection (e) of this section to assure that handicapped
children and their parents or guardians are guaranteed pro-
cedural safeguards with respect to the provision of free
appropriate public education by such agencies and units.

Change of Placement

1415(b)(1)(C). [Prior written notice]

(C) written prior notice to the parents or guardian
of the child whenever such agency or unit -

(i) proposes to initiate or change, or
(ii) refuses to initiate or change,
the identification, evaluation, or educational piacement
' of the child or the provision of a free appropriate pub-
1ic education to the child;
Child placement during proceedings

(: 1415(e)(3) [Child placement during proceedings]

(3) During the pendency of any proceedings conducted pur-
suant to this section, unless the State or local educational
agency and the parents or guardian otherwise agree, the child
shall remain in the then current educational placement of such
child, or, if applying for initial admission to a public school,
shall, with the consent of the parents or gquardian, be placed
in the public school program until all such proceedings have
been completed.

Each of these statutes is further elaborated upon in the appropriate

sections of regulation related to each (See Appendix for Reqgulations keyed

to each statute).

Section 504

The pofgntia1 denial of rights associated With disciplinary exclusion

is couched in the broad Tanguage of Section 504.

Law: 794. Nondiscrimination under Federal grants and programs.

(;z No otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States,

7
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- as defined in section 706(6) of this title, shall, solely
by reason of his handicap, be excluded from the parti-
cipation in, be denied the benefits of, or he subjected )
to discrimination under any program or activity receiving v
Federal financial assistance or under any program or acti-
vity conducted by any Executive agency or by the United
‘States Postal Service. The head of each sych agency shall
promulgate such regulations as may be necessary to carry
out -the amendments of this section made by the Rehabilita-~ RN
tion, Comprehensive Services, and Development Disabilities . '
Act of 1978. Copies of proposed regulation shall be ub-
mitted to appropriate authorizing copmittees of the Cong-
ress, and such regulation may take gg%ect no earlier than '
the thirtieth day after the date on which such regulation -~ ~
is so submitted to such committees. .

o While Section 504 is itself much less detailed than EHA, it provides,

through its implementing regulations, the same essential guarantees found in

P.L. 94-142.

Regulations: FAPE, Educational Setting (LRE), Procedural Safeguards -
Reg. 104.33 Free appropriate public education.

(a) General. A recipient that operates a public ele-
mentary or secondary education program shall provide a free,
appropriate public education to each qualified handicapped
person who is in the recipient's jurisdiction, regardless
of the nature or severity of the person's handicap.

(b) Appropriate education. (1) For the purpose of
this subpart, the provision of an appropriate education is
the provision of regular or special education and related
aids and services that (i) are designed to meet individual
educational needs of handicapped persons as adequately as
the needs of nonhandicapped persons are met and (ii) are
based upon adherence to procedures that satisfy the require-

~ ments of Regs. 104.34, 104.35 and 104.36 ...

(c) Free education - (1) General. For the purpose of
this section, the provision of a free education is the pro-
vision of educational and related services without cos: to
the handicapped person or to his or her parents or guardian,
except for those fees that are imposed on nonhandicapped
persons or their parents or guardian. It may consist either
of the provision of free services or, if a recipient places
a handicapped person in or refers such person to a program
not operated by the recipient as its means of carrying out
the requirements of this subpart, of payment for the costs
of the program. Funds available from any public or private

8
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“Reg.”104.36 \ProceddraI.éafeguards. ‘

agency may be used to meet the requirements of this
subpart. Nothing in this sectiop shall be construed
to relieve an insurer or similar third party from an -
otherwise valid obligatien to provide or pay for ser-
vices provided to a handicapped person ...

Reg. 104.34 Educational setting.

» )

(a) Academic setting. A recipient to which this sub-
part applies shall provide for the education of, each qua-
lified handicapped person in its Jurisdiction with persons-
who are not handicapped to the maximum extent appropriate
to the needs of the handicapped}pé{son. “A'recipient shall
place a handicapped ‘person in the regular educational en-
vironment operated by the recipient unless #t is demons-’
trated by the recipient that the education of the person
in the regular enviromnment with the use of "supplementary
aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. When-
ever a recipient places a person ‘in a setting other than .

the regular educational environment _pursuant to this parag-

raph, it shall take into account the proximity of the al- °
ternate setting to the person's home.~ = .- - .

(b) Nonacademic setting. 'Iﬁ-proGiding or arranging
for the provision of nomacademic ‘and -extracurricalar ser-.

., vices and activities, including-meals, recass periods, and’

the services and activities set forth in Req. 104.37(a)(2),
a recipient shall ensure that handicapped persons partici-
pate with nonhandicapped persons.in such activities and-
services to the maximum extent appropriate to the needs of
the handicapped persan in question.

(c) Comparable facilities. - If a recipient, in com-
pliance with paragraph (a) of this section, operates 2 fa-

cility that is.identifiable.as being for handicapped persons, °

the recipient shall ensure that the facility and the services
and activitjes'provjded therein..are eomparable to the other
facilities, services: and ‘activities of the recipient.

" A-recipient that opergtes a public elementary or secend-
ary education program shall.establish. and implement, with
respect- to actions regarding the jdentjfication, evaluation,
or educational placement of pérsons who, because of handicap,
need or are believed to need special instruction ore related
related services, a system ‘of procedural safeguards that in-

-cludes notice, an opportunity for the parents or guardian of

the person to examine. relevant records, an impar}ia1 hearing
wi}h_opportunity.fpr participation by .the persoﬁ(s parents or
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. guardian and reﬁresentation by counsel, and a review N
. procedure. Compliance with the procedural safeguards
* of section 615 of the Education of the Handicapped
Act is one means of meeting this requirement.
Beyond the portions of P.L. 94-142 and Section 504 mentioned, there
are no other federa] statutes which relate to the topic of this paper with
kghe‘ﬁossib]e.exceptionﬁand of the FAPE requirements of Public Law 89-313
EState Operated Programs for Handicapped Children). However. since it has
seldom served as the ]eéa] basis for court decisions it has not been in-
cluded in fhe present paper. No federal statute specifically mentions dis-
ciplinary exclusion, or addresses this practice directly. Specific refer-

# ences to disciplinary exclusion do occur in many other state and local sta-
tutes and regu]ations.‘ It is, of course, impossible to summarize these dis-
parate statutes and regulations here. State and local po]%cies also restate, \
in various ways, the federal policies related to FAPE, LRE and Procedural

Safeguards discussed earlier, and in some cases, they provide even more de-

. tail on how these policies will be appiied within a particular jurisdiction.

If conflict arises between state or local policy and the federal law, federal
law is supreme (Grosenick, Huntze, Kochan, Peterson, Robertshaw & Wood, 1981).
Any owgra]] consistency in state and Tocal school disciplinary poli-

Cy may bé the result of several court actions on constitutional issues of

"equal protection" (e.g., Brown v. Board of Education, 347 U.S. 483, 1954),
ifreedom of expression" (e.g.: Tinker v. Des Moines, 393 U.S. 503, 1969)

ard "due pnoce§s"o(e.g.) Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 1975) brought by

students in the 1950s and 1960s. Supreme court decisions in these cases:
a) recognized the importance of.a person's right to education, b) prohi-

bited arbitrary or capricious removal of access to education, and c) re-

n.
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quired procedural sateguards in thg attempt to achieve fairness in decision
making about an individual's accg§; to education. Many states and local
school districts attempted to make their disciplinary policies conform to =
the general guidelines laid down in these decisions. As we shall see,

these efforts have not proved sufficient to meet the stringent requirements’
that are set forth by the FAPE, LRE and Procedural Safeguérds sections of

-

P.L{ 94-142 and Section 504.

e
Issues Surrounding Disciplinary Exclusion
Overview

Given the present status of Taw and policy related to the rights to
education for handicapped children ard the disciplinary exciusion of child-
ren from school programs, several questions (issues) emerge which suggest
areas of potentia] conflict in policy or which will require cjarification
in order to guide school personnel in the development of appropriate dis~- -
cipline policies. These questions, informally organized, include: h

1. What is the re]ationship of a child's behavior to his/her iden-
tification as being hand1capped particularly if a child is 1dent1f1ed as
being serjously emotionally disturbed? Is all of a child' s behav1or neces-
sarily associated with h1s/her handicap? Is behav1or requ1r1ng disciplinary
action in and of itse]f an automatic cause for referral for identification as
being emotionally disturbed? For example, if a child identified as being
seriously 2motionally disturbed assaults a teacher, what are the circum-
stances, if any, in which that behavior might be unrelated to his/her hqndi-
cap? If the student was not identified‘as being serioué]y emotionally dis-

turbed, would the assault constitutea basis for a referra]fﬁr'such a

4




classification? )

2. Are there any 1imits to a school's responsibility to provide a
free appropriate public educ;tion to a handicapped child? What are the
restrictions on a school's disciplinary flexibility in dealing with handi-
capped children? For example, can seriously emotionally disturbed children
be expelled? If so, under what circumstances? If not, what options short
of expulsion are available?

* 3. How should disciplinary matters related to handicapped children

be decided? ¥ho can make such decisions? Are special procedures required

hecause of the existence of a handicapping condition? If so what are they?
—————------—-Are-due process requirements- identical for hahdicapbéd‘and non-handicapped
children in such matters?

4. What procedural safeguards are required if a school elects ex-
clusion as an alternative?

These are difficult questions. The statutes pertaining-to handicap-
ped cuildren do not speak divectly to the practice of disciplinary exclu-
sion. Instead, questions concerning the issues that surround the prac-
tice are included in several sectionsof the statutes and regulations éf
both P.L. 94-142 and Section 504. These sections do not necessarily speak
from the same persgective and in some cases appear to be in conflict.
Further, state and local laws and policies which are specific to discipli-
nary exclusion may find themselves at odds with some interpretations of
these various federal statutes. For example, federal statute does not
make FAPE contingeﬁt upon acceptable school behavior, yet it is possible

that a handicapped child's behavior would engage disciplinary policies

which require expulsion of students exhibiting that behavior. How are

12
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those kinds of conflicts to be resolved?

Judicial and Administrative Inf1uenc§s

Judicial decisions and OCR findings are beginning to build 2 set of
precedent that should serve to guide future actions of school districts re-
lative to disciplipary exclusion of seriously emotionally disturbed students.
Many of the above questions have been asked of and addressed by the courts
and OCR. It is now in order to review those decisions and findings and to
gain a sense of direction relative to these difficult questions. The orga-
ﬁization of this section, and much of its content, is credited to thé Na-
tional Center for Law and Education, Inc. Credit ic, of course, given for
quotes; however, special mention and thanks are in order for the complete
and clear research they have done on this topic. The first part of the
discussion will center upon the legislation and 1itigation that forms an
‘;vera11 framework for understanding the disciplinary exclusion issue as it
relates toemotionally disturbed students. The second part will return to
tpe previously posed informal questions and respond to those based upon the
framework set forth., It shoﬁ]d be noted that the full reference for the
court cases and OCR findings have not been cited in the body of the paper.
The full texts and citations of all cases appear in the appendiées. J

The National Center for Law and Education, in December, 1980, suc-
cintly stated:

The federal laws safeguarding the rights of students yith .
special needs have implications for disciplining students jden-
tified as handicapped, those with evaluations or appeals cending,
and students who may be perceived as handicapped, and, in parti-
cular, the circumstances under which they can be excluded through

disciplinary suspension or other exclusion.

Suspension and expulsion of handicapped students may be
illegal under P,L. 94-142, as well as Section 504 of the Rehabi-

13




Titation Act of 1973, and may be illegal for students ve-
ferred for evaluation or perceived to be handicapped on
one of the fcllowing grounds:

1) the right to a free appropriate public education which
includes specially designed instruction to meet the
student's individual needs.

2) the right to have any change in placement occur only
through the prescribed procedures.

3) the right to an education in the least restrictive
environment with maximum possible interaction with
.nonhandicappgd peers.

4) the right to continuation of the current educational
placement during the pendency of any hearing or appeal,
or during any proceeding relating to the identifica-
tion, evaluation, or educational placement of the
child cr' the provision of a free appropriate public

education.

5) the right not to be excluded from, denied benefits,
aids, or services, or be discriminated against on the
basis of one's actual or perceived handicapped status.

For students who have never been classified as handicapped or refer-
red to evaluation: '

Q

6) the right not to be excluded from, denied ‘bénefits,
aids, or services, or be discriminated against on the
basis of one's actual or perceiged handicapped status.,
While FAPE, LRE and Due Process are specifically required in P.L. 94-
142,35 well as in its regulations, one must look to the implementing regu-
lations 6f Section 504 in order to see those cancepts discussed specifical-
1y (see previous section of this paper). This is important to remember,
éince a ruling by OCR that a district was in violation of Section 504 by
denying FAPE (or LRE or Due Process) is not readily apparent simply by look-
ing at the statute itself. The decisions based on each of these grounds

will he examined. -

1. FAPE has been a central issue in many court cases and OCR com-

14
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plaints. With only few exceptions (Stanley v. School Admin. Unit No. 40,

1980), the courts and OCR have found that exclusion, expulsion, constructive
exclusion, and non-emergency suspension violate a handicapped child's right

to FAPE. Stuart v. Nappi, 1978, a case heard in y.S. District Court, has

proved a persuasive decision, not only in regard to FAPE, but also concern-

ing the other grounds previously lTisted. Both the decision and the }eason-

ing of that court have been deferred to in numerous ensuing cases. 1In

Stuart v. Nappi the court found that handigapped students (in this case a

Tearning disabled student with concomifant behavicral problems) would be
deprived of FAPE by any non-emergency exciusion from her current placement.

The Stuart v. Nappi case brings two additional points to light.

Since nonhandicapped students can be excluded (with appropriate dug‘process),
must the inappropriate studént behavior be related to the handicapping condi-
tion in order for FAPE to be violated by that exclusion? Secondly, if-<only
non-emergency exclusion violates FAPE, what constitutes emergency exclusion and

how may it be effected upon handicapped students?

As to the first point, there is less ?ﬁan unanimity of the subject.

Stuart v. Nappi states that "any non-emergency exclusion, regardless of

whether it was for behavior related to the handicapping condition, would de-
prive a handicapped student" of FAPE (National Center for Law and Education,
1978). (Emphasis added). This reasoning is in contradiction to reasoning

used in other cases (S-1 v. Turlington, 1981; Howard v. Friendswood Inde-

dependent School District, 1978; Doe v. Koger, 1979). These cases seem to
{ K
suggest that if the behavior of the student was not,re1a§ed to his/her han-

digap, then the student could be excluded. under the same procedures used for
nonhandicapped students. Interestingly, however, in only one (Stanlez V.

School Admin. Unit No. 40) of the 30 or more décisions examined did the
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“ycourt find that the behavior in question was not re]atéd to the handicap.
That one case may have been anomalous since 1ittle of the criteria used to
establish this type of conlcusion were included in any of the other cases.
Apparently, it is quite difficult to prove that a child's disruptive behan\

for is not associated with a handicap, and a presumption that it is, gen- h
erally holds sway. If this is the case for other handicaps. it would appear
jto be virtually impossible to be persuasive that this separation could be
made for a seriously emotionally disturbed studen:
Regarding the second point, what constitutes emergency exclusion,

Stuart v. Nappi agein reasoned persuasively. The reasoning quotes a com-

- —--ment to-45; C.F.R. 300.513 which states:

"While the placement may not be changed, this does not
preclude a school from using its normal procedures for deal-
ing with children who are endangering themselves or others."

It then goes on to say:

This somewhat cryptic statement suggests that sub-
section 1415(e)(3) prohibits discinlinary measures which
have the effect of changing a child's placement, while
permitting the type of procedures necessary for dealing
with a student who appears to be dangerous. This inter-
pretation is supported by a comment-to-the-comment which
states that the comment was added to make it clear that
schools are permitted to use their regular procedures for

- dealing with emergencies.

So, although handicapped students cannot be denied FAPE by non-emergency
exclusion, emergency exclusion procedures are available and make}it clear
% that: ]
"Handicapped children are neither immune from a school's
disciplinary process not are they entitled to particitpate in

programs when their behavior impairs the education of other
children in the program.* (Stuart v, Nappi)

Thus, it appears established that emergency exclusion of handicapped

students is permitted so long as due prucess is followed. More specifc




1) determini@g that any non-emergency exclusion of handicapped students

guidelines were established in Mattie T. v. Holladay, 1977, a case heard in

Northern District of Missicsippi. Emergency conditions exist when:
the child's behavior represents an immediate physical danger
to him/herself or others or constitutes a clear emergency
within the school such that removal from school is essential.
Such removal shall be for no more than 3 days and shall trig-
ger a ‘formal comprehensive review of the child's I.E.P. If
there is disagreement as to the appropriate placement of the
ckild, the child's parents shall be notified in writing of
their right to a SPED (Special Education) impartial due pro-
cess hearing. Serial 3-day removals from SPED are prohibited.

In summary, there would appear to be current judicial support for

violates FAPE; 2) the fact thaé it is difficult and/or unnecessary to de-
termine if the behavior is related to the handicap (if a child is handi-
capped then # 1 applies, regardless of g relationship or lack of ¢ to the
handicap); and, 3) emergency exclusion of handicapped student is permitted
under stringent conditions. ‘

A review of OCR opinions on this topic can be confusing in Tight of 77
the previous discussion. Often, OCR cites that districts are in violation

of Section 504 FAPE regulations for excluding a handicapped student prior

to determination by-<the district as to whether or not the behavior was re-

lated to the handicap (Seattle School (WA):District No. 1; Corinth Munici-
pa1.Separate‘School District; Lower Snogualmie Valley School District No.
40); Community (IL) Unit School District Number 300; and Fayette (MO) R-III
School District). OCR.reasoning is based upon the premise that any reaction
(i.e., exclusion) to a student's behavior is in violation of Section 504
only if that behavior is part of a'handicapping condition, in which case dis-

crimination based upon a handicapping condition is present. Whether or not

this distinction is semantically or factually different from some judicial
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decisions is probably a moot issue in that OCR has net, in the 17 complaints

reviewed, encountered a circumstance in which the behavior was determined
not to be related to the handicap. As mentioned previously, it is apparently
quite difficult to prove such a dichotomy. In all complaints on the issue,
OCR found FAPE to have been violated under Section 504 if non-emergency ex-
clusion was utilized. ‘

2. Grounds rumber 2 is hased on a combination of sta’utes. Very
specific procedural safeguards are accorded handicapped children in a variety
of situations, and change of placement is dé1ineated as one of those situa-
tions. Courts have eonsistiently reasoned that disciplinary exclusion consti-

tutes a change of placement (Blue v. New Haven, 1981; S-1 v. Turlington, 1981;

Stuart v. Nappi, 1978; Sherry v. New York State, 1979).

Given that, severai ptqéedﬂra1 safeguards apply: 1) parents must re-
cetve prior written noticeqffhe change (there are content requirements for
that rotice); 2) an appropriately constituted IEP committee’must re-evaluaté
the student's IEP (there ave specific requirements for this process); and 3)
although schools are not required to obtain parental permission prior to

change of placement, if parents object to the change, then an opportunity for

.@ due process hearing is required. It should be noted that these safeguards

are in addition to the due process procedures required by any suspension or

expulsion, Thus, if districts have excluded a handicapped student without

\\{Qljowing the previously cited safeguards, they have violated that student's

1egf§§qtive rights.
The Nat;sﬁal Center for Law and Education writes:

the court (Stuart v. Napni) rules that the "expulsion of handi-
capped children ... is inconsistent with the procedures estab-
lished by the~Handicapped Act for changing the placement of dis-
ruptive childrem." 443 F. Supp. at 1243." As noted above, the
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the Act does not preclude school authorities from dealing
with emergency situations by suspending handicapped stu-
— dents. 443 F, Supp. at 1242-43.. _ :

While reiterating this principle as originally set.
forth in Stuart, the Court of Appeals in S-1 stated that
an "expulsion is still a proper disciplinary tocl under
[P.L. 94-142] and Section 504 when tha proper pracedures
are utilized and under the proper circumstances." 635 F.
2nd at 348, The court emphasized that educational servizes
must continue to be provided during the expulsion period.

The ambiguity between the court's findings that ex-
pulsion is a proper disciplinary tool an¢ that educztional
services must continue to be provided during the expulsion
period can be clarified. Expulsion, as the term is used
by the court, can be defined as an exclusion of a handi-
capped student from his/her current (emphasis added) educa-
tional placement. This definition ®s consisten* with the
court's ruling that an expulsion constitute a change in
educational placement triggering the procedural protections

- of P.L. 94-142. Any attempt by school districts *o argue
that the court's ruling requires their providing only home-
bound tutoring should be susceptible to challenge. In most
instances, school districts will be unable to show that the
student is being provided an appropriate education in the
"least restrictive environment" as required under the change
in placement procedures.

These decisions would seem to indicate that, except in emergency

situations, exclusion from services is a violation of a handicapped stu-

dent's rights. In the event that ongoing emergency exclusion has occurred

other services should be provided and procedural safeguards must be followed.

"It should also be noted that, though a child may be excluded under
’%merg:hcy coﬁégtions. that too, constitutes a change of placemeat if it ex-
ceeds three days, and thus change of placement sateguards must be provided.
in addition to the usual due proéess requirements. Therefore, emergency
exclusion is not a means by which a district can initially excluded a child,

and then ignore procedural safeguards, since emergency suspension can not

be extended or made permanent, but must lead to re-evaluation and placement.




OCR has also found districts in violation of required due process re-
lative to exclusion defined as a change of placement (Seattle (WA) School

District Ne. 1.; Community (IL) Unit School District Number 300).

3

3. Education in the least restrictive environment is one of the most
critical guarantees of Public Law 94-142 and Section 504. This guaranteg
precludes restrictive placement based on categories of handicapping condi-
tions and allowing placement only based upon individual need. Stated posi-
tively, students are to remain with nonhandicapped peers to the greatest

extent possible, Both Stuart v. Nappi and Friendswood (also a U.S.

District Court decision) utilized LRE as a basis for refusing districts the

option of exclusion. Ajain, we can turn to the text of the Stuart case for

clarification:

- — -~ An expulsion has the effect not only of changing a student's
placement, but aiso of restricting the availability of alter-

native placements. For example, plaintiff's expulsion may

well exclude her from a placement that is appropriate for her

academic and social development. This result flies in the

face 'of the explicit mandate of the Handicapped Act which re-

quires that all placement decisions be made in conformity with

a child's right to an education in the least restrictive envi-

~ronment. Id. 443 F. Supp. at 1242-43.

In the cases reviewed, OCR did not use LRE as a basis for determining
violations of Section 504 due to disciplinary exclusics. This is not to say
that it might not have been possible, simply that OCR*was presented with com-
plaints concerning disciplinary exclusion that were couched in terms of de-

nial of FAPE or due process.

4. The right to continuation of the current placement during certain
proceedings is guaranteed under P.L. 94-142. Those "certain proceedings"

include "provisions concerning any proposal to initiate or change or refusal




to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or placement of the

- child or the provision of FAPE" (National Center for Law and EduEation).
Two criti:al points follow here; the first is explicit: since expulsion is
a change of placement, any challenge to that “"placement" will invoke pro-
cedural safeguards which require that the student remain in his/her current

placement unless emergency suspension has occurred (Howard v. Friendswood;

Stuart v. Nappi).

In that case, emergency suspension does not constitute

a chepgé'of placement unless suspension is for more than 10 cumulative days

(ational Center for Law and Education). The second point is that this

safeguard applies to students who have been referred -for evaluation evun -

though they have not been identified as handicapped. This prohibits d+s-

tricts from excluding a student who might reasonably be expected t5 be

. (:. handicapped and therefore entitled to the rights under P.L. 94-142. The

reasoning for all the above is clearly stated in S-1 v. Turlington (hezrd

in U.S. District Court): "disciplinary proceedings do not supersede the

rights of handicapped children under the Handicapped Act".

5 & 6. As previously indicated, OCR investigations of Section 504

violations, and court decisions based upon Section 504 (as well as P.L. 94.

142) generally look to the requirements of FAPE, LRE, and due process in de-

termining if Section 504 has been violated. If these three requirements as

set forth in the Section 504 regulations have been violated, then discrimi-

nation based upon a handicap is determined. These three requirements and

OCR/judiciat findings have already been presented.

Discussion

With that background in mind, let us turn to the earlier informally

%




posed nuestions. They will be considered in the same order in which they ’
were‘presented. |
1. Although some court decisions and OCR rulings have indicated
that a behavior must be related to the handicap ip order for a handicapped
student to rece{ve Jspecial" disciplinary considerations,.there are twp
reasons why there does not appear to be a need to pursue this line of
thought: a) even among court decisions and OCR rulings that maintain this
re&soning, only one of 30 court cases and none of 17 OCR finaings reviewed
were able to make a distinction between the disruptive behavior and the‘

child's handicapping condition; and b) Stuart v. Nappi argues persuasively

that the issue is irrelevant since a handicapped student cannot, under any
circumstances, be denied FAPE, and exclusion does just that.

There is not a body of judicial or administrative decisions to sug-
gest that any behavior which warrents disciplinary action should also re-
quirea referra) for evaluation as a possible handicapping condition. How-
ever, if referral for evaluation has occurred prior to the behavior event,

then }-ocedural safeguards accorded handicappad students are extended to

the referred student. Some courts have not heald this opinion (Mrs. A.J.

v. Special School District No. 1), but it appears that the movement is in

favor of extending these safeguards to referred students,

2. A school may never deny FAPE to a handicapped student. The
school's flexibility 1ies in: a) emergency suspension followed by processes
to assure FAPE; b) re-evaluation nf IEPs prior to exclusion (as due process

requires) and the opportunity t. determine if another placement is more suit-

able for a student: and c) provision of appropriate services during an ex-

clusion from current placement.




'cons1der change“of placement

"~

3, Due precess requtrenents are not 1dent1ca1 for hand1capped and

-

nonhand1capped P.L. 94-142 and Section 504 accord add1t1ona1 aue process

rigbts LO hand1capped students Disciplinary matters shou]d ‘be decided in

.evaluat1on or reeva1uat1on staff1ngs which occur because nf the ne\H to

-

- L

. The key decis1on makers 1n these k1nds of dvsc1p11nar\ matters appear -
to be the appropr1ate1y const1tuted IEP cOnmnttee as defaned by re]evant EHA

regu]attons at federa], state, and. loca1 levels. 'Th1s committee dis vested

Al

with what appears to be the crrt1ca1 decis1on in these cases -- the, appro-

-

priateness: of p1acement. The apptopriateness issue .also hnnges on the con-

. tent of the IEP since it is in the specific gea1s.and objectives 1isteq

‘that the effectiveness of the IEP must. be eva]uated;. Most of the judicial aﬁd

OCR decisions examined referred the u?timete.decision ahout.appropriate
p1acement back to the IEP committee. It'shouid be noted'that precedent has
been set which indicates that school boards, who have tradittona11y egeri
cised final decision making ¢n school exclusion, are not‘the appi‘opriatc de-

cision makers for handicapped students (S-1 v. Turlington). The rationale

is that school board officials lack the necessary expertise to determine

- appropriateness of placement for handicapped students.

As of this writing, exclusion, with the exception of temporary sus-
pension of no more than 10-15 days cumulative per school year (P-1 v.
Shedd consent decree), is universally considered to be a change of place-
ment for handicapped children triggering EHA and Section 504 protection.

Serial suspension is frowned upon (Mattie v. Hclladay) since the intent

of suspension is to deal with emergencies, and the use of serial suspension

does not appear consistent with this intent. The inclusion of expuision
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or other disciplinary procedures as a part of a student's LEP is deemed per-
missible so Tong as the IEP is indivddqaiized to meet specific individﬁﬁizﬂ\
needs and is not a vehicle for circumventing the FAPE protection of federak
law. Both suspen51on and expulsion are generally con51dered to be proper
discipiinary tools under EHA and Section 504 so Tong as: 1) they are appro-
priately 1nc1udeg in a student’g\iﬁP; 2) follow the procedural: requirements

of EHA and Section 504; and, 3) do not result in a complete and permanent

- - cessation of provision of education services (S-1 v. Turlington).

4, Thg procedural safeguards outlined in P.L. 94-142 and Section 504

are required either prior to or Concomitant with any form of exclusion.

. - Summary

Barring decisions or rulings py the courts or OCR which depart ra-
dicai]y from current positions, past decisions can be meshed*and cynthesized
to produce a broad framework and some concrete direction for Tocal districts
to utiiize as they face disc1p11nary ‘issues 1nvo]v1ng handicapped students:
The framework and concrete direction, as provided by ;he court decisions and
OCR, are consistent within certain parame%ers. These directions would indi;

cate to school districts that 1) it ts probable that any permanent exclusion

of a handicapped student vioiates the FAPE requirement, and 2) the procedural

safeguards outlined-in- previous case law ihat affect all students, in P.L.
- 94-142, and 1n Section 504 must be appiied\to handicapped students in all

‘cdses where any type of exclusion, emergency or otherwise, is contempiated

-

These two directions, used as guiding principles, will goa long way toward
assuring the- guaranteed rights of handicapped students.

If local school systems were ‘to revise their overall disciplinary
policies in such a way as to take into account tpe thruet of the decisions

described and analyzed in this paper, they may avoid.potenfial conflict and

s
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litigation as well as the need to establish dual disciplinary systems, i.e.,

one for the handicapped and one for the nonhandicapped.

Issues Not Yet Addressed

Several issues exi;t which have either not been addressed, or have
not been addressed sufficiently to discuss a clear thrust of interpretation.
These will 1ikely continue to be clarified in upcoming decisions. The fact -
that Section 504 specifically includes alcoholism and chemical dependency
as hand1capp1ng conditions (and its general broad inclusiveness of definition
of handicaps) is something which has not yet recejved attention relative to
discipline. These types of behavior are often some of the very ones which
specifically involve disciplinary action. Another controversial area will be
criteria used to establish “appropriate"- placement in the 1esst restrictive .
environment given the propensity of a child to behave in ways likely to have

disciplinary consequences, and whether IEPs could/should routine]§ include

disciplinary procedures. This area is squarely the responsibility of the -
IEP committee and, thus, might best be resolved @hroubh professional rather
than judicial means. Judges will 1ikely be hesitant to become involved in
these types of issues, although a lack of professional attention could pro-
voke judicial intervention. An extremely difficult question that has sur-
facea in some court findings and may become increasingly prominent is that
of whether or not exc]qsion was due to inappropriate behavior that resulted
. from an inappfopriate placement. If so, how does this fact affect dec1s1ons

concerning the exc]us1on and liabilities resulting from the exclusion. Yet

.another question whichhas not been addressed is the manner in which the

“rules" that géve?n disciplinary exclusion might also apply to discip®inary

in-School suspensions. A'final unaddressed issue is one concerning what,
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if any, effect would result from a change in the P.L. 94-142 or Section
504 statutes or regulations. Given the curren* political climate, such
changes are a possibility. Were they to occur, the basis for some of the
legai precedents could be undermined.

Due to the limitless scope of situations potentially placing handi-

capped children ig;d1sc1p11nary situations, it is d1ff1cu1t to predict

what other unresolved issues will surface. It would appear, however, that
many of the foundatiqﬁe] judicial interpretations of federal policy in the

area of disciplinary exclusion of handicapped children have been estab-

"Vished, requiring only further elaboration and detail, rather than entirely

new thrusts.

s
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APPENDICES

The full text of statutes, regulations, court cases and OCR find;

ings that were cited in the body of this paper are included in the

appendices. The organization is as follows:

Appendix A:

Appendix

. _+ Appendix
: Appendix
Appendix
Appendix

E:
F:

Public Law 94-142 (Selected Statutes) and
Related Sections of Implementing Regylations

Section 504 and Related Sectiort of Implement-
ing Regulation b

Annotated Court Cases

Court Cases: Full Text
Summary of OCR Complaint LOFS
OCR Complaint LOFS: Full Text

Thé Education for the Handicapped Law Report is the source of most

e TS

of the above texts. Their permission and cooperation in making these

texts available is greatly appreciated.
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APPENDIX A

PUBLIC LAW 94-142 (SELECTED STATUTES) AND RELATED SECTIONS
OF IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS '

§ 1401(18). {*‘Free appropriate public education’)

l (18) The term *‘free appropriate public education”* means spevial cducation and related sarvices

which (A) have been provided at public expense, under public supervision and direction. and without
charge, (B) meet the standards of the State educational agency, (CYinclude an appropriate preschool.
clementary, or secondary school education in the Stats involved. and (D) are provided in conformity
with the individualized education program required under section 1414(a)(S) of this title.

REGULATIONS '

Reg. 300.4 Free appropriate public education.

As used in this part. the term **free appropriate public
education” means special education and related services
which: Co

(@) Are prov ded at public expense, under public supervi-
sion and directin, and without charge.

(b} Mect the 1'andards of the State cducational agency,
including the requ.~ements of this part,

(c) Include presci.ool, elzmentary school, or secondary
school education in the State involved, and
_ () Are provided in conformity with an individualized
education program which micets the requirements under
Regs. 300.340—300.349 of Subpar: C.

§ 1412(5X(B). [Least restrictive environment]

Reg. 300.301 Free appropria'te public education—
niethods and payments. :

(a) Each S‘latc nay use whatever State, local, Federal. und
private sources of support are avinluble in the State to meet
the requirements of this part. For example. when it is aeces-
sury to place a handicapped child in o residential facility. a
State could use joint agreements between the agencies in-
valved for sharing the cost of that placeent.

() Nothing in this part relicves n insurer or sinlar third
purty from an otherwise valid oblgatian to provide ur to pay
tor services provided to a hundicapped child.

(RSP -,

(B) procedures to assure that, to the maximum extent appropriate, handicapped children, including
children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children who are not
handicapped, and that special classes, separate schooling. or other removal of hardicupped children

that education in regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved

l
S from the regular educational environment occurs only when the nature or severity of the hundicap is such

satisfactorily, and

REGULATIONS

Reg. 300.132  Least restrictive environment,

Regs. 300.550-300.556 of Subpart E.

(a) Each annual program plan must include procedures
which insufe that the requirements in Regs. 300.550-
300.556 of Subpart E are met.

(b) Each annual program plan must include the following
information:

(1) The number of handicapped children in the State,
within each disability category, who are participating
in regular education programs, consistent with

“(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company, I
et POPIQ d:-.with: Dern’ et
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(2) The number of handicapped children who are in sepa-
rate classes or separate school facilities. or who are otherwise
removed from the regular education environment.

Reg. 300.305 Program options.

Each public agency shall take steps to insure that its handi-
capped children have available to them the variety of educa-
tional programs and services available to nonhandicapped




children in the area served by the agency, including an,
music, industrial arts, consumer and homemaking education,
and vocational education.

Comment. ‘The above list of program options is not exhaustive,

and could include any program or activity in which nonhandicapped
students participate. Moreover, vocational education programs
must be specially designed if necessary to enablc u handicapped
student to benefit fully from those programs; and the set-aside funds
under the' Vocational Education Act of 1963, ay amended by
Pub. L. 94-482, may be uséd for this purpose. Purt B funds may
also be used, subject to the priority requircments under
Regs 300.320-300 324.

Reg. 300.306 ﬁonncadcmlc services.

(a) Each public agency shall take steps to provide
nonacademic and extracurricular services and activities in
such manner as is necessary to afford handicapped children
an equal opportunity for participation in those services and
activities.

{b) Nonacademic and extracurricular services and ac-
tivities may include counseling services, athletics, transpor-
tation, health services, recreational activities, special interest
groups ot clubs sponsored by the public agency, referrals to
agencies whith provide assistance to handicapped persons,
atd cmploymcnl cf students, mcludm;, both ciployment by
the public agency and assistance in making outside employ-
ment available.

Reg. 300.307 Physical education.

(a) General. Physical education services, ‘specially de-
signed if ‘necessary, must be made available to every handi-
capped child receiving a free 2ppropriate public education.

(b) Regular physical education. Each handicapped child
must be afforded the opportunity to participate in the regular
physical education program avatlable to nonhandicapped
children unless:

(1) The child is enrolied full time in a separate facility; or

¢2) The child needs specially designed physical education,
as prescribed in the child’s individualized education
program.

() Speciul physicul education. I specially designed phys-
ical education is prescribed in a child's individualized educa-
tion program, the public agency responsible for the education
of that child shall provide the services directly, or make
arrangements for it to be provided through other public or
private programs.

(d) Education in separate facilities. The public agency
responsible for the education of a handicapped child who is
enrolled in a separate facility shall insure that the child
receives appropriate physical education services in com-
pliance with paragraphs (a) and (c) of this section.

Commenm. The Report of the House of Representatives on
Pub. L. 94- 142 includes the following statement regarding physical
education:

Special education as set forth i the Comnmuttee bill includes
invruction in physical education. which s provided as a matter of

- (c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permi ssion. .
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course to all nonhandicapped children enrolied in pubhe clementary
and secondary schools. The Comnuttee s concemed that although
these services are available 1o and required of all children in our
school systems, they are often viewed as a luaury for handicapped
children.
LI 2 J

The Cominittee expects the Comnussioner of Education to tuke
whatever action is necessary to assure that physical educanon ser-
vices are available to all handicapped children, and has specificalty
included physical education within the defiminon of spevtal educa-
tion to make clear that the Committee expeets such services, spe-
cially designed where necessary, to be provided as an mtegral pan
of the educational peogramy of ¢ vy handicappad child

Reg. 300,533 Placement procedures.

(a) In interpreting evaluation data and in making place-
ment decisions, each public ugency shall:

(1) Draw upon information from a variets of sources,
including aptitude and achicvemient tests. teacher recom-
mendations, physical conditioa, social or (ltural
background. and adaptive behuvior:

(2) Insure that information obtained from ol of these
sources is documented and carctubiv conadered.

{3) Insure that the platenient dectsion iy made by agroup
of persons. including pernons hnow ledgeable about the child,
the meantng of the valuation data. and the placement aptions
and

(4) Insure that the placenient decision is inade in confor-
mity with the least restrictive environmemt rules in
Regs. 300.550-300.554.

{(b) If a determination is made that a child is handicapped
and needs special education and related services, an indi-
vidualized education program must be developed for the
child in accordance with Regs. 300 340-300.349 of
Subpart C.

Conuient. Psragraph (a)(1) includes a hist of examples of sources
that may be used by a public agency in makang placement decisions.
The agency would not have to use all the sources 1n cvery instance
The point of the requirement is 1o insure that nore s aan one source 1s
used in interpreting evaluation data and in making placement deci-
sions. For exaniple, while all of the named wurces would have 10 be
used for a child whose suspecied disatulity 15 mental retardation,
they would not be necessary for centamn other handicapped chitdren.
such as achild who has a severe articulation disorder as his primary
handicap. For such a child. the speech-language pathologist, in
complying with the multisoures requirement, might use (1) a stan-
dardized test of articulation, and (2) observation of the, child’™s
articulation behavior in convensational speech.

Reg. 300.550 General,

(a) Each State educational agency shall insure that each
public agency establishes and implements procedurés which
meet the rquirements of Regs. 30(.550-3(k) 556.

(b) Each public agency shall insure-

(1) That to the maximum extent appropriate. handicapped
children, including children in public or private institutions
orother care facilities, are educated with children who are not
handicapped, and
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" (2) That special classes, separate schooling or other re-

. moval of handicapped chi'dren from thé regular educational
environment occurs only when the nature or severity of the
handicap is such that education in regular classes with the use
of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved
satisfactorily.

Reg. 300.551 Continuum of alternative placemants,

(a) Each public agency shall insure that a continuum of
aliemative placements is available to meet the needs of

handicapped children for special education and related

services.

(b) The continuum required under paragraph (a) of this
section-must:

(1) Include the alternative placements listed in the defini-
tion of special education under Reg. 300.13 of Subpan A
(instruction in regular classes, special classes, special
schools, home instruction, and instruction in hospitals and
institutions), and :

(2) Make provision for supplementary services (such as

. resource room of itincrant instruction) to be provided in
conjunction with reguius ck:ss placement.

Reg. 300,552 Placements.

Each public agency shall insure that:

() Each handicapped child’s educational placement: (1) Is
determined at least annually,

(2) Is based on his or her individualized education pro-
gram, and .

(3) Is as close as possible to the child’s home;

(b) The various alternative placements included under
Keg. 300.551 are available "o the extent necessary to imple-
ment the individualized education program for each hanai-
capped child;

(c) Unless a handicapped child’s individualized education
program requises some other arrangement, the child is edu-
cated in the school which he or she would attend if not
handicapped: and

(d) In selecting the least restrictive environment, consider-
ation is given to any potential hanmful effect on the child or
on the quality of services which he or she needs.

Comment. Reg. 300.552 includes some of the main factors
which must be considered in determining the extent to which a
handicapped child can be educated with children who are not handi-
capped. The overriding rule in this section is that placement deci-
sions must be made on an individual basis. The section also requires
each agency to-have various alternative placements: available in
osder to insure that each handic spped child receives an education
which is appropriate 10 his or her individual needs: ‘

The analysis of the regulations for Section 504 of the Rehabilita-
tion Act of 1973 (34 CFR Pant 103—Appendi<, Paragraph 24)

~ (c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
.o veproduced with persmission.

includ?s several points regarding educational pl:cements of handi-
capped children which are pertinent (o this section:

1. With respect to determining proper placeaaents, the analysis
states: *** ¢ * it should be stressed that, where a handicapped child
is so disruptive in a regular classroom that the education of other
students is significantly impaired, the needs of the handicapped
child cannot be met in that environment. Therefore regular place-
ment would not be appropriate to his or her need * * *.*°

2. With respect to placing a handicspped child in an altemate
setting, the analysis stzies that among the factors to be crznsidered in
placing a child is the need to place the child as close to home as
possible. Recipients are required to take this factor into account in
making placement decisions. The parents’ right to challenge the
placement of their child extends not only 1o placement in spécial
classes or separate schools, but also to placement in a distant school,
particularly in a residential program. An equally appropriate educa-
tion program may exist closer to home; and this issue may be raised
by the parent under the due process provisions of this subject.

Reg. 300.553 Non-academic settings.

In providing or arranging for the provision of non-
academic and extra-curricular services and activities, includ-
ing meals, recess periods, and the services and activities set
forth in Reg. 300.306 of Subpart C, each public agency shall
insure that each handicapped child participates with non-
handicapped children in those services and activities to the
maximum extent appropriate to the needs of that child.

Comment. Reg. 300.553 is taken from a new requirement in
the final regulations for Section 5C4 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973. With respect to this requireinent. the analysis of the Section

504 Regulations includes the foilowing statement: **{A new para-

graph] specifies that handicapped children must also be provided
non-academic services in as integrated a setting as possibie. Thiz
requirement is especially important for children whose educational
needs necessitate their being solely with other handicapped children
during most of each day. To the maximum extent appropriate,
children in residential settings are also to be provided opportunitiet
for participation with other children.”” (34 CFR Pan
104—Appendix, Paragraph 24.)

Reg.300.554 Children in public or private institutions.

Each State educational agency shall make arrangements
with public and private institutions (such as a memorandum
of agreement or special implementation procedures) as may
be necessary to insure that Reg. 300.550 is cffectively
implemented. .

Comment. Under Section 612(SXB) of the stanste, the require-
ment to educate handicapped children with nonhandicapped chil-
dren also applies to children in public and private institutions or
other care facilities. Each State educational agency must insure that
euch applicable agency and in<titution in the State implements this
requirement. Regardiess of other reasons for institutional place-




ment, 0o child in an institution who is capable of education in a

regular public school setting may be denied access to an education in

Shet setting.

Reg. '300.555 Technical assistance and training
activities.

. Each State educational agency shall carry out a<tivities to
iasure that teachers and administrators in all public agencies:
(a) Are fully informed about their responsibilities for im-
plementing Rcz. 300.550, and
() Are provided with technical assistance and training
secessary to assist them in this effort.

@ '€) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,

Reg. 300.556 Monitoring activities.

(a) The State educational agency shall carry out activities
tu insure that Reg. 300.550 is implemented by eacn public
agenay.

(b) If there is evidence that a public agency mekes place-
menis that are inconsistent with Reg. 300.550 of this sub-
part, the State educational agency: -

(1) Shalt review the public agency's justification for its
actions, and

(2) Shall assist in planning and imylementing any neces-
sary corrective action.

'k
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§ 1415. Procedurs} safeguards

§ 1415(a). {Establishment and maintenance] .
l (2) Any State educational agency, any local educational agency. and any intermediate educational
urit which receives assistance under this subchapter shal? establish and maintain procedures 1n accor-

—LAW

REGULATIONS

Reg. 300.10 Parent.

As used in this part, the term *“parent’* mcans a parent, a
guandian, a person acting as a parent of a child, or a surrogate
arent who has been appointed in accordance with
cg. 300.514. The term does not include the State i the
child is a ward of the State.

Comment The term “parent™ js defined 10 include perons
acting in the place of a purzit. such as a grandmother or stepparent
with whom a child lives. as well as persons who are legally respon.
sible for a child’s welfare.

Reg. 300.514 Surrogate parents,

(a)Generul. Each public agency shall insure that the rights
of a child are protected when:.

(1) No parent (as defined in Reg. 300.10) can be
identified:

(2) The public agency, after reasonable efforts, cannot
discover the whercabouts of a parent; or

(3) The child is a ward of the State under the laws of that
State.

_(b) Duty of public agency. The duty of a public agency
under paragraph (a) of this section includes the assignment of
an individual to act as a surrogate for the parents. This must
include 2 method (1) for determining whether a child needs a
surrogate parent, and (2) for assigning a surrogate parent tc
the child.

(¢c) Criteriu for selection of surrogates. (1) The public
agency may select a surrogate parent in any way permitted
under State law.

(2) Public agencies shall insure that a person selected as a
surrogite:

(i) Has no interest that conflicts with the interest of the
child he or she represents: and

tiiy Has knowledge and skills, that insure adequate repre-
sentation of the child.

(d) Non-employee requ.. sment; compensation. (1) A per-
son assigned as a surrogate may not be an.employee of a
public agency which is involved in the education or care of
the child. .

{2) A peron who otherwise qualities o be @ surrogate
pareat under paragraphierand (i of this section, 1s ot an
employee of the agencs solely because he orshe s paid by the
ECICY L0 NIVE s surTogite parent

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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Jance with subsection (b) through subsection (¢) of this section to assure that handicapped children and
their parents or guardians are guaranteed procedural safeguards with respect 10" the provision of free
appropriate public education by such agencies and units.

() Respomsibilities. The surrogate parent may represent
the chitd in all matters relating o

(1) The identification. evalustion, and educational
placcinent of the child. and

{2) The provision ol a free appropriate public education to
the child.

Reg. 300.500 Definitions of **consent,™ **evaluation,”
and “*personally identifiable."

As used in this part: “"Consent”” means that: (a) The
parent has been fully infored of alt infonuation relevant to
the activits tfor which consent 1s sought. in his or her native
language. or other mode of communication;

(b) The parent understands and .agrees in writing to the
carrying out of the activity for which his or her consent is
sought, and % consent describes that activity and lists the
records (it any) which will be refeased and o whom: and

{¢)} The parent understands that the granung of consent is

voluntary on the pan of the parent and may be revoked at 2ny
time. -
**Evaluation”” mcans procedures used 1n accordance with
Rcgs. 300.530-300.534 to dciernune whether a child 1s
handicapped and the nature and extent of the special educa-
tion and related services that the child needs The term means
procedures used selectively with an indsvidual child and does
not include basic tesis administered to or procedures used
with all children in a school, grade. or cliss,

**Personally identifiable™ means that information
includes:

{a) The name of the child. the child’s parent, or other
family member:

(b) The address of the child;

(c) A personal identifier, such as the child’s social secu-

rity number or student number: or

(d) A list of personal characteristics or other information
which would make it possible o identify the child with
reasonable certainty.

Reg. 300.501 General responsibility of public agencies.

Each State cducatianal agency shall insure that cach public
agency establishes and implements procedural safeguards
which meet the requiremnents of Regs. 300, 500.300 §14.

L
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§ 1415(XIXC). [Prior written notice]

l (C) written prior notice to the parents or guardian of the child whenever such agency or unit—

(i) proposes to initiate or change, or
S (i) refuses to initiate or change,

the identification, evaluation, or educational
appropriate public education to :he child;

placement of the child or the provision of z free

REGULATIONS

Reg. 300.504 Prior notice; parent consent.

(a) Norice. Written notice which meets the requirements
under Reg. 300.505 must be given 10 the parents of a handi-
capped child a reasonable time hefore the public agency:

(1) Proposes to initiate or change the identification.
eyaluation. or evucational placement of the child or the

provision of a iree appropriate public education to the child,
or

{2} Refusestoinitiate or change the identification, evalua-
tion. or educatiena! plucement of the child or the provision of
a free appropriate public education to the child.

(b) Conseni. (1) Parental consent must be obtained
before:

(i) Conducting a preplacement evaluation; and

(ii) Initial placement of\a handicapped child in a program
providing special educatidp and related services.

(2) Except for preplacement evaluation and initial place-
ment. consent may not be required as 2 condition of any
bencfit to the parent or child.

() Procédures where parent refuses consent. (1) Where
State law requires parental consent before a handicapped
child is evaluated or initially provided special education and
related services, State procedures govem the public agency
in overriding a parent's refusal to consent.

(2)(1) Where there is no State law requiring consent before

. . i

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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a handicapped child is evaluated or initially provided special
education and related services, the public agency miy use the
hearing provedures in Regs  300.506-300. 50K to determine
if the child may be evaluated or inmally provided special
cducation and related services without parental consent
(ii) If the hearing officer upholds the ageney . the agency
may evaluate or initially provide special cducation and e
lated services to the child without the parent’s consent. sub-
ject to the parent’s rights under Regs. 300.510-300 §13.

Comment. 1. Any changes in u childs special education pro-
granl, after the initial placement, are n:t wbjedt to parental consent
under Part B. but arc subject to the prios notice requirentent n
paragraph (a) and the individualized education program require-
ments in Subpart C.

2. Paragruph (c) means inat where State law requires parental
consent before evaluation or before speciat education and related
servicss are initially provided, and the parént refuses (or utherwise
withholds) consent. State procedures. such us obtaining &t cournt
order authorizing the public agency to cenduct the evaluation or
provide the education and related services. must be followed

If. however. there is no legal requirement for consent outside of
these regulations, the public agency muay use the due process proce-
dures under this subpart to obtain a decision 10 allow the evaluation
or services without parental consent. The agency must notify the
parentofits actions, and the parent has appeal rights as well as rights
at the hearing itself.
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§1415(eX3). [Child placement during proceedings|

' . (3) During the pendency of any proceedings conducted pursuant to this section. unless the State or

—LAW

. proceedings have been completed.

local educational agency and the parents or guardizin otherwise agree, the child <hall remain in the then
current educational plucement of such child, or. if applying for inttial adnussion to 4 public school,
shall, with the consent of the parents or guasdian, be placed in the puhlic school program unti! all such

REGULATIONS

Reg. 300.513 Child’s status during proceedings.

(a) During, he pendency of any sdministrative or judicial
proceeding regarding a complaint. uless the public agency
and the parents of the child agree otherwise, the child in-
volved in the complaint must remain in his or her present
educational placenent.

(b) If the complaint involves an application for initial
admission to public school, the child, with the consent of the

§1415(e)(4). {Jurisdiction of U.S. district courts)

parcnts, imust be placed in the public whool program untif the
completion of all the proceedings.

Comnent. Scenon 30,513 docs not permsit a child's placement
o be chunged during a complaint proceeding. unfess the parents and
agency agree otherwise: While the placement inay not he changed.
this does net preclude the agency from usin & 1s nonnal procedures.
fordeling with children who are endangenng theniselves or others.

(4) The district couns of the United States shall have jurisdiction of actions brought under this

subsection without regard to the amount in controversy.
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Reg. 104.33 Free appropriste public education.

. (a) General. A recipient that operates a public elementary
. or secondary education program shall provide a frec appro-
C priate public education to each qualified har.dicapped person
who is in the récipient’s jurisdiction, regardless of the nzture
or severily of the person’s handicap. .
, (b) Appropriate education. (1) For the purpose of this
. . subpart, the provision of ap anoropriate education is the
i provision of regular or special educ..ion and related aids and
services that (i) aré designed to meet individual educational
needs of handicapped persons as adequately as theeeds ol
nonhandicapped persons are met and.(if) i upon
’ adherence (o ures that satisfy the requirements of
. Regs. 104.34, 104.35, and 104.36.

i (2) Implementation of an individualized education pro-
gram developed in accordance with the Education of the
Handicapped Act is one means of meeting the standard estab-
lished in paragraph (bX(1)(i) of this section.
(3) A recipient may place a handicapped persaiis-or refer
such person to a program other than the one that it operates as
its means of carrying out the requirements of this subpart. If
20, the recipient remains responsible for ensuring that the
. - tequirements of this su*part sr¢’ met with respect to any

£ nandicapped person so placed or referred.
‘ (¢) Free education (1) General. Fex ihe purpose of this
- section, the provision of 2 free education is the provision of
T educations! and related services without cost to the hand-
. icapped person or to his or her parents or guardian, except for
, those fecs that are imposed on nonhandicapped persons or
their parents or guardian. It may consist either of the provi-
sion of free services or, if a recipient places a handicapped
person in or refers such person to a program not operated by

©{ --thesecipient as its means of carrying out the requirements of
o this subpart, of payment for the costs of the program. Funds
& available from any public or private sgency may be used to
% meet the requirements of this subpart. Nothing in thamsection

Q - . 36
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Service. The head of each such agency shatt

SECTION 504 AND RELATED SECTIONS OF "
IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS

-~

§794. Nondiscrimination under Federal grants and programs. _—

No otherwise qualified hanicapped individual in the United States. as defined in section 706(6) of this’

title, shall, solely by reason of his handicap., be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits

of, or be subjected to discrimination under any programor activity receiving Federal financial assistance

by any Executive agency or by the United States Postal

romulgate such regulations as may be necessary to carry

out the amendments to this section made by the Rehabilitation. Comprehensive Services, and Develap-
mental Disabilities Act of 1978. Copics of any proposed regulation shall be submitted to appropriate

! authorizing committees of the Congress, and such regulation may tahe etfect no carlier than the thirtseth
day after the date on which such regulation i so submitted to such commutiees

2ub. L.93-112, Title V, § 504. Sept. 26, 1973, 87 St 394; amended Pub. L..95-602, Title 1§ 119, Nov. 9,1978.

»

shall be construed to relieve an insurer or similar third party
from an otherwise valid obligation iv provide or pay for
services provided to a handicapped person. -

(2) Transportation. 1f a recipient place- a handicapped
person in or refers such persou to a program not operated by
the recipient as its means of carrying out the requirements of
this subpart, the recipient shall ensure that adequate transpor-
tation to and from the program is provided at no greater cost
than would be incurred by the person or his or her parents or
guardian if the person were placed in the program operated by
the recipient.

(3) Residential placement. If placement in a puhlic or, .
private residential program is necessary to provide a frec.
appropriate public education to a handicapped person be-
cause of his or her handicap, the program, including non-
medical care and room and board, shall be provided at no cost
to the person or his or her parcnts or guardian.

(4) Placement of hundicapped persans by parents. If a
recipient has made available, in conformance with the te: -
quirements of this section and Reg. 104.34, a trec appropn-
ate public educution to a handicapped person and the person's -
parents or puardisn choose'to place the person in a prvate
school, the recipient is not required to pay for the peron®s
‘education in the piivate school. Disagreements between o

* parent or guardian and a recipient regarding whether the
recipient has made such a program available or vtherwise
regarding the question of financial responsibility are subyect
to the due process procedures of Reg. 1u4.36. '

(d)Compliance. A recipient may not exclude any qualified
handicapped person from a public elementary or secondary
education afier the effective date of this part. A recipient that
is not, on the effective date of this regulation, in ful} com-
pliance with the other requircments of the preceding para-
graphs of this section shall meet such requirements at the
carliest practicable time and in no event later than
September |, 1978. .

437 :
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Reg. 104.34° Educational setting.

. ~{a) Academic setting. A recipient to which this' subpart

applies shall educate, or shall provide for the education of,
each qualified handicapped person in its jurisdiction with
persons who are not handicapped to the maximum extent
appropriate to the needs of the handicapped person. A recip-
ient shall place a handicapped person in the regular cduca-
tional environment operated by the recipient unless it is
demonstrated by the recipient that the education of the person
.in the regularenvironment with the use of supplementary aids
and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. Whenever a
recipient places a person in a setting other than the regular
educational environment pursuant to this paragraph, it shall
take into account the proximity of the alternate setting to the
person’s home.

(b) Nonacademic settings. In providing or arranging foz
the provision of nonacademic and extracurricular services
and activities, including meals, recess periody, and the ser-
vices and activities set forthin Reg. 104.37(a)(2). a recipient -
shall ensure that handicapped persons participate with non-
handicapped persons in such activitics and services 1o the
maximum extent appropriate to the needs of the handicupped
person in question. . :

(cy Comparable fucilities. If a recipient, in compliance
with paragraph (a) of this section, operates a facility that is .

. ioentifisble as being for handicapped persons, the recipient.

_shall ensure that the facility and the services and activities
provided therein are comparable to tl.z other facilities, ser-
vices, and activities of the recipient. . -

-

‘Reg. 104.36 Procedural safepuards,

A recipient that operates a public elementary or secondary
education program shall establish and implement, with re-
spect to actions regarding the identification, evaluation, or
educational placement of persons who, because of handicap.
need or are believed to need special instruction or related
services, a system of procedural safeguards that includes

- notice, an opportunity for the parents or guardian of the
person to examine relevant records, an imparticl hearing with
opportunity for participation by the person's parents or
guardian and representation by counsel, and a review proce-
dure. Compliance with the procedural safeguards of section
4615 of the Education of the Handicapped Act is one means of

meeting this requirement.

.
-~ /
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ANNOTATED COURT CASES

JOHN BLUE,

".

New Haven Board of Education, ef af.,
No. N 8i-41 '

Unlted States District Court, Connecticut
March 23, 1981 "
Ell;n Bree Burns, District Judgés

Motion for preliminary injunction to restrain board of education from conducting any expul-
sion hearing or taking any other steps to expei student from school, and to direct his reinstatement
into spegial education program or some other suitable program pending a final determination on the
merits. Following suspension of child because, inter alia, of altercation with teacher, principal
recommended that school board expel child. Planning and placement team recommended
homebound instruction until expulsion hearing was conducted and continuation of homebound
instruction or placement at Trowbridge School if child was expelled. Parent obtained temporary
restrainiug order preventing child’s expulsion pending hearing on motion for preliminary
injunction. ‘ .

HELD, plaintiff has made a persuasive showing of irreparable harm and likelihood of success;
on the merits and is entitled to preliminary injunction. Any attempt by LEA to expel child from

school or otherwise change his educational placement during the pendency of his special education ~

complaint would violate 20 U.S.C. § 1415(e)(3). Since the child has already been excluded for more
than 10 consecutive days and, under Connecticut law, such an exclusion is tantamount to an
expulsion, child is being denied right to remain in his present education placement during the
pendency of his special education complaint. Child is entitled to have his educational placement
changed by the PPT, and not through the school’s normal disciplinary procedures, and to have any
PPT placement decision reviewed pursuant to the procedures contained in 26 U S.C. § 1415(b)-(e).
Moreover, homebound instruction pending expulsion and, following expulsion, either continuing
that instruction or placement at Trowbridge deprive child of his right to an educatior in the least
restrictive environment.

- 38 .
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JANE DOE, on behalf of her minor son,

of all other persons similary situated,
Plaintiffs

v.

KENNETH J. KOGER, Individually and in

. his capacity as Superintendent of the School
City of Mishawaka; JOHN SHOTTS,
Individually and as Director of Special
Education for the School City of .
Mishawaka; RONALD KRONEWITTER,

. GEORGE VERNASCO, ELVIRA
TRIMBOLI, SAMUEL MERCANTINI
and ROSEMARY SPALDING,

_ _Individually and in their official.capacity as

Members of the Board of School Trustees of
the School City of Mishawaka;
HAROLD H. NEGLEY, in his official
capacity as Indiana Superintendent of
Public Instruction; and GILBERT
BLITON, in his official capacity as Director

. of Special Education for the State

Department of Public Instruction,

" Defendaats.

Civ. A. No. § 79-14 !

United States District Court
- N.D. Indiana
South Bend Division

. November 21, 1979
Supplementary Entry December 3, 1979
Allen Sharp, District Judge

Counsel for Plaintiffs: Kyle M. Payne, Legal Services
Program of Northem Indiana, Inc., South Bend,
Indiana :

Counsel for Defendants: Theodore L. Sendak,

M Attomey General of Indiana, Ronald J. Semler,
HE Deputy Attorney General, Indianapolis, Indiana,
James J. Olson, Mishawaka, Indiana
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Action by ' mildly mentally handicapped®* student

Sy
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DENNIS DOE, Individually and on behalf o " violated student’s fights under Education of the Handi-

; > and his mother alleging that expulsion from school

capped Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1401 ¢1 seq. . EHA reguls-
tions, and. Equal Protection Clause of 14th Amend- R
ment. Student was suspended with recommendation
for expulsion and was expelled for remainder of school
year followig expulsion hearing. Student’s attomey
indicated that expuision would be appealed a2 ce-
quested Rule S-1 hearing. Rule S-1 is State regulation
establishing, among other things, specific procedures
to be used in placemer of mildly mentaily handi-
capped students and other studnts needing special
education. Shortly thercafter, parties agreed that,
pending fnikcr legal action, student would be placed
in interim ‘educational program,‘which he was. This
action followed. +
HELD . students whose handicaps caused them tobe
disruptive cannot be expelled or indefinitelv sus-
pended; the school is allowed only to transi.r the
student to an appropriate. nore resirictive environ- J
ment. Whether a child’s handicap is the cause of -the
child's propensity to disrupt must be determined
through the change of placement procedures required
by EHA. To subject handicapped students to the same
disciplinary expulsions as other «tndents is not to ia-
vidjously discriminate against the hundicapped in vio-
lation of the Equal Protection Clause of the A4th
Amenadment. ]




-

HOWARD 8. et al, Plaintiffs,
v, .

FRIENDSWOOD INDEPENDENT
SCHOOL DISTRICT et al,

Defendants. .

Civ. A. No. G-78-92.

United States District Court,
S. D. Texas,
Galveston Division. -

June 23, 1978, -

~

* Parents of handicapped minor spught
injunctive relief to- insure that minor re-
ceived nccessary and appropriate treatment
and education. On motion for preliminary
injunction, the District Court, Cowan, J.,
Leld that school district violated its kegal
obligations under the Rehabilitation Act of
1976 and under the Fifth and Furtcenti
Amendments with respect to high school

student who had minimal brain damage wund -

‘emotioral problems and failed to profilec
constitutionally required hearings with re-
spect to student’s constructive expulsion

mandating issuance of preliminary injunc- -

tion requiring school district to pay cost of
student’s private schouling necessitated by
his fdifficulties.

Order accordingly.
, U

1. Schools and Scheol Districts =148
Regulations issued by the Seéretary of
Health, Education and Welfare under the

k]

2

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Education
for All Handicapped Children Act of 1975,
and the amendments of 1974 are reasonubly
related to the purposes of the enabling leg-
islation. Rehabilitation Act of 1953, § 504,
29 U.S.C.A. § 794; *Education of the Handi-
sapped Act, § 602 as amended 20 U.S.C.A.
4 1401. :

2. Civil Rights e=13.4(1)
Schools and School Districts c=115

The Civil Rights Act and the Rehabili-
taticn Act of 1973 afford a private cause of
a::tiun to handicapped students who arc de-
nied necessary and appronriate treatment
and educatior. 42 US.CA. § 1933; Reha.
:i:’;&ﬁon Act of 1973, § 504, 29 US.C.A,

4.

8. Injunction =147

) For purposes of preliminary injunction,
evidence established that school district vio-
la'.ed its legal obligations under the Reha-
bilitation Act of 1973 and urder the Fifth
and Fourteenth Amendments_with respect
to ?ﬁgh school student ‘who had minimal
br?nn damage and emotional problems and
!allet:l to provide constitutionally required.
hear.mgs with respect to stndent’:“construc-’
tive _g_:ggt_xlg_ion. manduting issuance of pre-
lu}nnary tnjunction requiring 2 school gis.
?rnct to pay cost of student’s private school- °
ing necessitated by his difficultics, Reha-
bilitution Act of 1973, § 504, 29 LUS.CA.
§ 794; U.S.C.A.Const. Amends. 5, 14,
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MATTIET., et al.,

* Plaintiffs
v. .
CHARLES E. HOLLADAY, er al.,
Defendants
Civil Action
No. DC-75-31-s

Northem District of Mississippi
Delt. Di\(ision
ORMA R: SMITH, District Judge

January 26, 1979

9
Class action was on behalf of all school children in
the State of Mississippi who are handicapped or re-
garded by their school§ as handicapped. Plaintiffs as-
serted that the special educztion policies and practices
of the state and local defe.iant officials violated their
rights under the Education of the Handicapped Act,
- Section 504 of the Rshubilitation Act of 1973, as
amended, Title [ of the Elementary and”Sc . ondary
Education Act of 1965, and the equal protection an¢
due process clauses of the Foyrteenth Amendment 10
the United States Constitution. Summary judgment
was granted for the plainliffs, the court declaring, inter
alia, that the defendants had violated the plaintiffs’
rights under EHA 10 1) procedural safeguards; 2) ra-
cially and culturally non-discriminatory tests and pro-
cedures used to classify them as handicapped and place
them in special education programs; 3) educational
placement in the least resizictive environment; and 4) a
*  programto locate and identify all handicapped children
in the state in need of special education services, Con-
sent agreement developed pursuant to court’s order
specifies the policies, monitoring procedures and en-
forcement mechanisms to be implemenied by the state
defendants toremedy the violations found by the court.

© _{c) 1979 CRR Publ{zhing Company, ' g7

ERIC . reproduced
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with permission,
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MRS. A. J., on behaif of herself and her
daughter, K. J.,
: Plaintiff

Ve

SPECIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1,
‘ Defendant

Civ. No. 4-77-192

United States District Court
D. Minnesota, Fourth Division

October 12, 1979
MacLaughlin, District Judge

Counsel for Plaintiff: William F. Messinger,
Minneapolis, MN; James E. Wiikinson, III,
Coalition for the Protection of Youth Rights,,
Central Minnesota Legal Services, Minneapolis,
MN

3

Counsel for Defendant: Frederick E.. Finch..
Fredrikson, Byron, Colbom, Bisbee & Hansen,
P.A., Minnéapolis, MN

~

Action brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 to
challenge the lawfulness of procedures utilized by a
school district (LEA) in the 15-day suspension of a
child for disciplinary reasons. The plaintiffs, a mother
and her daughter, alleged that the LEA did not comply
with the Staie's “*Pupil Fair Dismissal Act,’* Minn. St.
$8127.26 - 127.39, or with Federal and State statutes
concerning handicapped students. At the time of her
suspension, the studen. was the subject of an ongoing
**format educational assessment,’" as defined in State
statutes and regulations, but was not being treated as a
special education student or handicapped child by the

~

©  (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
IC reproduced with ‘permission. .

LEA; nor had the ongoing assessment process yet
culminated in any identification of the student as a
handicapped child or any proposed course of action as
to her future educational placement. Plaintiff sought
declaratory, and other cquitable relief, as well as attor-
neys' fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988,

HFLD, plaintiff is enutled to a declaratory judgment
that the 15-day suspension was unlawful under State
law and to have expunged from her school records any
reference to the suspension. This relief is eppropriate
even if the grounds for her suspension were appropri-
ate, and even if she would have been suspended in any
event, because the procedures v.ilized by the LEA
were deficient under the State’s **Pupil Fair Dismissal
Act.” .

School officials had no obligation to treat the student
as a handicapped or special education student when the
suspension was imposcd, and. therefore, it was un-
necessary to provide additional hearing procedures ora
formal hearing. Statc and Federal! [§ 1415(b)(1)(C)]
hearing procedures are clearly designed to minimize
the risk of misclassification and to provide input of the
parent and child in the identification o classification
decision; thus, schools are under a clear obligation to
make the classification decisions through an exclusive
formal process. For defendants to have treated the
student as handicapped on the basrs of an assumption,
as plaintiff contended, would have required defendants
to ignore and even violate Federal and State law con-
ceming classification or identification
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1 e is mot ¢ friend, M-1; Board of Education denied plaintiffs theit right to a free
P}Pl.!g;l.!ﬁ tlugg}l‘:;is mu;:dn::“ ;‘riCend. M2, and appropriate program of special education in viola-
" P-3by and through his father and next friend, M-3; \ . tion of the Education for Ali Handicapped Children
" P4by sndthrough his mother and next friend, M-4; Ast, Pub. L94.142, and the due process and =qual
- P-S by and through his mother and next friend, M-S; protection clauses of the U.S. Constitution by denying, :
P-6:P-7 by and through his mother and next friend, in some instances, certain procedupal protections, fail- '3
¢ Ms3: P-8 by and through his mother and next friend. ing to provide proper individualized education pro- ]

grams, and delaying placement in appropriate pro-
grams for up to two years: :
Although number of plaintiffs was increased to 11, . '
class certification was denied; additional defendants, ~ .
.e., Mayor, City Manager, Disector of Finance and
embers of Hartford City “ouncil, and Commission

".'M-8; P-9 by and through his mother and next friend,
<" M-9; P-10 by and through his mother and next
: " friénd, M-10; P-1} by and through his mother and
-0 —-.Mﬁh“oM"l-
) © ~  Plaintiffs

‘ of §tate Department of Children’and Youth Services,
2 . were auded. '

y s e Ollowing pre-trial motions, including denial of

MARK SHEDD, individually and as Commissioner, defendints’ motis= to dismiss, and certain changes in

Wﬂi&gﬁxm;s%::giionen the Hart{ord special sducation system—addition of

Childres . new staff Yor special education, development of certain
. Depmmemof P Def:::::u th Se:;wces . standard f » initiation of programs of in-sc. sice

truining of specic.! education personnel, and reforms in
identification) evaluation and programming, the par- ;
ties agieed to the eniry of a consent decree, the terms of . '
which saisfv the specific educational needs of: the
named plaintiffs. Moreover, under the decree, the

policies, pructices and procedures are to serve to bene-
CLEMMENS, JIMMIE BROWN, MARIA fit other handicapped children in the Hartford School

SANCHEZ, BARBARA KENNY, M. SUSAN S d
. individus ystem. and are to\be fully implemented by Septem-
GI_N.S.BER.G. MY.l‘iES HU'B BARD, mg;vndu: "t}:,c ber 1, 1979. The ddcree is ordered on the agrecment ]
md" mr their °fr|m;' capactics as members o that nothing stated thérein shall constitute anadméssion -

] ord B of Education by the defendants of\any unlawful practices, 1:or an

BARBARA BRADEN, individually and in her

" capacity as Acting Superintendent, Hartford Public
Schools, KATE CAMPBELL, FREDERICK
BASHOUR, ROBERT BUCKLEY, CURTISS

. ll,)'efenc:_?snls and Third Party admission by the plaintiffs that the decree fully satis-
Flanti fies defendunts® obligations under Pub. L. 94-142, the
v. . Rehabilitation Act of 1973, § 504, the due process and
. equal protection clauses\of the U.S. Constitution, or
THECITY OF HARTFORD- JOHN A. SULIK, City the Connecticut General\Statutes.
v h\\d"Angg °l;§h° C“i f°;”:;‘:;°ﬁ:({\?’g:yp6f The provisions of the\consent decree conceming
« Director n specific subject areas will be found at the page indi-
gﬁg- S@?&?E{gggh’gaﬁg; W cated under the following|index: .
. THOMPSON, WILLIAM DIBELLA, RICHARD
SUISMAN, MARGARET TEDONE, SYDNEY . ]
GARDNER, MILDRED TORRES, ROBERT Inyroduction d , $51:163
LUDGIN, and RAYMOND MOTEIRO, membzrs I. Programming and Placement of :
of the Court of Common Courcil of the City of Named Plaintiffs . . $51:166
Hartford, IL. Court Expert 551:168
“Third Party Defeadants I. Free and Appropriate Education 551:169
: _ IV. Least Restrictive ‘ ‘
, No.78-58 # Alternative 551:170
V. Procedural Protectiors 551:171
. D. Connecticut VL Individualized Education Programs LRI
= March 23, 1979 . ' VII. Timelines for Placempnt 551:173
- . T. EMMET CLARIE, Chief Judge _ VIIL. Discipline 551:173
IX. Identification of First Priority
ild ’ :
Action on behalf of six children in the Hartford, CT, S Departarent of Education 551:174
School System’c'aimed that State Commissioner of Reaponsiditizy §51:175
Education, Superintendent, 2nd Members of Hartford XI. Standard Porms $51:176
. : XII. Dispute Resolution ) 551:176
< . Y ’ 43 ’ /
o , f
(c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company, . 49 :




JEAN SHERRY, Individually and as Next
Friend of her infant child, DELOWEEN
SHERRY, '

Plaintiff

v.

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION
DEPARTMENT, New York State School
for the Blind, and the Olean City School
District

_ Defendants
No, Civ-79-17
United States District Court
W.D. New York

November §, 1979
CURTIN, Chief Judge

Counsel for Plaintiff: Monroe County Legal
Assistance Corp., Southem Tier Legal Services
{Michag! L. Hanley, Olean, N.Y., of counselj

Counsel for State Defendants: Robert D. Stone,
Albany, N.Y., New York State Education
Department (Seth Rockmuller, Buffalo, N.Y., of
counsel)

Counsel for Defendant Olean City School District:
Shane & Franz, Olean, N.Y. (J. Michael Shane,
Olean, N Y., of counsel)

Action for injunctive and declaratory relief concern-
ing suspension of handicapped child from State school
for the blind, allegedly in violation of Education of the
Handicapped Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1401 et seq.. and
§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The multiply-
handicapped child was removed from the New York
State School for the Blind and hospitalized for treat-
ment of self-inflicted injuries. Three weeks later, the
Superintendent of the School, which was run direcily
by the State, informed the child’s mother that the
school had insufficient staff to sypervise the child and
that a retum to the residential program would be im-
possible until her condition changed or more staff was
hired. Shortly thereafter, following a multidisciplinary

meeting at the local district high school, the Superin-
tendent told the mother that if she insisted on returning
the child, the school would suspend her and, if she
requested it, provide a suspension hearing. The local
school district concluded it had noappropriate program
for the child a~d discontinued day prog-am assistance;
the mother requested an impartial duey - cesshearing,
pursuantto EHA § 1415, from the State - 100!, Within
a week, the school suspended the chilg, informing the
mother that the suspension” would be revoked
whenever *‘it appears 1o be in [the child’s] and the
school’s best interests to do sp’* and that a hearing
would be provided, at which the mother and child had a
right to representation by counse!.

HELD, allegation that SEA has not provided the
impartial hearing required by § 1415(e)(2) a fortiori

asserts & claim over which the court has jurisdiction

under § 1415. Although exisience of meaningful ad-

. Ministrative enforcement mechanism might preclude

judicial review of private claim under § 504, since such
a mechanism is lacking, neithe: the doctrines of
exhaustion of administrative remedies or primary
jurisdiction applies. While plaintiff has been reinstated
in residential program, claim is not moot because the

review procedures complained of are still those -

uiilized; moreover, given plaintiff's condition, there is
a significant likelihood that probiem could repeat itself
and the right to review, if any, would again become an
issue. ‘ :

Although during child"s hospitalization and perhaps
for a short period of time thercafter, it can teasonably
be argued that no change of placement, occurred and,
therefore, no agency hearing or other safeguards under
EHA were required, when, approximately one month
later, child w=s no longer in residential program and
teraporary program of day assistance had terminated.
change irn: the child's educational placement had oc-

. curred within the meaning of § 1415. ’
State reguiations governing **due process hearing™

for residents of State operated facility that do not
employ a0, impantial hearing officer or provide for
maintenance of placement pending resolution of a
coniplaint are not_in compliance with § 1415.

A defense of lack of staff cannct justify a default by
State educational agency in the provision of an appro-
priate education to a qualified handicapped child.

—

' 44
(c) 1980 CRR Publishing ‘Company, ’ S50
reproduced with permission. :
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CHRISTIAN STANLEY, by and throu

gh his mother and next friend, LINDA STANLEY,

Plaintift
v.
School Administrative Unit No. 40 for Milford — Mont Vernon, New Hampshire, ¢f al,,
Defendants

No. 80-9-D

United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire
Junsary 18, 1980 <
O’Connell, District Judge

t

On motion for declaratory and injunctive relief to prevent LEA from sucp=ading leaming
disabled. but not emotionally disturbed, chilc. During first year in high school, child was referred to
© N regional special education consortium, butduring that year was suspended six times — once for use

; of profanity, the balance for failure to come to detention. Prior to the last of these suspensions, the

- hild’s parent was notified that the school-board would hoid a hearing and that parent had a right to

‘have counsel present. The school board suspended the child for 21 days **for néglect or refusal to

conform to he reasonable [rules] of** the high school and directed that the child be re-evaluated as
soon as practicably possible. :

HELD, motion for preliminary injunction denied in most respects. Child is unlikely to succeed
in his claim that the suspension constitutes & discrimination on the basis of his handicap. Evidence
indicates that child's disruptive behavior was not caused to any substantial degree by his handicap or
by his current placement program, but rather by serious family problems. Moreover, although the
suspension involved is longer than that considered in Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565 ( 1975), more
elaborate procedural safeguards than are required by Goss were afforded and it is unlikely that they
will be found procedurally defective. Finally, since the suspension cannot be said to be discrimina-
tory because the child’s behavior has not been shown to be substantislly related to the child’s
handicap or the LEA s attempts to remedy that handicap, the unequal treatment that i< the hallmark

of equal protection analysis under any standard is here not sufficiently evident to predict success on
the merits of this claim.

4
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Kathy STUART, by and through her
" mother and next friend, Joan
Stuart, Plaintiffs,
v.

Pasquale NAPPI, Individually and in his
capacity as Superintendent, Danbiry
Public Schools, Carl Susnitsky, Hen-
tigue Antonio, Paul Werner, Paul Baird,

Theresa Boccuzzi, Bunay Jacobson, To- )

nio Pepe, Barbara Baker, Henry Bessel,
Robert Jones, Individually and in their
capacities as Members of the Danbury
Board of Education, Defendants.

Civ. No. B-77-381,

United States District Court,
D. Connecticut.

Jan. 4, 1978,

Procceding was instituted on motion of
Plaintiff to obtain preliminary relicf against
disclosure. The Coniract Compliance Officer
will inform the contractor of such a determy-
nation. The contracior may appeal that rul-

ing to the Drector of OFCC within 10 d. ys, *

The Director of OFCC shall make a final
determination within 10 days of the filing of

the ‘m&c [ 2 ——

...her expulsion from high school by defend-
ants. The District Court, Daly, J., held that
* preliminary injunction would issue to enjoin
' defendants from conducting a hearing to
expel plainti!f from high school and to. re-
quire defendants to conduct an immediate
review ‘of plaintiff’s special education pro-
gram whese plaintiff made a persuasi\:'c
showing of possible irreparable injury in
that she- had deficient academic skills
“caused by a complex of learning disabilities
and ‘limited intelligence and, if cxpelled,
would be without any educational program
from date of expulsion until"Such mE as
another review was held and an appropriate
edueationa! progrum developed, and plaip-
*iff demonstrated probablc success an mer-
its of federal claims that she wus denied her
- rights uider the Education of the Handi-
capped Act to appropriate public-education,
to temain in her present plutement until
resolation of (her speelal cducation com-
plaint, to an cducation in the least restrie-
tive environment, and to have ull changes
of placcment | effectuated in accordance

with prescribed procedures.

Preliminary relief ordered.

Reprinted from 443 ‘F.Supp. 1235,
West Publishing:Co.

ight (c) 1981

L Injunction <=135(3), 1372(4)

A plaintiff wishing to obtaia a prelimi-
mary injunction must demonstrate cither
probable success on the merits of the cluim
and possible irreparable injury or sufficient-
ly scrious questions goiag to the merits of
the claim and a balance of hardships tipping
decidedly in his favor.

2. Injunction <=136(3), 137(4)
Preliminary injurction would i+ ae to
enjoin defendants from conducting a hcar-
ing to expel plaintiff from high schuul und
to require defundunts to cun:luct an imme-
diate review of plaintiff’s special vducation
program where plaintiff mude a persuasive
showing of possible irreparuble injury in
that she had deoficient academic skills
"eaused by a complex of learning disabiliticr
and limited intclligence und, if expelled,

- would be without any educational program

from date of expulsion until such time as
another reviety was held und an appropriate
educational program developed, and plain.
tiff demonstrated probable success on mer-
its of federal claims that she was denied her
rights under the Education of the Handi.
capped Act to appropriate public education,
to remain in her present placement until
resolution of her special cducation com.
plaint, to an cducation in the least restric.
tive cnvironment, and 10 have all changes
of placement effectuated in accordance
with prescribed procedures. Education of
the Handicapped Act, §§ 602(1),. (15-19),
612(5XB). 615(b)1)(C, E), (c) (eX3, 4) as
amended 20 U.SCA. §§ 1401(1), (15 -19),
WYI2A5KB), 1415(b)2XC, E), (e), (cX3, 4).

3. Federal Courts ol L} -

Claim that act of defcndants in expel-
ling plaintiff from high school was in eon.
travention of Connecticut statutes was
based on argument that Plaintiff was entj-
tled to a current psychological evaluation
and & determination of the adequacy of her
speeial education placement p'rior to an cx-
pulsion hearing and, as such, was exclusive-
Iy » state claim that was to he ruled upon
by a state court in first instance before a
district court could exercise its nendent jure
isdiction over same. CGSA. §§ 4-177, 4-
177(c), 10-233d. .

SE e g E D Tt WY <




4. Schools and School Districts =169, 177

Provision of the Education of the
Handicapped Act that during pendency of
any proceedings child shall remain in cur-
rent educational placement, unless state or
local educational agency and parents or
guardian otherwise agree, operates Lo pro-
hibit disciplinary measures whick have of-
fect of changing = child's placement and so
prohibits expulsion of handicapped children
during pendency of a special education com.
pluint. .Education of-the Handicapped Act,
§ SIS(LXIKE), (cX3) as amended 20 US.
- C.A. § 1415(LYINE), (eX3).

S. Schools and School Districts <177
Use of expulsion proceedings as a
means of changing a placement of a disrup-
tive handicupped child contravenes provi-
sions of the Education of the Handicapped
Act governing procedure whereby disrup-
tive chililren may be transferred to more
restrictive placements when their behavior
- significantly impa.rs education of other
children. Edutation of the Hundicapped
Act, §3 612(5)3). 613(bX1XC). (c) as amnend-
ed 20 US.CA. §§ 1412(5XB), 1415(b)(1XC),

(c) . N

6. Schools and School Districts <=169, 177
Handicapped children are ncither im-
mune from a school’s disciplinary process
Bor are they entitled to participate in pro-
grams when their behavior impairs educa-
tion of other children in program; school
authorities can take swift disciplinary
meazurcs, such as suspension, against dis-
tuptive handicapped children, and can re-
quest a change in p'acement of handicapped
chitdren who havc demonstrated that their
present placement is inappropriate by dis-
rupting education nf other children. Fidu.
cation of the Handicapped  Act,
§§ 612(5XB), 615(bX IXC). (c) as amended 20
US.C.A. § MIX5KB), 1415(bYIXC). (c).

3
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4. Schools and Schoul Districts <169

Although there is little doubt that
judgment of state and local schoo! authuri.
ties is entitled to considerable defcrence, it
is equally clear that even a school’s discipli-
nary procedures are subject to scrutiny of
federal judiciary is such instances as non-
compliance with procedural safeiuwards of
the Education of th Handicapped Act
Education of e tlandicapped  Act,
§ 615(e)(4) as mended 20 US.CA.
§ 1415(c)(4).

8. Federal Courts «=332

Provisions of the FEducation of the
Handicapped Act rests jurisdiction in {oder-
s district courts over all claims of noncom-
phiance with precedural safeguanls of the
Act regardiess of the amount in contiaver-
sy. Education of the Handicapped Act,
§ 6151c)4) as amended 20 U.S.CA.
§ 1415(e)4).

Reprinted from 443 F.Supp. 1235, Copyright (c) 1981 West Publishing Co.
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S-1, a minor, by and through his mother and next friend, P-1 er al.,
Flaintiffs-Appellees

V.

RALPH D. TURLINGTON, individually, and in
Florida, Department of Educat.on ef al..
Defendants-Appellants

L

his official capacity as Commissioner of Education, Statc of - “

No. 79-2742

United States Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. Unit B

Januar¥ 26, 1981

Appeals from the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida

Before Vance, Hatcheit and Anderson, Circuit Judges ) -
i
Hatchett, Circuit Judge

Appeal from entry of preliminary injunction by District Count for thé Southern District of
Florida, 3 EHLR 551:211 {1979-80 DEC.). compeliing State and local officials to provid.: educa-
tional services and procedural rights provided by EHA to students expelled for misconduct. >
HELD, since trial coun did not abuse its discretion in entering the preliminary injunction, its ‘
decision s affirmed. Before a handicapped student can be expelled. a trained and knowledgeablc
group of persons st determine whether the student's misconduct bears a relationship to ms -
handicapping con«?iliun. An expulsion is a change in edu ~tional placement which irivokes the
procedural protections of EHA and § 504. Expulsion is a proper disciplinay 2ol under EHA and
8504, but a complete cessation of educational services is not. EHA, 20 U.S.C. §1415(b).
requirement that parents have an opportunity for due process hearing makes$ no-exception for
handicapped students who voluntarily withdraw from school or previously agree to an educational
placement. State officials were properly included within scope of injunction since, under EHA. 20
U.S.C. §1412(6). SEA is responsiblefor ensuring implementation of EHA and expulgion proceed-
ings may deny benetits of EHA 'to children entitled to education under Act.

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Comj iny, 48 5 T
reproduced with permission. 4 -
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JOHN BLUE,

V.\&'

. New Haven Board of Education, et al.,

No. N 81-4 S
United States District Court, Connecticut

March 23, 1981

_Ellen Bree Burns, District Judge

Motion for preliminary injunction to restrain board of education from conducting any expul-
sion hearing or taking any other steps to expel student from schcol, and to direct his reinstatement
into special education program or some other suitable program pencing a final determination on the

merits. Following suspension of child

restraining order
injunction.

because,
recommended that school board expel child.
Komebound instruction until expulsion hearing
instruction or. placement at Trowbridge School i

inter alia, of altercation with teacher, principal

Planning and placement team recommended
was conducted and continuation of homebound
[ child was expelled. Parent obtained temporary
preventing child's expulsion pending

hearing on motion for preliminary

HELD, plaintiff has made a persuasive showing of ifreparable harm and likelihood of success

on the merits and is entitled to preliminary

i injunction. Any attempt by LEA to expel child from
school or otherwise change his educational placement during the pendency of his special education

complaint would violate 20 U.S.C. § 1415(e)(3). Since the child has already been excluded for more
than 10 consecutive days and, under Connecticut law. such an exclusion is tantamoupt to an

expulsion, chila is being denied right to

remain in his present education

placement during the

Moreover, homebound instruction pending expulsion and, following expulsion, either continuing
that instruction or placement at Trowbridge deprive child of his right % an education 'n the Jeast

restrictive environmeny.

’

RULING ON MOTION FOR
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

Plaintiff John Blue! is a sixieen year old student who has
been enrolled at Richard C. Lee High School. a public school
in New Haven. Connecticut, sirer Jaawary 2, 1980, He is a
handicapped child within the meaning of the Education for
All Handicapped Children Act of 1975 (hereinafter the Edu-
cation Act), 20 U.S.C. § 1401, ¢ seq., in that he is seriously
emotionally disturbed. 20 U.S.C. § 1401(1). The defen-
dants, the New Haven Board of Education, (hereinafter the
Board of Education). as the **local educational agency,” 20
U.S.C. § 1401(8), the named meinbers of the Board of Edu-
cation and the Superintendent of the New Haven Public
Schools, are responsible for the provision of special educa-
tion and discipline within the New Haven Public Schools.
Plaintiff has brought this action on behalf of himself and all

* Plantiff John Blue and hus next friend Joan Blue are pro-
veeding under fictitious names. This Court granted plaintift"s
motion for leave (0 proceed under & fictitious name on Feh-
ruasy S, 1981,

1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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other handicapped students who are placed in special educa-

tion programs in the New Haven Public School system and
who are subject to the disciplinary procedures employed by
the defendants.? It is alieged 1n the complaint that these
disciplinary procedures deny handicapped students their
rights under the Equal Protection and ue Process Clauses of
the Fourteenth Amendment to the Uniied States Constitution,
the Education Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1401, et seq., Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U .S.C. § 794, the Civil
Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. §1983. and Connecticut
General Statutes §§ 4-177. o seq.. 10-76d. and 10-233a.
Jurisdiction is invoked pursuant to 20 U.S.C. § 1415(cx4),
28 U.S.C. §1331(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1343(3) and (4).
Pending before this Court 1s plaintiff John Blue’s mo-
tion for a preliminary injunction. Plaintiff is secking prelimi-
nary injunctive relief to resirain ihe detendants from conduct-
ing any expulsion hearing or taking any other steps to expel
hira from school., and to direct the defendants to reinstate

! On February 27. 1981, plaintiff filed » motion for clags
certification not presenily pending before the court.
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plaintiff into his special education program or 10 some other
suitable special education program chosen by agreement of
the parties pending a final determination on the nerits. Hav-
ing carefully reviewed plaintift™s school record, the parties’

memoranda of law and the evidence intreduced at the pre-

limnary injunction hearing. the Court is persuaded that a
prchintinary injunction should issue.
L
Facts
John Blue was initially placed in a special education
program for emotionally disturbed children on August 25,
1975 while attending school in Jacksonville, Florida, At that

time and until the winter of 1979, plaintiff resided 1n Flonda *

with his tather and stepmother, his mother having died when
he was three years old. According to a report of the New
Haven Public Schools, Depariment of Public Personnel Ser-
vices, Florida records cescribe plainuff as a **very moody
and tempermental’" individual who is *‘easily itritated and
annoyed by others." Although he was mainstreamed into
regular ninth grade classes in the 1978-1979 school year, he
farled all courses and had to repeat that grade 1n 1979-1980.

In October 1979, John's father died. Two months later
he moved to New Haven, Cornecticut to reside with his
sister, Joan Blue, and her family. In January. 1980 Mrs. Blue
yought to enroll Joh1 in the New Haven Public Schools.
Because Mrs. Blue informed the Departtent of Pupil Per-
sonnel Services that plaintiff had been enrciled in a **Special
’rogram " in Florida and that she did not want him placedina
normal high school curriculum on & trial basis. the Diepart-
ment agreed to refer John to the school psychologist for
testing,

Two weeks later, Ms. Barbara Valentine. a school
psychologist, conducted a psychological exainination. Her
evaluation was based on a review of the plantiff's records
from Florida, his scores on a series of tests. behavioral
obsenations of him, two interviews with him and confer-
ences with Mrs, Blue. :

Results of the Wechsler Intelligence Scale for Children
Revised indicated that John possessed average intellectual
potential with Bright Norma! abilities in the performance
arca. His reading level on the Gray Oral Paragraph Test was
10.4 His spelling level (6.7) and arithmetic level (7.1) as
determined by the Wide Range Achievement Test were
below average for his age and grade level.

Inher report, Ms. Valentine described John as **a pleas-
ant young man who appears to be rather tense and highly
anxious."* She explaned that while *‘he wes very senous and
somewhat apprehensive and guarded throughout the ses-
sions[.] he responded appropriately and willing to all ques-
tons and tasks presented to him.'* Because a revicw of all
data available to her suggested some adjustment difficulties
and emotional problems, Ms. Valentine reconimended that
John be programmed into two classes in tne Emotionally
Disturbed ard Leaming Disabled Pre~am (ED/LD) with
supportive services in the remainder of jus regular cless
subjects,

On Janvary 306, 1980 a Planning and Placement Team
(PPT) mecting was convened. Both Mr. and Mrs. Blue were
present - As a result of that meeting John v.as placed at
Richard C. Lee High School in two ED/LD classes. one in

English and the other in Mathematics, and two regular
classes.

Later that school year. John was suspended trom school
on two occasions for disruptive behavior, ncluding smok-
ing, and insubordination. N¢ PPT mcetings were held after
either suspension because school authoritics did not consider
the incidents excessively senous or related 1o ns classes.

In the fall of 1980, plantift continued at Lee High
School in the tenth grade He was placed in two ED/LD
classes and four regular classes. ,

OnOkctaber 14, 1980, Mr, Garman, a Biology teacher at
Lee High School. sent a Waming ot Failure Notice to John's
guerdians The notice indicated that John was in danger of
failing Biology. a regu'sr cldss in which he was
mainstreamed. because of h:s ;. jor atademic performance
and failure 1o do his work.

On November 24, 1980, John received his report card
for the first marking period. It indicated that he had failed
Biology and received poor grades in two of his mamnstreamed
courses and a low average grade in the other mamstreamed
course. He reccived an average grade in English and o good
grade in Mathematics. his ED/LD subjects.

On Deceber 17, 1980 a PPT meeting was convened to
review plainuff’s special educational program Neither John
nor his sister or brother-in-law were present at the mecting.

" Although-a letter dated December 7, 1980 was allcgedly

mailed to Mrs. Blue to inform her of the meeting, Mrs Blue
testified and the PPT mecting notes indicate that the Blues
were absent because they had not received notice A wopy of
the minutes of the PPT review which mcluded the Indi-
vidualized Educational Program (IEP)’ developed for the
plaintiff were subsequently matled them.

The minutes of the December 17, 1980 PPT meeting
reveal that the only repor reviewed by the PPT members was
Ms. Valentine's psychological report. The annual {EP goals
set by the PPT were for John to: (1) receive a program
consistent with aptitude, (2) develop self-awarcness and (3)
improve school attendance. It was recotnmended that plain-
tiff continue his placemer? in his two ED/LD classes and
continue mainstreaming in his rematning academic classes.

? 20 U.S.C §1401(19) defines the term “‘indsvidualized
educational placement’" as.

4 wntten statement for each hand:capped child de-
veloped 1n any meeting by a representative of the local
educatwnal agency or any intermediate educational unst
who shail be qualified to provide, or supervise the provs-
sion of, specrally designed nstruction to meel the unique
needs of handicapped children, the teacher, the parents or
guardians of such chid, and. whenever appropniate, such
child, which statement shall include (A) a statement of the
present levels of educational pertormance of such ch:ld.
(B) a statement of annual goals, including short-term in-
structional objectives. (C) a statement of the specific edu-
cational services to be provided to such child, and the
extent to which such child will be able to participate 1in
regular educational programs. (D) the projected date tor
mnihiation and anticipated duration of such services. and (E)
apprapniate objechive criterie and evaluation procedures
and schedules tor detennming, an at least an annaal basis
whether mstructional objectives are bermg achiesed
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including Biotogy. No reference was made to plaintiff's poor
academic performance 1n his mainstreamed classes.

On December 18. 1980. John was invalved in an alter-
cation with his Biology teacher, Mr Gannan, which resulted
in his being immediately excluded from school and placed on
emergency suspension by William Smith, principal of Lee
High School At the preliminary anjunction hearing. no evi-
deace was ottered conceming what oceurred between plain-
tff and hic teacher Immediately after the incident Mr. Smith

telephoncd Mrs Blue and made an appointment for her and |

Mr. Blue to meet *nith him ‘on December 22, 1980.

On December 18, 1980, the chairpeison of the PPT sent
Mrs Blue anotice of a PPT meeting to be held on January 7.,
1981. The notice explained that the meeting was being held
“*due to the recent incident that John was involved i at
school

On December 22, 1980, John and Mr. and Mrs. Blue
met with Mr Simith and other staff members to discuss the
specifics of the inuident and its implications. Mr. Smith
explamned the expulsion procedure to the Blues, including the
fact that John would be placed on homebound iustruction
immediately following termination of the suspension period
and that he would remain on homebound until the expulsion
hearing He told them that as principal he would be submit-
ting areportto the Board of Education recommending expul-
sion. Mr Sm:th also stated that a PPT meeting would be
convened to deternune plaintiff's appropriate placement.

On January 6, 1981, the Superintendent of the New '

Haven Public Schools wrote Mrs. Blue a letter advising her
that he planned to recommend that the Board of Education
expel John from <cl-ool for dangerous conduct based on the
December 18, 1680 incident.
OnJanuary 8. 1981, a PPT mecting was held. Present at
. the mecting were John, Mr. Blue, Mrs. Blue, Mr. Smith,
Barbara Valentine, the Head Guidance Counselor, John's
Guidance Counselor, the School Social Worker, the School
Nurse and John's ED/LD teacher. The PPT minutes indicate
that in reaching its placement recommendation, the members
reviewed the refertal for PPT screening, a psychological
report. a social worl. report. a health report. the netice sent to
Mrs. Blue, teacher reports and guidance counselor reports
At the preliminary injunction hearing only the psychological
report of Junuary, 1980 and the notice to Mrs. Blus were
offered into evidence, According to the testimony of
Mrs. Blue, the PP I-members told them that John would be
pleced on hometound instruction immediately after the sus-
pension period was over and that he would remain on
homebound until the expulsion hearing was conducted. The
PPT indicated that. 1f John were expelled, it would recom-
mend placement for him at Trowbridge School or on
honiebound instrucuion for the expulsion period. No other
alternative program was discussed The minutes of the meet-
ing reflect that it was the PPT"s conclusion that **Regardless
of whether the Board of Education expels John for the "as-
sault” on the teacher” (sic) incident, the PPT recommends
placement in Trow by idge Educ ttional Center for the remain-
der of this school ' 1 as the most appropnate educational
program for him ™" *iu cviden e was otfered concerning the

On January 19, 1981, the Blues were informed that Joha
would be placed in the Home Instructional Program. Three
days later the homebound instrucior met with John and
Mrs. Bluc at their home. Instruction began the following
Mcnday. January 26, 1981, at the New Haven Pukhic Library
and consisted ot two hours of tutoring 4 day. five days a
week. Plainuff is sull receiving homebound instruction.

On January 20, 1981. the Board ot Educauon sent a
letter to Mrs Blue to inform her that an expulsion hearing
would be conducted on January 28, 1981 in accordance with
Sections 4-177.4-180 and 10-233d ot the Connecticut Gen-
cral Statutes. The notice advised Mrs. Blue that John had the
right to be represented by counsel ai the hearing and that site
had the right to present evidence in his favor. It also stated
that the Board would proceed waith the heanng even if she did
not appear, unless she could demonstrate extenuating cir-
cumstances at least twenty-tour hours in advance.

On January 28, 1981, Mrs. Blue. plaintiff and plain-
tiff's coursel appeared at the oftice of the Board of Education
for the scheduled cxpulsion heanng. John Esposito, a
member of the Board of Education, told Mrs. Blue that the
hearing would have to be re-scheduled. perhaps for the fol-
lowing Wednesday, because the Board did not have adequate
counse( available. The following day the Assistant Supenn-
tendent of Schools sent Mrs Blue 2 letter rescheduling the
meeting for Wednesday, February 4. 1981, .

On January 29. 1981. the plantift and Mrs. Blue,
through counsel, made a wntten request for a Connecticut
General Statute § 10-76h heanng and administrative review
of the diagnosis and e aluation of John s special education
program. The reque<t made specific retefences to the PPT's
recommendation that John be placed at Trowbndge School
and to the Board of Education siembers” attemipt to expel hum
from school dunng the pendency ot this matter. It also
indicaied that the plaintiff had no ebjection to entenng nto
mediation in licu of a formal hearing pursuant to Connecticut
General Statutes § 10-76h(b)(1)

On February 3, 1981. this Court granted, absent objec-
ton. plaintiff's motion fo  temporary restraining order to
restrain the defendants fror.  aducung any expulsion hear-
ing or taking any other action to expel the plainuff from
school pending 2 keanng and determination of plaintff's
motion for a preliminary injunction. On February 13. 1981,
this Court zranted plaintiff"s motion to extend that temporary
restraining order until February 22. 1981 A hearing was
held on plaintff’s motion for a preliminary injunction on
February 19. 1981,

1.
Discussion ot Law

In considering plainti{f's motion for a preliminary in-
junction, this Court is not unmindfus tha uw 1ssuance of a
preliminary injunction **1s an extraordinary and drastic rem-
edy which would not be routinely granted.”” Medical Sociery
of the State of New York v Towg, 560 F 24 §35. 538 (2d Cir.
1977). To be entitled to such relict, the party sccking the
injunction must therefore demonstrate (a) irreparable harm

( educational proy: «m< available at Trowbnidge Educational and (b) either (1) hkelihood ol success on the merits or
- Center (2) sufficiently serious quiestions going to the ments to make
\
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them a fair ground for litigstion and a balance of hardships
tipping decidedly toward the party requesting the preliminary
relief.”” Jackson Dairy, Inc. v. §1.P. Hood and Sons, Inc.,

596 F.2d 70, 72 (2d Cir. 1979). Although this burden is a .

difficult one to sustain. in this case plaintiff has made a
persuasive showing of ieparatic harm and likelihood of

" success on the ments. Plainuff is therefore entitled to a -

preliminary injunction ordering the defendants to sefrain
from conducting an expulsion hearing or from taking any
other actions to expel him from school, ¢~d directing the
defendants to reinstate him into his presuspension special
education placement or some other educational program cho-
sen by agreement of the pasties during the pendency of any
proceedings conducted pursuant tn 20 U.S.C. § 1415,

A. Success on the Merits

The Education Act was eracted in 1970 and amended.in
1978 to provide Federal financial assistance to States and
local educational agencies for the evaluation and education of
handicapped children. 45 C:F.R. §121a.1 (1979);, Cam-
pochiaro v. Califano, Civil No. H-78-64, slip op. at4(DCT
May 19, 1978); Stuart v. Nappi, 443 F. Supp. 1235, 1237(D
CT 1978). To qualify for Federal funds a State must dem-
onstrate to the Commissioner of the United States Depart-
sent of Education that it has complied with a number of
conditions, including the adoption of a policy that assures all
handicapped children an appropriate public education, the
devclopment and submission of a detailed State plan pursuant
to 20 U.S.C. § 1413(b) and the establishment of the pro-
cedural safeguards guaranteed to handicapped children and
their guardians in 20 U.S.C. § 1415. 20 U.S.C. § 1412. The
State plan must specifically set forth the mannet in which the
State will comply with the Education Act. 20 U.S.C. § 1413.
If the State is found eligible and it is determined that the State
plan complies with § 1413(a) and (b), the Commissioner
must approve the plan. 20 U.S.C. & 1413(c). A local educa-
tional agency which desires to receive payments from the
State allocation, must apply to the State educational sgency
for monies. 20U.S.C. § 1414. Any State orto<al educational
agency which receives Federal assistance under the Educa-
tion Act is required to establish and maintain certain specified
procedures to assure that handicapped children and their
parents or guardians are guaranteed procedural safeguards
with respect to the provision of free appropriate public educa-
tion. 20 U.S.C. §1415. -

In accordance with the requirements of the Education
Act, the State of Connecticut submitted a State plan which
the Commissioner of the Department of Education approved.
Presently, both the State of Connecticut and the New Haven
Public Schools are receiving funds pursuant to that plan. As
recipients of Federal assistance, the State and the New Haven
Public Schools are required to abide by the Education Act and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Among the numerous rights afforded handicapped chil-
dren under the Act and the regulations are: (1) the right to
remain in one's current placement until the resolution of his
special education complaint; (2) the right to have all changes
in placement effectuated in accordance with prescribed pro-
cedures; (3) the nght to an education in the least restrictive
cavironment: and (4) the right to an appropriate public educa-

- (c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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tion. Stuart v.-Nappi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at 1240, Plaintiff
argues that the defendants” disciplinary process as applied to
the plaintiff violatcs all four of these rights, Having reviewed
the testimony and arguments offered =t the preliminary in-

_ junction hearing the Court concludes that plaintiff has

demonstrated likelihood of success on the merits of
claims (1) - (3).}

Y. The right to remain in one's curr.nt placement

Section 1415 sets forth thie prescribed minimum proce-
dures with which the State must comply . These include, inter
alie, an opportunity for the parents or guardians of a handi-
capped child to examine all relevant records relating to the
child’s evaluatior:, educational placement and provision of a
free appropriate public educat: * and to obtain an indepen-
dent educational evaluation of the child; written niotice to the
parents or guardians priorto initiating or changing or refusing
to initiate or change the child’s evaluation, placement or free
appropriate public education; an opportunity to prescnt com-
plaints regarding the child’s evaluation, placement or appro-
priate education, including aopportunity for an impartial
due process hearing before the State or local educrtional
agency at which the guardians shall be accorded subsiantial
rights: an impartial review by the State educational agency if
the hearing is conducted by a lccal agency; and the right of
any party who is aggrieved by the findings and decision of a
State hearing or State review to bring a civil action n any
State court of competent jurisdiction or in a district court of
the United State: without regard to the amount in con-
troversy. & 1415(b) - (¢)(2). The State of Connecticut has .
elected to satisfy’these requirements by. providing for an
initial administrative review by the local or regional board of
education responsible for providing such special educdtion *
followed by 3n impartial due process hearing at the State
level. Conn. Gen. Stats. § 10-76h, as aménded by Public Act
No. 80-175, effective July 1, 1980. & 1415(e)(3) further
provides that: ’

During the pendency of any proceedings
conducted pufsuant to this s2ction, unless the
State or local educational agency and the par-
enits or guardian otherwise agree, the child
shall remain in the then cusrent educational
placement of such child . . .

This subsection has beeh construed to prohibit school offi-
cials from taking disciplinary measures against hardicapped
children which have the effect of changing their educational

* Although plaintiff argues 1n his memorandum in support of
his motion to dismiss that the defendants’ actions 1n placing
him on homebound mstruction following the completion of
the ten-day suspension period and in attempting to exoel him
from schoo! through the school ‘s regular disciplinary process
x50 violate the Dué Process and Equal Protection Clauses of
the Unrted States Constitution and the Connecticut General
Statutes, plaintiff did not offer any evidence or argument sn
support of these claims at the preliminary 1njunction heaiing.
Plaintff has therefore farled to make the requisiie showing ol
probable success on the menits it these claims and. 1n any
event. it 1s upnecessary 10 adre s these cdams i hghtof the
Court’s view of tus Federal s.atutory claim,
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placement during the pendency of § 1413 proceedings. Stuart
v. Na,pi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at 1242. .

In Stuart v. Nappi, supra, the court held that expulsion
during the pendency of a special education complaint 1s a
change in placement which violates § 1415¢¢i3) In that
case, plaintitt, a handicapped child. sought a preliminary
injunction to restrain the Danbury (Connccticut) Board of
Education from cxpelling her from Danbury High School
through the school’s normal disc :plinary procedures. At the
time, plaintiff had completed a ten-day disciplinary suspen-
sion and was scheduled to appear at a disciplinary hearing at
which the Danbury Board of Education would be considering
the Superintendent of Schools' récommendation that she be
expelied for the remainder of the school year. Prior to the date
of the scheduled hearing plaintiff’s counsel.made a wnitten
request for-a § 10-76(h) *hearing and review of plaintiff’s
special education program. At the preliminary injunction
hearing there was no showing that plaintitf’s attendance at
Danbury High School would endanger herself or others. In
support of her motion for a preliminary injunction. plaintiff
argued that her expulsion from school prior to the resolution
of her special education complaint would result inachange in
her then current cducational placement insviolation of 20
U.S.C. §1415(e)(3)*. The court agrecd. stating:

Plaintiff qualifies for the protection that
this subsection provides. She has filed acom-
plaint pursuant to' 20 U.S.C. & 1415(b)(1)(E)
requesting a hearing and a review of her spe-
cial education placement. Moreover, there
has been no agreement to leave her present
special cducation placement voluntarily.

The novel issue raised by plaintiff arises from-

the fact that the right to Temain in her present
placement directly conflicts with Danbury
High Schools’s (sic) disciplinary process. If* .
the high school éxpels plaintiff during the
pendency of her special education complaint

then her placement will be changed in contra-
veption of 20 U.S.C. § 1415(e)(3).

t
443 F. Supp. at 1241. To resolve the conflict between
§ 1415(eX3) and the disciplinary procedures of schools, the
Stuart court looked to the Education Actf'‘the regulations
implementing the Education Act and the commenis interpriet-
ing the regulations, particularly the comment and the con-
ment to the comment to 45 C.F.R. § 1.1a.513 which deals
with emergencies® and the procedures contained n
- _— Y
* Plaimiff also argued successfully that expulsion would
oeprive her of the night to an appropniate education. the right
to an cducation in the least restrictive enviranment and the
right 10 have all changes tn placement effectuated in accor:
dance with prescribed procedures.

¢ 45 C.F.R. §121a.513 provides 1n pertinent part:
Child"s status during proceedings.

(a} during the pendency of any adnunistrative of judicial
proceeding regardingsa complaint, unless the public
agency and the parents ot the child agree otherwise’, the
child mvol.ed in the complaint must reman in his or her
present cducational placement

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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54 1212.552 and 121a.533(a)(3) which the court determined
replace expulsion as a means of removing handicapped chil-
dren froni school it they become disruptive 7 The court then

The comment to that section turther provides that:

Section 1212.513 does nut pernut achitd’s placement to
be chiaged (sic) durmg a complant proceeding, unless'the
parents and agency agree othcrwise. While the placetnent
may not be changed. this does not preclude the agency
from using its normal procedures for dealing with children
who are endangenng themselves or others.

The comment (o the comment provides that:

Commenters suggested a provision be added to allow
change of placcment for health or safcty reasons. One
commenter requested that the regulations tndicate that
suspension not be considered a change in placement
Another commenter wanted more specificaity 1o make it
cleat that where an imtial placement is involved, the child
be placed in the regular education program or tf the parents
agree, in an intenm special placement.

Response: A comment has been added to make it clear
that this s¢rtion would not preclude a public agency from
using its regular procedures for dealing with emergencies

42 Fed. Reg. 42, 473, 42512197, = ~

' 45 C.F.R. §121a 552 prosudes:
§ 121a.552 Placements
Each public agency shall insure that;

(a) Each handicapyed child’s educational placement: (1)
. 15 determined at lcast annually . )
() Is based on his or her individualized education pro-
gram, and
(3) Is as close as possible to the child’s home:
(b) The various alternative placements included under
§ 121a.551 are available to the extent necessary to imple-
ment the individualized education program for each hands-
capped child; R
(c) Unless a handicapped child's individualized educa-
tion program requires some other arrangement. the child s
educated in the school which he or she would attend 1f not
+ handicapped; and
(d) In selecting the least restneuive environment, con-
sideration 1s given to any potential harmful effect on the
child or on the quality of services which he or she needs

The comment to § 127a 552 prosides i relevant part:

Scction 1212.552 includes some ot the main factors
which must be considered in determining the extent to
which a handicapped child can h» educated with ciildren
who are not handicapped. The overnding rule i this
section 1s that placeshent decisions must be made on an
individual basis  The sechion also requires each agency 1o
have various alternanve placements available in order to
insure that each-handicapped child receives an cducation
which is apprapriate to his or her individual needs.

The analysis of the regulations for Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (45C F R Part 84 - Appendix,
Paragraph 24) includes several pounts regarding educa-
tonal placements of handicapped children which are per-
tinent to thes scetron - -

. €
1 With respect to detemunmg proper placements, the
analysis states u snould he stressed thai. where a

&




concluded that & l:il.'»(c X3) prohibits disciplinary measures’

which have the effect of changing a child's placement, r.e.
expulsion, yet permits the iype of procedures necessary for
dealing with a child who appears 10 be dangerous, i.e..

suspension from school for up to ten consccutive days be- .

cause such a procedure allows the child to remain in his
present placement.® Id. at 1242.1243. The coun therefore
decided that plaintiff’s expulsion prior to the resolution of the
complaint would violate the Education Act.

The instant case is procedurally identical to that pre-
sented to the court inStuart v. Nappi . As in that case, plaintiff
has comp!eted a ten-day period of suspension ard is awaiting
a disciplinary heanng to determine whether he should be
expelled from school. He has also filed a complaint pursuant
to 20 U.S.C. § 1415(b)(1)E) requesting a hearing and re-

handicapped child is so disruptive in a regular classraom
that the education of other studemts is significantly im-
paired, the needs of the handicapped child cannnt be met
in that environmeni. Therefore. regular placement would
not be appropriate 10 his or her needs . . .

(Emphasis added).
45 C.F.R. §121a.533 provides:
Placement procedures. .

* () In interpreting evaluation data and iz; making place-
ment decisions, each public agency shall:

(i) Draw upon information from a variety of sources,
'ncluding aptitude and achicvement tests, teacher recom-
mendations. physical condition, social or cultural
background, and adaptive behavior,

(2) Insure that information obiained from all of these
sources is documented and carefully considered;

«/ (3) Insure that the placement decision is made hy a *
group of persons, including persons knowledgeable about
the child, the meaning of the evaluation data, and the
placement options; and

(4) Insure that the placemen decision is made in con.
formity with the Jeast restrictive enyvironment gules in
§§ 1212.550-1212.553.

(b} If a determination is made that a child is handicapped
and needs special education and related services, an indi-
vidualized education program must be developed for the
child inaccordance with §8 121a.340-121a.349 of Subpart
C N

* Under Conaecticut law the terms **suspension’* arid *‘ex-,
pulsion®’ are defined as follows:

Section 10-233a. Definitions

(d) “‘Suspension™ means an exclusion from school
privileges for no mare than ten consecutive school days,
peovided such exclusion shall not extend beyond the end of
the school year in which such suspension was imposed.

(e) "Expulsion” means an exclusion from school
privileges for more than ten consecutive school days and
shall be deemed to include, but not be limited to, exclusion
from 1he school to which such pupil was assigned al the
ure such disciplinary action was taken, provided such
exclusion shall not extend beyond a period of one hundred
c1ghty consecutive schoul days. Such period of exclusion
may extend to the schiet year following the school year in
which such exclusion was impnsed.

© (c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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view of the PPT"s diagnosis. evaluation and recommendation
that he be placed at Trowbridge School and asking that he
remain in his current educational placcment dunng the pen-
dency of this matter unless the parties otherwise agree. That
placzment consists of two ED/LD courses and four
mainstreamed courses at Lee High School with supportive
scrvices in the mainstreamed classes. No agreement has been
reached among the parties regarding a different placcment
and there has been no showing that plaintift™s anendance at
Lee High School would pose a danger to himself or others.
Any attempt by the defendants to expel John from school or
otherwisc change his educational placement during the pen-
dency of his special education complaint would therefore
violate §1415(e)(3). Since the defendants. have already
excluded the plaintiff from schow.  “or more than ten consecu-
tive days and under Connecticut law such an exclusion is
tantamount to an expulsion, Conn. Gen. Stats..§ 10-233(e),
see Footnote' 8, infra, the Court concludes that plaintiff is
being denied his right to remain in his present educational
placement during the pendency of his special education com-
plaint. Sce also Sherry v. New York State Education Depart-
ment, 419 F. Supp. 1328, 1337 (WD NY 1979).

2. The right 10 have all changes in placement made in
accordance with proscribed procedures )

InSwmart v. Nappi , supra, the court al<o detemuned that
the usc of expulsion procedures, even after the termination of
complaint proceedings, a5 a means of changing the place-
ment of disruptive handicapped children contravenes the
Frocedures established by the Education Act and the regula-
tions promulgated thereunder. 443 F. Supp. at 1243. Under -
the Act, the responsibility for chang:ag the placement of
handicapped children rests with a group of professional per-
sons who are knowledgeable about the chiid. the meaning of

" the evaluation data and placement options. 45 C.F.R.

§ 121a.533(3). In Connecticut that responsibihity has been
allocated to the PPTs. Conn. Gen. Stats. § 10-76d.
‘Moreover, the parents or guardians of a handicapped child
are entitied to participate in and apocal from an- placement
division. 20 U.S.C. § 1415; 45 C.i".R. §121a >45; Conn.
Gen. Stats. § 10-76h. When a handicapped child’s behavior
becomes sodisruptive as to significantly impasr the education
of other children, that child may be transferred to a more
restrictive environment. Stuart v. Nappi, supra, 443 F.
Supp. at 1243; 45 C.F.R. § 121a.552. However, any such
change in placement must be made by a PPT after consider-
ing the range of available placements and the child’s particu-
lar needs. It cannot be made by the use of expulsion proce-
dures. Stuart v. Nappi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at {243. Plaintiff
is therefore entitled to have his educational placenient
changed by the PPT, and not through the school’s normal
disciplinary procedures and to have any PPT placement deci-
sion reviewed pursuant to the procedures contained in
§ 1415(b)-(e). ‘

3. The right to an education in the least restrictive '
environment

One of the.major goalsﬁof the Education Act is to assure
that, to the maximum extent appropnate, handicapped chil-
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dren are educated with nonhs~dicapped children, and that
special classes, separate sc.iooling, or other removals of
handicapped children fru.a the regular educaticnal environ-
ment occurs only when the nature or severity of tie handicap
is such that education in regular classes with the use of
supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfac-
torily. 20 U.S.C. &5 1412(5KB). 1414(1)(c)(iv). This “"right
to an education in the least restrictive cnvironment.”* 45
C.F.R. ¥ 121a.550: Sivart v. Nappi, supra, 433 F. Supp. at
1242. has been implemented in partby 45 C.F.R. § 121a.551
which requires schools to provide a continuum of altemnative
placements to meet the special education needs of handi-
capped children. /d. at 1242. Among the allematives which
must be made available to handicapped childrer: are: instruc-
tion in regular classes, special classes, special schools.
homes, hospitals anl other institutions. 45 C.F.R.
§121a.551(bX1).

Plaintiff claims that the defendants® actions in placing
him on homebound instruction pending an expulsion hearing
and in either coniinuing that ir :truction or placing him at
Trowbndge School following expulsion deprive him of his
right toan education in the least restrictive environment. This
Court agrees. If plaintiff is indeed expzlled from school. he
may be cxclided from a placement that is more appropriate
for his academic and social development and less restnictive
than the homebound instruction program_or placement at
Trowbridge School. The homebound .instruction program
limits plaintiff’s academic instruction to tenhours a week and
com:pletely isolates him from his peers. Placement at Trow-

bridge will deny him the opportunity to attend regular or ..

special classes at a regular school and will isolate him from
his peers at Lee High School. The Education Act prevents a
school from limiting a handicapped child's placement alter-

- natives. Defendants therefore cannot circumvent the Act by

referring to their normal disciplinary procedures. Sruarr v.
Nappi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at 1242-1243.

 ——

! n
‘ * lrreparable Harm

Plaintiff has made a persuasive showtng (1) that he has
suffered and is continuing fo suffer possible irreparable in-
jury as a result of the defendants® actions in excluding him
from school beyond his ten-day suspension period and by
placing him on homebound instruction, and (2) that he will
suffer possible irreparable injuries if the defendants are per-
mitted to cxpel him from Lee High School through the
remainder of the school year through the school’s normal
disciplinary procedures. As discussed above, the defendants’
actions in excluding plaintiff from school for more than ten
days and in attempting to expel him from school through the

normal dizziplinary process violate at least three substantial
right:, guaranteed to him by the Education Act. These include
his night to remain in his present educational placement
during the pendency of his cducation complaint, the right to
have his placement changed in accordance with prescribed
proc_:edurec andthe right to aneducation in the least restrictive
environmeat. :

Plaintiff’s present educational placcment as determined -
by the PPT consists of two ED/LD classes and four regular
classes at Lee High School. Defendants have removed plain.-
tiff from that placement for morc than the permissible ten-day
suspension period and placed him in a program of
homebound instruction. That program difiers significantly
from the program developed for him by the PPT. Instead of
participati~g in special and regular classes at a regular public
school, plaintiff is being restricted to ten hours & week of
individualized tutoring at an isolated location. Such a pro-
gram imposes a severe limitation on his academic and social
development, see Stuart v. Nanpi, supra. 443 F. Supp. at
1240, and is totally unresponsive to his special education
needs.

If defendants are permitted to expel phaintiff from
school, he will suffer irreparable injury 1n that his expulsion
will preclude him from taking part in any special education
programs or cther programs oftcred at Lee High School.
Defendants have indicated thar pMintitt. 1t expelled, will be
placed at Trowbridge School or will be continued on
homebound instruction. Both placements difter considerably
from and are more restnictive than the environment at Lee
High School. Moreover, if the PPT is hinited to considering
placement alternatives in environinents other than Lee High
School. there is a real possibility that plaintiff may be placed
in a prograra which is more restrictive than necessary to meet
his special education needs. This result 1s incompatible with

both his right to be educated with nonhandicapped childrento - -

the maximum.extept appropriate and the obligation of the
school to provide & continuum of altemnative placements to
meet his special eeucation needs. The irveparable injury
which plaintiff may possibly sucfer to his education and
social dcvclopmenl,r as a result cannot be compensated in
damages. t

Because plaintiff has indeed shown both likelihood of
success on the merits and irreparable harm. his motion for &
preliminary injunction ordering the defendants to refrain
from conducting an expulsion hearing or taking any other
actions to expel him from school, and. directing the defen-
dants to reinstate him into his presuspension special educa-
tion placement or some other educational program chosen by
agreement of the partics during the pendency of any proceed-
ings conducted pursuant to 20 U S.C. § 1415 is granted.

SO ORDERED.

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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JANE DOE, on behalf of her minor son,
DENNIS DOE, Individually and on behaif
of all other persons similary situated, .

Plainiiffs
v.

KENNETH J. KOGER, Individually and in
his capacity as Superintendent of the School
City of Mishawaka; JOHN SHOTTS,
Individually and as Director of Special
Education for the School City of '
Mishawaka; RONALD KRONEWITTER,
' GEORGE VERNASCO, ELVIRA
TRIMBOLI, SAMUEL MERCANTINI
and ROSEMARY SPALDING,
Individually and in their official capacity as
Members of the Board of School Trustees of
the School City of Mishawaka;
HAROLD H. NEGLEY, in his official
N capacity as Indiana Superintendent ¢f
Public Instruction; and GILBERT
. BLITON, in his official capacity as Director
of Special Education for the State
Department of Public Instruction,
Defendants.

Civ. A. No. S 79-14

United States District Co.rt
N.D. Indiana
South Bend Division

Novemlper 21, 1979

7

Supplementary Entry December 3, 1979
Allen Sharp, District Judge

" Counsel for Plaintiffs: Kyle M. Payne, Legal Services
Program of Northern Indiana, Inc., South Bend,
Indiana

Counsel for Defendants: Theodore L. Sendak,
Attorney General of Indiana, Ronald J. Semler,
Deputy Attorney General, Indianupolis, Indiana,
James J. Olson, Mishawaka, Indiana

Action by “*mildly meatally handicapped"’ student
and his mother alieging that expulsion from school
violated student's rights under Education of the Handi-
capped Act, 20 U.S.C. §8 1401 ef seq., EHA regula-
tions, and Equal Protection Clause of 14th Amend-
ment. Student was suspended with recommendation
for expulsion and was expelled for remainder of school

o (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,

year following expulsion hearing Student’s attorney
indicated that expulsion would be appealed and re-
quested Rule S-| hearing Rule S-1is State regulation

*  establishing, among other things. specific procedures
to be used in placement of mildly meritally handi-
capped students and other students needing special
education. Shortly thereatter. partics agreed that,
pending further legal action. siudent would be placed
in interim educational program, which he was. This
action followed.

HELD, students whos. handicaps cause: them tooe
disruptive cannot be expelled or indefinitely sus-
pended; the school is allowed only to transfer the
student to an appropriate, more restrictive environ-
ment. Whether a child’s handicap is the cause of the
child’s propensity to disrupt must be deterrnined
through the change of placement procedures required
by EHA. To subject handtcapped students 0 tue same
disciplinary expulsions as other students is not to in-
vidiously discrinunate against the handicapped in vio-
lation of the Equal Protection Clause of the }14th
Amendment,

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

By his mother, Dennis Doc-has brought this action
challenging his expulsion from school. (By order of this
Court, Dennis Doe and his mother. Jane Doe, have been
granted permission to use alternative names.) The defendants
are the Board of the School Cuity of Mishawaka, centain
officials of the school, and certain officials of the State
Department of Public Instruction. The plantiff complains
that he was expelied in violaton of the equal protection
clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constution and
in violation of the Education of the Handicapped Act (20
U.S.C. §§ 401-1461) (Handicapped.Act) and the regulations
promulgated under the Handicapped Act (45 C.F.R. Regs.
121a.1-121a.754). ’

This memorandum and order will dispose of several -
motions. The plaintiff has moved for centification of a class
and for partial summary judgment. The state defendants have
moved for dismissal or, in the aliemative. fora stay pending
the exhaustion of administrative remedies. The local defen-
dants have moved for dismissal or, in the altemnative, for
summary judgment.

The parties agree on the basic faciual background. Until
October 18, 1978, Dennis attended the John Young School
as a mildly mentally handicapped student. On October 18,
1978, the principal of John Young School suspended Dennis
for disciplinary reasons and recommended that Dennis be
expelled for the remainder of the school year. Pursuant to
procedures provided for ali Indiana public school discipli-
nary expulsions, an expulsion hearing was held on Novem.
ber 22, 1978, findings and recommendations were issuod oa

<
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December 1, 1978, and Dennis was formally expelied for the
remainder of the school year on December S, 1978. Within
two days of Dennis’s formal expulsion, Dennis’s attoruey

wontacted the local defendants, informing them that Dennis -

would appeal the expulsion, and requesting that there be held
a Rule S-1 bearing. (Rule S-1 is a detailed promulgation

issued by the Commission on General Education of the In- .

diona State Board of Education. Among other things Rule
S-1 establishes certain specific procedures to be used in the
placement of mildly mentallyhandicapped Students and other
students in need of speciz! education.) On December 18,
1978, it was agreed between the parties that, pending further
proceedings, Dennis would be placed in an interim edozs-
tional program beginning January 3, 1979. On January 2,
1979, Dennis returned to school for the remainder of the
school year. This fedcral court action followed.

Class Certification Issues

The plaintiff has moved this Court for an order certify-
ing a’class consisting of *"all children aucndirsg schools
operated by the School City of Mishawaka who aréin necd of
or will in the future be in need of special education within the
meaning of the Education of the Handicapped Act.”” The
plaintiff does not contend that a large nurber of special
education students were actually suspended or expelled by
the School City of Mishawaka during the 1978-79 school
year; rather, he cantends that relief should be granted on
behalf of all special education students because they all face
the possibility of disciplinary suspension or expulsion under
the school’s present policies. For purposes of ruling on this
motion, this Court will consider separately the plainuff’s
constitutional and statutory claims.

As to the constitutional claim asserted on behalf of the
requested class, it is clear that the claim would have to be
promptly dismissed. The requested class would have only a
claim for a threatened violation of a constitutional right This
Court has no junsdiction over a claim for a threatened viola-
tion of a constitutional right.-Such a claim fails to satis{y the
*"case or controversy'* requirement of Article III of the
Constitution. O'Shea v. Littleton. 414 U.S. 488, 94 S.Ct.
669.38 L.Ed.2d 674 (1974), Beyle v. Landry, 401 U.S. 77,
91S.Ct. 758, 27 L..Ed 2d 696 (1971). A class should not be
certified if it is clear that the claim of the class is void.

The only class which could possibly assert a constitu-
tional claim would have to consist »f ail special education
chilgren actually suspended or expelled by the School City of
Mishawaka. But, the plaintiff docs not allege that class to be
so numerous that joinder of all members is impractical. A
class action may be pursued only if the class 15 so numnerous

that joinder of all members is unpractical. Federal Rules of.

Civil Procedure 23(aX 1). Asto the claim under the Constitu-
tion. the motion for an order certifying a class must be denied
for failure to satisfy the numerosity requirement.

Asto the claim under the federal statute and regulations,
a ¢lass action would simitarly have to be dismissed. The
rehief requested on behalf of the class is an orders requinng the
local and state’ detendants to change their suspension and
expulsion policies The Handicapped Act might ullow sucha
class action to be brought. However, the Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare (HEW) has sot up admunis-

o (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
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trative ptocecurss for the entorceinent of its regulations (45
C.F.R. Regs. 121a.58(" 121a.593), and the plaintitf has not
sought redress through those administrative procedures.
Until availablée adniinistrative reinedies have been
exhausted. a claim may not be asserted in ccurt Liovd v.
Re ional Transporiaiton Authority . 548 F 24 1277 (7th Cir.
1977). )

It shoul2 be noted that HEW apparently has not set up
administrative procedures for providing individual students
with redress for a school’s failure to comply with HEW
regulations. It follows that exhaustion of admtnistrative rem-
edies would not be required of a class of plaintiffs seeking
compensation for damages actually incurred because of vio-
lations of the Handicapped Act or regulations promulgated
under that act. But the plasnuft does not allege that class to be
so numerous that joinder of all members is impractical.
Therefore, like the claim under the Constitution. the claim
under the statute and the regulations cannot be certified a
cluss action because the class uoes not satisfy the numerous-
ity requi-ement See Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
23(a(1y.

The niotion tor an order certifying a class must be
denica.

Exhaustion Issues

The defendants have argued that the plaintit? should not
be allow-d to pursue this action because the pluntft has
faited to exhaust admunistraive remedies avaibable within
AEW. The plaintitf 1y seckhing redress for violations of his
substantive rigits under the Handicapped Act. By bonging
this action, the plaintiff has presupposed that the Handi-
capped Act provides substantive rights to students attending a
school recciving funds under that act. The defendants have
not challenged the plaintiff’s presuppostiion. and this Count
has no reason to doubt that the Handicapped Act does provide
students substantive rights under the consderations outhined
inCortv. Ash. 422 U.S. 66.95S.Ct 2080, 45 L.Ed 2d 26
(1975). The defendunts have been unable to show this Court
any HEW administrative procedures providing individual
students with redress for violations ot their substantive
rights. The HEW administratiy e procedures aviniable do not
provide for the compensation of individual students whose
Handicapped Act rights have been violated. Before an action
may be hrought in court. admimstrative remedics must be
exhausted only if they are avallable Llnd v. Reguonal
Transportanon Authority, supra. There being no HEW ad-

" ministrative remedies providing for the compensation of in-

dividual students whose Handicapped Act rights have been
violated, this Court must allow the plainutt's action without
requiring exhaustion of HEW admmstrative remedies

The defendants have also argued that the plaatiff should
not be allowed to pursue this action because the planutt has
failed to exhaust administrative remedies available at the
local and state levels. The plaintff is challenging both his
expulsion and the procedure by which he was expelled. The
local and state administrattve remedics availuble are basi-
cally appeals from the plaintiff's expulsion. The local and
state administrative remadies available do not provide for a
challenge to the procedure by which the plamtift was ex-
pelled. Before an action may be brought in court. admunistra-
tive remedies must be exhausted only if they are available

,m
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Lloydv. Pegional Transportation Authority, supra. Since the
available jocal and state administrative remedies were not
designed for the claim brought by the plaintiff, the plaintiff
acted properly in bringing this action in this Court without
exhausting the available local and state ' adininistrative
remedies.

-Statutory Issues

By various sections of the Handicapped Act and the
HEY regulations promulgated under that' Act, it is made
clear that the Handicapped Act was intended to limit a
school’s right to expel handicapped -siudents. 20 U.S.C.
§ 1415 sets out the procedure by which schools receiving
funds under the Handicapped Act are to change the place-
ment of handicapped students. Neither 20 U.S.C.§1415nor
any of the HEW regulations intefpreting that section (45
C.F.R. Regs. 121a.500-121a.514) provide for the expulsion
of handicapped students. 20 U.S.C. § 1412 provides in part:

In order to qualify for assistance under this
subchapter in any fiscal year, a State shall
demonstrate to the Commissioner that the fol-
lowing conditions are met:

(1) the State has in effect a policy that
assures all handicapped children the right
to a free appropriate public education.

Int the comments to 45 C.F.R. Reg. 121a.552'(which inter-
prets 20 U.S.C. §1412), HEW cites as pertinent certain
language in the analysis of the regulations for Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973:

With respect to determining proper place-
ments, the analysis states: **. . . it should be
stressed that, where a handicapped child is so
disruptive in a regular classroom that the edu-
cation of the other students is significantly
impaired, the needs of the handicapped child
cannot be met in that environment. Therefore
regular placement would not be appropriaie to
bis or her needs . . .

As HEW interpreted the Handicapped Act, schools were not

to expel students whose handicaps caused them to be disrup-
tive; rather, schools were 10 appropriately place such stu-
dents. This Court must agree with HEW's interpretation.
Congress's intent in adopting the Handicapped Act is clear.
A school which accepts Handicapped Act funds is prohibited
from expelling students whose handicaps cause them to be
disruptive. The school is allowed only to transfer the disrup-
tive student to an appropriate, more restrictive, environment.
This Court is not alone in making this ruling. A similar ruling
was made in Swart v. Nappi, 443 F, Supp. 1235 (D. Conn.
1978).

The prohibdition of the Handicapped Act includes not
only formal expulsions, but also informal expulsions like
Dennis’s indefinite suspension pending formal expulsion. It
is the removal of handicapped students from school which the
Handicapped Act limits. A disruptive handicapped student
may be suspended only if the school is unable to immediately
place the student in an appropriate, more restrictive, envi-
ronment. See Stuart v. Nappi, supra, (interpreting 45 C.F.R.

o (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
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Reg. 121a.513). A disruptive handitapped student may be
suspended only.until the school is able to place the student in
the appropriate, more restrictive, environment. See Swartv,
Nappi, supra, (interpreting 45 C F R. Reg. 121a.513).
But the Handicapped Act does not prohibit all expul-
sians of disruptive handicapped children. It only prohibits the
expulsion of handicapped children who are disruptive be-
cause of their handicap. Whether a handicapped child may be
expelled because of his disruptive behavior depends on the
reason for the disruptive behavior. If the'reason 1s the hand-
icap, the child cannot be expelled If the reason is not the
handicap, the child can be expelled. While 20 US.C.§ 1415

.and its accompanying regulation do not provide for the ox-

-

pulsion of handicapped childr~n. they do not prohibit the
expulsion of handicapped chilarn. While 20 U.S.C. § 1412
and its accompanying regulations require schools to guaran-
tee that handicapped students have the right to be educated,
they do not require schools to guarantee that handicapped
students be educated. 1t is the purpose of the Handicapped
Act and its accompanying regulations to provide handi-
capped students placement which will guarantee their ~duca-
tion despite the students” handicap. It is not the purposc of the
Handicapped Act to provide handicapped students placement
which will guarantee their education despite the students’
will to cause trouble. For an appropriately placed handi-
capped child, expulsion is just as available as for any other
child, Between a handicapped child and any other child, the
distinction is that, unlike any other disruntive child, before a
disruptive handicapp.d child can be expelled, it must be
determined whether the handicup i~ the cause of the child's
Ppropensity to disrupt.

Ang this issue must be deternined through the change of
placement procedure:. required by the Handicapped Act.
Since itis the Handicapped Act which requires the considera.
tion of whether a handicapped chld's propensity to disrupt is
caused by bis handicap, Handicapped Act procedures should
be followed. The procedures best suited to protect Handi-
capped Act rights are the procedures provided by the Handi-
capped Act. When a handicapped child is tnvolved, expul-
sion must not be pursued until after it has been determined
that the handicapped child has been appropriately placed.

The Schoo! City of Mishawaka violated the Handi-
capped Act when it expelled Denas without first determin-
ing, by Handicapped Act procedures. whether his propensity
to disrupt was the result of his Inappropriate placement. This
does not mean, however, that the plainuff is entitled to
compensation Whether the plaintiff is entitled to compensa-
tion depends on whether the school has caused him to lose
any education. Whether the school has caused the plaintiff to
lose any education depends on whether he would have been
expelled even if the appropriate procedures had been fol-
lowed. And whether he would have been expelled even if the
appropriate procedures had been followed depends on
whether his propensity to disrupt was the result of his in-
appropriate placement As to whether the plantiff's propen-
sity to disrupt was the result of his inappropnate placement,
the parties apparently disagree. Therefore. as far as the fed-
eral statute and regulations are concerned. whether the plain-
tft is entitled to any compensation 1s a question which must
await trial.

w
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Constitutional Issues

The plaintiff complains that his expulsion violated the
equal protection clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the
Constitution. Courts use one of two tests for determining
whether a given policy violates the equal protection clause.

" Courts will strictly scrutinize a policy which denies rights to

one class of persons while graming those rights to another
class of pezns if either the rigts involved are fundamental
rights or the burdened class is a suspect class. San Antonio
Independent School District v. Rodriguez, 411 US. 1, 93
S.Ct. 1278, 36 L.Ed.2d 16 (1973). All other policies are
liberally scrutinized to determine whether they rationally
further a legitimate state purpose or interest, /d. The plaintiff
complains that he has been denied education and that this
denial is unjustifiable because he is handicapped. Appar-
ently. the plaintiff believes that the policy of disciplinary
expulsions should be subject to strict scrutiny. The purported
fundamental nghl is the right fo an education. The purported
suspect class is the handicapped.

Education is not a fundamental right. While the United
States Supreme Court has not so held (See Sun Antonio
Independent School District v. Rodriguez. supra), lower
courts have so ruled. Cary v. Board of Education of Adamns-
Ardipahoe School District 28-J, Aurora, Colorade, 598 F.2d
535 (10th Cir,
Tempe Elementary School District No. 3, 587 F.2d 1022 (Sth
Cir. 1978), DenisJ. O Connell HighSchool v. Virginia High
School League . 581 F.2d 81 (4th Cir. 1978). The Constitu-
tion does not requize, explicitly or implicitly, that a state
educate its residents. The Constitution.only requires that1f a
state make education available to one resident, then it must
make education equally available to all residents. San An-
tonio Independent School District v. Rodriguez. supra.

Whether the handicapped are a suspect class need notbe |

decided. Even if the handicapped were a suspect class (which
this Court seriously doubdts), and the strict scrutiny test
applied, the plaintiff would have failed to state an equal
protection claim. The plaintiff argues that the handicapped
are more in necd of education than others, that tie handi-
capped are a suspect class, and that therefore the equal
protection clause provides the handicapped with a superior
right to education, The plaintiff has not asked this Court to
rule that the equal protection clause precludes the expulsion
of ali students; rather, the plaintiff has asked this Court tc rule
that the equal protection clause precludes only the expulsion
of handicapped students. The plaintiff has not complained
that the handicapped are being subjected to invidious dis-
crimination under the guise of disciplinary expulsions;
rather, the plaintiff has complained that the handicapped are

1979), Guadalupe Organization. Inc. v.’

being subjected to the same di\cipiiwary expulsions as all
other students. 1i is not the purpose ol shic equal protection
clause to guarantee thit members of a suspect class be given
supericr rights under a given policy: rather, it is the purpose
of the equal protccuon clause to guarantee that members-of 3
suspect class be given equal nghts under a given policy. The
equal protection clause does ot require a state to guarantee
more education to students with a greater need of an educa-
tion; rather, the equal protection clause requires a state to
guarantee an equal educational opportunity to all students.
Id. To subject the handicapped to the snme disciplinary
expulsions as other students 1s not toinvis s usly discnminate
against the handicapped.

It cannot be contested that disciplinary expulisions are
rational. Having undertaken to educate its residents. a state
has a duty to provide all students with an equal education
opportunity. /d. A disruptive student interferes with the edu-
cation of other students in his schoal, It is quite rational tor a
school to reserve the option of expelling any siudent who is
interfering with the education of other students. At lcast with
regard to the handicapped. whatever dangers ot invidious
dicrimination are presented by a policy of disciplinary expul-
sion, those dangers are outweighed by the rativnality of
disciplinary expulsions.

Conclusion

The plaintiff’s motion for an order certifying a4 cliss 1s
denied. The defendants’ varivus alternative ntotiony to tis.
miss, for sutamary judgment, or for a stay are dented The
plaintiff’s motion for partial sunimary judgment 1s granted i
part and denied in part.

The sole issue reinaining for tral is whether the plaintiff
is entitled to compensation under the Handicapped Act and
its accompanying regulations.

Supplemental Entry

As this Court noted in its memorandum and order of
November 21, 1979, the Education of the Handicapped Act
and-its amendments (20 U.S.C. §§1401-1461) severely im-
pede the exercise of discretion by institutions which accept
federal funds under the Act. A recent District Court decision
in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania dramauzes this by
ruling that the Act rejuires recipients to provide a handi-
capped child a longer school ycar than that provided non-
handicapped children if the child’s handicap necessitates a
longer school year: Armstrong v. Kline, 476 F. Supp. 583
(E.D. Pa. 1979). .

- (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
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HOWARD S. et al, Plaintiffs,
A

FRIENDSWOOD INDEPENDENT
SCHOOL DISTRICT et al.,
Defendants,

Civ. A. No. G-78-92.

United States District Court,
S. D. Texas,
Galveston Diw{ision.

June 23, 1978.

* Parents of handicapped minor sought
injunctive relief to insure that minor re-
ceived necessary and appropriate treatment.
and education. On motion for preliminary
injuniction, the District Court, Cowan, J.,
Loid that school district violated its legal
obligations under the Rehabilitation Act of
1976 and under the Fifth and Fourteentit
Amendments_ with respect to high school
studant who had minimal brain damage and
emotional problems and failed to provide
constitutionally required hearings with re-
spect to student’s constructive expulsion
mandating issuance of preliminary injunc-
tion requiring schoa! district to pay cost of
student’s private schooling necessitated by
his difficultics.

Order accordingly.

1. Svhools and School Districts c=148

Regulations issued by the Secretary of
Health, Education and Welfare under the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Education
for Al Handizapped Children Act of 1975,
and the amendments of 1974 are reasonably
related to the urposes of the cnabling leg-
Islation. kenaoilitation Act of 1973, § 504,
2 U.SC.A. § 794; Education of the Handj-
capped Act, § 602 us amended 20 U.S.CA.
4 1401.

2. Civil Rights e=13.4(1)
Schools and School Districts <115 i
The Civil Rights Act and the Rehabili-
taticn Act of 1973 afford « private cause of
action to handicapped students who are de-

.
'3
K
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nied neceasary and appropriate treatment
and education. 42 U.S.C.A. § 1033; Rehae
oilitation Act of 1973, § 504, 20 USs.CcaA
§ 194.

3. Injunction &=147

For purposes of v «climinary injunction,
evidence established that school district vio-
lated its legral obligations under the Reha.
bilitation Act of 1973 and under the F 7t
and Fourtecnth Amendments with respect
to high ‘school student who had minimal
brain damage and emotional problems und
failed to provide constitutionally requircd
hearings with respect to student's construc.
iv_e_h\llﬁon. mandating issuance of pre-
liminary injunction requiring 2 schoo! dis-
trict to pay cost of student’s private school-
ing necessitated by his difficulties. Licha-
bilitation Act of 1973, § 504, 20 US.C .
§ 194; U.S.C.A.Const. Amepds._ 5, 14

J. Patrick Wiseman and Pecd Martin,
Houston, Tex., for plaintiffs )

Richard G. Sedgelsy and James §. Kelly,
Houston, Tex., for FISD defer.Junts.

Douglas B. Owen, Austin, Tex |, for State
defendants.

James C. Todd, Austin, Tex., for amicus

curiac,

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR
"~ PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

COWAN, Judge.

Pursuant to the mandage of Rule 65(1),
Fed.R.Civ.Proc., this Court states herein its
reasons for the prcliminary injunction te-
sued on June 21, 1978.

These findings of fact and conciusions of
law sre made solely for the purpose of
determining the plaintiffs' rights 10 obtain
preliminary injunctive relief pursuant to
Rule 65, Fed.R.Civ.Proc. These findings of
fact and conclusiors of law are not findings
upll the merits. The merits are reserved
for trinl at a later date, if necessary.,

Douglas S. (hereinafter “Douglas”), the
minor plaintiff in this case, is an Anglo-

Americzn male born in the State of Califor- .
. .

60

-

[

El{llc "Reprinted from 454 F.Supp. 624, P
N Copyright.: (c) 1981 West Publishing (..




ERIC

-»

‘:. . \, . ".

HOWARD 8. v, FRIENDSWOOD INDEP. SCH. DIST. 635
Cite ss 434 F.Supp. €34 (1978) R

nia on November 16, 1961. In 1962, he was
bospitalized and tested for meningitis, Al-
though his mother was éventually able to
furnish hifm a-stable family background, the
first three years of his life were unsettled,
chaotic and traumatic. Compotent medical
evidence establishes that these two events
created a situation in which Douglas has
minimal brain damage, a definite learning
disability, and at least temporarily, a severe
emotional disturbance. Medicul testimony
establishes that these events in his early
childhood are frrobably thé most significant,
although not the most immediate, causces of
the difficultios "which have precipitated this
litigation. © e
Douglas went through the first five years
of his schooling in California, where ht was _
diagnosed as having minimal bruin damage’’
and placed in special "education classes.
Douglas’ parents moved to Friendswood
in 1973, and Douglas was enrolled in the
public schouls mainjained by defendant
FISD (Fricndswood Independent  School
District). During" his first year of, school in
FISD, his teachers noted his short attention
span, hyperactivity and demands for atten-

~tion. In May of i974, while enruiled at the

Fricndswood Junior High School, he was
evaliated for the FISD by competent, inde-
pendent, outside consultants, who noted
that despite his normal intblligence, he had *
made markedly slow progress in school and
that probable ofgunic brain damage as well
as anxiety interfered with his ability to
concentrate, remember and pereeive accu-'
rately. The consultants recommended that
Douglas “~ . continue Tn u resource '

‘program in which he can reccive special

"

help with basic subjects . . . * ap
that “cfforts should be made by the school
counsclor to estaclish 3 warm relationship
with Douglas - . .

During kis ‘usior high .ycars, Douglas
was placed in a special education program
in which he was, for the most part “main.
streamed,” i, c., placed in clasies with non-
handicapped children, but still nevertheless,

“given special help by a “resource teacher.”

In November of 1974, Mrs. Patricia Bur-
ton worked out a program for Douglas in-

6
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volving special help, and this program ap-
parently produced reasonably good results
during his junior high years.

In mid-August of 1976, Douglas was en-
rolled in the Frienaswood High Schanl. Al
though FISD's program with refercnce’to
Douglas had been reasonably successful in
dealing with his problems duning junior
high, this_success cnded abruptly when
Douglas entered high school. He-immedi-
ately began to develop behavior problems,
characterized by truancy and wandering in

the_ halls. The Assistant Principal, Mr..

»Fred Nelson, regarded these difficultics as
* discipline problems and pot special cduca-
tion problems and failed to notily the.spe-
cial education depirtment of Puglas’ diffi.
cujtics in adjusting 1q high.school.
These difficultizs in high school” were
clearly foresecable. Al of the experty.who
* have tesiificd have agreed that -4 young

man with Douglas’ handicaps, when cor——
fronted witk the chalienge of adjustingToa - ]

high schoal emvironment and;coping with
the struins of puberty, is likely to develop
severe difficolties FISD had coped with
Douglus’ difficultios faffly velk-up uatil Au-
gust of 1976, but FISD did not cope ade-
quately with Douglas’ difficulties from Auy.
gust 1976 until December of “that " year.

Douglds’ diffic lties at srhool were paral-
leled by difficult’ss in adjusting 1t home.
In November 1975, he was referred to Df.
Grace Jamison 4" the John Sealy Hospital
in Galveston. D: Jamison, a child psychia-
trist, began to treat Dovglas. In December
1976, just before or during the Christmas
holidays, Dougls# made a suicide attempt
which resulted in his being confined in tte
Graves Unit at John Sealy Hospital for
several weceks.

After Douglas was relcased from the
Graves Unit, Dr. Jamison reconimended his
placement in the Oakes Unit of the Brown
School, a private schopl in Austin. Both Dr.
Jamison and Dr Boynton from the Brown
School have testificd credibly that Bouglas,
at the present time, is not sble to reiurn to
‘FISD in 2 normal classroom satting, but
that he is capable of recsiving an education,
and that if he s allowed to remain in a

1

4, !
ishing Co.

>

3




636 454 FEDFRAL SUPPLEMENT

setting like the Brawn School another 12 to
2 months, he has & reasonable chance of
developing into a reasonably well-adjusted
person who can lead a prodactive life. 1If
removed from the Brown School or some
similar {facility, his prognosis i3, the doctors
agree, very poor.

The undersigned has concluded that since
August of 1976, when Douglas entered high
school, FISD has failed to provide him a
free, appropriate public education and that
this failure was a contributing and a proxi-
mate cause (although certainly not the sole
or even the predominant cause) of Douglus'
severe_cmotional difficulties which culmi-
nated in his suicide attempt and confine-
meat in the Graves Unit of John Scaly
Hospital in December of 1976.

Although it is a harsh conclusion, the
undersigned must reluctantly conclude that
followi irg the dc\clopmrnt of Douglas® dif-
ficulties in adjusting to high schuol, FISD
engaged in a calculated, deliberate effort to
avoid and cvade its legal responsibility.
FISD's activities in this regard violate its
legal obligations under the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794) and the Fifth
and Fourteenth Amendments to the Consti-
tution of the United States.

«The most important deficiencies, in con-
nection with FISD's conduct occurred dur-
ing the period from August of 1976 until
December 1976 and from January 1977 un-
tit Juiy 6, 1977. During that period Doug-
las had been classified as a minimal brain
damaged child who needed and was entitled
to reccive special education. Despite this,
when he developed disciplinary dilTiculties
and was wandcrmg The halls, the special
education dcpartmenl uas nevcr notified.
Dr. Wren, the head of specini education,
was never told that Douglas was having
difficulties; instead, Douglas’ difficulties
were handled entirely an___mlgh_a.msuph-
nary problems l\o effort was made to
dctcrmme whether ¢r not not Wis dlsaplmary
prob!cms were related to_his diagnosed
handlcaps This pat.ern continued despite
expressions of inlerest and concern by
Howard S. and Judy S. (Douglas’ parents)
to the schoo! administration,

Reprinted from 454 F.Supp. 634,

On January 18, 1977, while Douglas was
in the Graves Uit of the John Sealy Hospi-
tal in Galveston, FISD, without notice to
Douglas or his parents, "ofﬁcnafl} dropped”
Douglas from FISD. This effective and
constructive expulsion occurred without go-
tice to the parents, without a hearing of
any kind, and is a clear violation of the
FISD's obligation under the Constitution of
the United States. See Goss v. Lopez, 419
US. 563,95 S.Ct. 729, 42 L.Ed.22 725 (1974).

On February 15, 1977, Mrs. S. met with
FISD's superintendent, the assistant princi-
pal of the high school, ard the %ead of
special education; informed these officiale
of Douglay’ difficulties; delivered to them a
handwritten letter irdicating that Douglas
was only temporarily out of school; advised
that Mrs. 8 was sceking a suitable educa-
tional prograim for him in the light of his
handicaps; and advised that she wished to
participate in a scheduled ARD {Admis-
sions, Review und Dismissal) meeting to
determine il a suitable program could be
developed far Douglas in FISD.

Three days later, on February 18, 1977,
the ARD meeting occurred. Mrs. S. was
not given an opportunity tn be present,
The ARD committce “dismissed” Douglas
from the special education program “fol-
lowing the usual procedure of Friendswood
ISD regarding students who move . .*
This corduct was a subtorfuge. Douglas
ard his family had not moved, Douglas
had been placed i a hospital. The hospital
had referred him to a special schoo! because
of his handicaps and his severe emotional
disturbance. By _no streteh of the imagina-
tion can it be ‘contended that he had
“moved.” FISD here clearly violated the
duties placed upon it by the Constitution of
the United States. See Goss v. Lopez, su-
pra.

Ultimately in May 1977, Mr. and Mrs. §
obtained counsel and requested an xmnartml
due process hearing. Mr. and Mrs. S. were
entitled to this due process hearing under
the provisions of both the United States
Censtitution and the Rehabilitation Act of

1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794). Continuing its pre-
vious pauem, however, F IQDJntentxona'ly
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evaded and avoided its responsibility to pro-
vide an finpartial due process hearing.

A gathering which can best be described-

83 & meeting occurred on July 6, 1977. This
“meeting” csrnot accurately be described
as & hearing. The meeting was chaired by
FISD's retajaed counsel. The designated
decision maker was the school superintend-
ent. There w2s no formal introduction of
evidence, no formal presentation of argu-
ments, no notice of the issucs to be decided
at the meeting, no impartial due process
bearing examiner, no findings of fact or
oonclusions of law, and no real decision of
any kind rendered at or after the mecting.

1t is true that.in Julv 1977 the Education
for All Handi€apped Children Act of 1975
(20 US.C. § 1401 et seq.) had not become
fully operative, and the regulations pursu-
ant to that statute had not been published:
the plan of the State of Texas for compli-
arce with that Act had not been approved;
however, FISD was still obligated to com-
ply with the Rehabifitation Act of 1973 (29
US.C. § 794) and with the Constitution of
the United States. D
The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Public
Law 93-112 codified at 29 U.S.C. § 794)
provides in its pertinent purts as follows:
No otherwire qualificd handicapped indi-
vidual in the United States, as defined in
§ 706(6) of this title shall, solely by rea-
son of his handicap, he excluded from the
participation in, be ¢ -nied the benefits of,
or be subjected to liscrimination under
any program or activ-ty receiving Federal
financial assistance.
FISD at all material times has received
federal financial assistance.

On May 4, 1977, the Secretary of Health,
Education and Welfare, had published in 45
C.F.R. § 84.36 the regulations issued pursu-
ant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, This
regulation states:

§ 84.36 Procedural safeguards.

A recipient that operates a public ele-
-mentary or secordary education program
shall establish and implement, with re-
spect to actions regarding the identifica-
tion, evaluation, or educational placcment

Reprinted from 454 F.Supp. 634,
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of persons who, because of handicap, nced
or are believed to need special instruction
or regulatud services, a system of proce-
dural safeguards that includes notice, an
opportunity for the parents or guardian
of the person to examine relevant sce-
ords, an impartial hearing with cpportu-
nity for participation by the person’s par-
ents or guardian and representation by
counsel, and a review procedure. Compli.
ance with the procedural safeguards of
section 615 of the Education of the Hand-
icapped Aet is one means of meeting this
requircment.

Section 615 of the Educaticn of the
Handicapped Act (Public Law 94- 142 codi-
fied 2t 26 ULSC § 1413) sets forth detailed
provisions concerning procedural safc-
guards and clearly provides that: * .
no hearing conducted pursuant to the re-
quiremeats of this paragraph shall be con-
ducted by an employee of such agency or
unit involved in the education or care of the
chiid . . "

This meeting of July 6, 1977, did not meet
the requirements of the regulations publ.ah-
¢d under the Rehabilitation of the Hundi-
capped Aet of 1975 (specifically 42 C.F* R
§ 84 36) and was not consistent with the
procedures promulgated in § 615 of 'ublic
Law 9412 (codified in 20 US.C. § 1415,
passeC. on November 29, 1975). In addition,
the meeting (if 1L 13 claimed to have been a
hearing) was not conststent with the due
process cluuse of the Fourteenth Amend-
ment to the Constitution of the United
States. See Lau v. Nichols, 414 U.S. 563, 94
S.Ct. 786, 39 L.Ed.2d 1 (1973); Goss v. Lo-
-prz, 419 U.S. 565, 95-S.Ct. 729, 42 1.Ed.2d
725 (1974); * Morrisey v. Brower, 408 U.S.
471, 92 SCt. 2503, 33 L.Ed.2d 484 (1972);
Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S 319 (see par-
ticularly the analysis at 335), 96 S.Ct. 893,
47 L.Ed.2d 18: Sullivan v. Houston ISD,
507 F.Supp. 1323, 333 F.Supp. 1149 (1960 -
71). While factually distinguishable, the
analysis of Chie( Justice Rurger in Horton-
ville JSD No. I v Hortonville Education
Assn, 426 US. 482, 96 S.Cu 2305, <9
[.Ed.2d 1 (1976) supports the conclusion
that, even without reference to the recent
Congressiona! enactments, the meeving of
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July 6, 1977 (if argued %o be a hearing) did
not meet tne requirements of substaptive
and procedural due process,

After they had employed counsel, Mr. and
Mrs. S. took virtually all action which could
conceivably have been taken to attenpt to
obtain administrative relief. Numerous let-
ters were written to the Texas Educational
Agency (hereinafter “TEA”) to no avail.
Similar entrcaties were made to the De-
partment of Health, Education and Welfare
(HEW), which launched or said that it
launched an investigation in July 1977, Ap-
parently, from the record here, nothing has
been heard further from this investigration
in the eleven intervening months,

.I.rguably. an “appeal” could have been
taken from the meeting of July 6, 1977 to
the FISD Board of Trustees; however,
there was no decision to appeal from. In
addition, this Court finds from the plead-
ings and arguments asserted in this cause
that an appeal from the “mecting of July 6,
1977" to the Board of Trustees of FISD
would have been a futile gesture. The
Board's retained counsel was fully cogni-
2ant of and an active participant in the
meeting of July 6, 1977. The schoo! super-
intendent and the director of special educa-
tion (who wes also one of the principal
administrators in the school system) partici-
pated actively in events after January of
1977, 1t is clear, and the Court finds, that
the Board of Trustees ratified the actions of
the school administrators at the time of and
after Douglas’ constructive expulsion in
January of 1977 and the further actions
relating to Douglas up to July 6, 1977.

A hearing before the Board of Trustees
would not have satisfied the requirements
of 29 U.S.C. § 794 and the regulations pro-
mulgated pursuant thereto. Specifically, 45
CF.R. § 84.35 would not have heen satis-
fied, and the procedures promulgated by
the Education for Ail Handicapped Children
Act of 1975 (Public Law 94--142 § 615 codi-
fied at 20 U.S.C. § 1415) would not have
been met.

This Court has concluded that the Board
of Trustees of FISD has reccived extremely
poor advice concerning its legal obligations
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and the poscible liability of individual ad-
ministrators and Trustces for intentional
violat.on of plaintiffs’ constitutional rights.
In this connection, the attention of the
Board of Trustees is respectfully directed to
the possibility of personal liabilty being
imposed upon school board members for
failure to comply with their legal obliga-
tions. See Justice White's language
Wood v. Strickiand, $20 U.S. 305 at 321, 95
S.Ct. 992 at 1000, 43 L.Ed 2d 214, where he
stated:

The official, himself, must be
acting sincerely and with a belief that he
18 doing right, but an act violating a
student’s constitutional rights can be no
more justiied by ignorance or dxr.régard
of settled, indisputable law 0.1 the part of
one entrusted with the superwision of stu-
dents’ datly lives, than by the presence of
actual malice

See also Burnaman v. Bay City Indepen-
dent School District, 445 F.Supp. 927 (S D,
Tex. 1978

In July 1977 there may hzve been some
justification for lack of information con-
cerning the Trustee’s legal oblipations
There is no like justification now.

The foregoing constitutes the Court's
genersd findings of fact and conclusions of
law applicable to th.s caze, In addition the
Court makes the following specific findings
of fz-t and conclusions of law.

L

Pia ntiffs have taken all rcasonable and
practi-able steps to exhaust administrative
remedies in this cause.

2,

The procedures employed by FISD in con.
nection with the constructive expulsion of
Douglas and the other procedures relating
to Dcuglas from January 1977 until the
present date have denied Douglas and his
parents substantive and orocedural due
process in violation of the guarantees of the
Fifth and Fourtrenth Amendments to the
Constitution of the Umited States.
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3. -

Mr. and Mrs. S were caught in a typica.
governmental “Catch 22" situation. FPISD
purported to have cxpelled Douglas because
he “moved from the system.” Thereafter,
FISD refused to give him an impartial due
process hearing, and took the position that
nothing further could be done with the
child until he was re-enrolled in FISD. It
was impossible to re-enroll him becausé_ he
had been placed, because of his severe emo-
tional difficulties, in a school outside the
jurisdiction of FISD. This removal of
Douglas to the Brown School occurred be-
cause of FISD's refusal to comply with its
legal obligations and its refusal to attempt
to work out an appropriate educational plan
to afford Douglas a frec, appropriate public
education.

4.

At the pertinent times, no adequate
mechanisms have existed to afford the
plaintiffs a full administrative hearing, or n
meaningful administrative remedy. In ths
connection, sce plantiffs’ exhibits 7, 8, 15,
16, 18 and 23 (particularly TEA's letter of
November 30, 1977 to Mr. Reed Martin).

5.

The undersign.d, in determining whether
or not to grant . preliminary injunction,
has balanced the interests of the parties.
The Court conclurles that the consequences
of denying relief t> Douglas and his parents
could be disastrous, and that the denial of
relief could destroy Dougles’ chances to
lead 2 normal life. On the contrary, the
relief granted against FISD mercly creates,
for FISD, an expense and inconvenicnce—
moreover this cxpense and inconvenicnce is
an expense and inconvenicnce which is im-
posed upon FI3SD by law and which FISD
has a legal ubligation to undertake. In
addition, the Trust:es’ failure to meet their
legal obligatiors promptly could well result
in substantial personal liability.

6.

Douglas at uli material times has been a
“handicapped child” as that term is defined
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in the Education for ANl Handicapped Chil-
dren Act of 1975 (Public Law 94 142 cuds-
fied at 20 US.C. § 1401 ct seq.) Since
Decemher 1976, Douglas has been seriously
emotionally disturbed and that scnous emo-
tional disturbance is compeunded by a spe-
cific learning disability.

1.

At all material times Douglas has been a
“handicapped” child, as that term is ¢ fined
in § 4(a) of Public Law 94-142 {20 U 5.C.
§ 1401(1)] because he has been scriously
emotionally disturbed and handicapped by a
specific learning disability.

8.

At all material times Douglas has been a
child with specific lenrning disabilitics, as
that term is used in the Education for All
Handicapped Children Act of 1975 (Public
Law 94-142 codified at 20 U.S.C. § 1401, ot
s¢q.) in that he has suffered from minimal
brain dysfunction and probable organie
brain damage.

9.

At all material times Douglas has been a
“qualificd handicapped individual” as that
term is used 1n the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (Public Law 93- 112 codified 4t 29
U.S.C § 79%) and since August of 1976, he
has in fact been exciuded from participation
in and denied the berefits of, and suhjected
to discrimination under a program or activi-
tv receiving federal financial assistance, i.
e., the opeiation of FISD,

~

10.

Since August of 1976, FISD has failed to
afford Douglas a free, appropriate public
cducation and has thus discriminated
against him.

1.

FISD has failed to provide, since August
oi 1976, an individuahzed cducation pro.
gram for Douglas which meets his unique
teeds. This failure commenced in August
of 1976 and continues 1o this date
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At all material times, Douglas has been 2
“handicapped child” as that term is defined
in 45 C.F.R. § 1285 in that he has since
December of 1976, suffered from a scvere,
emotional disturbance, compounded by a
specific learning disability.

18.

For some periods of time since June of
1977, Douglas has suffcred from a handicap
which made placement in a public or pri-
vate residential program necessary in order
for him to have the benefit of a free, appro-
priate public education. The Court does not
hold that such placement will be necessary
in the indcfinite future, and this determina-
tion (it is hoped) will be made by the admin-
istrative process functioning through an im-
partial due process hearing of the tvpe con-
templated by § 615 of Public Law 94-142
(20 US.C. § 1415) and the regulations pro-
mulgated under the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (specifically the regulation appearing
at 45 CF.R. § 84.36).

.

During the perivd from January 1977 un-
ti) the present date, the State of Texas has
not afforded Douglas and his parents a
fezsible or practicable administrative reme.
dy because TEA has not established proce-
du-es to afford an impartial due process
heuring in this type of case, or an ajpeal or
re iew of the type contemplated by § 615 of
the Education for All Handicapped Chilcren
Act of 1975 [20 U.S.C. § 1415(c)).

15.

There is no legal impediment in the State
of Texas to the establishment of the proce-
dura} safeguards manduted by the Educa-
tion for All Handicapped Children Act of
1975 (Public Law 94-142, codified at 20
US.C. § 1415). This is true because al-
though there may be legal rcquirements
whish require that binding action of certain
types be taken only by the Boards of Trus-
tees of school districts, it is common knowl-
edge that the Bocrd of Trustees of Indunen-
dent School Districts cannot make indepen-
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dent dcterminations of every question of
every conceivable nature presented for deci-
sicn. _For example. employment decivions
in reslity, are maue by the administrators
of the independ.nt School Districts and rat-
ificd by the Boards of Trustees. There is
no legal impediment to the establishment of
an impartial due process hearing procedure
such as that set forth in plainti{fs’ exhibit
24 {Admninistrative Procedure Concerning
Spacial Education approved by the Houston
Independent School District Board of Edu-
cation on October 21, 1977).

16.

{1} The regulations issued by the Seere-
tary of Health, Education and Welfare un-
der the Rehabihitation Act of 1973 (codified
at 29 USC. § 794), the Education for All
Handicapped Children Act of 1975, and the
Amenuments of 1974 (codified at 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401 et seq.) are reasonably related to the
purposes of the enabling legizlation
concurring opinion by Mr. Justice Siewart
in Lsu v. Nichols, 414 U.S. 563, at 569, 01
S.Ct. 786, 39 L.Ed.2d 1

See

17.

Douglas became scriously emotionally
disturbed in December of 1976. This emo-
tioral upheaval was the precipitating factor
which led to his nospitalization and necessi-
tated his enroliment at the Brown School.
This emotional disturhance was the result
of multipie factors. Mcdical evidence es-
tablished that the pridominant cause was
probably related t5 organic brain damage
and environmental factors in the first three
years of his life. On the other hand, the
fact that he was rot afforded free, appro-
priate public education during the period
from the time he enroiled in high school
until December of 1976, was, this Court
finds, a contributing and proximate czuse
of his emoational difficulties and emotional
disturbance.

18.

{2] 42 U S.C. § 1983 and the Rchabilita-
tion Act of 1973 (29 U.SC. § 791) do ufford
the plaintiffs & private cause of action,

o
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Lau v. Nichols, 414 U S. 561, 94 S.Ct. 786, 39
LEd.2d 1 (1973).

’ COXNCLUSION

{3} On the basis of the findings of fact
and conclusions of law set forth above, the
Court has concluded that there is a high
probability that plaintiffs will succeed in
the trial of this case on the merits. The
Court Eus further cc.cluded that the plain-
tiffs will suffer irreparahle injury if not
given preliminary irjuncuve relief. The
Court has also balanced the irreparable
harm “which the plaintiffs will suffer
against the ineonvenjence to the defendants
and has determined that the irreparable
and grave nature of the harm which will be

sfered by the plaintiffs greatly outweighs
the inconvenience and cxpense which will
be imposed upon the defendants by prelimi-
nary injurictive relief., The Court has also
determined that the public interest will be
served by the entering of a prelinvinary
injunction for the reason that such prelimi.
nary injunction will afford the plaintiffs
their statutory and constitutional rights,
and will encoursge compliance with the
law.

\ Reference to thellegislative history re-
veals that it was the Judgment of the Con-
gress that the apparently sunstantial ex-
pense of complianze with the Education for
Ali Handicapped Children Act of 1975 (Pub-

" lie Law 91- 142. 29 US.C. § 1401) 15 actually
much less than cost of life-iong institution.
alization. Senate Report 94- 168, U.S.Code

+Cong. & Admin.News 1973, pp. 1425, 1433
says: )

The long range implications of these
statistics are that public agencies and
taxpayers will spend billions of dollars
over the lifetimes of these individuals to
maintaia such persons as dependents and
in a minimally acceptable lifestyle. With
proper cducation services, many would be
abile to become productive citizens, con-
tributing to society instead of being
forced to  remaia - burdens. Others,

. through such services, weuld increase
their independence, thus reducing their
dependunce on society. '

Reprinted from 454 F.Supp. 634,
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The Court finds the foregoing language to
be directly, squarely spplicable to the facts
of this case.

For the rcasons stated herein. the Court,
after kearing argument of counwl on the
form of the injunctive relief, has ontered a
preliminary injunction in comphance with
the terms and provisions of Pule 63, Fed.R.
Civ.Proc. (see copy attached as Exhibit A).

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

On the 18th day of May, 1973, the above.
entitled and numbered cause was filed seck-
ing a temporary restraiming order.  Plain.
tiffs and their counsel appeared in chum.-
bers and the Court, aftsr hearing argument,
declined to issuc a temporary restraining
order, but set a hearing for the purpose of
determining whether rr not a preliminary ™
injunstion should issue. This hearing oe-
curred on various dates, culminating in a
hearing on June 21, 1975, _All parties were
allowed to introduce a'f evidence tende
present authorities and present full argu-
nients.  In compliance with Rule 65(a)2).
Fed.R Civ.Proc , the Court has considered a
consolidation of the extensive kearimp with
trial on the menits but has declined to do so
because to do so might deny the parties
their rights to a tral by jury of contested
sues of facl  The Court has stated 1ty
the record its decailed findrgs of fuct and
conclusions of Liw suprorting the granting
of this preliminzey redef and incorporates
such findings of fz.t 2nd conclusions of lawe.
in this preliminary injnnction.

l(d,

Reasons

In compliance with Rule 63(d), the Court
states, in summary farm, the foilowing rea-
sons for the issuance of this injunction:

EXHIBIT A ~
1. Phintiffs have been denied rights
guaranteed to them by the Rehabil-
tation Act of 1973 (Publjc Law 93—
112 § 504, codified at 20 U.S.C. § 794)
in that Doglas S., a qualified handi-
capped individual, has been exeluded
from participation in and denied the

4
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EXUIBIT A—Continued
benefits of a {ree, appropriate public
education in the Friendswol Inde-
pendent School District {hercinafter
FISD), and has been subjected to dis-
crimination under an activity receiv-
ing federal financial assistance.

2. Douglas S. has been denied the rights
to procedural and substantive due
process guarantecd by the Fourteenth
Amendment to the Constitution of
the United States and has been con-
structively expelled from FISD with.
out being afforded the procedural and
substantive due process requircd by

- the Constitution of the United States.

3. Plaintiffs have shown a probability of
success on the merits at final trial
and that plaintiffs will be irreparably
injured if temporary injunctive relief
is not granted. The public interest
will be served by the granting of a
preliminary injunction. The certain-
ty of harm to plaintiffs outwcighs the
inconvenience and expense to the de-
fendants occasioned by the granting
of injunctive relief.

Relier Granted as to FISD
| B

Defendants FISD, Ted L. Thomas, J. L.
Birdwell, Kiley Ross, Harold Whitaker, Rill
N. zllen, C. W. Cline, Willixm P. Jonus,
Dickic K. Warren (hervinafter called “FISD
defeadants™) will forthwith cause nn imme-
diate and comprehensive evaluation of
Douglas S. and determine his special educa-
tional nceds. This evaluation may Le con-
ducted by a competent, independent, profes-
sional evaluator retained by the FISD de-
fendants and need not be done in consulta-
tion with the Brown School, but must be
done in consultation with Douglas S.’s par-
ents 1nd must be dore in such manner as to
take advantage of the work of the Brown
School and to avoid disturbing Douglas S.'s
current placement in the Brown School.

2.

After such consultation and evaluation,
the FISD defendants will immediately de-

3

velop an individual educational plan which
specifies Douglas §.'s needs and alf services
required to meet those needs.

3.

The FISD defendants will thereafter pro-
vide directly or arrange to contract for pro-
vision of, appropriate educatior.al services
for plaintiff Douglas S. without cost, af-
fording contact with non-handicapped chil-
dren in a normal setting to the maximum
extent appropriate.

4.

Douglas § will remain in the Brown
School until such new placement is avana-
ble, and the FISD defendauts must pay the
cost of the Brown School on behalf of
Douglas S. from January 18, 1977, the date
of his constructive expulsion without due
process, until Douglas S. 15 affurded a new
placement or until appropriate admnistra-
tive bodies have afforded Douglas 8. and
his parents the impartial due process hear-
ing and review of such impartial due proe-
ess hearing required by 20 USC § 794 and
described in detail in 20 USC. § 1416

5.

The FISD defcndunts shall, while the
foregoing steps sre in progress, creute an
impartial due precess hearing system s
that futwe comnplaints about or coneerning
plaintiff Douglas S.'s educational piacement
may be processed admimstratively  The
FISD defendants :ha'l, in creating and ad-
ministering this system, comply with the
requirements of 20 U.S.C. § 1415 and the
applicable regulations published pursuant to
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Edu-
cation for All Handicapped Children Act of
1975.

L.

The FISD defendants will take all action
necessary and appropriate to insure thst
Douglas S. w1l not he denied treatment and
education in his present educational place-
ment (i. e., the Brown School) yntil fuli d.2

process has Leen afforded Douglas S. and
his parents, including payraent of the

68
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EXHIBIT A—Continued

Brown Schecl charges during the period
from Japuary 13, 1977 until the dute w
due process is fully afforded to Douglas S,
and his parents. The FiSD defendants’ ob-
ligation to pay the costs and charges of the
Brown School with reference to Douglas S,
shall continue until terminated by written
agrzement of the parties or further order of
this Court.

Reiief Granted as to “State Defendants™

Defendants M. 1. Brockette, L. Harlaa
Ford, Don L. Partridgze, and Jou Kelly Port.
ler (hereinalter called “State Defendunts™)
shall, during the period when the FISD
defendants are complying with the injunc.
tive relief granted above, inSure that the
State Defendants are prepared to afford a
review of a decision made with reference to
Douglas S. by the FISH defendunts and in
doing so, shall eamply with the procedures
required by 20 US.C. § 1415(c) and all
regulations issucd applicable thereto,

™

Security

In compliance with Rule 65(c), the Court
will require Howard S. and Judy S to post
a sceurity bond in the amount of $500 for
the payment of such costs and damages as
may be incurred or siffered by any party
who is-found to huve been wrongfully en-
joined or restrained. In this connection, the
Court acknowledges that such security is a
mere token and required sblely to comply
with Rule 65(c), but the Court ulso achnowl-
<dges that the acquisition of a bord of the
type which would be re ired to fully pro-
tect the FISD defendants from any loss
resulting from this injunction would be vir-
tually impossible ard could probably be
obtained ¢~Iy by posting cash or negotixble
securities equal to the amount of money
which the FISD defendants will be required
/‘\ to expend in compliance with this prelimi-

nary injunction. The requirement of aa
excessive or greater bond would in effect
deny Howard S. and Douglas S. the statuto-
ry and constitutional rights which this
Court i3 attempting here to protect.

| . 875
Reprinted from 454 F.Supp. 634, ' .
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MATTIET., ez al.,

Plaintiffs
V.
CHARLES E. HOLLADAY , e al.,
" Defendants
Civil Action
No. DC-75-31-s

Northern District of Mississippi
Delta Division
ORMA R. SMITH, District Juige

January 26, 1979

Class action was on behalf of all school children in
the State of Mississippi who are handicapped or re-
garded by their schools as handicapged. Plaintiffs as-
serted that the special education policies and practices
of the state and local defendant officials violated their
rights under the Education of the Handicapped Act,

) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended, Title [ of the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act of 1965, und the equal protection and
due process clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to
the United States Constitution. Summary judgment
was granted for the plaintiffs, the count declaning, inter
alia, that the defendants had violated the plaintiffs”
rights under EHA 10 1) procadural safeguards; 2) ra-
cially and culturally non-discriminatory tests and pro-
cedures used to classify them as handicapped and place
them in special education programs; 3) educational
Placement in the least restrictive environment; and 4) a
program to locate and identify aii handicapped children
in the state in need of special education services. Con-
seni agreement developed pursuant to court’s order
specifies the policies, monitoring procedures and en-
forcement mechanisms to be implemented by the state
defendants to remedy the violations found by the court.

CONSENT NECREE WITH STATE DEFENDANTS

This class action was filed on April 25. 1975 on behalf
of all school age children in the State of Mississippi who are
handicapped or regarded by their schools as handicapped.
The case challenges: (a) the denial of special education ser-
vices to handicapped children who have been citherexcluded
from school entirely, placed in inappropriate **special educa-
tion'* programs, or neglected in regular education classes.
(b) the provision of segregated and isolated **special educa-
tion'* programs, (c) the use of racially and culturally dis-
criminatory procedures in the identification, evaluation and
educational placement of handicapped and allegedly handi-
czaped children. and (d) the absence of procedural
safeguards to review decisions of school officials regarding
the identification, evaluation, and educational placement of
these children.

1979 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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These policies and practices are challenged as violating

the rights of plaintiffs and the members of their respective
classes under the Education of the Handicapped Act - Pant B
(EHA-B),20 U.S.C. §§ 1401, ¢ seq . Title | ot the Eleraen-
tary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Titiz 1), 20
uU.s.C.
88 2d1aer seq.: Section 504 of the Rehabihitation Actof 1973
(Section 504), as amended, 29U' § ¢ § 794. and the equal
protection and due process clauses of the Fourteenth
Amendment of the United States Constutution.

Defendants are the state officials responsible for ad-
ministering Mississippi’s “special education™ and Title 1
programs for handicapped children and officials from seven
local school districts: Rankin County. Pearl Municipal Sepa-
rate. North Panola, South Panola. Tate County, Kemper
Cuzaly, and Columbus Municipal Separate School Districts.
All of the defendants are sued in their official capacities.

Platnuffs are 26 handicapped or allegedly handicapped .
ckildren residing in the seven focal school districts named
above. On September 20, 1977 this case was certified as a
class action, with plaintiffs represcating in their claims
against defendas:! state officials the class of “"all school age
children in the State of Mississippi who are handicapped or
who are regarded by their schools as handicapped. ™

On December 13, 1976 plantiffs filed 4 motion for
summary judgment based on the Federal Education of the
Handicapped Act. as amended. against defendant state offi-
cials (hereinafter the Department) Charles E. Holiaday,
Mississippi State Superintendent ot Public Education and
member of the Mississippr State Board of Education; Heber
Ladnerand A. F. Summer, members of the Mississippi State
Board of Education: Ralph Brewer, Director of the Division
of Instruction of the Mississipp1 State Department of Educa-
tion; and, by substitution pursuant to Rule 25 (d), Fed. R.
Civ. P, Walter H. Moore, Assistant Director of the Division
of Instruction, Special Education Section )

On July 28, 1977 the Department’s motion to dismiss
was denied and plaintiffs” motion for sumnuiry judgment was
granted. The Court declared. inter aira,

That the above-named defendants havé vio-
lated the plainuffs” rghts under the Education
of the Handicapped Act and the Education of
the Handicapped Amendments of 1974, 20
U.S.C. &% 1901 et seq. (Supp. IV, 1974). by
denying their right to

2. procedural safeguards. including prior
notice and an inparttal due process
hearing, to challenge decisions regard-
ing their educational evaluation and
placement. pursuant to 20 U.S.C.
§ 1413 (a)(13)A) (Supp. IV, 1974);

b. a program to locate and dentify afl
handicapped children in the state in
need of special education services.
pursuantto 20 U.S.C § 1413(b)1)A)
(Supp. 1V, 1974);

¢. racially and culturally non-
discriminatory tests and procedures




- plainuffs and umicus curwae *

used to classify themn as handicapped
and place them in special education
programs, pursuant to 20 U.S.C.
§ 1413@)(13XC) (Supp. IV, 1974);
and,

d. educationai programs which arc in
normal school settings with non-
handicapped children to the maximum
extent dpproprntc pursuant to 20
US.C. § 1413 (a)("3XB) (Supp. IV.
19748

Order, July 28. 1977.

In relief the plaintiffs sought the development of a plan
by the Department, specifying the policies, monitoring pro-
cedures and enforcement miechanismts it would implement to
remedy the violations found by the Court. When the Court
granted plaintiffs” motion, it ordered the Department to sub-
mit to the Court for its approval, following comment by
‘the Annual Progrant Plan for
Fiscal Year 1978 (1978 Plan), which has been introduced in
draft form as defendants® exhibit no. 3, after the document
has been finalized and approved by the appropriate federal
goyernmental agency in accordance with 20 U.S.C.
§ 1413 7 A schedule for comment and final Court action was
also mandated.

On July 7. 1978 the Departiment submitted to the Count
its 1978 Plan ax finally appreved by the federal agency and its
then fedcmlly -unapproved 1979 Plan, which has now been
found **substantially approvable’” for first-quarter funding
by the federal agency. On August 24, 1978 phaintiffs filed
withthe Department and the Court extensive comments chal-
lenging the adequacy of both the 1978 plan and z second,
revised 1979 Plan. On August 9. 1978, amicus curige also
filed its objections to the Department’s Plans.

Following a period of negotiations, plainuffs and the
Department have agreed to the entry of this consent decrec
establishing a plan that 1s in compliance with the Court's
Order of July 28. 1977, and which settles all claims against
theys. te defendants except for the claim of attomeys" fees.

Axrcement to the entry of this decree does not constitute an
admission by any party as to any 1ssue of fact or law regarding
the adequacy of 1978 and 1979 Plans previously filed with
the Court. nor does 1t constitute a waiver of plaintiffs’ claim
for attomneys® fees against the Department, nor any defenses

the Department may have against this clams.

It is, therefore, ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND

DECREED:

3. For the purposes of this decree the following defim- @

tions shall apply unless a contrary meaning s indicated in the

(@) *"child,”” **children.”* or *schodl age childien™
shall mean a child or children ages ~ix (6. through
twenty (20), inclusive:

(b) **days™ shall mean calendar days:

{c) “"parent’” shall mean adult wath primary responsibil
ity for the care and protection ot a child who s not
employed by a Missisappr public agency for that
purposc:

(d) “*entry of this Decree ' shall mean the signing of thas
Decree by the Court.

(e) **Department’” shall mean the defendant state offi-
cials namied on page 2 ot this Decree.

() "RST™ shall mean Regional Screening Team as
defined at pp. 64. ¢1 seq.. of the Policies and Operaung
Procedures for the Missinaippi Program for Exceptional
Children, August 1977;

(g) "1EP"" shall mean individualized educational plan
as defined by P.L 94-142;

(h) “*Regulation™ shall have s normal meaning and
indicate a formal written rule or policy adopled by the
Departiment and made known to the public as having the
force of law: .

(i) 1979 Plan’" shall mean the Fiseal Year 1979 Pro
gram Plan for Part B of the Fducation of the Handi-
capped Act. as amended by P 1. 94-142, subimtted by
the Department to the Federai Bureau of Fducation tog
the Handicapped (BEH) and approved by BEH fo-
first.quarter funding on August 30, 1978,

() “SPED™ shall mean special education for handi-
capped children:

(k) "*SPED Process” shall mean the entire process by
which a child is dentified, evaluated. cernfied as ehgi-
ble. and placed m a SPED program:

(I "EMR™ shall mean educahle mentatly retarded.
(m) *“TMR"" shall mean trainable ment. dly retarded.
(n) **SL.D shall mean speaific leaming disabilities

4. The 1979 Plan and the Department’s Regulations are

kereby incorporated in this Decree and shall constitute man-
datory requizements on the Department as af they were set
forth in full in this Decree: except. it any provision m this
Decree or ur any subsequent Court Decree or Judgment
modifies. contradicts. conthets or iy meonsistent 1n any way
with any provison 1n the 1979 Plan or the Department’s
Regulations, the Court’s Decrees shall be controlimg

5. All new Departnient Regulations required by this

Decree shall be adopted by the Department and have the roree
of law no later the Apnil 15. 1979, except as to these regula.
tions requircd by paragraph 15 ot this Decree, which have

1 This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of :
their own scparate timetable for adoption

all plantiffs” cluime against the defendant state officials and
jurisdiction over the persons of the state defendants with

respect to these clainis. I. CHILD FIND

2 Pursuant to Rule 23(¢)(3) of the Federal Rules of
Cival Procedure. the class 10 which this decree applies 1
defined as all chiddren restding within the State of Missis.
sippiwho are ages six (6) through twenty (20), inclusive. and
who are cither handicapped or considered by their schools as

handicapped.

[:R\j: (c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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6 The Departient shall promulgate the following new

Regulation:

“*In order to msure that all relevant agencies and or
groups within the boundaries of each local school dis

trict are aware of the district’s child find etiorts and of

+y
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the process for referring a child for possible placement
in a special education program for handicapped chil-
dren, the district shai:

**(a) appoint adistrict employee to direct the child find
effort;

**(b) widely publicize within the district lhc name of
that person, his or her functions, and the manner
by which he or she may be contacted:;

**(¢) correspond at least twice a year with agencies or
groups within the district which may have knowl-
edge of handicapped children who are not being
served, explaining the referral process and re-
questing that they refer 1o the disirict children
under the age of twenty-one who may be handi-
capped. Agencics which must be contacted are:
local welfare offices, local health department,
local Headstart agencies, and local mental health
agency. and

**(d) make at least two personal contacts per year with
appropriate personnel from each of the agencies
and groups listed in subsection (c) for the purposes
described in that subsection.

**These procedures are in addition to the requirements
previously specnﬁud in DI-SE-Bulletin No. 48 and its
attachment.”

7. The Departinent shall promulgate the following new
Regulation:

**Annually on March I, beginning March 1, 1980,
cach local school district shall submit to the Depart-
ment a written report giving details of child find ac-
tivities over the preceding twelve months. This report
shall include the following:

**(a) A listing of the agencies, individuals, and groups
who were contacted and the manner and the
number of times they were contacted;

**(b) A copy of the basic information which was pro-
vided to the agencies. individuals, and groups (not.
a copy of each piece of correspondence);

**(c) A copy of any publicity which has been released;

**(d) The number of children, listed separately for each
of the following categones, who were:

(i) found (i.c., made known to the district as
potentially in need of special education
[SPED)); .

found and referred for evaluation specifi-
cally as mentally retarded;

(ii)

(iii)  certified by a Regional S. naing Team
: (RST) as eligible for SPED » any hand-
icapping condition;
(iv)  placed in SPED following certification;
(v)  centified as ineligible by an RST; and
(vi)  provided additional evaluation or screening

following RST action."

8. The Department shall collect information from each
local school district sufficient to deterrmine whether there are
children residing in that district who have been certified by an
KST as eligible for 5PED but who have not been placed by

) _c) 1579 CRR publishing Company,
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the district in a SPED program. In collecting this information
cach year, the Department shall inform each district in writ
ing that in completing columins 5. 10, 1S, and 19 of Table 4,
pp. 57-58 of the 1979 Plan. 1t is required to use the following
definition of **total needing placement’”.

**total number of children certitied as ehigible for SPED
by any Regional Screening Team who have not been
placed.””

9. The Department shall adopt the notices contaired in
Appendix A to this Decrec and issuc by March 1, 1979 a new
DI-SE-Bulletin informing local school districts that: use of
these notices, as modified. is mandatory, receipt of each
notice must be certified, and such venficaton must be re-
corded by the district in writing.

10, The Department shail:

(a) issue the Parent information Booklet set forth in
Appendix B of this Decree no later than Apnl 18,
1979,

(b) issuc by April 15, 1979 a new DI-SE:Bulletin
requiring each local school district to

() provide a copy of that Parent Information

Booklet immediately to the parents of every

child presently 1n SPED or in the process of

evaluation for SPED, and

explain orally to each child’s parents, no later

than the district’s next review or revision of

the chald’s {EP, the mtormation contained in
the Booklet.

(c) piomulgate the following new regulation.

“‘Prior to obtaining a wrnitten consent for a
child’s inittal evaluation, cach focal school district
shall provide, in additron to other materials re-
quired by state and local policics, a copy of the
Department’s Parent Information Booklet and an
oral explanation of its contents to the par¢nts of
each child considered for an evaluation.””

(ii)

11. The Department shall comptic the written decisions
of SPED hearing officers and mak ¢ u copy of them available
to the public in a forin which does not identity the individuals
or school districts involved This cops shall be available for
review by the public in the headquarters of the Department’s
Special Education Secuon in Jackson, Misssupp. If copies
are desired, the person reviewing the decisions may use pay

copiers within the headquarters b.uldmg

HI.  LEAST RESTRICTiVE ENVIRONMENT

12. The Department shall initiate by March 1, 1979 and
complete by June 1, 1979 an in.cragcnu agreemen: with
each Mississippi state agency involved in the education or
cate of handicapped children. including but not limited to,
the Department of Youth Services, Department of Mental
Health (Divisions of Mental Retardation and Mental Health),
Department of Public Welfare, Education Finance Commis-
sion, and those agenices with whom the Department has
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previously entered into an agreerent as reflected in the 1979
Plan. Each iateragency agreement whall include, at a

mimmum,
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(a) the entire **Interagency Agreement’ set forth in
the 1979 Plan, Appendix A:
(b) the following specific provisions:
§)) **Each institation administered by
[the agency] shall enter into written agree-
" ments with the local school district 1n which
the institution is located, and such other dis-
tricts as may be necessary or appropriate.
which commit the school districts to provide
appropriate day educational progfams for
cach child referred by the institution and
commit the institution to provide program
planning and assistance to the districts on
request.

“In addition to the State Department of
Education’s present requirements, cach writ-
tens it dividualized educational plan (IEP) pre-
pared for a child residing in an institution
administcred by ____ [the agency] shall in-
ciude: the date of initial placement in the
institution: the reason for the placement; the
specific steps to be taken by the institution to
obtain a permanent non-institutional resi-
deace and educational program for the child,
Jf appropriate (e.g., specific work done with
the child’s parents, foster parents. or other
community placement as well as with a par-
ticular school district); and, as one of ihe IEP
goals, the projected date for this placement.

**Four mouths prior to the child’s release
irom the institution and placement in a local
school district program (or ac soon as the
decision is made, if the release is to occur in
less\than four months), the institution sha!l
work closely with the school district to pro-
vide a smooth trausition. This shall include
providing the district with the institution's
IEP, educational evaluations, other relevant
records, program planning assistance, and
such other assistance as is necessary.

“All steps taken and progress toward
placement out of the institution shall be re-
corded in the child's [EP file as they occur.

“*Each institution administered by the
agency shall also maintain an annual compila-
tion of the length of stay of all residents.";

(€) adetailed wnitten procedure regarding the partici-
pation of parents or surrogate parents at all stages
of the SPED Process for children who are not
living at home. This procedure shall include the
following safeguards:

(i) For children who have been placed by a
court in the legal custody of a public agency
and who are living with foster parents. the
foster parents shall serve as surrogate parents.

(c) 1979 CRR Publishing 'Company,
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(i) For all other children placed by a court 1n
the legal custody of a public agency. the
ageney shall sppomt surrogate parents

) For children who arc living 1n an institu-
tion, graup home or other residennal tacility
but whé have nat been placed by a courtin the
legal custody of a public agency. the agency
responsible for their resideatal care shall
make and document at lcast three attempts to
contact each child'« parents (through such
methods as letters, telephone calls and home
visits) to inform them of the SPED Process.
provide a copy of the Department’s Pareat
Information Boollet (set forth in Appendix B
of this Decree), and explain their role as ad-
vocate for their child. If these efforts fail to
involve the child's parents 1n the SPED Pro-
cess, or if the parents fail twice to attend IEP
meetings set up at a place and time tincluding
weekends) agreed upen by the parents and the
agency. the i.gency shall apporat 4 surrogate
parent for the child unless the chil!’s parents
object to the appointment m wriing The
agency shall inform the parents in wnting that
the surrogate has been appointed solely tor the
purpose of representing the child in the SPED
Process, that this has been done because ! the
importance ¢f sceuring involvément ‘of non-
agency personnel 1n the SPED Process for
institutionalized children. and that the parents
retain the right to represent their child at any
time they beconie involved in the SPED .
Process.

Surrogate parents shall be drawn from as-
sociations of or for handicapped itizens or
fram other voluntary orgamzations pursuant
to a formal written procedure developed by
cach agency and set forth in the interagency
agreement.

Surrogate parents shall be competent to ad-
vozate for the child. have no interest which
would conflict with that advocacy. not be an
employee of the agency responsible for the
residential care or educauon of the child, get
to know the child personally . become tamliar
with the child’s needs. be of the sanie race as
the child, if possible. and vigorously repre-
sent the child at each stage of the SPED
Process. ,

Surrogate parents shall be tornally trained
to advocate for the child in the SPED Process
and the methad of training shall be deseribed
in the interagency agreement.

(d) a statement that the agency shatl cooperate tully
with local school districts when called upon by
those districts to provide services necessary for
implemientatian of a child’s evalvaton or {EP:
subject to Education Finiance Commussion (EFC)
approval, in the agreement with the EFC a provi-




sion insuring that the EFC obtains the Depart-
ment’s concurrence before the EFC approves any

request for construction of any strycture to be used - 3

.

for any SPED progr.a'm or service. - -
13. The Department shall collect information sufficient

to determine whether each local school district is placing its *

handicapped children in the Jeast restrictive environment.
This information shall include, at a minimum:

() Table 4, set forth at pp. 57-58 of the 1979 Plan,
completed by each local school district annually,
using the following definitions:

(i) in column 3—*"regular class with resource
room scrvices''—resource room services'*
shall mean those services which supplement,
but do not replace, the basic core academic
program received by the students in a regular
class and shall include such activities as tutor-
ing and special skill development, relating to
the academic needs of the student and neces-
sary to assist in regular instructional
activities; "

(i) in column 6—""self contained special class-
rooms with part-time instruction in a regular
class™ —**part-time instruction in a regular
class’™ shall mean at least two class periods
each day in programs with non-handicapped
children in the same age range, one of which
must be an academic subject such as
mathematics, science, reading, English orso-
cial studies, the other may be in such subjects
as ant, mussic, physical education or afother
academic subject;

(These definitions apply only to completion of Table 4

and do not alter any other definitions of resource or

self-contained classes currently used by the Depan-
ment for other purposes.)

(b) each Department Form SEE-37-78 completed by
the district;

(c) on-site monitoring visits to the digtrict by person-
nel of the Department; and

(d) any relevant individual complaints to the Depart- -

ment aboit the district's program or procedures.

14. The Department shall initiate the procedures set
forth in this paragraph whenever it has reason tobelieve thata
locai school district is not placing handicapped children in the
least res‘rictive environment. The Department shalf have
reason (- “elieve this is occurring whenever the Department
determinc  from the information collected pursuant to para-
-graph 13 of this Decree or from other sources that 1) the
number of handicapped children being educated with non-
handicapped children is *“too low"" (as defined in subpara-
graph (1)), 2) SPED is being provided in a segregated or
isolated location within the regular school building, or
3) SPED is being provided in a structure separate from the
regular school building,

©
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(@) The Department shalt immediately notify the
district of its findings in wrnng and require the
district to submit within 14 day« a written justificay
tion for the practice at 1ssne and documentation,
such as copies of individuaiized educational plans
(IEPs), to verify the justification. /

(b) The criteria for dc(crmining whether a practice is
justified for purposes of this paragraph ate

()

(i)

(iii)

No special’ classes. separate schooling, or
other removal of handica:ped childrén from
the regular educationai er: vironment is occur-
ring unless the natare or severity of the chil-
dren’s handicaps is such that education® in
regular classes with the use of supplementary
aids cannot be achieved satisfactorily, and ,
integration with non-handicapped children is
occurring as much as appropriate for each
child; ’

No child is placed in a sctting where he or she |
€annot participate in activities with non-
handicapped age peers unless his or her [EP
specifically states that such participation is ~
not appropriate, and * .

No handicapped children are placed in struc.
tures separate from the regular school build-
ing, unless: 1) no more than fifty 1501 percent
of all self-rontained and fifty (50) percent of
all resource classes for handicapped children

in the attendance center are housed n such
structures, classes serving a conmiparable
number of non-handicapped children are .
housed in comparatrle structures. and at least
fifty (50) percent of such non-handicapped
classes are nor Title I. ESEA; or, 2) thé pro-
grams provided in the separate structures:are'
so special that they cannot be provided in the
regular school building. ’

“+ (€} M the district’s written justification satsfies the

" criteria sét for.h in subparagraph (b). the district’s

SPED program may be approved for funding by

the Department. During the next site visit to the

district by the Departmant, special attention will

be paid to those classcs provided in structures

separate form the regular building to confirm

’ compliance with the criteria set forth in subpara-
graph (b). .

(d) If the justification does not satify the criteria set
forth in subparagraph (b), the Department shall
make a special on-site vist to the district, imple-
ment the monitoring process set forth in paragraph
22 of this Decree, and issue a remedial order
witkin 45 days of initially notifying the district
pursuant to subparagraph (a). This remedial or@;
shall specify the steps and timetable that must
followed by the district 10 remedy the problem,
including but not limited 10, the relocation of the
class in an appropriate integrated setting or the




provision of new resource programs with suffi-

cient service...

(¢) The Department shall not approve any portion of
the district’s SPED program for funding untii all
the eriteria set forth in subparagraph (b) have bec.i
met, exczpt:

(i) during the 1979-50 school year any school
district listed in Appendix C of this Decree
which is not in comp.‘ance with the criteria set
forth in subparagraph (b) may continue to

SPEL program afe in compliance with this
" Decree and the Department reccives from the

district by June 1, 1979 adetailed written plan

specifying the steps and timetabie by which
all the children’in the respective schools listed,
in Appendix C will be integraied into pros
grams in regular school buildings by Sep-
*tember 1, 1980; and
(ii) alimited number of districts failing fo satsfy
by Scptember 1, 1979 the criteria set forth in
subparagraph (b)(iii)(1) may continue to re-
ceive funding until Scplembcr 1. 1980 if alt

N other aspevts of the distric('s SPED program

are in compliance with this Decrce-and if the
district pruvides written documentation to the
Department demonstrating that it is impossi-
ble for it to bring the SPED. program into
compliance sooner than Sgptember 1, 1980.
The Departmeat may grant this single one-
year extension for no more than ten (10)
percent of alt SPED classes, programs and
services in Mississippi being provided in
separate structures on the date of entry of this
Decree.

(0 ' The Department shall consider the proportion of
EMR children in adistrict’s resource programs too
low if less than 80 percent of the children in EMR
programs are being educated part of gach day with

’ | .non-handi¢apped-children, as measured by the
sum of columns 4 and 6 on Table 4 (completed

\  pursuant to paragraph 13(a) of this Decree).

**" IV. PROTECTION IN EVALUATION '
(MON-DISCRIMINATORY EVALUATION
. AND PLACEMENT PROCEDURES)

L7 T IS The Department shall take the fol[owmg steps to
'[ inSure that the identification, referral, evaluation, prograni
- development and SPED placement (i.e., the SPED Process)

of mentally retardedfand leaming disabled children in Missis- *

sippi is non-discriminatory and in conformance with the
Aegms of thns\Dccrce

., @ Within tweniy:one (21) days of the entry of this
* . Decree the Department shall retain at least three

I ;" consultants, acceptable to the parties. who are *

expert in the evaluation of the snecial education

.

'." -
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(i) a written Training Program. specitying in de-

needs of handicapped chuldren and i the de-
velopment of appropriate 1P~ and special educa
tion programs. The Departaicat shall retain wiese -
experts for an amount of tive sufficient o allow
them to fulfill their responsibilities under subyara-
graphs (a). (b) and () of this paragrapy These
experts shall meetwith Departmen. personnet and
other individuals recommended by the parties to
review the Department’s policies and procedures
and the local and zegional personnel skills and
practices involved ia the SPED Process tor men-
tally retarded and leaming disabled children.

No later than 165 days from the entry of this
Decree the team of experts shall complete and
submit to the parties their written recommenda-
tions for modifications in the Department s regula-
tions, palicies, procedures. and criteria sutficient
to make the SPED Pracess non- discrinunatory and
in conformamc winis this Decrge. The basis for
this recommendation shall be the currently used
SPED Process.

No later than 195 days from the entny of this
Degres the Department shall issue proposed regu
lations, policies. procedures and/ur criteria sutfi-
cient -mpluncnl the experts recommendations
and su..atit them o panmtffs for comment and to
the Court Tor approval

Mo later then 225 day~ froms the entn of this °
Decree the Departinent <hall promulgate éinal seg-
ulations, policies. procedures and-or criteria ap--
procd by the Court.

No later than 270 days from the entry, of this
Decree the team of experts. in conjunction weth
the Departiment shall complete developrnent of
and submit to plaintitfs-for comment and to the
Count for approval

(i) a written Comprchcnsm Pc.rsonnc! Assess-
ment Report, assessing the general personnel
skills and training needs of dacal ard regional
personnel throughout the State of Misa: SSIPPL
involved in the SPED Process. and

“tail the staff. methodology,” matenals,
‘timelines, program es aluations, und speaitic
skills to be acquired by each participunt in a
two-year coniprehensive sitewide. program

‘o train sufficient numbers of local and reg- -
ional personnel..to insuré that the SPED Pro-

cess actually being implemented thronehout
Mississippi is non-discriiminatory and 1n con-

. formance with this Decree.

s

(f) The Department, with the assistance of such widis,

tional staff and consultants as are necessary. shall -
begin implementation of the Traming Program by i
December 1, 1979 and complete it by Decem- T,
ber 1. 1981, :



<

16. By April IS, 1979 the Department shall moasn ;

! Depanment Form SE-28-77 w0 include a new section entitled
" **Recommendations for Placement’” which may be com-

pleted by Regional Screening Tearns and issue instructions to
all Regional Screening Teams and Leaming Resource Cen-

ters explaining that they may make program placement rec- .

ommendations when they make eligibility decisiohs.

17. The Departs.ent shall proniuigate a new regulation
requiting that prior to being certificd as handicapped and
‘placed in a SPED program, each child must be physically,
screened in a manner that conforois with the physical screent
ing requirements set fo-+h in the current Mississippi **Pediat-
ric Screening Piogram, ™ contained in the Bureau of Family
Heaith Services Procedural Manual.

18. The Department shall promulgate the following new

regulation: o

**In the event that a Regional Scieening Team (RST) or
Leaming Resousces Center acting as RST rules a child
ineligible forcentification for a particular handicapping
condition, the RST must specify the reason for the
ruling, and, where relevant, the additional information

' that should be gathered about the child. The local

school d"strict or other agency referring the child shall
inform the child’s parents of the RST's eligibility
determination and recommendation and. unless the
parents withdraw their consent for their child’s evalua-
tion, father the additional ir.formation specified by the
RST. if the district or agency decides to seek a sub-
. sequent cligibility determination for the child. the
, fewly gathered information must be resubmitted to the
" original RST. If the district or agency is stil? dissatis-
fied with the eligibility dete ‘mination, the informatiop
ma§ be submitted to the SPIED staff of the Lepartraent
for a final eligibility deterniination. In no case may a
district or agency seek an eligibility determination
" from more than one RST for a single child.

‘ t
**The entire evaluation prccess shall conform to the
following timeteble:

"(a) Local school disttict or other agency gathers
all information, completes testing, makes
Local Survey Committee determination to
seek RST centification, and transits data to
RST (hereinafier *initial transmission of data

-10 RST"’) within 60 days of a child’s initial -
referral for special educatior. By Septem.
ber 1, 1980 these steps shall be completed,
within 45 days of a child’s initial referral for

~

’ special education, and by September 1, 1981 >

within 30 days.

*(b) RST completes first eligibility determination
and communicates it to district o1 agency
within 15 days of date of initial transmission
of data 1o RST.

“(c) District 6t agency informs pa-ents in writing

‘ of the RST decision and of the parems’ right
to withdraw consent fer furttr evaluation of

4

4

. their child if the RST"s determination is **in-
ciigible and in need of furner intormation*” or
if the district or ageney disagrees with the
RST’s ruling, and unless consent is with-
drawn, the district or agency gathers ary addi-
tional information, completes any further test-
ing, and resubmits data to RST within 30 days
of date of intitial transmussion of datato RST.

*(d) RST comwpletes second elgibility determina-
tion and communicates it to district or agency
within 45 days of date of initial transmission
of data to RST.

**(e)  District or agency determines whether to ap-
peal second certification denial to Department
and files appeal with Department within 50
days of date of initial transmission of data to
RST.

**(f) Department makes (inal eligibility decision
and communicates it in writing, to district or
agency within 65 gay s of date of initial trans-
mission of data to RST.

"(g) District or agency informs parents in writing
of final Department chigihihity decision within
70 da: » of date ot inal ransmission of data
o RST

19. The Department shall promulgate the following new
regulation:

N
R

**Children placed in a special eiducation prezram
(SPED) may be removed only under the following
circumstances:

*‘(a) the parent initiates a request to remove histher
child from SPED and agrees in wntirg to the
removal after consultation with local-school dis-
trict or agency officials:

**(b the child is withdrawn trom school by the parent;

**(c) ague process hearing ter appeal for review by the
Department) has resulted in a directive to remove.
the child from SPED:

**(d) the child has been re-evalLated. and determined to
be ineligible for SPED by a Regronal Screening
Team . and the removal 15 consistent with the
child’s written individuahized educational pro-
gram; or 3

**(e) the child’s behavior represents an immediate
physical danger to him'herself o others or consti-
tutes a clear emergency within the school such that
removal from school is essential. Such removal
shall be for no more thari } days and sholl trigger a
forma! comprehensive review of the child's IEP.

If there is disagreement as to the appropriate
placement of the child. the child's parents shall be
notified in writing of thetr right to 4 SPED impar-
tial due process hearing. Scrial 3-day removals
from SPED are prohibied.




() in addition to subsections (a)-(e}. in the case of a
state agency:

(i)  there has been a detzrmination, pursuant to
the written policy and procedures established
by that agency, that the child is no longer -
handicappzd and in need of SPED, or

{ii)  the child’s admission to the agency's pro-
gram was pursuant to medical or judicial
order and that order has been modified by the
physician or cout.**

20. The Department shall collectand analyze racial data
on EMR and SLD educational programs thruughout the State
of Mississippi and implement a comprehensive program re-
garding those local school districts or other agencies with
racially disparate enroliments. In implementing :his provi-
sion, the Department shall:

() collect data from each district and other agency as
to the racial composition of the district's or agen-
cy’s (i) euroliment as a whole, (ii) EMR enroll-
ment, and (iii) SLD enroliment;

(h) calculate separately the average statewide place-
ment rates for white children in EMR programs
and SLD programs (i.c.. the total statewide white
EMR enrollinent divided by the total statewide
white public school enrollment and the total
statewide white SLD enrollment divided by the
total statewide white public school enrollment),

~ o~ expressed as a percent;

C (c) calculate scparately each district’s or agency's
placement rztes for black children in EMR prog-

i cams and SLD programs, expressed as a percent;

/ (d) calculate the dif€zrence between each district's or

agency's black placcment ratcs and the white
statewide placement rates for EMR and SLD. and
rank the districts and agsncies according to the
magnitude of the differences in EMR placement
rates. For those districts or agency programs in
which there are at Jeast 1000 white students in the
total enrolimsnt, the district’s or agency's white
placement rates may be substituted for the white

, statewide pracement rate in calculating the EMR

: and SLD placement rate differences:

(e) beginning with thuse districts or agencies having
the largest EMR placement rate differences, pro-
vide technical assistance, conduct extensive on-
site monitoring of remedial programs, and apply
sanctions. if necessary, to ensure that non-
discriminatory testing and evaluation procedures
are used throughout the State. The Department
shall take all steps necessary to bring the EMR
plazement rate difference to less than 1.9 percent
and the SLD placement rate difference to less than
0.25 percent in each district in the State by May 1,
1982. If the Departinent is not abie to' achieve
these goals by May 1. 1982, there shall be a
hearing before thic Court at that time at which the
burden shall be on the Department to show by a
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preponderance of the evidence as to cach school
district in which the goal has not been attained.
what steps it has tahen to achieve this goal and the
specific reasons why the godl has not been
reached;
(D coliectannually from each district a wi itten report,
; specifying separately the student number. race.
current placement, and date oun which the change
in placement occurred fo. each student formerly in
. an EMR program and each student formerly in a
. SLD program. The Departmant shall review the
IEPs of students whose placement was changed
when it makes an on-site visit to the district.

V. MONITORING PROCEDURES
. FOR TLE DEPARTMF™'T

21. The Department shall establish and implement wrrt-
ten monitoring and cnforcement procedures sufficient to in-
sure: that Regional Screening Teams (RSTs) and Lean.ng
Resource Centers acting as RSTs are 1n full comphiance with
P.L. 94-142 and the terms of this Decree. These procedures
shall include at least the following components:

(a) arequirement that each RST comnplete Departiment
Form DI-SE-F8 and new Form E-25-75. as nuw-
ified at Appendix D of this Decree:

{b) a requircinent that esch RST muaintan specific
records sufficient to document coniphance with
paragraph 5. pp. 65-66 of the Policies and Operat-
ing Proccdures for the Mississippt Progran: for
Exceptional Children (August, 1977), as amended
by DI-SE-Bulletin #51:

(c) arequirzment that specifies for all RSTs a uniferm
systen of record-keeping:

(d) at least one or-site monitoring visit by the De-
partinent to cach RST each year, which shall in.
clude the foliowing actions:

(i) aninterview with each member of the RS T to
dztermine the specific role played ar ¢ steps
followed by that member in the eligibihity
determination process This interview shall
include an analysis and justification of his or
her involvement in at least three actual ehys-
bility detenminations;

(1) analysis of the RST's completed Forms E.
25.75. as modificd am Appendu D of this
Decrec. and a significant number of indi-
vidual children’s files to derermume,

- the quality and bases “or cligibihity determi-
nations.
- any disparate treatment by race in the RST's
eligibility determination process.

any irregularitics by particular local school

districts or other referring agencies,

(iii) a Wiitten report of findings, a tmietable for

comphance.” and such follow-up as is




\
\

\
\\
PR

A

IText Provided by ERIC

necessary to insure remedial actions are

taken when ordered;

(e) establishment of an effective sanction for non-
complying RSTs, including decestification of
individual RST members or the RST asa whole.

22. The Department shall establish and implement writ-
ten monitoring and enfercement procedures sufficient to in-
sure that all local school disincts and other state agencies
responsible for the education or care of handicapped children
are in comphance with P.L. 94-142 and the terms of tiis
Decree. These procedures shall include at least the following

components:

(@) the monitoring procedures set forth in the 1979
Plan, passim; the 1979 Plan-Appendix E: and
t: Department’s DI-SESBulletin #9 and its

attachments;

%) beginning April 1S, 1979, extensive interviews
by the Department with the parents of at least
four unrelated handicapped children during each
on-site visit. Parents shall be notified three
weeks prior to the visit, using the forms set forth
in Appendix E of this Decree. The interviews
shall focus on the natre and quality of com-
pliance with each of the requirements of this
Decree, including child fina. parental notice.,
2valuation of educational needs. dcvelopment
Oof IEP. procedural safeguards, delivry of ser-
vices, and educational progress toward |EP

goals;

(c) investigation of the adequacy of surrogate par-
ent procedure and implementation of the other
requirements of the interagency agreement, in
addition t. the components ses forth ir; subpara-
graphs (a) and (b), when Mmonitoring agencies

other than local schoo! istricts:

(d) the withholding of P.L. 94-142 and P.L. 89-313
{unds from 1ocal school districts and other agen.
cies until compliance is achieved. If compliance
is not achieved in a timely manner. such other
sactions as are necessary shall be used:

(e) specific timelines for the conduct of and
follow-up to the monitoring visits. These
timelines shall conform with those set forth in
paragraphs 23(b)(ii-iv) of thi Decret.

VL. COMPLAINT PF )CEDURE

23.The Department shall adopt the fo!lowing complaint

procedures:

(a) In the event the Department receives a
complaint of an individual naturc charging
& local school district or any other agen~y
with non-compliance with any aspect of
P.L. 94-142 or this Decree. the Department
shall in“onn the parent that he or she has a

[

z l I )
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(b)

@

(ii)

(iii)

(1v)

right .0 a P.L. 94.142 hearing and that the
request for sant hearing must be made to the
district superintendent or agency chief,

In the event the Department recewves a
complaintcharging a district, agency, RST,
or hearing officer with systemic non-
comphance with any aspect of P 1., 94.142
or this Decree, the Department shall im-
plement the following procedure:

Upon receipt of an oral or written com-
plaint. a confidentual file shall be opened in
the Department’s Special Education
Section,

Information as to the exact nature of the
complaint shall be gathered from the person
making the complaint and placed in the file.
Department personnel (the Technical Assis-
tant and/or the Area Contact Person) shall
also discuss the complaine with the school
district or agency (maintning the confi-
dentiality of the complainant. unless that
confidentiality v waned in wnting), write a
report'of prelmmnary findmgs. and vend a
copy ot the repoet 1o the district or agency
and the complamaat wathin 10 days of the
receipt of the complaim

If the report required, +y subparagraph
(b)(1i) indicates that the complant is jus-
tified and that the complainant has not been
satisfied, a tcam of Department personnel
shall conduct an vr-site visit to the distric:
Or agency program to investigate the situa-
tion further If the team determines that the
district or agency 18 not in compliance with
P.L. 94-142 or the ternis of this Decree. a
detaied writt*n comphance report, specify-
ing the problem, \olutions and rimelines,
shall be completed ahd sent to the district or
agency and complanant within 30 days of
the Department™s receipt of the complaint,
In tne event that withm 60 d»ys of the
Department’s receipt of the complaint the
district or agency i nct implementing the
remedial steps within the tnietable required
by the comphance repont. the Department
shall inform the district or agency and the
complainantin - “ming that P L. 94-142 and
P.L.89-313 funds will be withheld from the
district or agency until such time as com-
pliance is achicved The Department shall
give the district or agency an opportunity
for a hearing prior to withholding funds,
The heanng and the wrthholding. where
ordered. shall be comipleted within 75 days
from recespt of the complant Sucli other
steps as arc necessary to achieve com-
pliance shall alvo he tahen




At any time during this process, if the De-
partment believes that the complaint has
been resolved and compliance is achieved,
it shall inform the complainant of that fact

(v)

in wniting and give the complainant an op- -

portunity to respond before the complaint is
‘ consideted closed.

(vi)
forth inthis paragraph shall be disseminated
in the Parent information Booklet required
by paragraph 10 of this Decree.  ~°

4

VII. REMEDY FOR CLASS-MEMBERS
FORMERLY CLASSIFIED
AS MENTALLY RETARDED

24. The Department, in conjunctinn or by arrangement
with each local school distvict in the State, shall:

(a) identify each person residing in cach district in
the State who has all of the following charac-

teristics. ‘
(i} was less than 21 years of age on July 28,
1977,
(§1}] has heen placed in an EMR progrum at any

tme since Apnl 25, 1975,

was not in an EMR, TMR, or SLD program

or was not in school at all on December |,
. 1978, and

has not received either a high school di-

ploma or a Department-approved SPED di.

ploma or certificate issued while in an

EMR, TMR, or SLD program;
(b)Y determine for each person identified pursuant to
subparagraph (a) who is in school but not in a
SPED program, whethe: the person is making
satisfactory progress sufficient to obtain a high
school diplom1 prior to his or her twenty-first
birthday. **Satisfactory progress’* shall mean
achicving at least the average annual statewide
gain set forth in the most recent report of the
Mississippi Educational Assessment Program
and placement in a grade which would alluw the
person to obtain a diploma prior to his or her
twenty-first birthday with normal anaual
promotions;
provide each person identified pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) who is not in school or who is not
making **satisfactory progress™* in school one of
the following programs of education:

¢ (i1i)

N

(iv)

(c)

>~

(i) if the person'is less than 15 years old, a
program of tutering./md intensive academic
assistance sufficient to bring the person up
to a level of academic achievément which

- should allow the person to receive a high
school diplomu. The services to be pro-
vided in this program and the achievement
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Information about the compluint process set
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goals must be set forth in a wntten educa-

tion plan developed wath the opportumty for

parental input:

it the person is 15 yews of age or older, the |

choice by the person of erther

(A} the program and procedures et torth in
subparagraph (<)), or

(B) & preparation program for the Graduate
Equivalency Diploma and a vocational

- course of study chosen by the person

from available programs,

(d) ensure that alt ehgible persons (as defined by sub-
paragraphs (a). (b), and (c)) have been notified
and given the opportunity to enroll in the educa-
tion programs required by this paragraph This
shall be accomplished by the following steps:
(i} by May 1, 1979 each chgible person who was

in an EMR program at any time since Sep-
tember 1. 1977 shubl recerve a copy of the
notice sct forth in Appendix F of this Decree
by registered mal, and if there aas been no
response within ten (10Y days, this shall be
tfollowed up by wlephone nonce.

beginning by May 1. 1979 cuch focal school

district shall conduct an extensive pubhicity

and outreach program. in coominey with
the procedures set forth at pp. 10 12 of the

1979 Plan and paragraph 6 of this Decree,

publicizing widely the notce set forth in Ap-

pendix F of this Decree This oublierty and
outreach program shall continue vntil October

15, 1979;

tt > education programs required by this para-

graph shall begin no later tian one week after

the opening of the 1£79-80 school year En-
rollment saall begin by May 1, 1979 and be

kept open at least unul October 15, 1979,

unless a person can show good cause for en-

rollment after thai date, but before January 1.

1980:

(¢) ensure that regardiess of the option chosen, each
person has the opportunity to recerve educational
services until the progrum has been sctisfactortly
completed or tor a period of time cquivalent to the
difference between the person’s age upon removal
from the EMK program and the age of twenty-one
These services shall conunue beyond the person’s
twenty -first birthday, 1f necessary

(it)

I

(i)

(iii)

VHI. NAMED PLAINTIFFS AND 1.OCAL SCHOOL
| DISTRICT DEFENDANTS

25. The Departinert skall insure that no later than April
1. 1979 each of the named plaintstfs in this acyon 18 provided
the opportunity for an appropriate educational program. in
conformance with either P L. 94-142 or Paragraph 24 of this
Decree.




26. The Department shali report to plaintiffs by April 1,
1979 on the status of each of the named plaintiffs in this
action. This report shall include:

(8) forplaintiffs presently attending school, a descrip-
tion of *he specific educational program and re-
lated services being provided. the names of the
teachers providing such programs or services, the
location in which such programs or services are
prgvided. and the extent of participation in pro-
grams and activitics with nonthandicapped
children;

for plaintiffs no longer attending school, the last
date of school attendance, the reason for leaving
school, a description of the last program attended,
and any educational programs or services received
\ since leaving school;

: (c) any steps taken by ihe Department since the entry
of this Decree to insure the plaintiff is provided an
appropriate educational grogram;

atimetable for any furthet steps to be taken by the
Department. ) .

(b)

@

27. Upon receipt-of the report required by paragraph 26
of this Decree and documentation as defined in paragraph 28
of this Decree demonstrating that cach named plaintift resid-
-1ng 1n North Panola, South Panola, Tate County. Kemper
County and Columbus Municipzl Separate School Districts
has been provided the opportunity for an appropriate educa-
tional >rogram, plaintiffs shall file with the Court for its
approva! a stipulation of a voluntary dismissal, pursuant to
Rule 31(a), Fed. R. Civ. P., of all claims against the
defeadant-officials froun that district. Upon receipt of sai.
report and documentation regarding the named plaintiffs
residing in Rankin County and Pearl Municipai Separate
Sch Jl Districts, plaintiffs shall file a similar Rule 41(a)
stipulation dismissing the claims remaining after summary
judgment was granted against defendant-officials in these
districts.
28. Documentation required by paragraph 27 to be pro-
vided plaintiffs shall consist of the following:

(a) for plaintiffs presently attending school in a SPED
program, a copy of the most recent JEP and
teacher report:

for plaintiffs presently attenaing school but not
placzd in a SPED program, & copy of the most
recent teacher report and documentation indicat-
ing that the parents, or the plaintiff, if over 18
years of age, have been informed of the plaintiff’s
right to an appropriate educational program under
P.L. 94-142 or paragraph 24 of this Dedree and
accept or reject the programs offered;

for plaintiffs not attending school, documentation
indicating that the parents, or the plaintiff, if over
18 years of age, have been informed of the plain-
Liff’s right to an appropnate educational program

(b)

()

.
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under P.L. 94-142 and paragraph 24 of this Decree .
and accept or reject the programs offered;

for plaintiffs described tn subparagraphs (b) and

(c) who accept the programs otfered, documenta-

tion indicating that the IEP meeting or arher educa-

tional plan meeting siith the parents has taken

place piior to April 1, 1979

(d)

29. Prior to November 15, 197 the Department shall
conduct on-site monitoring visits. is conformance with para-
graph 22 of this Decree, to the North Panola, South Panola, !
Tate County, Rankin County, Kemper County, Pearl Munic-
ipal Separate, and Columbus Mumicipal Separate School
Districts. Plaintiffs shall be given the opportunity to have
their representatives accompany the Department on each of
these visits and shall be noufied of the schedule of visits at
least 30 days in advance. - ‘

IX. REPORTING, RECORDING AND MONITORING
IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS DECREE

30. The Department shall provide plainuffs a copy of
cach of the following documents within 10 days of us receipt
or issuance by the Department. .,

. ” .

{a) allregulations, DI-SE;Bulletins. program nstruc-
tions, data instructions and forms peftataing n any
way to the implementaticn of this Decree, includ-
ing but not linuted to. those required by para-
graphs 6-9, 10(b. 10(c), 13:a), 13(f). 15d),
16-19, 21, and 22; ‘ .
Table 4, sct forth at pp. 57-58 of the 1979 Plan, as_
completed annually by each locat school district;
the contract entered into with the experts retained
pursuant to paragraph 15 of this Decree; /
cach remedial order issued pursuant to paragraphs
14(d) and 23(b) of this Decree,
the Department’s annual or periodic schedule of
on-site monitonng visits to local school districts,
RSTs, and other state agency programs;
the Department’s written notice to local schook
districts informing them of their cbligations under
paragraph 24 of this Decree

(b)
(c)
)]
()

ity

31. The Departient shall provide pianuffs with a re-
port on the progress of implementaton of this Decree on
January 15, 198.., covering tte pertod from the entry of tais
Decree through December 15, 1979, and then annually on
September 1 {beginning September 1, 1980). covering each
preceding school year. This report shall include. but not be
limited to: [Each paragraph reference below 15 to a paragraph
in this Decree] '

\ ’
(a) the date of each interagency agreement entered
pursuant to paragraph 12; -
(b) a description of the Department’s activities under .




paragraph 14, inclu@ing: )

(1) the names of each local sckoo! district receiv-
ing a notice pursuant to paragraph 14(a) and
the date the notice was sent,

the names of the districts providing satisfac-
tory justifications pursuant to paragraph
14(c), , '

the names of each district visited pursuant to
paragraph 14(d) ‘and the dates each visit
occurred, .

the name of each school Iisted in Appendix C
which has been found by the Degpartment to
satisfy the criteria set forth in paragraph-
o 14(b),

(v} the name of each district allowed to receive
funding pursuant to the exemplion set forth 1n
paragraph 14(e)(ii) and the number of SPED
classes provided in separate structures by
each such district, '

() the name of each local school district, RST, and
other State agency program to which the Depart-
ment has conducted an on-site nonitoring visit in
conformance with paragraphs 21 and 22, the date
“of each visit, and, the length of time spent and
number of Department personnel conducting the
’ visit; - .
(d) 2 description of the specific steps taken to imple-
ment the Training Program required by paragraph
15(f), including, the number of Department and
other personnel conducting the training, the name
of each district in which training 15 currently 1n
progress, the name of each district in wiich train-
ing has been completed, and the numbg;of per-
sons who have cowmpleted training;

(i) *

(iii)

{iv)

~

[y

(v)
cach school district in the State collected pursuar.t
to paragraph 2((a); .
the number of **second RST eligibility determin -
tions™, as described 1n paragraph 18(d), listed by
suspected handicup and referring school district,
the number of **final Department eligibility deci-

1))

)

the EMR, SLD and total enroliment by race for »

sions"’, as destribed in paragraph 18(f), listed by .

suspected handicap and referring school district
(indicate the amount of overlap between subpara-
" graphs (f) and (g), if any); )
(h) the number. of individual complaints received by
-the Department, histed by school district involved;
the number of systemsc complaints received pur-
suant to paragraph 23(b), listed by school district
,and non-compliange "issue-involved:
data on the Depanment's remedial program for
Plass-members formerly classified as mentally re-

(i)

(M

¢ tarded, listing separately for each school district ir

the State:

(i) the number of persons meeting all the criteria
" set forth in paragraph 24(a), )

@)y

notice required by paragraph®24(d)(i),

the number of persons satisfying the_criteria

set forth ir: paragraph 24(a) who are not. flist

separalely) \

(iii)

~ (c) 1979 crRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with pemission, .

the number of persons who received the °

T ———

.- tion to those provided

s

8.

(A) in school, .
(B) « making “sausfactory progress' in
school (as defined 1n paragraph 24¢b),

(iv) the number of persons in subparagraph
(1)(iii}A) of this paragraph who selected the
_program option described in [hiv sepyrately |
“(A) paragraph 24(c)(1).
(B) paragraph 24(c)11)(A).
(C) paragraph 24¢¢)(1)(B):
-{v) the nunber of persons in subparagraph

(D(iXNB) of this paragraph who sejected the
program option descnbed in. {list separately ]
(A) paragraph 24(c)(;),
(B) paragraph 24(0)(i1)(A),
(C) paragraph 24(¢c)(1)(B).
€k} a description of the status of each of the named
plaintiffs ia this action, including all of the infor-
mation required by paragraph 26(a) and (b).

32. In it. Jackson, Mississippi headquarters, the De-
partment shall maintain and make ayalable to plantiffs for
inspection and ccipying. upon 5 days notice. each of the .
documents and files spe-ified m this paragraph LAlf para-
graph references are to paragraphs of this Dcree |

-

(a) Each local school district’s child tind veport re-
quired by paragraph 7,
Each interagency agreement required bv para-
*graph 12; ) -
All SEE-37-78 and any comparab! absequent
updated forms completed by schpol aistricts:
Each.local school district justification required by
the Department pursuant to paragraph 14(a) and
each district plan required by paragraph 14(c)(1).
ang (ii);
the data on EMR and SLD transfers from each
local school districf required by paragraph 20(1);
all reports and records resulting from on-ste visits
to local school districts, programs of other State
agencies, and RSTs, made pursuant to paragraphs
21 and 22; -
All files rcgarding complaints of systemic non-
compliance pursaant to paiagraph 23(b)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e).
(813

(g)

33. Either in uts Jackson. Mississippt headquarters or at
the location: of each RST, the Department shall make aval-
able to plaintiffs for inspection and copying. upon 5 days
rotive, all completed forms E-25-75 and DI-SE-F8. und any x
comparable. subsequent up-dated forms.

34. Annually, the Department shall provide plamuffs or
their representatives the opportumty 10 accompany it on
on-site monitoring visits, a« Jescribed in paragraphs 21 and
22 of this Decree, to at least four (4) local school districts, -
two (2) RSTs and three’(3) programs of other State agencies.
These opportunities to observe on-site visite shall be in addi-
plaintiffs pursuant to paragraph 29 of
this Decree Based on'the sehedule to be pro~.ded pursuant to
paragraph 30(e, yfamutts shall choose which on-. ite visits
to observe and gav ¢ the Department seven days notice of each
visit they will 3oin Plamtiffs sh.ll be given the oppostunity to
observe ali actiuns t ken by *he Departmient duning the i,
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including any parent interviews, and shall have the opportu-
nity to review all district, agency, or RST files relevant to the
SPED Process. ‘

35. The parties and their represent>tives shall continue
to be bound * “he requirements of the Protective Order
signed by the Court on March 5, 1976.

«

X. NOTICE TO THE CLASS

36. Within ten days of the entry of this Lecree, the
Department shall give notice of this Decres to the class
represented by plaintiffs.

, 37. The form of the notice required by paragraph 36

shall be agreed upon by the parties to this Decree. The notice
shall afford members of the class an oppertunity to file
objections to this Decree with the, Clerk of this Court within
fifteen days following the date of the initial publication of the
notice. If there are any objections, there shall be a hearing by
the Court on this matter at 9:00 a.m. on February 22. 1979 in
Oxford, Mississippi. Otherwise, this Decree shall become
final without any further action by this Court.

. XI. NOTICE TO PARTIES

38. Any notice, report or communication required by
this consent decree or made pursuant to this consent decree
shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, as follows:

To Plaintiffs:

Daniel Yohalem, Fsq.
1520 New Hampshire Ave., N.W.
Washingion, D.C. 20036.

o (c) 1?{79 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission,
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To the Defendants:

C. Bradshaw Farber, Esq.
Giles W. Bryant, Esq.

Office of the Attorney General
Post Office Box 220

Jackson, Mississippi 39205

Either party may change the above devgnated addressee or
address by notice to the other party. A copy of the notice shall
be filed with the Clerk of this Count.

XIl. JURISDICTION

39. The Court retains jurisdiction of this action for
purposes of granting further relief or other appropriate or-
ders. Any party to this Decree may, for good cafise, petition
for modification of the Decree or any portion thereof.

40. One year after the entry of this Decree the Court
shall hold a hearing to detcrmine the status of compliance
with this Decree and whtther any further refief is necessary
frora the Department. .

41. The terms and conditions of this Decree shall be
binding upon euch of the defendant state officials, their
agents, employees and representatives. and upon their suc-
cessors \in office without the necessity for formal
substitution.

42. Except for the hearing provided for 1n paragraph 40
above, if any of the parties have any questions as to the terms

. Or provisiuns of this decree, or compliancs *ith said terms or

provisions, the parties shall first attempt to negotiate in good
faith to resolve any such issues between themselves prior to
moving the Court to resolve the issues or requesting imposi-
tion of sanctions by the Court.

SO ORDERED, this, the 26th day of January, 1979.

8.
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MRS. A. J., on behalf of herseif and her
davghter, K. J.,
Plaintifr

v, -

SPECIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1,

Defendant

Civ. No. 4-77-192

United States District Court
D. Mirnesota, Fourth Division

October 12, 1979
MacLaughiin, District Judge

Counsel for Plaintiff: William F. Messinger,

Minr)gapolis. MN; James E. Wilkinson, i,
Coalition for the Protection of Youth Rights,
S;:;tral Minnesota Legal Services, Minneapolis,

Counsel for Defendant: Frederick E. Fincil.

Fredrikson, Byron, Celbom, Bisbee & Hansen,
P.A., Minneapolis, MN

Action brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983 10
challcngg the lawfulness of procedures utilized by a
sc{:ool district (LEA) in the 15-day suspension of a
child for disciplinary reasons. The plaintiffs, a mother
ar!d her davghter, alleged that the LEA did not comply
with the State’s **Pupil Fair Dismissal Act,”’ Minn. St.
§§ 127.2}6 - 127.39, or with Federal and State statutes
concerming handicapped students. At the time of her
suspension, the student was the subject of an ongoing
"*formal educational assessment,”" as defined in State
statu.tcs and regulations, but was not being treated as a
special education student or handicapped ¢ hild by the
LBAE nor had the ongoing assessment process yet
culm'maled in any’ identification of the student as a
handicapped child or any proposed course of action as
to her future educational placement. Plaintiff sought
decla'mory and otacr equitable relief, as wel as attor-
M{ISEZZCS ]’:ufsg?;nt 042 U.S.C. § 1988

» plaintiff is entitled to a declaratory jud ment
that the 15-duy suspensiop was unlawful ruynjdcrgSmte

even if lhc\%mund.s for her suspension ware appropri-

V' ate, and eve if she would have been suspended in any

event, bcgause the procedures utilized by the LEA
xcre deficient under the State’s **Pupi] Fair Dismussal
ct"'

\

, (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
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School officials had no obligation to treat the student
as'a handicapped or special edutation student when the
suspension was imposed, and, therefore, it was un-
necessary '\o provide additional heaning procedures or a
formal hearing. State and Federal {§ 14]15(b) ey}
hearing procedures are clearly designed to nunimize
the risk of misclassification and to provide input of the
parent and child in the identification or classification -
decision; thus, schools are under a clear obligation to
make the classification decisions through an exclusive
formal process. For defendants to have treated the
student as handicapped on the basis of an assumption,
as plaintiff contegded, would have required defendants
to ignore and even violate Federal and State Jaw con-
cerning classification or isentification.

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

This is an action brought pursuant 1042 U.S.C. § YR
by Mrs. A. J. on behalf of herself and her daughter K J
which challenges the lawf slness of the procedures utilized by
Special School District No. |, the Minnecapolis Public
Schipols, in ordering that K. J. be suspended from school for
15 days for disciplinary reasons. The jurisdiction of this
Court is predicatedon 28 UU.S.C & 1343(3). Plaintiff has also
assericd a pendent State law claim which challenges the
defendant’s compliance with the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act,
Minn. St. §§ 127.26 - 127.39. Further, plaintiff alleges that

~defendant has not complied with Fedcral or Statz statutes and

' 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides: '

Every person who, under color of any statute. ordinance.
regulation, custom. or usage. of any Sta.e or Terrilory,
subjects, or causes 1o be subjecied, any citizen of (¢
United States or other person within the jurisdiction
thereof to the deprivation of any nghts. privileges, or
immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, shall be
liable to the party injured inan actior, at law, suitinequity,
or other proper proceeding for redre:

* Pursuant to an agreenient of zounscl, Mrs A JandK. )
have proceeded throughnut this iugation without using their
names, in order to avoid eny possible ‘sugma which could
result from public disclosure of their identines.

30
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regulations conceming hundicapped students. Plaintiff seeks
declaratory and other equitable relief, as well as attomeys®
fees pursuant to 42 U1.S.C. § 1988. The Court, having consi-
dered all of the evidence presented at trial, as well as the
stipulation of facts entered into by the partics, hereby makes
the following findings of fact ard conclusions of law pur-
suant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 52(a).

On May 16, 1977, K.J | at the time an eighth grade
student at Anwatin Middle Schoot, a part of defendant's
school system, was suspended for a period of i S school days
by assistant principal David King. The present controversy
stems from the allegedly unlawful procedures utilized by the
Minneaporis school administration in effectuating this sus-
peasion:. The 15-day suspension resuited from a fight K. J.
was involved in with another student on May 16, 1977. After
being sent by her art teacher to assistant principal King's
office, and after feiling to find him in his office, K. J. wen: to
the counseling department area, where she harassed other
students and a secretary. Mr. King found K. J. in the coun-
seling area and took ker to his office, wher: he ailowed K. J.
1o explain her version of the facts involving the fight in art
class and the.incident in the counseling arez, as required by
Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 95 S.Ct. 729,42 L.Ed.2d 725
(1975). There is no dispute as to whether the requirements of
Goss were followed here. In this informal contzrence be-
tween K. J. and Mr. King. K. J. offered no explanation of
her behavior, and did not deny that the incidents in question
had transpired. At the conclusion of their conference,
Mr. King informed K. J. that she was suspended from
school for 15 J1ys.

On May 17th, Mr. King prepared the rcquired **notice
of formal suspension,’* which was delivered to Mrs. A. J.
on the same day along with a document entitled "alternative
education program.!’ The **notice of formal suspension’*
servedon Mrs. A. J. included a statement of the facts under-
lying the suspension, the grounds for the suspension, a
description of testimony, and a readmission plan. The read
mission plan, which is mandated by Minn. St. §127.27,
subd. 10, provided that *'{hJomework to be supplied and
request for demissions from school for the remainder of the
1976/77 school year with referral to SERCC for placement at
Bryant YES Center school year 1977/78."* The term * *dem.s-
sion’’ relates to the removal of a student, either from the

' schou! building. the school system. or a schoul program.

SERCC, the ''Special Education Referral Coordinating
Committee'* is a committee of the Minneapolis school sys-
tem which examines the educationa! programs or placements
of students referred to the committee, and determines

whether the student needs special education services. The'

Bryant YES Center is a Level V special education program
which is operated by the Minneapolis Public Schools. See §
MCAR EDU 120B.11. The form szrved on Mrs. A. J.
which was entitled "*altemnative education program™ pro-
vided that *'[w}hile K. J. is suspended fro.n school the fol-
lowing alternative education will be provided to him/her:
{hJomewotk. to be supplied . . '

Prior to K. J.'s May 16th suspension, her b-havior had
led toother disciplinary me sures being taken againsther. On
February 25, 1977. K. J. was sent hoipe for a day tor disci-
plinary reasons. On May 2, 1977, approximately two weeks

e ¢

before the 15-day suspension in issue here. K. J was sus-
pended for a five-day period for fighting with another
student.”During the 1976-77 school year. K. J. was not
receiving special education services. As a result of these
behavior problems and K. J.'s academic performance..a
conferer.ce was held on May 10, 1977, at the Anwatin
School with respect to K. J."s schooi problems. Assistant
principal King, Ms. Janet Anderson (the Anwatin social
worker), Mr. Grommesh (a counselor at Anwatin),
Mrs. A. )., and Ms. Clark (a companion of Mrs. A. J.)
were present at the May 10th meeting. At this meeting,
Mss. A, J. signed a parenial consent fonn which authorized
an evaluation of K. J. to determine if she was in need of
special education services. On May 20th, Mrs. A. J. signed
another paréntal consemt form authorizing a psychological
evaluation of K. J. A diagnostic prescriptive specialist for
the Minneapolis schools tested K. J.'s academic progress
during May of 1977 and a report was submitted by this
specialist on June 2, 1977. Also, on May 26, 1977, K. J.
was given a psychological evaluation by the school psychol-
ogist The findings of the psychologist were summarized in a
report dated June 16, 1977. Thus, at the time K. J. was
suspended for 15 days on May 16th, she was the subject of an
onguing *‘formal educational assessment’’ as that term is
described in Minn. St. § 120.17 and § MCAR EDU 120B.12
r1d EDU 124.% As of May 16th, K. J. was not being treated
as a special education student or handicapped child by the
defendant school system, and the ongoing +-sessment proc-
ess had not yet culminated in any identific uon of K. J. asa
handicapped child or any proposed course of action as to
K. J.'s future educational placement.

K. J. returned to Anwatin School on June 8, 1977, after
being out of school for !5 school days. During the t5-day
suspension period, K. J. was given homework fro'rp her
regular classroom teachers, which was delivered to K., J.°s
home by the schoo} social worker. The homework was
picked up by the school social worker towards the end of the
suspension period, and retun-ed to K. J.'s teachers for grad-
ing. No other instructional services were provided to K. J.
during the suspension period, and thr's homework amounted
to the entire *'alternative program'* designed for K. J. pur-
suant to Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10 and the applicable state
regulations and school board policies. Apparently as a result
>f administrative oversight, the referral to SERCC made by
assistant principal King in K. J.'s recadmission plan was
never consum~... .- and K. J. remained at Anwatin for the
remainder of the 1976-77 school year.*

* A *formal educational assessment™ is defined in the Min.
nesota regularions as **an individual e\ aluation, conductedn
accordance with recognized professional standards and the
provisions of EDU 124, of a person’s perforniance andsor
development for the purpose of determining the need for
initiation or change in his or her educational progrum includ-
ing special education services.** 5 MCAR EDU 120B.12,

* Despite Mr. King's recommendation that the prospect of
special education services be provided to K J. at the Bryant
YES Center, the referral v/as never accomplished Indeed,
K. J. reinained at Anwatin until the fall of 1977. when she
was involved in another fight and her placement finaliy

\ v
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lrgunmts With respect to thc plaintiff's State law claims,
she argues that the defendant’s interpetation of the Pupil Fair
Dismissal Act, Minn. St. §§ 127.26 - 127.39, is erroneous.

In this regard, plaintiff challenges the school system's prac-

tice, as in this case, of providing homework as the sole
**alternative program’’ to students suspended for more than
five days. Furthermore, plzintiff contends that a formal hear-
ing is necessary under the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act in the
event a student is suspendcd for more than five days, and that
the school’s practice of initially imposing three consecutive
five day suspensions, for a total of 15 days, misconstrues
Minn. St. §127.27, subd. 10. Plaintiff also argues that
school officials, at the time of her May 16th suspension,
perceived K. J. as a handicapped student, and therefore 2
more formal hearing than the informa! administrative confer-
ence provided was warranted because of K. J.°s handicapped
status. Finally, plaintiff submits that the procedures utilized
by the defendant in suspending K. J. for 15 days were so
deficient as to deprive her of procedural due process under
the Fourteenth Amendment. In this connection, plaintiff
points out that the informal hearing mandated by Goss v.
Lopez,419U.S.565,95S.Ct. 729,42 L Ed.2d 725 (1975) is
applicable only to suspensions of ten days or less, and as the,

suspension involved here exceeded ten days, more formal

hearing proceduies should have been implemented.

I
The Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act

The Pupil Fair Disinissal Act, Minn. St. §$127.26 to
127.39, was enacted it 1974. This act prescribes elaborate
for.nal hearing procedures to be utilized in the event the
school administration attempts to expe. or exclude® a student,
but provides only that an "'informal administrative confer-
ence’” transpire before a pupil is susrended. See Minn. St.
§3127.31. 127 30, subd. !. The *‘informal administrative
conference’” required by Minn. St. §127.30, subd. 1 is
designed to function as the equivalent of the *“informal give
and take between student and disciplinanan®’ required by
Goss. Gossv. Lopez, 419 U.3. 565, 584 955.Ct. 729,741,
42 L.Ed.2d 725 (1975).

changed, with Mrs. A. J.'s consent, 1 the Bryamt YES
Ceater.

$ Minn. St. §127.27, subd. 4 lls subd. 5 define exclusion
and expulsion resiectively, as follows:

Subd. 4. '"Exclusion’ means an action taken by the .
school board to prevent enrollment or reenrollment of a
pupil for a period that shall not extend beyond the school

Subd. 5. Expuision’’'means an action taken by a
school board to prohibit an enrolled pupil from further
anendance for a period that shall not extend beyond the
school year.

As Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10 allows consecutive suspen-
stons to be imposed provided that the total time period does
not exceed 15 days, by implication. any temporary removal
of 8 student from school which exceeds lsdays tn length is
wby definition an expulsion, which requires the use of the
‘(om\al hearing procedures embodied in Minn. St. § 127.31.

—

A. Suspension& for Fitteen School Days

The critical section for purposes of this proceeding is
Minn. St. §127.27, subd. 10, which provides:

*'Suspension”" means an action taken by the
school adnumstration, under rules promul-
gated by the school bourd. prohibiting u pupil
Jrom attending school for a period of no more
than five school days. This definition does not
apply to dismissal from schoo! for one school
day or less. Each suspension action shall in-
clude a rcadmission plan. The readmission
plan shall include, where appropriate, a pro-
vision for alternative programs to be im-
plemented upon readmission. Suspension
may not be consecutively imposed against the
same pupil for the same course of conduct, or
incident of misconduct, except where the
pupil will create an immediate and substanuiai
danger to persons or property around him. In
no event shall suspension exceed 15 school
da' s, provided that an alternative program
shall be 1mplemented to the extent that sus-
pension cxceeds five days.

{Emphasis supplicd. | This provision, or the Act, has not been
interpreted by the Minnesota Supreme Court.® The problem

¢ The issue of abstention can be raised by the Count sua
sponte. Belloni v. Baird, 428 U.S. 132, 96 S.C1. 2857, 49
L..Ed.2d 844 (1976). The Court has determined that absten-
tion would be improper under the circumstances. The equita-

ble doctsine of ahstention was initially developed in Railroud
Cammission of Texas v. Fulhnun Co , 312 U.S. 496, 61}
S.Ct. 643, 85L..Ed 971 (1941) wherein the Supreme Court
held that it would defer exercising its junisdiction to decide a
case until the State courts deternuned unresolved issues of o
State law, the resolutian of which nught obviate the necessity
1o decide a Federal constitutional question. Pullman was
concerned with a State regulation which was challenged as
racially discriminatory, but the unresoived State law issue
concerned the power or jurisdic., “the State agency to
enactsuch aregulat. 1. Thus, if un- . _1ate law there was no
power 1o enact the regulanon, the Federal constitutionl
claim becamie non-cxistent See, e.g., Elkins v. Morenw ., 435
U.S. 647,98 S.Ct 1338, 55 L.Ed.2d 614 (1978); Boehning
v. Indiana State Emp. Ass'n. Inc.,423 U.S. 6,96 S.C1. 168,
46 L.Ed.2d 148 (1975).

In the instant litigation. plaintiff has claimed that more *
formal hearing procedures are constitutionally required
under the Fourteenth Amendment for disciphnary suspen-
sionsof 15 days. The construction of the Pupil Fair Dismissal
Act involves three centeal 1ssues. The first issue s whether
the school administration inay impose three consecutive sus-
pensions at an ininal laformal admunsstrative conference.
Another issue concems the question of whether homework is
a sufficient altemuative progran under the Act when students
are suspérided for more than an imitial five-day period. The
final issue relates to whether the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act
requires a hearing with furmal procedures in the event that the,
suspension period exceeds five school days.

Abstention is not proper whete the resolutien of the State
law issues would aot change the natuse of the constuutional
claim, or obviate the need 1o deterimine *he constitutivnal
claim. Zburaz v. Quern. 572 F.20 582 (7th Cir. 1978);
Wright, Maller & Cooper, 17 Federal Practice & Procedure,
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in construing this provision is apparent, as the section pur-
poats to allow the suspension period to reach 15 school days
while unambiguously defining the term **suspension'* as an
action by the school administration which excludes a student
from schoo! for *'no more than five school days.'' The
question presented is under what circumstances can suspen-
sibns which run for fifteen days be imposed, and what proce-
dures under the statute are required to effectuate suspensions
which exceed the five-day maximum. The Minrzanolis
Board of Education interprets Minn. St. §127.27, su>4. 10
in its Policy No. 5202 as follows:

{thhe suspension period may. however, be
exte-ded up to 15 school days if a determina.
tion is made the pupil will create an im-
niediate and substantial danger to persons or
property around him andif an alternative edu-
cational program is implemented after five
days of suspension.

The defendant’s interpretation of the Pupxl Fair Dismissal
Act ailows school administrators, in the event a pupil is
deemed to present an immediate and substantial danger to

§4242 {1978). The issres with respect to the sufficiency of
the altemaiive prograin provided K. J., or the power of the
schoo! administration to impose a 15-day suspension at an
initial informal conference. have no bearing or relation to the
constitutional issue of whether more formal hearing Jroce.
dures are required for a fS-day suspension. As these two
issues have no relevance to the constitutional questions m
izsue here, any construction of the Pupil Fair Dismissal

by a State court as 10 these State law issues would hav no
bearing on the nevessity to adjudicate the Federal constitu.
tiongl claim. In short. any resolution of these State law issues
by a State court would not **materially change the nature of
the problem.** Bellom v Baird 428 U.S. 132, 147.96S.Ct.
2857. 2866. 49 L.Ed 2d 844 (1976), citing Harrison v
NAACP 360U.S. 167.177,79S.Ct. 1025. 3 L.Ed.2d 1152
(1959). In this context, abstention 1s not proper. Zbarug v.
Quern, 572 F.2d 582 (Tth Cir. 1978).

The issue raised by plaintiif as to whether the Act itself
requires formal hearing procedures after a‘five-day suspen-
sion period. of course, is certainly relevant to the need to
deterimine the constitutional issuc of whether formal heanng
procedures are required for a 15-day suspension under the
Fourtesnth Amendment. However. a **mere absence of judi-
cial interpretation docs not necessanly render {the] meamng
{of the Statc law issues] unsettled or uncenain.*' B T Invest-
ment Mgrs., Inc. v. Lewts. 559 F.2d 950, 954 (5th Cir.
1977). [n the present case. it 1s absolutely clear that the Pupil
Pair Dismissal Act does not afford suspended students a
formal hearing of any sont. See Minn. St. §127.30. subd. 1.
As the state law is **plain and unambiguous'* in this regard.
abstention woutd not be proper. MacBride v. Exon, 558 F.2d
443, 448 (&th Cir. 1977).

As the Court has determined that abstention in this case
would be inappropniate, a 1 as the Count unqucsuombly has
risdiction 10 decide the rederal claims. it is within the
discretion of the Court to decide the State law issues under
pendent junsdiction principles. Hugans v. Lavine. 415 U.S.
8§28, 94 S.Cv 1372, 39 1..Ed.2d 577 (1974). 1t should be
noted that the propriety of abutention is theoreticaily distnict
from the well established Federsd policy of refrumng from
cor.stitutional adjudication where 4 nonconstitutional pen-
dent claim is disposiuve of the case, infra.

(c) 1980 CRR Publizning Company,
reproduced with permission.
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others or property aroundl/him. to imually impose a 15-day
suspension on the pupil. In other words, the defeadant’s
interpretation aliows school administrators to impose three
five-day consecutive suspensions solely at the nitial ad-
ministrative conference with the student, as oppored to im-
posing three five-day suspensions piece-meal or 01 separate
occasions.

The object in construing a statute is of course to deter-
mine the intention of the legislature, and in doint so, the

- Court must give effect to alt the words of the statutz. Minn.

S1. §545.16. By definition, suspension is limited 17 a time
frame of no more than five school days. Minn. St. § 127.27.
subd. 10: However, the legislature has provided in un-
equivocal terms in the last scntence of Minn. St. § 127.27,

subd. 10 that a suspension of up to 15 days is permissible if

the pupil presents the requisite danger, and as fon3 as an
*“alternative program*’ is provided after the initial five-day
suspension period. In the preceding sentence of subdi vision

-+ 10, the legislature has articulated the context in which sus-

pensions for more than five days are permissible. and this
sentence provides that suspensions **may not be consecu:

tively imposed against the same pupil for the same course of
conduct, or incident of misconduct, except where the pupnl
will c.cate an immediate and substantial danger to pcrsons or
property around him."* Id. Thus. by implication. the legisla-

ture has determined that tive-day suspensions can be **con-
secutively imposed®’ if the pupil presents the requisite
danger, but the consecutive tesms may not exceed a total of
15 school days, and in the event the time period involved
exceeds five days, an “*alternative program'* must be pro-
vided the student. It is evident that the school admtnistration
may permissibly impose three five-day su.pensions, for a
total of IS days in length. The issue is therefore reduced to
whether the school administration, in imposing consecutive
suspensions, can do so at the inu ‘ormal admimistrative
conference or whether the school a .unistration must wait
unti! the termiration of the origine. five-day suspension. or
the second five-day period, fto extend the suspension for
another five days.

The Pupil Fair Disiissal Act dozs not expressly address
the issue of whether school admimstrators can ilnpose con-
sccutive suspensions at the initia! administrative conference
with the pupil. The Court has determined that the school
administration may not lawfully impose three consecutive
five-day suspensions solely at the initial informal administra-
tive conference. In the view of the Court. the most reasonable
construction of Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10 requires the
school administration to afford a pupil a separate informal
administrative conference prior to any five-day or other ex-
tension of the original suspension period, whenever the total
time for-which the student is teinporarily removed from
school exceeds five school days. At this second or third
*‘informal administrative conference.* the pupil and the
disciplinarian should discuss the facts and reasons underlying
the suspension, whether any mitigating factors or other op-
tions exist, and whether the student presents a substantial and
immediate danger to persons or property f the pupik were to
be readmitted 1o school after, the initial suspension period
expires. At the conference, nf the disciplinanan 1s convinced
that the student presents a substantial arJ immediate danger
to persons or property around him, the disciplinarian may

*
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extend the initial suspension or impose in effect an additional
suspension for a period not to exceed another five days.
Under the Court’s analysis of the Act, an extension of the
initial suspension penod is in substance ihe equivalent of 2
separate suspension=If, for example, a five-day extension
was added to an initial five-day suspension, and the school
administration sought tn extend the suspension for another
five days, under the Court’s ruling, the Pupil Fair Dismissal
Act would require three informal administrative conferences
to be conducted — the first conference prior to the initial
suspension of as scon thereafter as practicable, the second

conference prior to the first five-day extension, and the third

conference prior to the second five-day extension.

Several reasons support the conclusion reached by the
Court. First, the legislature unequivocally emphasized that
the length of a suspension shall be *‘no more than five school
days.” Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10. By implication, Minn.
St. § 127.27, suba. 10 allows for consecutive suspensions to
be imposed provided the total time for which the student is
excluded from school does not exceed 15 days, provided an
**alternative program’™ is implemented after the initial five-
day period and provided that **the pupil will create an im-
mediate and substantial danger to persons or propefty around

- him. " While the legislature undeniably sanctioned this prac-
tice, it-also provided in'Minn. St. §127.30, subd. 1, that - -

**[n)o susrension from school shall be imposed without an
informal aa:ninistrative conference with the pupil . . ."'T As

! Minn. St. § 127,30, subd. | adds a proviso {0 its require-
ment that an informal conference be conducted, when it
provides '‘except where it appears that the pupi! will create
an immediate and substantial danger to himself or (0 persons
of property around him."* A literal reading of this provision
would allow school admnistrators, if they considered a par-
ticular student dungerous, to suspend the student without
affording the student any heaning whatever. Such an interpre-
tation is not consutuionally permissible. Goas v. Lopez, 419
U.S. 565, 58283, 95 S.CCt 729, 740. 42 L.Ed.2d 725
(1975). As the Goss Count noted:

it follows thal as a general rule notice and hearing should
precede removal of the studeni from school. Weagree with
the District Court, however, that there are rec.eving situa-
uons in which prior notice and hearing cannat be insisted
upon Students whose presence poses a connuing danger
1o persons Of property or an Ongoing threat of disrupting
the academic process may be immediately removed from
school. In such cases, the nedessary notice and cudimens
tary hearing should follow as soon as peacticable . . . :

Id. Thus. Minn. St. § 127.30, subd. §, which provides thatan
informal, administrative conference must be affovded a stu-
dent except where he presents an immediate and substantial
danger to hiniself of pensons or property around him, is
designed 10 aliow disciplinarians to immediately remove
students from school if 1he circumstances warrant an expe-
dited removal The provision is simply not intended to allow
school officiuls to ignore the requirement of & heanng or
corference, whether it be an initial administrative conference
or the required informal conference bzfore any extension of
the original suspension Therefore, as a general rule, the
informal adnunistrative conference should take place prior to
the removal of the student from school, and prior to any
extension of the original suspension. If the student is d -mon-
strably dangerous to himself, others or school property, so

,reprquggd;with~pgnnis§ion.
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the legisiature defined suspension 1n five-day ncrements, 1t
necessarily follows thut a conference must be affarded a
pupil, if practicable, prior to the imposition of any suspen-
sion or extension of any suspension. Moreoscr, by requiring
the administrator to conduct an informal conference or hear-
1ng with the student prior to extending the suspension period.
the risk of emror will be decreased ir. the administrator's
decision as to whether the student presents a substantial and
immediate danger to property or others around him. The risk
of efror cannot be ignored, particularly where a lengthy
deprivation, :u{ch as the three-week suspension here, iy at
stake. Under the Court's interpretation, the risk of error will
be minimized to some extent, as the requirement of providing
a conference before extending the suspension period should
mitigate the potentially unwarranted punitive response of
school disciplinarians by providing an ¢pportunity to school
officials for areater reflection. Further, the student can pro-
vide input at these informal conferences as to his or her ahili.y
or willingness to conform his or her behavior to the norms of
the school. These benefits certainly outweigh any added
admaistrative burdens which might be placed on school
officials by complying with these procedures. As for the
student who is a continual wenace to the school population,
property or teaching body, schooi officals can of course
always use the procedures-outlined-in Minn. St. § 127.31 10
expel® the troublesoine pupil.

In summary, the Court hdlds that in the event the school
administration attempts to temporarily exclude a st. *ent
from- school for morc than a five-day period the school is
under an obligation by Virtue of the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act
to provide the student with a separate informal administrative
conference prior to extending or adding another suspension
to the initial suspension period. At this conferenge. th  hisci-
plinarian and pupil should diszuss the facts and reasons
underlying the suspension, whether any mitigating factors &r
viable options exist, and whether the student presents a
substantial and immediate danger to others or school property
if the student were to be readmutted to school. Only after the
school official provides such an opportunity for input from
the student, and only after the school administrator makes an
informed judgment that the student presents the requisite
danger to the school community if readmitted, can the school
official extend the suspension period beyond five school
days. The same requirements exist for the second extension
of the initial suspension as apply to the first extension of the
suspension period. Thus, if the school administration seeks
fo impose a second extension (for examnple, an extension
which would cause the total period in which the pupil is
exsluded from school to run between 10 and 15 days) of the
suspension period, it must provide the pup:l with apother
informal conference before extending the suspension. The

«

that the temporary presence of the student at the school for ah
informal administrative conference pror 10 any extension of

. the original suspeasion would present an obvious danger,
school officials can legitintately schedule the informal con-
ference with regard to any extension at 4 more appropnate
time. '

* See footnote 5, supru
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Court stops short, however, of requiring the school officials
to comply with the notice provisions of Minn. St. § 127.30,
subd. 2* each time school offi ials scek to extend or add an
additional suspension to the “atial period. as to fulfill such
procedures would be duplicative and meaningless. It is suffi-
cient for school officials to provide actual notice, whether
oral or written, to the puplf or his.or her parent of any
subsequent informal conferencesto be conducted prior to any
extension of or addition to the suspension period. As the
May 16¢h suspension of K ). for 15 days was accomplished
without any sort of hearing or conference before the normal
five day suspension period was extended, her suspension was
unlawful under the Pupil Fair Dismussal Act,

B Hearing Procedurcs Applicable to Suspensions

The Court has determined that there was no necessity,
under the Pupi) Fair Disnussal Act, for the defendant to
provice more formal hearing procedures in the suspension of
K. J., as plaintiff suggests. Plaintiff contends that the Pupil
Fair Dismissal Act requires a formal hearing to the extent
**dismissals’* or suspensions exceed five school days. Plain-
tiff supports this argument by relying in part on a publication
of the Minnesota Department of Education which interpreted
Section 127.27, subd. 10, and consistent with this provision,
stated: **(i]n suspensions. the student may be sent home for

no longer than a five school day period.” Update, Spetial

Report: Student Bill of Rights, Vol. 9, Special Edition No. 1,
p- 7 (Fall. 1974) The role of this Minnesota Department of
Education publication. as the publication expressly notes, is
an advisory one. In any event, what the publication states is
not incorrect — the publication simply omitted any reference
10 consecutive suspension periods, which, as the Court has
interpreted the Act. is clearly permissible under the last two
sentences of Minn St. §127.27, subd. 10. Plaintiff relies
chiefly on language in Minn. St. § 127,31, with respect to the
timing of an exclusion ar expulsion hearing, 10 butiress her
position that a formal heanng ij! required for suspensions
exceeding five days. The obvious pnswerto this contention is
that Minn. St. §127.27, subd. 30 allows for consecutive
suspension terms to be implemented hen a student presents
an immediate and rubstantial daniger to_persons or property

.

* Minn. St. §127.30. subd. 2, provides:

A writien notice containing the grpund for suspension. a
brief statement of the facts, a description of the testimony,
a readmissior, plan. and a copy of sections 127.26 to
127.39, shall be personally served upon the pupit at or
before the time the suspension is toltake effect, and upon
his parent or guardian hy ceruified nlail within 48 hours of
the conference. In the event a pupil is suspended without
an informal admimstrative conference on the grounds that
the pupil will create un inunediate gnd substential danger
to'persons of property around him. the written notice shall
be served either personally or by centified mail upon the
pupil and dus parent or guardian within 48 hours of the
suspension. Service by certified mal is comflete upon
mailing. ‘

Under the Court's anatysin, the school system would still
be reyuired under the Act «w comply with the notice provi-
sions when implementng an imitial suspension,

(c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced ¢g:ith pemission,
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around him, provicded the total period for which the student
was removed from school does not exceed 1S days. As
consecutive suspensions are treated under Minn. St.
§127.27, subd. 10as suspensions. the plain answer to plain-
ff"s argument is that the exclusion and expulston provederes
of Minn. St. §127.31 have no beanng whatever un the
15-day suspension imposed here. For these reasons, plain-
tiff’s mguments must be rejected, as defendant was under no
obligation by virtue of the Pupit Fair Disnussal Actto provide
a hearing with more formal procedures in the suspension of

K.J. - 1

C. Altcrnative Programg

The final issue presented with respect to the Pupil Fair
Dismissal Act is whether the supervised hon:éwork provided
10 K. J. after the inital five-day suspension period satisfied
the requirement of Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10 that **an
aliernative program’* be provided suspended students after
the initial five-day suspensinn perio¢ In a imemorandum
addressed to all principals and social ‘workers, the defen-.
dant’s procedures for instructional scrvices to suspended,
studenlsprovides that homework is a permissible alternative
program. This conclusion is also embodied inthe defendant’s
**Demission Guidelines for Principals. " The Act, of coutse, »
does not define what'an altgmative program cntails., apd
arguably uses the term in completely different ~onteXts.®

>+ Plaintiff's expert; Dr. Bruce E: Balow, stated his.opin-
ion that hotnework did not amount 10 a sufficient alternative

edulational program for a student, such as K. J., who was
suspended and provided homework during the latter two
weeks she was out of school. In explaining his conclusions,
Dr. Balow indicated that instruction takes place according to
a defined curriculum within an educational environment and
with substantial and regular feedback bctween teacher and
student. Dr. Balow based his opinion on the premise that
homework is not instructional or educationai in nature, par-
ticulaly where a student has difficulty in managing her own
behavior. Dr. Balow reasoned that homework was not edu-

' For example. Minn. St. §127.29, subd. | provides the
school shall not **dismiss any pupil without aitempiing to
provide alternative programs of education pnor to dismissal *
proceedings . . .** The proviston attempls to défine such .
alternative programs when it provides that the term may
include ‘"special tutoring, modification of the cumculum for
the pupil, placement in a spectal class or assistance from
other agencies.*’

In another vein Minn. St. § 127.27. subd. 10 provides that
school officials are under an obligatiun to prepare a *“read-
mission plan®* for every-suspended student. and that each
plan **shall include. whe're appropnate. a provision for alter-
native programs to be implemented upan readnnssjon ** Fi-
nally, Minn. St. § 127.27, subd. 10 again providesthatinthe
CONsecutive suspension context, *‘un altcmauv,é program
shall be imglemented®” after the five-day suspension period
expires.

Thus. the phrase “"sltemative program™ 15 used 1n the
Jullowing contexts: prior to disciplinary action being taken,
during the suspension period itselt if the penyud exceeds fiye
days, and upon readimssion of the student atter the disei
plinary sanction expires The term may not nesessanly en-
compass the same things in all contexts

o
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cational as it took place outside of an educational environ-
meat and because minimal or no daily feedback existed
between teacher and student. Dr. William C. Phillips, Di-
rector of Curriculum-and Student Services for the Min-
-neapolis Public Schools, disagreed with Dr. Balow, when he

«stated his opinion that homework was a sufficient alternative
. program under the Act. As a justification for his opinion,
Dr. Phillips pointed out that providing homework has the
sdvantages of cconomy of time, ¢ontact by the studedt witli
his or her regular instructors, and the content of the dssign-
ment is prescribed by a person (the regular classroom
teacher) aware of the child's needs and problems. Thus, for
short term purposes. Dr. Phillips concluded that the time
tested program o ework was not only a reasonable
response to the an adequate educational alterative
program for sus students. Dr. Amold M. Rehmann,
Director of S Education for the defendant schools,
agreed in substance with Dr. Phillips that homework was a
sufficient alternattye program, and defined an altemative
program as something which varies from the regular educa-
tional process with 1egular students in a traditional
classroom.

Plaintiff concentrates her arguments on the proposition
that K. 1.’s poor academic record and history of an unwil-
lingness to work or complete assignments should have led the
school system to prescribe a more supervised or elaborate
educational program for K. J. while she was suspended. The
position that plaintiff advocates can be summarized as requir-

kc but

lored program for each suspended student which includes
instruction within an educational environment according to a
defined curricuium and with a )Gbstamial degree of suident-
teacher interaction. .

The decision as to the-apptropriateness of an altemative
program for suspended students is not a mechanical one, but
affords school officials a significant degree of discretion.
This discretionary Jetermination is essentially an instruc-
tional decision. The determination of an adequate alternative
program is not a disciplinary function. The involvement of
the federal judiciary in the public school system scrves at
times important roles,. Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 95S.Cu.
729, 421..Ed.2d 725 (1975); Tinker 7. Des Moines Indepen-
dent Community School Dist., 393 U.S. 503, 89S.Ct. 733,
21 L.Ed.2d 73] (1969); Brown v. Board of Education, 347
U.S. 483, 74 S.Ct."686, 98 L. .Ed. 873 (1954). However, the
Federal courts are ill equipped to serve as arbiters of deci-
sions by school officials which are primarily academic or
instructional in content.Board of Curators of the University
of Missouri v. Horowitz, 435.1.S. 78, 98.S.Ct. 948, 55

. ing the school administration to provide an individually taj- |

L.#d.2d 124 (1978). In light of the historical control ex- -

tended to school officials in making instructional decisions,
and the discretionary nature of the determination as to the
adequacy of an aitemative program for suspended students,
the Court has concluded that such a determination can be
(deemed unlawful only if it.is established that school au-
thorities acted or fiiled o act with a mamfest abuse of
discfetion.

In this case, the Court has concluded ‘that o such abuse ”

of discrétion has been established as to the-adequacy of the
altemative program provided to K. J. while she was sy

-
-

{c) 1980 cRR Pub’Hshing Company,
reproduced with peymission,

3 .2
c\,“,)u“. L e e

-
~

- # degree that he needs special instruction and services, but

pended from Anwatin Middle School. The tesumony of
Dr. Phillips pointed aut the advantages of horiework a» an
alternative program, and while it perhaps would.have been -
deSirable to provide additional avenues of instruction. the
Cour. cannot say with any assurance that scRoo) officials
manifestly abused their discretion under the Pupil Fair Dis-
missal Act in making this peculiarly educational decision.
However, in making this determination, the Court does not
hold that under ail possible circumstances supervised -
homework is a sufficient alternative program for studen
suspended from school. All the Court decides is that unde:
these circumstances, the schcol administration s provision of
supervised homework for K. J. while she was suspended was
rot a manifest abuse of discretion.

1.
Federal and State Statutes and Regulations on
Education for Handicapped Children

The plaintiff contends that school officials tealized or
should have 1ealized that K. §., in light of her emotional
difficulties, was ahandicapped audent as that term is defined
in Federal and Statc law." Plaintiff postuiates that as a
handicapped or special education student, school officiass
were under an obligation to provide more formal hearing -
procedures in the suspension of K. J. As school officials had
arranged for acadcnuc and psychological evaluation of K. §.
prior to the time K. }. was suspended on May 16th, plairtiff
also argues that the Stat>special education rules are relcvant.
and that the school adininistration may not suspend students

e

*

" 20 U.S.C. §1401(1) defines “*randicapped*” as follows.

The term “handicapped children™ means mientally se-
‘tarded, hard of heanng. deaf, speech impaired. visually .
handicapped, senofisly emotionally disturbed, orthoped:-
cally impaired, or other health inipaired children, or chil-
dren with spccaﬁu lcaming disubilines, who by rea-on
thereof requite special education and related services.

State law, in Minn. St. §120.03. defines b-~dicapped chul-  * -
dren, and provides: ¢

Subdivision 1. Every child witois deaf, hard of hearing.
. bhind. partially secing, crinpled or ‘who has defective
$peech or who is otherwisc physically impasred in body oc
limb so that he needs special instruction and services, bu
who is educable, as determined by the standards of the .
+state board is & handicapped child. .
. . Subd. 2. Every child who is mentally retarded 1n such ,

who is educable as detennined by the standards of the state
" board, is a handicapped child -
Subd. 3. Every child who by reason of an emotional “
disturbance, or a learning disabulity, or a special behavior
problem iceds SPCCI}LIHSUUCUOH and services. but who is
educable, as determined by the standargs of the sjute board
is a handicapped chilg. -

Subd. 4. Every child who is mentatly retarded in such 3

degree that he requires spccxal traiping and services and
whois trainsble ag defined by stand:wds of the sate boa,d
is a trdinable handlc.spnui shlds R

Presumably, plaintiffs clann- ‘that K i handtcam)od 1 -,
because she.is serously emationally dmurbcd
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without providing a hearing with the formal procedures con-
templated by the Minnesota special education regulations.

The Education of All Handicapped Children.Act. 20
U.S.C. § 1401 ef seq. was enacted to insure that all handi-
capped chiidren are afforded a free appropriate public educa-
tion which concentrates on the unique needs of the individual
studcat. Also, the Act was designed to provide procedural
protections to handicapped students and:their parents 1n deci-
sion making areas which relate to the students' right to a free
appropriate public education. See generally Lora v. Board of
Education of City of New York. 456 F. Supp. 1211 (EDNY
1978). Thus, as the Act requires that States which receive
Federal assistance provide for claborate due process hearing
procedures whenever a change in a student’s educational
placement is proposed, requested or refused, the Act affords
handicapped children and their parents extensive nghts.
Minnesota receives Federal assistance within the meaning of
the Act. The regulations of the Department »f Education are
embodied in 5 MCAR EDU 120-128, and these regulations
provide extensive procedural prelections for handicapped
children and their parents

The plaintiff urges that officials of the defendant school
system possessed sufficient information to determine that
K. J. was a handicapped student. Relying on the Minnesota
regulations and Mills v. Board of Education of District of
Columbia , 348 F. Supp. 866 (D DC 1972), plaintiff contends
that children who are **thought by the defendant to be
handicapped are entitled to formal hearing procedures in the
event of a suspenzicu. Plaintiff's argument concerning
K. J.’sstatus as a handicapped student is without inerit. First
of all, plaintiff completely fuileu to prove that school offi-
cials, prior to or at the time of K. J.'s suspension, had
sufficieit knowledge that K. J was **seriously emotionally
disturbed'* or learning discbled to the extent that she was
handicapped within the meantng of Federal or State law. 20
U.S.C. § 1401¢1); Minn. St §120.03. The formal educa-
tional assessment process is designed to help determine if a
student is a handicapped child. Such an assessment had
already been instituted at the time K. J. was suspended, but
the results of her academic and psychological evaluation
were not known at the time of her suspension.

More importantly, plaintiff's argument that the school
system should have treated K. J. as a handicapped or special
education student based on the suspicions of schoo! officials
is plainly inconsistent with and undemmined by Federal and
State law goveming the initial classification of children as
handicapped students. The procedure by which a student is
identified or classified as handicapped and thereby afforded
special services formally begins with the assessment process.

“S MCAR EDU 120B.12. defines an assesssient as **an indi-

vidual evaluation, conducted in accordance with recognized
professional standards and the provisions of EDU 124, of a
person’s performance and/or development for the purpose of
detemining the need for initiation or change in his or her
educational program intluding special education services.'
State regulations provide that an assessinent must be con-
ducted when, because of a child"s handicapping condition(s)
or performance. the child *“15 thought by the school Gistnet to
be in need of possible mitiation or change in the student's
educational placement . . .”* 5 MCAR EDU 124B.1.(a).

.~
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Before any assessment can be accomplished. Federal law and
State regulations provide that wntten notice be given to
parents which descnbes the nature of the assessment and the
rights of the child and parent 20 U S.C. § 1415, 5 MCAR
EDU 127B. Among these rights afforded parents and their
childrea are the rights to object and be afforded a heading on
the issue of whether the school admimistration should propose
or refuse to *“initiate or change’’ the ““identification, evalua-
tion, or educational placement of the child or the provision of
a free appropriate public education to the child . . . 20
U.S.C. § 1415(b)(1)(C). These hearing procedures are
clearly designed to minimize the risk of misclassification of
children as handicapped or not handicapped. and to provide
input of the parent and child in the idenufication or classifica-
tion decision. Lora v. Board of Educution of the City of New
York, 456 F. Supp. 1211, 1227 (ED NY 1978). Thus, the
schools are under a clear obligation to make the classification
decisions through an exclusive fonnal process with the input
of parént and child. The plaintiff’s argument 1s simply incon-
gruous, as to accept the plaintiff's assumption that school
officials should have treated K. J. as a handicapped student
based on the suspicions of the school officials would require
the defendant to ignore and even violate Federal and State
law concerning the classification or identfication decision of
astudent as handicapped and in need of special services.* To
approve plaintiff’s argument would thus defeat the purpose
and promise of this important legislation and impose an
impossible burden on school officials. As of May 16, 1977,
K. J. had not been identified as a handicapped or special
education student under the procedures required under Fed-
eral or State law. For these reasons, the Court has determined
that school officials had no obligation to treat K. J. as a
handicapped or special education student on May 16, 1977,
when the 15-day suspension was impased Consequently, it
was unnecessary for the defenduant school system to provide
additional hearing procedures or a formal Heanng with re-
spect to the May 16th suspension of K. 1.1

** In light of the pervasive Federal and State regulations with
respect to the initial classificatton determination that a child
is hardicapped, language cot-amncd in Mills v Board of
Education of District of Columb. 4. 348 F.Supp. 866 (D DC
1972), which reousres children to be treated s handicapped if
*“thought’" to be handicapped, is clearly distinguishable. See
20 U.S.C. §1415; Minn. St. § 120.17, subds. 3a and 3b

' Plaintiff, relying on 20 U.S.C. § 1415(c)(3) and § MCAR
EDU 127B.13, argues that as K. J. was the subject of an
ongoing educational assessment, the defendant could not
change her educat'onal placement duning the pendency of the
assessment, and as the suspension operated to alter her
placement, the suspension was unlawful. This argument 15
deficient in a number of respecis. Under the Staie regula
tions, a parental objection is necessary to preclude the school
fromt changing the student’s placement There was no par-
ental objection here. Norhad there been a judictal or adininis-
trative proceeding instituted under the Act, as the regulations
require Moreover. Stuart v Napp, 443 F Supp. 1235 (D.
Conn. 1978), rclied on by plaintiff, supports the opposite
conclusion th.an that advocated by plantff. tn Stuart, the
court prehminanly engoined a schoo! defendant from at-
tempting to ¢xpel a handicapped student who had formally




m.
Constitutional Arguments

In Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 95 S.Ct. 729, 42

" L.Ed.2d 725 (1975,. high school students challenged the

constitutionality of disciplinary suspensions which were im-

posed without any prior or subsequent hearing. The Goss
Court articulated its holding as follows:

due process requires, in connection with a
suspension of 10 days or less, that the student
be given oral or written notice of the charges
against him and, if he denies them, an expla-
nation of the evidence the authorities have and
an opportunity to present his side of the story.

Id. at 581, 95 §.Ct. at 740. The Goss Court qualified its
holding, however, when it stated:

“{w]e should also make it clear that we have
addressed ourselves solely to the short sus-
pension, not exceeding 10 days. Longer sus-
pensions or expulsions for the remainder of
the school term, or permanently, may require
more formal procedures. Nor do we put aside
the possibility that in unusaal situations, al-
though{involving only a short suspension,
something mere than the rudimentary proce-
dures will be required.

1d. at 584,95 S.Ct. at 741 As noted, there is no controversy
with respect to whether the required **informal give-and-take
between student and disciplinarian®” was followed by assis-
tant principal King prior to the May 16th suspension of X. J.
Plaintiff, however, contends that because Goss limited the
scope of its holding to suspensions of 10 days or less, and as
the suspension of K. J. amounted to 15 days, a more formal
hearing is constitutionally required due to the increased sev-
erlty of the deprivation. Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319,
96 S.Ct 893, 47 L.Ed.2d 18 (1976).

As the Court’s decision has found that the suspension of
K. J. was unlawfully accomplished under the Pupil Fair
Dismissal Act, plaintiff is entitled to the relief she seeks,

objected to her educational program, as to do so would
operate as a change in her educational placement during the -
pendency of her special education complaint in viotation of
20 U.S.C. §1415(e)(3). The court in Stuart, however, ex-
pressly found that the disciplinary measure of suspension, as
opposed 10 an expulsion, would **permit the child to remain
in his of her presen placement . . " Id. at 1242. The posi-
tion adopted in Stuart is consistent with the Federal and State
regulations on the issue. See Comment to 45 C.F.R.
§ 1212.513, S MCAR EDU 120a.7 (providing that the special
education rules may apply in exclusion ard expulsion pro-
ceedings. as opposed to suspensions). As the temporary
disciplinary measure of suspension does not operate to
change oc alter a student’s educational placement, plaintiff™s
argument is without merit.

namely, a declaratory judgment that the suspension of K J.
was unlawful and expungement of any reference to the sus-
pension from her school records. It was incumbent on the
Court to consider plaintiff’s pendent state law claims prior to
a determination of any Federal constitutional issues New
York City Transit Authority v. Beuzer 440 U.S. 568. 582, 99
S.Ct. 1355, 59 L.Ed.2d 587 (1979). The Court unques-
tionably has pendent jurisdiction over plaintiff's State law
claims under the Pupi! Fair Dismissal Act and the Minncsota
regulations conceming handicapped students. Hagans v.
Lavine, 415 U.S. 528, 94 S.Ct. 1372, 29 L.Ed.2d 5§77
(1974). It is well settled that if a pendent claim, whether it be
State or Federal, disposes of the case and is sufficient to
provide plaintiff with the relief sought, it is unnecessary to
determine Federal constitutional issues, and a Federal court
in these circumstances should refrain from constitutional
adjudication. Hurchinson v. Proxmire, __ U.S. ___, 99
S.Ct. 2675, 61 L.Ed.2d 411 (1979); New York City Transn
Authority v. Beazer, 440 U.S. 568, 582, 99 S.Ct. 1355,
1364, 59 L.Ed.2d 587 (1979); FCC v. Pacifica Foundunon,
438 U.S. 726, 734,98 S.Ct. 3026, 57 L.Ed.2d 1073 (1978):
Hagansv. Lavine ,415U.S.528,94S.Ct. 1372,39L.Ed.2d
577 (1974). Consistent with this well established Federal
policy of avoiding the unnecessary adjudication of constitu-
tional issues, the Court has determined that it is unnecessary
to reach the constitutional arguments asserted by plaintiff.
and leaves the resolution of this issue for a future
controversy.

Iv.
Relief

Plaintiff is entitled to a declaratory judgment that the
15-day suspension imposed on K. J. was unlawful under
State law. 28 U.S.C. § 2201. Moreover, plaintiff is en'sled
to have any reference to the May 16th suspension expunged
from any schoo! records of defendant containing such a
reference. Strickland v. Inlow, 519 F.2d 744 (8th Cir. 1975).
Plaintiff is entitled to equitable relief even if the grounds for
her suspension were appropriate, and even if she would have
been suspended in any event_ as thé procedures utilized by
the defendant were deficient under the Pupil Fair Dismissal
Act. Piphusv. Carey, 545 F.2d 30, 32 (7th Cir. 1976).rev'd
on other grounds, 435 U.S. 247,98 S.Ct. 1042, 55 L.Ed.2d
252 (1978). In the event that counsel for the parties cannot
agree as to a reasonable amount of attomeys’ fees to be
awarded plaintiff’s counsel pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988,
plaintiff’s counsel may, within a reasonable time, apply to
the Court for an order awarding atiorneys’ fees.

IT IS THEREFORE ADJUDGED that the May 16.
1977, disciplinary suspension of K. J. was unlawfully ac-
comp’ished under the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act
and

IT IS TREREFORE ORDERED that defendant delete
and expunge any reference to said suspension from ans
records in its possession or under its control.

9 ’ .
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P-1 by and through his mother and next friend, M-1;
P-2by and through kis mother and next friend, M-2;
P-3 by and through his father and next friend, M-3;
P-4 by and through his mother and next friend, M-4;
P-5by and through his mother and next friend, M-5;
P-6;P-7 by and through his mother and next friend,
M-7;P-8 by and through his mother and next friend,
M-8;P-9 by and through his mother and next friend,
M-9; P-10 by and through his mother and next
friend, M-10; P-11 by and through his mother and
next friend, M- 11,

Plaintiffs

v.

MARK SHEDD, individually and as Commissioner,
State Depantment of Education, FRANCIS
MALONEY, individually and as Commissioner,
Department of Children and Youth Services,

Defendants

BARBARA BRADEN, individually and in her
capacity as Acting Superintendent, Hartford Public
Schools, KATE CAMPBELL, FREDERICK
BASHOUR, ROBERT BUCKLEY, CURTISS
CLEMMENS, JIMMIE BROWN, MARIA
SANCHEZ. BARBARA KENNY, M. SUSAN
GINSBERG, MYLES HUBBARD. individually

"
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and in their official capacities as members of the
Hartford Board of Education
Defendants and Third Party
Plaintiffs

v.

THE CITY OF HARTFORD, JOHN A. SULIK. City

Manager of the City of Hartford, JOHN P.
WALSH., Director of Finance of the City of
Hart{ord, GEORGE ATHANSON, Mayor of
Hartford, NICHOLAS R. CARBONE. OLGA W.
THOMPSON, WILLIAM DIBELLA, RICHARD
SUISMAN, MARGARET TEDONE, SYDNEY
GARDNER, MILDRED TORRES, ROBERT
LUDGIN, and RA YMOND MOTEIRO. members
of the Court of Common Council of the City of
Hartford,

Third Party Defendants

No. 78-58

D. Zonnecticut
March 23, 1979
T. EMMET CLARIE, Chief Judge

Action on behalf of six children in the Hantford, CT.,

School System claimed that State Commissioner of
Education, Superintendent, and Members of Hartford

i
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Roardof Education denicd plaintiffs their rightto a free
and appropriate program of special education in viola-
tion of the Education for All Handicapped Children
Act. Pub. L. 94-142. and the due process and equal
protection clauses of the U.S. Constitution by denying,
in some instances, certain procedural protections, fail-
ing to provide proper individualized education pro-
grams, and dclaying placement in appropriate pro-
grams for up to two years.

Although number of plaintiffs was increased o ll
class certification was denied; additional defendants,
i.e., Mayor, City Manager, Director of Finance and
Members of Hartford City Council, and Commission
of State Departmeat of Children’and Youth Services,
were added.

Following pre-trial motions, including denial of
defendants’ motion to dismiss, and certain changes in
the Hantford special education system—addition of
new staff for special education, development of certain
standard forms, initiation of programs of in-service
training ol special education personnel, and reforms in
identification, evaluation and programming, the par-
ties agreed to the entry of a consent d<cree, the terms of
which satisfy the specific educational needs of the
named plaintiffs. Moreover, under the decree, the
policies, practices and procedures are to serve to benc-
fit other handicapped children in the Hartford School
System, and are to be fully implemented by Septein-
ber 1. 1979. The decree is ordered on the agreement
that nothing stated therein shall constitute an admission
by the defendants of any unlawful practices, nor an
admission by the plaintiffs that ihe decree fully satis-
fies defendants’ obligations under Pub. L. 94-142, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, § 504, the due process and
equal protection clauses of the U.S. Constitution, or
the Connecticut General Statutes.

The provisions of thie consent decree concerning
specific subject areas will be found at the page indi-
cated under the following index:

Introduction 551:165
1. Programming and Placement of
Named Plaintiffs 551:166
II. Court Expent - 551:168
II1. Free and Appropriate Education 551:169
IV. Least Restrictive
Alternative 551:170
V. Procedural Protections 551:171
VL. Individualized Education Programs 551:11
VIL. Timelines for Placement 551:173
VI11. Discipline 551:173
IX. Identification of First Priority
Children 551:174
X. State Department of Education
Responsibility 551:175
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551:176
551:176

X1. Standard Forms
X!11. Dispute Resolution

Counscel for the Plaintiffs: Paula Mackin Cusgrove,
Esq.. Neighborhood Legal Services, 161
Washington Street, Hartford. CT 06106,

{201) 278-6020

John A. Dziamba, Esq., Connecticut Legal Services,
P.O. Box 258. Willimanuc, CT 06220

Diana Pullin, Esq., Cenier for Law and Education,
6 Appian Way, Cambridge, MA 0"]38
[617] 495-4666

/

Counsel for Defendants: Antoinctte Leone, Esq.,
Skelley. Vinkels, Williams and Rottner, 233
Washington Street, Hartford, CT 06106, Defendant
Hartford Bourd of Education

Joseph F. Skelley, Esq., Skelley, Vinkels, Williams
and Rottner, 233 Washington Street, Hartford, CT
06106, Defendant Hartford Board of Education

Robert W. Garvey, Esq., Assistant Attomey General,
P.0O. Box 120, 30 Trinity Street, Hartford. CT
06106, Defendant State Department of Education

Richarg Cosgrove, Esq.. Assistant Corporation
Counsel, 550 Main Street, Hartford. CT 06103
Defendant City of Hartford

Robert Nagy, Esq. Assistant Attorney General, 90
Brainard Road, Hartford, CT 06114, Defendant
Department of Children and Youth Services

INTRODUCTION

1. This case was first instituted on February !, 1978 on
behalf of six named children in the Hartford School System
who were alleged to be in need of special education programs
and services. and their parents. The compiaint, alleged that
they were being denied the right to a free and appropriate
program of special education guaranteed to them by the
Education for All Handicapped Children Act. 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401 ef seq.; and the Due Process and Equal Protection
Clause of the United States Constitution. »

2. Subsequent to the filing of the complaint, the Coun
granted Plaintiffs’ Motion to Intervene additional plaintiffs,
bringing the present ~umber of named plainuffs to eleven.

_ The Court denied plaintiffs’ Motio. for Class Certification

93

and denied defendants’ Motion to Dismiss. The named plain-
tiffs are proceeding in fictitious names.

3. Named as defendants were the Commissioner of
Education of the State of Connecticut, and the Superinten-
dent and Members of the Hartford Board of Education. The
Mayor of Hartford, City Manager, Director of Finance and
Mcmbers of the City Council were added as defendants by a




Third Party Complaint filed by the Hartford School Defen-

dants. The Commissioner cf the Connecticut State Depart=———— -

ment of Children and Youth Sevices was added as a defen-
dant by plaintiffs.

4 The named plainiiffs alleged, inter alia , that they
were entitled to free and appropriate programs of special
education in that they met the definition of **handicapped™* at
20 US C. § 1401(1) and were in need of special education.
The named plaintiffs include children suffering handicaps
such as learning disabilities. deafness. health impairments,
mental retardation and serious emotional disturbances. The
named plaintiffs alleged that in some instances they were
denied proczdural protections, lacked proper individualized
educational programs, and experienced delays of up to two
years before being placed in appropriate programs, ail in
violation of federal law.

5. In order to avoid the burden, delay, and cost of
cuntinued litigation of the plaintiffs’ claims for relief, the
plaintiffs and defendants have agreed to the entry of the fol-
lowing Consvnt Decree, which satisfies the specific educa-
tional needs of the named plaintiffs. Nothing stated in this
Consent Decree shall constitute an admission by the plaintiffs
that the decree fully satisfics the defendants’ obligations
under the Education for All Hundicapped Children Act, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Due Process and Equal Protec-

* tion Clause of the United States Constitution and the Connec-

ricor General Stalutes. B

6. Prior to and since the filing of this complaint, the
Hartford School defendants have taken certain actions some
of which are described in paragraph 7, which addyess the
needs and demands of handicapped children in Hartford. A
continuation of those effons and expected compliance with
the terms of the following Consent Decree wiil be assigned to
benefit both the named plaintiffs and those other children
who meet the definition of *“handicapped'” at 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401(1), and who are in need of special educatior .

1. Prior to and since the filing of this complaint against
the Hartford Board of Education, these defendants claim that
numerous changes were made in the special education system
which changes include: the additivn of scventeen new staff
members for special education, the deveiopment of certain
standard forms, initiation of programs of in-service training
of special education personnel, and reforms in identification,
evaluation and programming of children in need of special
education,

8.1n view of the above, the parties hereto have mutually
agreed that the policies, practices and procedures contained
in this Consent Decree are applicable to the eleven named
plaintiffs and shall also serve to benefit other handicapped
children in the City of Hartford. Therefore, the terms of this
Consem Decree shall be fully implemented as policies and
practices throughout the Hartford School System by
September 1, 1979,

THEREFORE, the parties having agreed to the terms
and conditions as described herein it is herecby ORDERED,
ADJUDGED AND DECREED and the parties mutually
agree. that the following be entered as an ORDER subject to
the appraval of this Coun:

(c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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PROGRAMMING AND PLACEMENT
FOR THE NAMED PLAINTIFES

A,

1. Followiny the appointment of the Court Expert (as set
forth in Section I1 herein) the Coun Expen wall panicipate i
all Pupil Appraisal Team (hereafter PAT) sessions and any
hearings or review sessions concerming the named plaintiffs
in this action. In addition, the Coun Expert will provide
monthly progress repons concerning each named pluintiff
from the school institutions or facilities serving the student.
These reports will be sent to counsel and will describe the
students’ progress in meeting «he annual goals and shont-term
instructional objectives described in the student’s Indi-
vidualized Educational Program theremnatter 1EP). In addi-
tion, there will be provided at least twice yearly reviews of
cach named plaintitfs” JEP although more frequent PAT
meetings may be convened if the student or school so

requests,

B.

1. The Hartford School defendants shall provide P-1
with diagnostic speech therapy by 4 bihingual speech
therapist within ten (10) days after this Con<ent Decree is
signed by the parties. This therapy shall be for not less than
two hours per week and shall be provided duning the ume
when P-1 was previously in a vocational readiness program;
in no event will the total number of hours of hilingual
academic instruction which P-1 has been receiving be di-
minisked because of the provivion of specch therapy A PAT
meeting will ke scheduled and convened within twenty (20)
days of the signing of this Consent Decree by the parties to
review and revise the 1EP for P-1. At this mecting. the
participants including the Coun Expen will specifically pro-
vide for strengthened vocational training. counselling. and
life skills training for P-1, also. provision will be made to
increase the Hartford school defendants’ training of P-1 on
the use of public transportation.

2. The Commissioner of Education will be provided,
by the appropriate schools, copies of all IEPs and progress
reports conceming P-2. The Commissioner will be responsi:
ble for monitoring the programs and services provided P-2
and for ensuring that his 1EP 1s implemented and that he
receives a free appropriate public educatian. Such responsi-
bility will extend through the schoo! year 1978-1979. In

- particular, the Commissioner or this designee will conduct

two on-site visits to monitor the ubove; the first within twenty
(20) days of the signing of this Consent Decree, and the
second at the end of the school year 1978-1979. Reports on
the visits shall be sent to Court Expert. The Hartford School
defendants have no responsibility as to the program and
placement of P-2 as long as he 1s not a resident of the school
district.

3. Within twenty (20) days of the signing of this
Consent Decree, a PAT meeting will be convened wath the
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participation of the Court Expert to review and revise the [EP
for P-3. The PAT meeting shall add as annual goals to the (EF
for P-3 that he be enrolled in a mainstreamed program at
Hartford High School by the second semester, 1978-1979,
with the provision of »ne-on-one tutorial assistance by
appropriate certified personnei for not less than two hours per
week: formulation of a program which, if successfully com-
pleted, would result in the receipt of a regular high school
diploma for P-3; provision of driver's educction training
provision to allow P-3 time for regular after school work, and
provision for regular guidance counselling with a goal of
college admission after completion of high school. Any or ..’
of the above services, while they may be provided in coopera-
tion with other public or private agencies, remain the respon-
sibility of the Hartford school defendants.

4. Within ten (10) days of the signing of this Consent
Decree by the partics, the Hartford Public School defendants
will provide P-4's mother, the Court Expert, and plaintiffs’
counsel a detailed written description of the program being
made available at Woods Lane School and of the rcasons why
the District feels that the cducational program 1s or is not
appropriate for P-4, based on the results of the evaluations
conducted by the Woods Lane School, and any other evalua-
tions or other information.

S. Within twenty (20) days after the signing of this
Consent Decree by the partics, a PAT meeting will be con-
vened to review the IEP for P-5. Present at this meeting will,
in addition to the usual participants and the Court Expert, be
staff members from Riverview who participate in her educa-
tional and in her clinical programming and a respresentative
from the noncomitted program of the Department of Children
and Youth Services. The IEP formulated at this meeting will
include specific provisions concerning placement after P-5 is
discharged from Riverview, including pianning for whatever
supportive services will be provided should she be placed in
pubtlic high school.

6. Within ten (10) days after the signing of this Consent
Decrec by the parties, the Hartford School defendants witl
convene a PAT to formulate an IEP for P-6. This IEP will be
formulated in consultation with the Court Expert, M-6,
Hartford school defendants, a representative of, or other
input from the Woodrow Wilson School in Virginia, and
designees of the Commissioner of Education, and the Divi-
sion of Vocational Rehabilitation. The IEP shal} include
provision for training in ora! and writtz: expression, counsel-
ling, medical services, appropriate vocational training and all
supportive and related services to be provided where appro-
priate. The Hartford school dsfendants may in the IEP pro-
vide that certain services be provided by the Division of
Vocational Rehabilitation. The Hartford school defendants
shall be responsible for services and programming until the
end of the school year in which P-6 reaches 21. Atage 21, the
partics anticipate that -6 will have been certified as cligible
for services from the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation.

If P-6 is denied eligibility for services provided by the .

Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, he and his counsel
will avail themselves of the administrtive procedures pro-
vided for in federal law and regulaticn. The matter will then
be referred to the federal court for resolution.

(c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with pemmission.

£

If P-6 is declared ehgidle. the Division will provide
services in accordance with anlndividual Wntten Rehabilita-
tion Program (IWRP) to be developed with P-6, and/or his
representatives. Such IWRP will include services such as
vocational training, remedial training, physical restoration,
counselling and guidance, occupational tools. r.aintenance
while in training. books and supplics. transportation while in
training, all as is necessary, nceded and appropriate untit
such time as he is detcrmined to be rehabilitated, or he is no
longer eligible for such services, as specified under federal
rcjjulations,

7. Within fifteen (15) days of the signing of this Con-
sent Decrce by the parties, a PAT meeting shall be convencd
to revicw and revise the 1EP for P-7. The IEP for P-7 shall
include provisions specifically outlining fuiure programs and
placement for P-7. The Court Expert will be responsible for
monitoring the programs and serviczs provided P-7 and for
insering thut her IEP is implemented, and that P-7 receives a
free appropniate public education. v

The plaintiff, Hartiord school defendants, and defen-
dant Commissioner of Education and the Depantment of
Children and Youth Services agree to submit the question of
responsibility for non-tuition costs to a reconvened state
hearing panel. Said panci shall be convened within one
month of this Consent Decree., and the parties agree to abide
by the decision of that panel as a final arbiter on the question
of responsibility for costs.

8. Within tcn (10) days of the signing of this Consent
Decree, a PAT will be convened to formulate a new IEP for
P-8. With the participation of the Court Expert, the [EP will
provide for placement in a residenual closed setting with
strict behavioral controls and esucational programming
appropriate to her needs.

9. Within ten (10) days of signing this Consent Decree.
aPAT meeting will be convened withrthe participation of the
Court Expert to formulate an 1EP for P-9. The [EP will
provide for; appreoriate, accessible, full time and remunera-
tive job placement, driver's education, three (3) to five (5)
hours per week of programming for P-9's leaming dis-
abilities, and will include as an annual goal retum to high
school preceded by appropriate planning.

10. Within ten (19) days of the signing of this Consent
Decree a PAT will be convened with the participation of the
Court Expert to formulate an IEP for P-10. Within ten (10)
days of that meeting, P-10 will be placed in a residential
program of special education suited 1o deal with learning
disabled and emotionally disturbed children, The 1EP as
formulated will furthcrmore provide for psychotherapeutic
counselling.

11. Within ten (10) days of the signing of this Consent
Decree by the parties, a PAT miceting will be convened bythe
Hanford school defendants with the participation of the
Court Expert to formulate an IEP for P-11. The IEP for P-11
shall provide for placement in a tull-time, bilingual program
for the learning disabled, & program which must be im-
plemeated within fiftcer (15) days of the signing of this
Consent Decree by the parties,
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C.

These actions of these defendants as outlined above
shall serve to benefit the nained plantiffs and shall not be
construed as appropnate progranvming for other handicapped
children )

D.

All acticn relating to the named plaintffs shall be in
accordance with the practices and procedures hereinafter
stated in all sections of this Consent Decree, and where the
services and programming specitically cnumerated above for
the named plaintiffs are not reccommended by the PAT, the
matter will be referred to the Court Expert under Section II
herein.

II. COURT EXPERT

A. Access to Information

1. The Court with the consent of the parties finds that the
appointment of a Court Expert is necessary-to oversce the
implementation of this Consent Decrec as it relates to the
. named plaintiffs. Thercfore. pursuant to Rule 53 Fed. Rules

Civ. Pro., and in the exercise of the Court's equitable now-
ets, the Court shall approve the appointment of a Cournt
Expert acceptable to all partics, with the power and duty to
plan, organize, direct, supervise and monitor this and any
further Orders of the Court. All defendants and plaintiffs,
their successors. officers. agents, servants, employees. at-
tomeys and all persons in active concert or participation with
them shall provide the Court Expert with access to all prem-
ises, records, documents, personnel and students and with
every other cooperation and service necessary to the dis-
charge of the Court Expert’s duties and shall make availablz
to the Court Expert the assistance of the Hartford Board of
Education and the Connecticut State Department of Children
and Youth Services and the Connecticut State Department of
Education as may be necessary to execute this Consent De-
cree and any subsequent order of the Court.

B. Compensation

1. The Court Expert shall be appointed by the Commis-
sioner of Education of the State of Connecticut, subject to the
approval of the parties and of the Court.

2. The Court Expert shall engage such staff, subject to
prior review and recommendation of the Commissioner of
Education, as he or she finds necessary, only with the prior
approval of the Court. The Court Expert and his or her staff
shai] be compensated by State Department of Education and
shall serve until the end of the school ycar'1979-1980. All
rates of compensation. including sta.f compensation, shall be
subject to the approval of the Commissioner of Education of
the State of Connecticut and shall be fixed by the Court or
subject to Count approval. Within ten (10) days of the ap-
proval of this Consent Decree by the Court, counsel for

plaintiffs shall submit an appropriate Osder of Compensation
for the Court Expert Compen:  on 1o the Count Expert shall
not exceed ($8.000) erght thousand dollary exeept fof good
cause and with the prior approval of the Court The term of
the Court Expert may be tertumated and the Court Expent
replaced by agreement of counsel. subwect w the Dispute
Resoiution procedures at Section X1

C. Dutics. Resourves. Traming

1. The dutics of the Court Expert shall include, but not
be limited 1o, the following

{a) to monitor the provision of a free and appropnate
public education to each of the named plamtffs ac-
cording 1o the terms and provisions of the Education
“for All Handicapped Children Aci. 20U S.C. § 1401
et seq. and the Rehabilitation Actof 1973.29U.8.C.
§ 701 and § 704, and to report such to the Court and
counsel every month;

(b)to participate in all PATs, tate reviews hearings,
and other mectings regarding the numed plaintiffs
including those held for the purpose of evaluation,
prescription of an appropriate placement and the de-
veloping of an i ZP for each of the naned plaintiffs;
(c) to monitor the efforts of the Hartford school
defendants to secure proper placeend and/or pro-
grams for the named plantiffs and to report such to
the Court and counsel cvery month;

(d) to arbitrate any disputes between the parent and
child and the defendants when such arise. in accor-
dance with the procedures speaiticd below at Dy
(e) to apriove or disapprove prior te placement, any
agreent:nt between the parents of the naed plain-
tiffs and the Hartford School detendants, that the
child be placed in an appropriate altermanve tem-
porary placement with supportive and related ser-
vices pursuant to Section 1V 1ty and monttor until
fully appropriate plicement 1s achieved:

(D) to approve. prior to the placement of any of the
named plaintiffs. that the child be placed erherona
temporary or permanent basis in a program of
homebound or hospitalized instruction pursuant to
Scction IV 1(c), and as to the named plaintiffs. to
monitor the provision of homebound instruction
through appropriate means which will include as a
minimum, reccipt of documentaaon as to monitoring
of the assigned tcacher and confinmation of services
by the child or parentin addition to and 1n accordance
with Section IV 1(c). (d). and (e);

(g) to monitor. as to the named plaintiffs. the provi-
sion of special education at alternative leaming cen-
ters by regular on-site visits. and to be provided
appropriate documentation to carry-cut said monitor-
ing responsibility over such centers in addition to and
in accordance with the requirements of Section IV
Kc), (d) and (e).

(h) to receive documentatian of whatever good faith
attempts to place have been made by the Hantford

-
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school defendants. as to the namned plaintiffs, in the
instance where a residential placement cannat be
secured within thirty (30) dzys of obtaining parental
consent for placemem pursuant to Section VI A (1),
(i) to insure, as to the named plainuffs, that desig-
nated personnel are responsible for and will docu-
ment that all notices., forms, etc. arein fact sent to the
named plaimifts and/or their parents in accordance
with the timelines of Section V11 Subsection A;

(j) to be informed within twenty-four (24) hours of
any emergency suspension of a named plaintiff, and
the reasons theretore. and in additi. . to have author-
ity 1o revoke an emergency suspension prior to the
convening of a PAT upon a finding that the reasons
presented do not warrant such removal pursuant to
Section VIII A ().

2. In order to assist the Court Expert in understanding
and evaluating the provision of a frec and dppropriate special
education for the named plamuffs, the Hartford school de-
fendants shall inform the Court Expert of the current status
of, and any changes in the following:

(a) the development and provision of in-service staff
training programs fur the special education staff and
SUpervisors;

(b) the development of uniform procedures for the
identification and evaluation of children in need of
special education;

(c) structural changes in department of special =duca-
tion of the Hartford Board of Education;

(d) the changes in programs of special education or in
the job responsibilities of administrators and/cr
teachers of special education.

3. Within thirty (30) days of the; signing o\’ this decree by
the parties, the Hartfurd Public School Distnct shall provide
to the Court Expent, with one copy being provided to plain-
tiffs’ counsel, a directory of all special education programs
and services available 1n the District. This directory, which
shall be updated on a monthly basis, shall include the name.
address, and full description of euch program or service
listed. The directory shall be made available to all profes-
sional employees of the District and all public and private
social service agencies in the City of Hantford. The directory
shall also be made available to any person who requests a

copy.
D. Method of Dispute Resolution

Any dispute regarding the provision of a free and appro-

priate education 1o the named plaintiffs shall be resolved as

follows:

(1) the matter including a dispute regarding a recom-
mendation of a PAT shall first be brought to the Court
Expert wiho shall attempt to arbitrate the matter;

(2) if a parent or child or the school authorities are
dissatisfied with the arbitration result, they shall notify

Ic) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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the Court Expert who shall commence a meeting of
counsel:

(3) if counsel are unable to resolve the matter, the
dispute shall be presented to the Court or, subjzct to the
agreemeny of the parties. the Unmited States Magistrate.

As to the named plamtiffs. the parties agree that the
above procedures shali be used w beu of any state hearing or
mediation

1. FREE AND APP%OPRIATF. EDUCATION

1. The Harttord Public School District will provide and
the State Department of Education will ensure a free appro-
priate public education to all handicapped children between
the ages of five and twenty-one according to the terms and
provisions of Public Law 94-142. the Educaton for All
Handicapped Cliidren Act. 20 U S.C 8% 1401 et seq.,
§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Actof 1973.29U S C. § 701 and
§ 794, and the implementing regulations adopted pursuant to
cach statute, 45 C FR Parts 121a and 84 The Hartford
Public Schoo! District shall make avatlable special education
and related services which: are provided at public expense at
no charge to the student of his‘her family: are provided under
public supervision and direction: meet the standards of the
Connecticut State Departinent of Education and the standards
sct forth in the federal statutes and regulations described
above; consist of programs in the least restrictive educational
environment appropniate to each child’s individual needs:
and are provided 1n conformity with individuahized educa-
tiona} program which meet the requirements of 45 C.F.R.
§§ 121a 340 through 121a 349, -

2. Where the conditions of paragraph § below are miet,
any issue related to responsibality for payment or reimburse-
ment of costs for tuitlon. room and board, and related or
supportive services shall not except the defendants from
meeting the timelines set forth in Section VI for identifica-
tion, evaluation. placement or any other requirements of
federal and mate law. In no event shall the Hartford school
and the State Department of Education be exrused from full
compliancs due 10 an 1ssue regarding payment of cost by the
Hartford schoul defendants, or applicable reimbursement by
the State Education defendant.

3. This section shall not preclude the Hartford School
defendants frum secking reimbursement from any sources,
public or private, where appropriate except that in no event
shall reimbursement be sought from the parent. natural guar-
dian or child for the cost of tuition.. room and board or any
related or supportive services included in the child’s indi-
vidualized educational program (hereinafter 1EP)

~ - ——4-Inthe eventthata-handicapped child is placed by any_
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party other than the Hartford school defendants, including
but not Emited to, the Depuriments of Children and Youth
S :rvices, Mental Retardation, and Vocational Rehabilitation
or the Superior Caunt. the Hartford defend ants remain solely
responsible for educational programming and the State Edu-
cation defendants remain responsible for ensuring com-




plum‘c with federal and state law for educational program-
ming until such time as they are notified in writing that the
child has been admitted to a Special Scheol District under the
jurisdiction of a state agency. pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.
$§ 17-429, 17-418. 18-81, 54-120, 19-575, and 18-99.
S, In any case. at such time as a child is identified as
" handicapped and in need of special education by the Hartford
school defendants. and is further found, pursuant to duc
process procedures set forth at 45 C.F.R. 121a.506 to
1212513, to need placement i a residentiat public or private
tacility . inthat such placement is necensary to provide special
cducation and related services (45 C.F.R. 121a.302, 45
C E.R. %4.33(c)t3)), the Hartford school defendants remain
solely responsible for payment of costs igcurred for tuition,
room and board and related and supponlgc services such as
are defined as appropriate at 45 C.F.R. 121a.302. ™~ ©
6. This section shall not preclude the Hartford school
defendants from contracting with other public agencies for
the provision of such services. except that these Hartford
school defendants shall remain the sole obligees for ensuring
that free and appropriate placeinent is secured within the
timelines ay stated in Section VI, and the State Education
defendants shall remain responsible for cnsuring
compliance.
7. The tem “‘handicapped child"® when used herein
*shall include children who meet the definition at 45 C.F.R.
121a.5 ¢t seq. and 45 C.F.R. 84.3(j).

I'V. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ALTERNATIVE

1. From the time of referral for evaluation until appro-
priate placement 1» made, including any time nccessary to
complete duc process procedures for children in the Hartford
School District, the defendar:ts shall ensure that:

(a) The child shall reinain in the placement current at the
time of referral for evaluation and shall be subject to
proxccxion againat repeated suspension and expulnion as
set forth in Section VIII; unless,

{(b) the child, or his or her parents agree in wnun;. with
the Hartford School defendants that the child be placed
in an appropriate altemative temporary placement with
appropriate supportive and related services as sct forth
at45C.F.R. §§ 121a.13, 121a.4 until such time as fully
appropriate placement is achieved (see Section VII).
Such altemative placement shall be the least restrictive
environment sciting which most closely approximates
the appropriate setting the child needs.

(c) In no event shall any child referred for evaluation be
placed at any time. on either a temporay or penmanent
basis, in-a program of homebound or hospitalized in-
struction, i.e., in any educational program which is

conductedon aone to.one small group basisinthehome. .~

or hospital room uniess the following procedure is fol-
lowed and documented in writing:

(1) A physician, after physical examination, has cer-
tified in writing that the child is unable to attend
school for specific and temporary medical reasons
and has stated the expectzd date the child wall be able

to return to the school progran. + ¢.. current place-
ment at the time of reterral, agreed upon anterim
placcnuent as stated above, or fully apptopnate pro-
gram. Temporary and specific medical ieasons shall
be limited to illness or other temporary disabling
conditions which do not tail within the descnption of
handicapping codditions set torth m 45 CF R
§ 121a.5.

(2) Except fur medical reasons ay described in
§ HeX D) above, students may be placed in home-
bourd instruction only st the stdem s awating
completion of a PAT or initation of an appropniate
placement recommendet by a PAT or of the student
presents a substantial threat to the health or wafety of
others and the following procedures are tollowed:

" {a) The student muat first be placed 1n the least

restrictive educational setting which most lecly
approximates the appropnate educational setting
which the student needs (see Scetton 1(h) above).
Prior to this placement, a PAT nwust be convened to
formulate an IEP and idenufy the appropnate edu-
cational placement. This PAT may notconsider the
altemnative of homebound instruction.
(b) If the alternative placemnent described 1n
§ (2)(a) above fails to meet the student’s needs and
if the student continues to present a substantial
threat to self or others, then z waw PAT may be
convened. This PAT may consider any alternative
placement for the student, including hoinebound
instruction. However. no student may be placed in
homebound instruction unless a PAT has been held
and an LEP written prior to placemem However, in
no event shall a student in these circumstances be
placed in home instruction for longer than ten days.
(c) At the end of the ten day period of home
instruction, a new PAT shall be convened to con-
sider whether the child should be placed 1n 4 new
cducational setting or continued 1n homebound in-
struction. However, the timeles for pla:ement
required by Section VI of this decree shulf run
fromthe date of the first PAT hei< after referral for
cvaluation.

(3) Homebound instruction shall be provided as
follows:

(a) instruction shall begin within one week.

(b) where instruction has been provided by a spe-
cial education teacher in school. such instruction
shall be provided only by teachers certified in spe-
cial education when the child is on home
instruction.

“{¢Y insauction shall be provided for at least two

hours a day or ten hours per week per child, unless
or until such time as state statute or regulation
provides minimum standards for hours of
homebound instruction, at which time counsel! will
meet to attempt to resolve the maditication, subject
to the Dispute Resolution €:xction X,
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+(4) In no event shal! any child referred for evaluation
be placed in any al*emative learming cemer, alterna-
tive education program or any other equivalent parnt
time small group scting outside of mainstream
school unless a duly constituted Pupil - Appraisal
Team meeting (hereinafter PAT) recommends such
placement in writng. havng considered lsss restric:
tive alternatives, and having completed prior to such
placement an individuahized education program as
described in federal law. or. in the case of placement
in the diagnostic center. an individuaiized dwmgnosic
plan.

(a) pending placcinent in such an altemative leam-
ing center as more fully described ahove, the child
shall remain in his or her current placement effec-
tive at the time of referral, and shall be subject 1o
protection from repeated suspension and expulsion
as provided for in Scction VIII.

{b) where placement is niade at an altemative feamn-
ing center, instruction shall be provided as follows:

(1) instruction shall be by teachers or staff cer-
tified to teach special education or to provide
supportive and related services pursuant to state
and federal law requirements for centification, as
specified in the individualized cducation
program.

(2) instrucuon shall be provided for at least four
hours a day for twenty hours a week per child,
unless an individualized education prograin
provides for fewer hours of instruction.

2. Upon the finding of a duly constituted PAT that any
child 1s in need of residential placement due o his or her
handicapping condition and need for special education the
obligation and sole responsibility for placement and payment
of cost for such placcment restdes with the Hartford school
defendants. subject to apphcable reimbursement by the State
defendants. Such handicapping conditions which may, due
to their severity. demonstrate a need for residential place-
ment include: hardness of hearing. deafness, speech impair-
ment, visual handicap. mental retardation, serious emotional
disturbance, orthopedic or other health imnpairment and
specific leamning disahility, or any physical or mental im-
pairment which substantially limits leaming. Such placement
shall occur wichin the tinelines set forth at Seciion VIl and in
accordance with the [EP prepared in accordance with
Section VI

R Y

PROCEDURAL PROTECTIONS

1. The Hartford school defendants shall comply with
all procedural protections specified at 20 U.S.C. § 1415 and
45 C.F.R. §121a.500-121a.575

2. The Hartford school defendants may use the SST
process to determine whether to refer a student for an evalua-
tion. The student, the students™ parent or any professional
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“employee of the deferdant may request that an SST meeting

be convened. No SST meeting may be convened without a
pareat’s presence unless the Hafond school defendant can
document that it has made efforts to involve parents pursuant
1045 C.F.R. § 121a.343. No SST meet:ng shall sit, however,
as &n IEP meeting as described in 45 CF R § 121a.340-
1212:349. All procedurai and substantive protections availe
able under State and federal law concerning the education of
handicapped children shall be avulable dunng the SST
process.

3. The issuc of the Hartford school defendant’s con-
tinued use of the Central Pupil Appraisal Team (here:nafter
CPAT) as it presently exists has beeureferred to the court for
a declaratory ruling.

*VL
INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS

A.

The Hantford <chool defendants will provide indi-
vidualized educational programs (1EPs) for all handicapped
students who are enrolled or reside-in the Hantford Public
School District according to the standards and precedures set
forth a1 20 U.S.C §1401(19Y and 45 C F.R §3121a.307,
1212.340-121a.349.

1. Each LEP formulated by the Hartford School defen-
dants will bz a full and compleze 1EP according to the defini-
tion set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 121a.346

(a) The Hartford school defendants will ensure that each
meeting to draft IEPs includes the following partici-
pants, pursuant to 45 C.F.R. 121a J44:

(1) A representative of the loca! educational agency
other than the child’s teacher who 1. qualified to
provide or supervise the provision of special
education.

(2) The child’s teacher.

(3) One or both of the child’s parents. subject to
§ 121a.545.

(4) The child, where appropnate.

(5) Other individuals at the discretion of the parent or
agency.

{b) For a handicapped child who has been evaluated for
the first tim;. the Hartford school defendants shall
insure: o

(1) That a member of the evaluation teaun participates
in the meeting. -

(2) That-the .  sentative-of the-local educational
agency, the child’s teacher, or vome other person is
present at the meeting, who is knowledgeable about
the evaluation procedures used with the child and is
faniiliar with the results of the evaluation.

(¢) The Hantford school defendants shall take steps to
insure that one or both of the parents of the handicapped
child are present at cach meeting or are afforded the




opportunity to participate, pursuant to 45 C.F.R.
1212.348, ircluding:

(1) Nutifying parents of the meeting early enough to
insure that they will have an opportunity to attend:,
and

(2) Scheduling the mecting at a mutually agreed on
time and place.

1d) The notice under paragraph (a)}(1) of this section
must indicate the purposs, time, and location of the
meeting, and who will be 1n attendance.

() If neither parent can Zautend, the local educational
agency shall use other methads to insure parent partici-
pation, including individual or conference telephone
calls. )

(N A meeting may be conducted without a parent in
attendance if the Jocai educational agency is unable to
convince the parents that they should attend. In this case
the local educational agency must have a record of its
attempts to arrange a mutually agreed on *ime and place
such as:

Q(l) Detailed records of telephone calls made or at-
tempted and the results of those calls.
12) Copies of any correspondence sent to the parents
and any responses received, and
(3) Detailed 1ccords of visits made to the parent’s
home or place of cmployment and the results of those
vISits. -

{g) The Hartford school defendants shall take whatever
action is necessary to insure that the parent understands
the proceedings at a meeting. including arranging for an
interpreter for parents who are deaf or whosc native
language is other than English.

{h) The Hartford schoot defendants shall give the parent
a copy of the individualized education prograni.

(i) The individualized education program for each ciuld
must include:

(1) A statement of the child s present levels of cduca-

tional performance:

(2) A statement of annual goals, including short term

instructional objectives:

(3) A statement of the specific special education and

related services to be provided to the child, and the

extent to which the child will be able to participate in

regular educational programs;

(4) The projected dates for initiation of services and

the anticipated duration of the services: and |
~-—{8) Appropriate objective criteria and evaluation pro-_.

cedures and schedules for determining, on at least an

annual basis whether the short term instructional ob-

jectives are being achieved.

(6) A siatement of appropriate disciplinary tech-

nigues, not to include suspension or expulsion, shall
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be included for those students determined o present
special disciplinary problems by the P AT

(j) Before the local educational ageney places a handi-
capped child in a public or privaie facilny, the agency
shalt initiate and conduct a mceung, pursuapt to
§ 121a.347 to develop an individealized ¢ducaton pro-
gram for the child in accordance with § 121a 343

(k) The Hantford schoal defendants shall insure that a
representative of the private schoed faciliy attends the

“neeting. If the representative cannot attend, the

Hartford schoal defendants shall use other methods to
insure participation by the private schoal or faciluty.
including individual or contersnce telephone calls.

(1) The Hartford schoul defendants shall also develop an
individualized educational program fur each handi-
capped child who was placed in o private school or
facility by the agency before the effective date of the
regulations.

(m) After a handicapped child enters a private school or
facility, any meeting to review and revise the child’s
individualized education program may be initiated and
conducted by the private school or facility at the discre-
tion of the Hartford school defendants.

(n) If the private school or fucility initiates and conducts
these meetings, the Hartford school defendants <hall
insure that the parents and an agency representative:

(1) Are involved in any decision about the child’s
individualized education program; and
(2) Agrec to any proposed changes wn the program
before those changes are implemented

(o) Even if a private school or facility impleinents a
child's individualized education program. responsibil-
ity for compliance with this part remiins with the focal
educational agency and the State eduicantonal agency,
pursuant te 45 C.F.R. 121a.348.

(p) If a handicapped child is enrolled in a parchial of
other private school and receives special education or
related services from a public agency. the Hartford
school defendants shall. pursuant to 45 C.F.R.
121a.348:

(1) Initiate and conduct meetings to develop. review,
and revise an individualized education program for
the child. in accordance with 45 C F.R. § 121a.343;
and

- —-(2)-Insure_that a represcntative_of the parochial ot

other private school attends each meeting. If the rep-
resentative cannot attend. the Harttord school defen-
dants shall use other methods to insure participation
by the private school, including individual or confer-
ence telephone calls.

o7




VH.
TIMELINES FOR PLACEMENT

A.

Special cducation and related services shall be.provided
as soon as possihle, but in any event shall be no later than the
following timelines:

1. Academic Year—In the case o a referral made
during the academic year, the timelines for the Hartford
school defendants shall be as follows:

() Notice of Student Study Team meeting shall be sent
to the parents within ten (10) days of the date of the
Referral to Student Study Team. Said notices shall be as
specified in Section XI.

(b) The evaluation study, wherher performed in-district
or contracted out, shall commence upon obtaining pa-
rental consent where such cor:sent is necessary but shall
be completed no later than thirty (30) days from the date
of referral. In the event evaluation is not completed,
parental consent shall be secured for an extension. Re-
quest for consent for extension shall include reasons
why such extension is needed. Where niot secured the
PAT will be convened according to paragraph (c).
(c) The Pupil Appraisal Team meeting to develop, re-
view or revise the individualized education program
shall be held within fifteen (i5) days of completing the
evaluation.

{d) Notice of the Pupil Appraisal Team meeting to
develop, review, or revise the child's individualized
cducation program shall be sent to the parents at least
"ive days prior to such meeting, said notice to be in
accordance with Section XI.

(¢) The individualized education program shall be writ-
ten, or revised. in full and a copy sent to the parents
within five (5) days after the Pupil Appraisal Team
Meeting to develop, review or revise the individualized
cducation program.*

(N Where necessary, parental consent for placement
shall be given within ten (10) days of the date of the copy
of the individualized education program. Said consent
for placement shall be as specified in Section XIi. Fail-
ure of a parent to respond within ten (10) school days
shall be construed as refusal to consent.

* The Hartford Schoo! defendants have indicated their inten-
tion to request a declaratory ruling from the Department of
Health, Education and Welfare with regard to the time for
devclopment of short term objectives. At such time as a
ruling is received, the Hartford School defendants reserve the
right to resort to the dispute resolution procedure: at Sectior.
X1t However, until such time a< the dispute resofution
procedure is cumpleted, the specifis short term instructional
cbjecuves shall be developed at a PAT at the time the indi-
vidualized educational program ts written with the parents’
parucipation. (See Secticns VI and Vll.)J

o {c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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(g) The major components of the individualized educa-
tion program shall he implemented wathin fifteen (1)
school days of the wnting of the individualized educa-
tion program or within ten ( 10) school days of obtaining
paicntal consent, where such consent i< necessary.
(h) In the case of a child whose irdividuahized educa-
tional program calls fur private or out of district place-
ment, within fifteen ¢ 15)days aiter the IEPis drafted the
Hantford school defendants shall, if the child is not yet
placed, ‘wjuest. and the State Department shall provide
assistancé in finding altemative placzment options. In
any case, the individualized education program shall be
fully impiemented within thiny (30) days of obtaining
parental consent-for placement. If the program is not
fully implemented within that penod. documentation
shall be sent to the Commisstoner of Education or his
designee, wih a copy to the parent and counsel, which
demonstrates whatever good faith attempts to place
have been inade in the thirty d: - period. If any person
disputes the failure to place, they may resort to the due
process procedures set forth at 45 C.F.R. 121a.500 e¢
seq.

2. Between Academic Years—In the casé of a referral
made in between avademic years, the cffective date of the
referral may be deemed to be the first schuol day of the next
academic ycar. 4

VilL
DISCIPLINE

A.

For the purposes uf this section, the defimition of such
terms as ““removal,”” **suspension”” and “*expulsion®* shall
be those contained at § 10-233 Connccticut General Statutes,
and the following procedures shatt apply to the Hartford
school defendants and to all children referred for evaluation
from the date of suth referral unul such time a5 a duly
constituted PAT recommen s the discontinuation of any or
all special education service: andior it finds that the subject
child is not handicapped witt in the meaning of federz and
state law, and is not in nced of special education.

1. No identified handicapped child shail be removed
more than six (6) times in any school year or more than twice
in onc week unless removal is an appropriate disciplinary
measure contemplated and stated in the child’s individual
education program.

2.

_ (a) No child referred for evaluation or identified as in

need of special educatior. hall be suspended morc than

15 days or expelied during the course of one school year
without first following the procedure of convening a
PAT as described in Section IV and V1, at which tim=
the appropriatencss of the child's placement will be
evaluated.
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(b) In the instance where the PAT identifies the child in
need of special education, the special edueztion ad-
ministrative process as described hercin and i, state and
federal law will replace the disciplinary process de-
scribed in state law and Board policy.
(c) At no time shall any referred or identified chnld as
described in this section be removed more than six (6)
times in the school year or more than twicc in onc week.
. _suspended for more than 15 days in any school ycar or
expelled from school without first convening a PAT
except where such a child is considered an imminent
danger to the health and safety of the school, and
emergency suspension is necessitated. in that instance,
the suspension shall nonetheless be preceded by good
faith attempts to contact the child’s parent. In the case of
any emergency suspension, a PAT shall be convencd
within one week for the purpose of evaluating the
child's program
\

3. The above shalt apply to all children from the date of
referral for evaluation, and shall include children placed
in-district and in out-of-district programs, both public and
private.

4. The defendants shall insure that the discipline policy
as described herein is followed consistently for all children
described, both in and out-of-district.

S. To ensyrecompliance with all the procedural protec-

tions and rights contained in federal and state law and appli-
cable to all handicapped children placed out of the Hartford

school district, the Hartford school defendants shall from the *

date of approval of this Consent Decree ensure that ail con-
tracts for paymeit to out-of-district facilities are drafted to
include conditions requiring compliance with federal and
state law concerning special education, and shall forward to
all such facilities copie$ of pertinent policy statute or regula-
tion pertaining to special education.

6. The Commissioner of Education or his designee shall
circulate to all local educational agencies in Connecucut a
letter informing the local agencies of the necessity to draft all
contracts with out-of-district facilities to include conditions
of compliance with federal and state law conceming cduca-
tion of the handicapped.

7. Any child who is not referred or identified, but who
has been suspended more than 15 days 1n any school year, or
is recommended for expulsion, or who has been expelled

. pursuant to the emergency procedures at Corn. Gen. Stat.
§ 10-233 shall be referred to an SST to determine whether
that child should be évaluated and referred to a PAT, all in
accordance with the timelines at Section VH. Where achild is
determined to be handicapped and in need of special educa-
tinn the special education process will take place in lieu of the
discipline process.

1979 CRR Publishing Company,
~eproduced with permission.
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IX.
IDENTIFICATION OF FIRST PRIORITY CHIL.DREN

A

Defendant Hartford school district shall. at least once
cach school year, review the performance of cach studentand
where nccessary, review the files and records of each student
not previously identified as a student in nced of specia!
education of determine whether the student should be re-
ferred to a Student Study Team. In reviewing the perfor-
mance of each student, consideration shall be given at a
minirnum to such factors as:

(ay Whether the student has ever been recommended to
repeat a grade.

(b) Whether there is a significant discrepancy between
the student’s ability and his/her achievement.

(c) Whether there is any indication of any health or
physical impairments.

(d) Whether the student has exhibited onc or more of the
following churactenstics over a long period of time and
to 2 marked degree, which adversely affects educational
performance:

(1) Aninability to learn which cannot be explained by
intellectual, sensory, or health factors;

(2) An inability to build or maintain satisfactory in-
terpersonal relationships with peers and teachen;
(3) Inappropriate types of behavior or feclings under
normal circumstances;

(4) A general pervasive mood of unhapplnCss orde:
pression; or

(5) A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears
associated with personal or school problens.

(¢) Whether the student hys been truait for eleven days
or more in any quarter or forty-five days or more in any
school year.

(f) Whether the student has failed more than one course
in a marking period.

B.

Al! parties agree that the State Board of Education is
required to maintain an on-going Child Find program. As
part of that effort, for the 1978-1979 school vear, the State
Department of Education will engage in the following:

1. State media effort in regard to Child Find week inthe
State of Connecticut, including radio, television, and news-
paper announcements.

2. Mailing of letters, brochures, and literature to local
educational agencies with regard to the Child Find.

3. Encouraging participation on the local level in Child
Find week.

4. Maintain the toll free telephone line for parents with
reourd to Special education and Child Find week.
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C. Distribution ’
1. Within ten (10) days of the approval of this Consent

Decree, copies of the Decree wili be distributed by the
Hanford school defendants to the following:

(a) Al local and state defendants; including members of
the Board of Education.’ the Superintendent of the
Hartford school system. and the Commissioners of
Education and the Department of Children and Youth
Services.

(b) All administrative and professional employees of the
Division of Pupil Personnel and Instructional Support
Services of the Hantford Public Schools.

(c) Members of the Program Review team of the Con-
necticut Depaniment of Education.

(d) Responsible officials at each and every out-of-
district facility to which a named plaintiff is referred or
where a named plaintiff is currently placed.

(¢) Corporation Counsel's office.

(f) The Court Expert.

X.
STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
RESPONSIBILITY

" Within twenty (20) days of the approval of this Consent
Decree the defendant Secretary of the Connecticut State
Department of Education shall complete a full review which
shall include both Compliance and Program review compo-
nents of the provision of special education by the Hartford
school defendants. Such Review shall include specific
timelines toward completion within forty-five (45) school
days from the approval of the Consent Decree.

1. Such compliance and program review shall include:

(a) Collection of data and reports.

(b) Conduct of on-site visits.

(c) Comparison of sampling of individualized education
programs with the programs actually provided.

(d) Involvement of parents in monitoring activities as
prescribed in Appendix D of the State Department of
Education Annual Program Plan.

(e) Review of the progress and accomplishment of pro-
grams and services for children requiring special educa-
tion including but not limited to curriculum, conditions
of instruction, physical facilities and equipment, class
composition and size. admission of students, and the
requirements respecting necessary special services and
instruction as required by § 10-76b of the Connecticut
General Statutes.

2. The Review shall with regard to the named plaintiffs
be conducted in conjunction with the Court Expert, who shall
have access to all infrrmation gathered in the course of the
review and shall be provided with a copy of the final review
report to be completed within forty-five (45) school days of
initiation of the review. Specific recommendations for
change in regard to the named plaintiffs which result from the
review will be discussed with the Court Expert and im-
L plemented under his responsibility.

Q7 :) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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. 3. The Review shall b= conducted in accordance with
the specific terms and instruments desenbed and attached at
Appendix D of the State Departinent of Educarion Annual
Program [an subinitted (0 the Departinent of Health. Educa-
tion, and Welfare for fiscal year 1979.

4. In particular, the Commussioner of Education of the
State of Connecticut or his desig.ice shall undertake monitor-
ing to insure that the Hartford Public School Districtdevelops
and implements an individualized educational program (IEP)
for each of the named plaintiffs cnrolled 1n or residing in the
Hartford Public School District.

5. The Commissioncr of Education of the State of Con-
necticut shall insure that cach of the namned plaintiffs who is
placed in or referred to an out of district school or facility has
an individualized educational program prepared in accor-
dance with federal regulation set out at 45 C.F.R.
§ 1212349, 45 C.F.R. § 121a.2(c), and 45 C.F.R. §84.33
and § 84.39.

6. The defendant Commissioner of Education or his
designee shall monitor the special education placements of
each of the named plaintiffs both within the Hai tford school
district and all referrals and placements of named plaintiffs to
out-of-district placements to insure that a completed indi-
vidualized education program is prepared before placement
and is implem .ted.

7. The defendant Commissioner of Education or his
designec shall insure that the provisions of paragraphs 4, §
and 6 are completed at the point when the final Review report’
is completd.

8. The Review as conducted by the State Education
defendants shall highhght particular arcas of concem to the
named plaintiffs, including:

(a) The certification of all instructional personnel in the
Altemative Education Center or homebound instruction
program;

(b) The hours of instruction received by students en-
rolled in Altemnative Education Centers or homebound
instruction programs:

() The preparation of individualized educational pro-
grams for students cnrolled in Alternauve Education
Centers or homebound instruction program;

(d) The preparation of, and participation of the Hartford
school defendants and parents in individualized educa-
tional programs for out of district placenents;

(¢) The provision of appropriate notice to parents, con-
tained and documented in student file records. of their
rights under federal and state law pertaining to special
education;

(D The provision of culturally. linguistically and ra-
cially nonbiased testing and evaluation aterials, and
the use of testing and cvaluation iatcrials and methods,
which do not discriminate on the basts of handicap.
(8) The review of student records shall consist of &
review of a stratified random sample of a total of 65
students. This review shall consist of file reviews, par-
entinterviews, and progeam uudits The sample shall be
compiled through a strantication which shall be based
on in-district or out-of-district placement. Should the




random sample not include a sufficient representation of
black and hispanic students the sample will be redrawn
to include that representation.

9. Any infcrmation or report of noncompliance in the
highlight areas listed above at paragraph 8 shall be incorpo-
rated in the {inal review report and dealt with in the same
manner as other areas of noncompliance found in the
Review.

XL
STANDARD FORMS

A

The following forms having been developed by all par-
ties shall be used and disseminated throughout the Hartford
Public School System, and are considered to be external
forms in that they are designed to impart information to
parents. They are to be prepared in translation and sent in the
dominant language of the parent. These forms are to be
supplemented by internal documents, including but not lim-
itzd to a form for documenting parental contacts {Section VL
A A 1X(f) and Section V 2)] and a form for documenting good
faith attempts to place {see Section VII ~ 13(h), (i)].

B.

The forms attached are to be completed and sent in
accordance with the Timelines at Section VII.
1. Referral to Student Study Team

(a) This form is to be filled out when an initial
referral is made by a classroom teacher or other
local schoo! personnel, and after completion is to
be sent 1o the parent with the Notice of Student
Study Team meeting.

2. Request for Consent for Asssssment

(a) On an initial referral, this form is to be com-
pleted and sent to the parent by the Student Study
Team with a copy of the Notice of Free and Appro-
priate Education.

3. Request for Extension of Evaluation
4. Notice of Free and Appropriate Education

o (c) 1979 crr Publishing Company,
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(a) Notice of Student Study Team Mecting

(b) Notice of Pupil Appraisal Team Mceting

(c) Notice of Pupil Appraisal Tean Mecting (RE-
VIEW)

6. Individualized Educational Program

C.

Whenever a child has been identified as handicapped
and is receiving a special education program or services, but
that program is to be reviewed, the Hartford defendants shall
convene a Pupil Appraisal Team mecting in the inanner sct
forth at Section V11 A 1) (b) through (1) and shall use forms 3,
4, 5(c) and 6 above as appropriate.

XIrL.
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

I. Any disputes regarding the implementation of the
terms of the Consent Decrec as policy and practice through-
out the Hartford School System shall be resolved as follows:

(a) Counsel! for all partics shall mect on a monthly basis
from approval of this Decree, with previously agreed
upon agendas, to attcmpt to resolve any differences.
Subject to prior approval of counscl. any counsel may
bring other individuals to the mectings.

(b) If counsel arc unable to resolve any matter, the
dispute shall be presented to the Court or, subject to the
agreement of the partics, the United States Magistrate.

(c) Individual complaints with regard to the appropri-
ateness of a particular program, evaluation or placement
which do not involve district wide policy or practice
shall be resolved through the due process procedures at
45 C.F.R. 121a.500 er seq.

The Court retains jurisdiction of this action for all pur-
poses, including the entry of such additional orders as it
deems just, necessary or proper. However, following a final
report to the Court by the parties and the Court Expert on
July 1, 1980, concerning implemnentation of this decree, the
Court may choosc to enter a final order 1n this case.

The parties, by this Consent Decree, and through their
attorneys, hereby consent to the entry of this Order.




C CHRISTIAN STANLEY, by and through his mother and next friend, LINDA STANLEY,
Plaintiff

\ D

School Administrative Unit No. 40 for Milford — Mont Vernon, Ne v Hampshire, et al.,
Defendants

No. 80-9-D
United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire
January 1§, 1980

O'Connell, District Judge

On motion for declaratory and injunctive relief to prevent LEA trom suspending learning
disabled. but not emationally disturbed, child. During first year in tugh school, child was referred to
regional special education consortium, but during that year was suspended six times — once for use
of profanity, the balance for failure to come to detention. Prior to the last of these suspensions, the
child's parent was notified that the school board would hold a hearing and that parent had a right to
have counsel present. The school board suspended the child for 21 days **for neglect or refusal to
conform to he reasonable {rules] of** the high school and directed that the child be re-evaluated as
soon as practicably possible.

' HELD . motion for preliminary injunction denied in most respects. Child is unlikely to succeed
in his claim that the suspens:on constitutes a discrimination on the basis of his handicap. Evidence
. " indicates that child's disruptive behavior was not caused to any substantial degree by his handicap or
C by his current placement program, but rather by senous family problems. Moreover, although the
suspension involved is longer than that considered in Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565 (1975), more
elaborate procedural safeguards than are required by Goss were afforded and it is unlikely that they
will be found procedurally defective. Finally, since the suspension cannot be said to be discrimina-
tory because the child’s behavior has not been shown to be substantially related to the child’s
handicap or the LEA ‘s attem:pts tc remedy that handicap, the unequal treatment that is the hallmark
of equal protection analysis under any standard is here not sufficiently evident to predict success on
the merits of this claim.

ORDER AND OPINiON counsel for both sides appeared ready to introduce the tes-
timony of witnesses and relevant exhibits. In this light, and as

. . . counsel agreed that the case was ripe at this juncture for
grade student at the Milford (New Hampshirc) Arca Senior determination of whether preliminary injunctive relief should

High School, brings this 42 U.S.C. § 1983 action secking : : -

Qccla{atory and injunctive relief from defendants® suspend- &s:;:: r": edi‘::,}';ﬁﬁ?::f&%g:}?;ﬁ‘ lml 4\:;'85'30&
ing him from school for twenty-one days.' Such action is F;'om the testimony of Ray Yarmac, a p;yc'hoth;rapnét
alleged to violate rights guaranteecd by the Education for All employed by the Nashua Youth Council \;ho has been Coun-

i 2

Handicapped Children Act (20 U.S.C.§ 1401, erseq.). § S04 seling plaintiff since August of 1979. 1t appears that plaintiff
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC - 8794, and_thc has had a long history of academic failure. As revealed by his
Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United mother. plaintiff was at one time enrolled in a prvate school

States. Of concem here is plaintiff’s motion for a temporary . .
restraining order filed January 7, 1980. Hearing thereon was 'g:‘l‘;:kcbz:a::gﬁ T:: l::é::;ﬁﬁ::gaﬁst t;ciras(s, ;?;:sh

Plaintift Christian Stanley, 1 fifteen-year-old tenth

| held before the Court on January 1. 1980, at which time 1979) at the Milford Area Senior High School, however,
| , . . ) . plaintiff failed to pass and was thereafter referred to the
Chnistian Stanley will generally be referrec to hercinafter Regional Special Education Consortium (serving School

as the plaintiff, although the action was brought **by and
through his mother and next friend. Linda Stanley.”" Also. to
be consistent with plaintsff’s usage at heanng. “*detendants’”

Administrative Unit 40) by the school's Pupil Placement
Team for purposes of testing and evaluation. As reported by

’ will for purposes of this Order refer only to the Milford Juhn O. Willis, Dircctor of Psychoeducational. Services for
(, School Boand — the entity that issued the challenged deci- the Consortium. this testing of plantff revealed **{a] dis-
si0n to suspend plainnft, crepancy between roughly Average intellectual potential and
105
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Below Avcrage reading and Low writing caused by a vocab-
ulary weakness™ that in Willis” opinion constituted a **learn-
ing disabtlity " (See Plaimtiff's Exhibit 4 at 4.) Responding
to this evaluation, the Pupil Placement Team formulated for
plamuft an Individualized Education Program (or Plan) and
prepared a Statement ot Placement for the school year 1979-
1980 wtuch contemplated that L hins would recerve five hours
perweek of specialized instruction in the school’s **resource
room™ m addition to spending twenty -five hours in his regu-
lar classrooms. Plamutt’s mother consented o such place-
ment (See Planutt’s Exhsbt #1 )

As ot carly October 1979, the above placement ap-
pearcd to be having good etfects Indeed, plaintiff's mother
testilicd that with one notable exception she received at that
time a ““plowing™ report from plaimtitf's teachers as 1o the
plan’s success ¢ By the middle of that month, however,
plaintiff began to pose disciplinary problems for the school.
On a somctimes daily basts, plaintiff reported to school
tardy. (Se» Defendants” Exhibit A.) As revealed in the tes-
timony of school principal Ronald Berry, school rules, about
which plaintff was informed buth oraliy and in writing (see
Defendants™ Exhibit B). require that a tardy student first
report to the office to receive a pass that would ec;able him to
enter his classroom late. Principal Berry noted that such
continually late entrances into classes had a disruptive influ-
ence. Morcover, Berry and Assistant Principal David Dube
related several incidents. admitted to by plaintiff himself,
where plaintiff used profamity to teachers in the presence of
oiher students when requested to quit talking in study hall, to
feport to class or to the school office, or to perform certain
study tasks On one such occaston, Principal Berry himself
removed plamtitf from class to take him to his office. On
another, Assistant Principal Dube found plaintiff wandering
in the halls and had to follow hini into the men's room before
finally persuading him to report to the office.?

As summarized in PlantTs Exhibit 3, plaintiff was
actually suspended on six occasions between October 17 and
December 12, 1979 — five times for fadure to come to
detention (see Defendants’ Exhibit B) and once for his use of

* That exception was for Amencan Government, for which
plaim‘nft‘ s mother was informed

Chris displays an immature attitude toward his respon-
sibilitics in that he does not take advantage of the time he
has in class to complete work or to participate In assign-
ments  He presents no major discipline problem but he 1s
directly cheating humself. He has attempted no homework
or class participation
(Plainuff's Exhibit #2.) Plainuff*s mother was also notified
by his Resource Koom teacher that **Chris has a low average
due to incomplete homework assignments and 3 absences
which he hasn’t made up . .”" (/d.)

* From the tesumony at hearing of psychotherapist Yarmac,
1t appears that this developmient coincided o some extent
with increasing problenis in plaintn{™s family within the last
few months,

' As reported 1n plamnifi"s disciphne record (Detendants’
Exhibit A), plamtitf was thrown out of one class on De-
cember 18, 1979, tor ““throwing spithalls,™

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
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profanity. Each of these suspensions was seeved at school as
**internal " suspensiors (1d.) and are not here 1n Question.
Apparently prior to the last of these suspensions, School
Supenintendent Juhus D*Agostino not:fied planuff's mother
that a hearing was to be held on these disciplinary probiems
before the Milford School Board and that she had a nght 1o
have counsel preseii. Such hozane was held on December
19, 1979, at which ume plaantfl appeared and was rep-
resented by counsel. After consudening the testimony and
exhibuts presented at that hearing. the Board on January 2,
1980. sent to plaintiff's parents a letter informung them of its
findings of fact and deciston based thercon (Defendants'
Exhitit C.) In addit:on to recounting plaintitf’s record of
disciplinary problenis dunng the 1979-80 school year and his
current poor academic pert srmance. the Board noted that
there was no evidence thar plainnff (although **educationally
handicapped™) was “*emotionally handicapped’* and con-
cluded that

the disciplinc infractions by Chnistian Stan-
ley. particularly the insubordination, profan-
ity and [belligerent] behavior [toward]
teachers, was in fact disruptive to the educa-
tional environment of the school and particu-
larly to the students who witnessed the disci-
pline offenses recorded in Exhubnt #1. The
Miliord School Board does not and will not
condone such behavior by any student, evena
student who 1s educanionally handicapped and
identified as a slow learner.

(/d.. finding #5.)* In this hght. the Board ruled that:

1. Chrisnan Stanley 1s suspended from the
Milford Area Senior High School, Mil-
ford, New Hamgshire . for 21 school days,
beginning g Friday . January 4. 1980, and
continuing G and :ncluding Fnday, Feb-
ruary 1. 1980, for neglect or refusal to
conform to the reasonabie [rules] of the
Milford Area Semor High School.

2. The Milford School Board directs that
Christian Stanley be reevaluated by the
Pupil Personnel Team as soon as practica-
bly possible. This reevaluation is to in-
clude the discipline infractions occasioned
by Christian Stanley dunng the 1979-80
school vear [f the Pupil Personnel Team
determines that the current placement is
not presently appropnate, the Team is di-
rected to determine a new [EP and Place-
ment for Christian Stanley.

Plaintiff has not in fact attended school since January 4,
1980, nor has he to date received any home tutoring. Since
that time, however, the aforementioned Regional Speciat
Education Consortium hag conducted further psychological
testing of plaintitt and has begun to tormulate plans for a new

* At an earlier point in its findings, the Board noted 11s
concem "“with the fact that most of these infractions were
deliberate and appear 1o have beencalvalited  (Defendants
Exhidkt C, finding #1.)
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placement™ for hin: * Indeed, Consortium members had
been involved i disenssions to that end with plaintiff's
mother on the Wednesday and Thursday prior to the hearing
betore this Court. The consensus of the Consortium at this
time 1s as follows: Winle plantift is not cmiotionally handi-
capped. it appears that Ir* cannt coniply wath the rules ot his’
regular school and thus it s not 1n his best interest to remain
there. Alternative nonresidential placement in “*Froject
Clearaway ™" in Nashua is recotamended and, «f approved by
all parties. could be commenced alinost imumediately. In the
meantime, the Consortium has been ~ontacting individuals to
arrange for home tutoring ot plantitt, if nccessary.

The essential factors 1o be considered in determining the
appropnatencss of preltminary injunctive relict are: (1) the
significance of the threat of irreparable harn to plantift if
such relief 1s not granted. (2) the halance between such harm
and the injury that injunctive relet would inflict on defen-
dants: (31 the probability of plaintiff's success on the mernts:
amd (4) the public interest. 11 Wnght & Miller. Federal
Practice and Procedure § 2948, at 430, 431, Auromatic Radio
Manufacturing Co. v. Ford Motor Co. . 390 F.2d 113 (1Ist
Cir. 1968): Sec. & Exchange Commission v. World Radio
Mission. Inc., 544 F.2d 535 (1st Cir 1976); Interco, Inc. v.
First National Bank of Boston . 560 F 24 480 (1st Cir. 1977);
Grimard v. Carlston, 567 F.2d 1171 (Ist Cir. 1978).

Turning first to the third of the above four factors, it is to
B¢ recalled that plaintiff challenges his suspension on both
statutory and constitutional grounds. As to the Education for
All Handicapped Children Act of 1975, 20 U.S.C. § 1401, ¢/
seqg.. one commentator has recently noted

Congress passed [the Act] in response to the
need for increased tunding brought about by
the widespread recognition by courts and
State legislaturces of the right of handicapped
children to an adcquate educaticn. Although
the Act sets forth general requirements States
must meet in order to quaily for receipt of
Federal funds. it does not prescribe the
specific educational progranis local schools
must make available in order to fulfill those
requirements. Instead, the heart of the Federal
control mechanism is a system of procedural
safeguards which provides for parental in-
volvement in educational placement deci-
sions. In effect, the Act guarantees proce-
dures whereby parents may challenge the
appropriateness of their child's educational
progsam, but provides only the most general
guidelines for resolving the substantive ques-
tions such challenges may present.

Note. Eaforcing the Right to an **Approprate™ Education:
The Edecation for All Handicapped Children Act of 1975, 92
Harv. L.Rev. 1103, 1103 (1979) (footnotes omitted). In

* According 10 the testunony of Philip Boucher, Director of
the Consorzium, us staft had once again been involved with
plamntiff on a counseling basis since October of 1979. The
Consortium apparently has presently been given preliminary
authority by plaintiff’s mother 10 seeh 1he new placement.
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particular, 20 U.S.C. § 1412 Ehgibility Requirenients pro-
vides that

In order te qualify for assestancé under this
subchapter in any hscal vear, a State shall
demoe  rate to the Comnussioncr that the fol-
low=  .nditions arc met:

«1) The State has in effect a policy that
assurcs all handicapped children the nght
to a frec appropnate public education.

{3) The State has established (A) proce-
dural safeguards as required by section
1415 of this title, (B) procedures to assure
that to the maximum ¢xtent appropnate.
handicappcd children. including children
in public or private institutions or other care
facilithes, are educated with ctuldren who
are not handicapped. and that special class-
cs, separate schooling. or other removal of
handicapped children from the regular edu-
cational environment occurs only when the
nature or severity of the handicap is such
that educaticn in regular classes with the
usc of supplemertary aids and services
cannot be achieved sausfactonly

Nt

And 20 U.S.C. § 1415 Procedural Safeguards provides that:

(a) Any Statc educational agency. any
local educational agency. and any inter-
mediate educational unit which receives assis-

“ tance under this subchaprer shall estabhish and
maintain procedures in accordance with sub-
section (b) through subsection (e) of this sec-
tion to assure that handicapped children and
their parents or guardians are guarantecd pro-
cedural safeguards with respect to the provi-
sion of free appropnate public education by
such agencies and units.

(bX(1) The procedures required by this sec-
tion shall include. but shall not be limited
to —

(C) written pnor notice to the parents or
guardian of the child whenever such
agency of unit —

(i) proposes to nitiate or change,

the identification, evaluation, or educa-
tional placement of the child or the pro-
vision of a frec aj propnate public educa-
tion to the child:

(E) an opportunity to present com-
plaints with respect to any matterrelating to
the ideatification, evaluation, or cduca.




tional placcruent of the child. or the provi-

sion of a frec appropriate public education

to such child.

(2) Whenever a complaint has been re-
ceived under paragraph (1) of this subsection,
the parents or guarchan shall have an opportu-

-nity for an impartial due process hearing
which shall be conducted by the State educa-
tional agency or by the local educational
agency or intcrmiediate educational unit, as
determined by State law or by the State educa-
tionalagency No hearing conducted pursuant
to the requirements of this paragraph shall be
conducted by an employce of such agency or
unit involved in the education or care of the
child.

(c). If the hearing required in paragraph (2)
of subsection (b) of this section is conducted
by a local educational agency or an inter-
mediate educational unit, any party aggrieved
by the findings and decision rendered in such
a hearing may appeal to the State educational
agency which shall conduct an impartial re-
view of such hearing. The officer conducting
such review shall make an independent deci-
sion upon completion of such review.

(eX1) A decision made in a hearing con-
ducted pursuant to paragraphi'(2) of subsec-

that any party involved it such hearing may
appeal such decision under the provisions of
subsection (c) and paragraph (2) of this sub-
section. A decision made undersubsection (¢c)
of this section shall be final, except that any
party may bring an action under paragraph (2)
of this subsection. :

(2) Any party aggrieved by the findings
and decision made under subsection (b) of this
section who does not have the nght to an
appeal under subsection (c) of this section,
and any party aggrieved by the findings and
decision under subsection (c) of this section,
shail have the right to bring a civil action with
respéct to the complaint presented pursuant to
this section, which action may be brought in
any State court of competent jurisdiction. or
in a district court of the United States without
regard to the amount in controvers; . In any
action brought under this paragraph the coust
shall receive the records of the sdministrative
proceedings, shall hear additional evidence of
the request of a party , and basing its decision
on the preponderance of the evidence, shall
grant such relicf as the court determines is
appropriate. .

¢ (3) Duniag the pendency of any proceed-
ings conducted pursuant to this sechon, un-
less the State or local educational agency and
the parents or guardian otherwise agree, the
child shull remain in the then current educa-
tional placement of such child, or, if applying

tion (b) of this section shall be final, except’

for initial admission to a public school, shall,
with the consent of the parents or guardian,
be placed in the public school program
until all such proccedings have been
completed.

() The district courts of the United States
shall have jurisdiction of actions brought
under this subsection without regard to the
amount in controversy,

Section S04 of the Rehatulitation Act of l9>3-g29 Uus.C.
§ 794) states thar:

No otherwise qualified handicapped indi~\\
vidual in the United States. as defined in Sec-
tion 706(6) of this title. shall solely by reason

of his handicap. be excluded from the partici-
pation in, be denicd the henefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any pro-
8ranm or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance.’

The thrust of plaintitf's claims-under the above statutes
is (1) that defendants’ suspension cf plaintiff constitutes a
change in his placement which required them to follow the
above-prescribed procedural safeguards prior to such change
and (2) that in suspending plaintiff they have discriminated
against him on the basis of his bandicap by excluding him
from the free appropriate public education afforded non-
handicapped individuals. Aid in determining the likehfood
of success of thesc claims, especially as to the procedural .
safeguards question. is provided by the now-effective rcﬁull-
tions promulgated under these statutes by the Secretary of the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare (45 CFR
§84.1,e15¢9.) anc the Commissianer of the Office of Educa-
tion(45CFR § 121a.1.etseq ).* As explained in Appendix A
— Analysis of Final Regulation (35 CFR Part 121A) under
Part B of the Education of the Handicapped Act, **Subpart D
fi.e.. 45 CFR §§84.31 . 84.39] of the Section SO4 . . .
contains requirements very similar to those in Part B of the
Education of the Handicapped Act." Indesd, explicit cross
references between these regulations are included in two
sections that are among those sections which are of assistance
here: 45 CFR §121a.552 and 45 CFR §84.36.

Of pasticular interest here are the terms of 45 CFR
§ 121a.513 Child's status during proceedings, which states
that: .

(8) During the pendency of any adminis-
trauive or judicial proceeding regarding a
complaint, unless the public agency and the
parents of the child agree otherwise, the child

! For purposes of this motion. defendants du not contest, and
thus the Court does not address here, whether planuff is a
**handicapped*" individual within the coverage of these stat-
utes or plaintiff’s nght to bring this action under them.

* All citations to these regulations will be to the 1978 ver-
sions thereof.

* Note from the language of § 84.36 that comphiance withthe
procedural safeguands of 20 U.S C § 1416 (and its regula-
tions) would appeas to sausty ai leasi orocedunally the man-
dates of 29 U.S C. § 74, .
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invalved in the complaint st remarn in his
or her present educational pliwemcent.

L SC. $14S0end

Comntenz Sectnn 121a.512 does not pes-
mit a child’s placement to he |changed] dur-
ing a compiaint proceeding, unless the par-
ents and agencey agree otherwise. While the
placement may not be changed. this does not
preclude the agenex from using its normal
prowedures for dealing with ciuldren who are
endungering themselves or others.

(Emphasis added.) As to the meaning of the above-
emphasized language. discussion o' § 121a.513 in Appendix
A.supra, at 526, 1s illuminanng:

Commient. Commenters suggested a provi-
sion be addec -+ allow change of placement
for health or satety reasons. One commenter
requested that the regulations indicate that
suspension not be considered a change in
placement Another commenter wanted more
spevificity to mahe it clear that where an ini-
tial placement isinvolved. the child be placed
in the regular education program or if the
pagents agree. in an interim special
plcement.

Response: A comment has been added to
make it clcar that this section would not pre-
clude a public agency from using its regular
procedures for dealing with emergencies.

(Emphasis adst=d.) Of furher assistance as to the procedural
question raised herein is 45 CFR § 121a.552, which provides
that;

Each public agency shall insure that;

(c) Unless & handicapped child's indi-
vidualized education program requires
some other arrangeme.dt. the child is edu-
cated in the school which he or she would
attend it not handicapped: and

(d) Inselecting the lcast restrictive envi-
ronment, consideration is given tc any po-
tential harmful effect on the child or on the
quality of services which he or ske needs.

(20 U.S.C. §1412(dX5)

Comment . Section 121a.522 includes some
of the main factors which must be considered
in determining the extent to which a handi-
capped child can be educated with children
who are not handicapped. The overriding rule
in this section is that placement decisions
must be made on an individual basis.” The
section also requires each agency to have-var-
ious alternative placements available in order

N to insure that each handicapped child receives
an education which is appropriate to his or her
individual needs.

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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The analysis of the regulations for Section
S04 of the Rehabihitation Actof 1973 (45 CFR
Part 83 — Appendix, Paragraph 24) includes
several points regarding educational place.
ments of handicapped children which are per-
tinent to this section . . .

The **Paragraph 24" referred to above provides as follows:

Section 84.34 [regarding educaticnal set-
ting] prescribes standards for educating
handicapped persons with nonhandicapped
persons to the maximum e xtent appropnate to
the needs of the handicapped person in quges-
tion. A handicapped student may be removed
from the regular educational setting only
where the recipient can show that the needy of

- the student would. on balance. be served by
placement in another setting.

Although under §84.34, the needs of the
handicapped person are determinative as to
proper placement. if should be stressed that,
where a handicapped student is so disruptive
in a regular classroom that the education of
other students is significantly impaired’ the
needs of the handicapped child cannot be met
in that environment. Therefore. regular
placement would not be appropriate to his or
her needs and would not be required by
§84.34.

(Emphasis added.)

The propriety of applying the procedural safeguards set
forth in the above statutes and accompanying regu’ations was
atissue in the case of Sruart v. Nappi . 443 E. Supp. 1235(D
CT 1978). wherein the Court was ask2d to determine whether
20 U.S.C. § 1415(e)(3) prohibited ihe expulsion of handi-
capped children during the pendency of a special education
complaint. (//. at 1241.) Finding that **[a}n expulsion hasthe
effect not only of changing a student's placement. but also of
restricting the availability of alternative placements’” (id. at
1242-43). the Court held that *‘the Handicapped Act estab-

lishes procedures which replace expulsion as a means of ™.

removing handicapped children from school if they become
disruptive.'* (Id. at 1242.) However, in light of the above
regulatory provisions allowing the use of regular procedures
in emergency cases, the Court went on to comment that

school authorities can deal with emergencies
by suspending handicapped children. Sus-
pension will permit the child to remain in his
or her present placement, but will allow
schools in Connecticut to exclude a student
fog up to ten consecutive school days.

1d. at 1242. Accord, Mrs. A.J. v, Special School District No.
1.478 F. Supp. 418,432, n. 13(D MN 1979). Moreover, the *
Court declared that

Handicapped children are neither immunc
from a school's disciphinary process nor are
they entitled to participate in programs when
their behavior impairs the education of other
children in the program. First. school au-
thorities can take swift disciplinary measures.
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such as suspension, against disruptive handi-

“capped children. Secondly, a PPT can requcst
a change 1 the placement of handicapped
children whe have demonstrated that trcir
present placément 1< inappropriate by disrupt-
ing the cducation of other childron. The
Handicapped Act thereby atfonds schools
with both short-tenm and long-term iméthods
ot dealing with handicapped children who are
behasoral problems.

Stuart. supra, 43 F. Supp at 1243.
The Court conciies with the Counts in Smart and Mrs.
A.J. that the temporary disciphintry measure of suspending a
handicapped student tor no miote than ten consecutive school
“days would not constitute a change in that student’s place-
ment that would require adherence to the procedural
safeguards governing remcval under either 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401 e150q. 0r 29 U.S.C. & 794. However, it is to be noted
that the suspension smposed on plaintitf here is for 21 con-
sccutive school days, a length of time of such consequence
thatit may only be iniposed with the approval of the Milford
Schoal Board itself. (See Defendants® Exhibit D.)Injight of
the impact, to be later discussed, that such a lengthy suspen-
sion may have upon plaintiff's disability. it may well be that
such suspension (if permitted to run its full course) would in
factrepresent a change in his placement for which defendants
are charged to provide procedural safeguards as a condition

to their acceptance of Federal funds.

that itis likely that plaiatiff will succeed on his substantive
statutory claim that his suspension constitutes a discrimina-
tion on the basis of his handicap. From the letter of che
< Milford School Baard to plaintiff's parents informing them
of its decision to suspend (Defendants® Exhibit C). it is clear
that such mcasure was taken in response to the serious disci-
plinary problem plaintiff has posed for the school primarily
since the middle of October of 1979. Testimony before this
Court has hecn to the effect wnat there have been serious
family problems in plaintiff's home beginning around that
time. For the first month and a half of the school year when
such family problems were evidently ot so severe, plain-
tiff's academic performance had begun to improve duc to
implementation of a program including working in a special
vducation clagsroom. On this basis, the Court cannot con-
clude at this juncwre that the disruptive ‘béhavior that
prompted the School board's suspension of plaintiff was
caused to any substantial degree by his handicap or by his
current placement program. Cf. Stuar v. Nappi, supra, 443
F. Supp. at 1241,
\\ Having concluded that plaintiff is likely to succeed on

\t%:)\tetits of his statutory claims only if his suspension is
)

allowed to run its full 21-school-day course, we tum now to
the 1ik lﬁn”crils of plaintiff's constitutional claim. Under
Goss v. Lupez, 419 U.S. 565 (1975), the United States
*Supreme Court. held that:

Students facing temporary suspension have
interests qualifying for protection of the Due
Process Clause, a d duc process requires, in
cennection with a suspension of 10 days or
less. that the student be given oral or written
AN
.
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By contrast, however, the Court is unable to conclude

notice of the charges agamst him and. if he
denics them. an explanation of the evidence
the authorines have and an opportunity to
present his side of the story. The Clause re-
quircs at least these rudimentary precautions
against untair or nustaken findings of mis-
conduct and arbitrary exclusior trom school.

Id. a1581. Inthe case at bar, a longer suspension than in Goss
is involved; however, niore elaborate procedural safeguards
than: arc required by Gose vere aftorded plaintiff. The
Superintendent of Schouls notificd plainuft’s mother in ad-
vanct of the December 19th heanng. 2t which plaintiff was
permutted to be represented by counse! in the examination of
witnesses and exhibits against lum  As 10 this portion of
plaintiff's constitutional claim, then. the Court cannot con-
clude that it is likely that such satcguards will be found
procedurally Jefective. Plantif? argues., however, that **tor
purposes of duc process. there st be a cerrelaiion between
the offense and the penalty™ (pluntiff's memo at 13) and
further that defendants cannot ¢ismss plaint:ft irom school if
that dismissal is not rationally related to the provision of
plaintiff’s special educational needs (id at 15). Asto the first
of these contentions, the Court in Lee v. Macon County
Board of Education, 490 F.20 458, 460, n. 3 (Sth Cir. 1978),
noted as follows:

In the landmark case of Dixon v. 4labama
State Board of Education, 294 £.2d 150, 157
(CAS, 1961), this court wrote the following:

**Tuming then te the nature of the gov-
emmental power to expat the plaintiffs, it
mst be conceded . . that that power 1s
not unlimited and cannot be arbutranly
exerzised. Admittedly. there must be some
reasonable and consttutional grounds for
expulsion or the counts would have a duty
to require reinstatement.*"

This passage and the constitutional provision
it claborates do not license Federal judges to
review and revise schoot bourd disciplinary
actions at viill. Application is limited 10 the
rare case where there is shocking disparity
berween offense and penalry.

(Emphasis added.) On the bas.s of the record as it presently
stands, the Court cannot say that there is a shocking disparity
between the offenses which prompted plainuff's suspension
and the penalty meted out therefore.™ In suppont of the
second above proposition, plamtift cites cases involving
challenges on equal protection grounds to programs currently
provided for handicapped children, wherein motions to dis-
miss wese denied on the basis that a stricter than minimum
rationality standard of review might be appropnate. See
Fialkowski v. Shapp, 40S F. Supp. 946, 957-59 (ED PA
1975); Frederick L. v. Thomas, 408 F. Supp. 832, 835-36
(ED PA 1976) (later opinion aff’d m 550 F.2d 373 [3rd Cir.

'* In line with earlier discussion, 1t cannot be said at this
juncture that plantiff is being puntshed un account of his
learning disability as his recent disruptive behavior appears
1o have stemimed primanily from tanuls d:t];:culucﬁ.
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1977]). Even under thosc standards it must be noted, as
discussed earlier. that the School Boerd's suspension of
plaintiff cannot be said to constitute discrimination based on
his handicap since plaintiff's suspension-prompting hchavior
has not been shown 1o be substantially related to his leaming
disability or defendants” attempts to remedy such disability. *
Thus, the unequal treatnien® that 1s the halimark of equal
protection analysis under any standard is here not sufficiently
cvident to enable the Court to predict success on the merits of
this claim.

Having thus examined the legal merits of plaintiff's
claims as they appear :n this juncture, it is now appropriate to
analyze the balance of harms in the case and the public
interest involved. As to the significance of the threat of
irreparable harm to plaintiff if his suspension is continued, it
is clear that until home tutoring is commenced or a new
plu:emem for plaintiff is agnced upon, plaintiff will continue
to suffer **the injury inherent in being without any educs-
tional program.*’ Sruort v. Nappi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at
1240. And should it be concluded that plaintiff’s current
placement, to wirich he is not scheduled to retumn until after
February. 1, 1980, is still appropriate, he would likely be

precluded from taking advantage of its special education -

aspects evea if tutored at home. /d. Furthermore, in the
opinidn of psychothcraplst ermac. plaintiff’s leaming dis-
ability and **sense of failure'’ may be exacerbated by his
dbsence from the normal school environment and its stien-
dant social structure.

At the same time, however, it is not denied even by
plaintiff that defendants have a legitimate interest in prevent-
ing the type of behavior exhibited by plaintiff at the Milford
Area Senior High School. Asdiscussed by the Courtin Lee v.
Macon County BoarJ of Education, 490 F.2a 458 (5th Cir.
1978). courts should not be **insensitive to the difficulties
faced by school officials in attempting to curb discrderly
interference with the primary task of the school, which is
education. /d. at 460. Moreover. courts must be cognizant of
the “‘need for school authorities to be vested with ample
authority and discretion’” in dealing with such disciplinary
problems and accord their judgr-ent considerable deference.
Sruart v. Nappi, supra, 443 F. Supp. at 1243. In addmon.
especially jn cases such as thiz where there has been no strong
showing of a Luul relationship between plaintiff’s mild
disability and the distuptive behavior for which he was sus-
pended, application of the extensive procedural safeguards
afforded by the Education for All Handicapped Children Act

may iself prove distuptive while not serving its intended
purposé’
{T)he procedural protection accorded handi-
capped children under the Act may create
disparitics in the disciplinary treatment of
students who have zngaged in similar con-
duct. . . . The perception of this disparity by
other students coutd undsmine the crzdibility
of school disciplinary policies.

Note, Enforcing the Right to an **Appropriate’* Education,
supra, 92 Harv. L. Rev. at 1107 n. 33

Finally, the Court notes that the **public interest”* in this
case cnts in two directions. On the one hand, Congress itself
has declared that **fo the maximum extent appropriate, ¢
handicapped children [should be] educated with children
who are not handicapped, and that special classes, separate
schooling, or other remov:\ of handicapped children from: the
regular educational enviro iment {should] occur{ jonly when
the rature or severity of ine handicap is such that education in
regultr classes with the vse of supplemcnmy aids and ser-
vices cannot be achieved sansfacmnly 20 U.S.C.
§.1412(5). On the other hand, as echoed in the words of the
Milford School Board. deliberate and caiculated behavior
that is disruptive of a school’s educational environm :nt can-
not be condoned. even from a student identified as leaming
disabled, for such may ultimately destroy the school's very
ability to function as an institution of leaming.

In the long run, the Court is satisfied that the interests of
all concerned will best be served by implementation of the
change in plaintiff’s placement cunemly under considera-
tion. Atthit juncture, however, plaintiff is faced with serving
fourteen mare school days of a suspension whose immediate
punitive and deterrent bencfits may well be outweighed, if
that suspension be required to be fully served. by the con-
sequent exacerbation of plaintiff’s identified disabitity. For
this and all the above reasons, the,Court hereby orders that
plaintiff’s suspension from the Milford Ares Senior High
School be terminatéd after it has been served for ten (10)
school days. (In other words, plaintiff must be allowed to
return to his cusrent educational placement at the school on
Friday, January 18, 1980, urless. of course. a new placement
has been lmplet_nc..:ed for him by that time.) With the above
exception, plaintiff’s motion for preliminary injunctive relief
is hereby denied.

SO ORDERED.

m
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JEAN SHERRY, Individuslly and as Next

would be provided. at which the mother and child had a
Friend of her infant child, DELOWEEN

right to representation by counsel,

SHERRY, HELD., allegation that SEA has not provid.. . ¢
- Plaintiff iwpartial hearing required by § 1415(e)(2) u fortiori
asserts 2 claim over which the coun has junsdiction

b v.

under § 1415. Although existence of meaningiul ad-
ministrative enforcement mechanim mght preclude
judicial review of private clutm under § 504, nce such
a mechanism s lacking. neither the docirines of
exhaustion of adnrinistrative remedies or pnmary

NEW-YORK STATE EDUCATION
DEPARTMENT, New York State School ’
for the Blind, and the Olean City School -

District jurisdiction applies. Whne plaintff has been reinstated
Defendants in residential program, tlaun 1s not moot because the
No. Civ-79-17 review procedures comglained of are ull those

- utilized; moreover, given pluntitf's condion, there is
a sigrificant likelihood that problem could repsat itself
and the right to review, if any, would again become an
issue.

Although during child’s hospitalization and perhaps
for a short period of time thereafter. 1t cun reasonably
be argued that no change of plucement occurred and,
therefore, no agency hearing ur other satcgoards under
EHA were required. when, ¢pproxnnately onc month
later, child was no longer in residential program and
temporary program of day assistance had t2rminitted,
change in the child’s educationial placement had oc-
curred within the meaning of § 1415

State regulations governing ““due process heanng™
for residents of State operated tacility that do not
employ an impartial heariny officer or provide for
maintenance of placement pending resolution of a
complaint are not in compliance with 3 1415

A defense of 12k of ~taff cannot justify a default by
State educatior 4l agency in the provision of an appro-
priate educat.on to a qualified handicapped child.

7/nited States District Court
W.D. New York

November 8§, 1979
CURTIN, Chief Judge

Counse! for Plaintiff: Monroe County Legal
Assistance Corp.. Southem Tier Legal Services
{Michael L. Hanley, Otean, N.Y., of counsel)

Counsel for State Defendants: Robert D. Stone,

N Albany. N.Y., New York Staie Education

Departmeit (Seth Rockmuller, Butfale, N.Y., of
counsel) :

Counsel for Defendant Olean City School District:
Shane & Franz, Olean, N.Y. (J. Michael Shane.
Olean, N.Y ., of counsel)

Action for injunctive and declaratory relief concern-
ing suspension of handicapped child from State school
for the blind, allegedly in violation of Education of the

| Handicapped Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1401 er seq., and
. § 504 of the Kehabilitation Act of 1973. The multiply-
handicapped child was removed from the New York
State School fcr the Blind and hospitalized for treat-
ment of self-inflicted injuries. Three weeks later, the 2
Superintendent of the School, which was run directly
* by the State, informed the child’s mother that the
school had insufficient staff to supervise the child and
that a return to the residential program would be im-
possible until her condition changed or more staff was
- hired. Shortly thercafter, following a multidisciplinary
meeting at the local district high schonl, the Superin-
tendent told the mother that if she insisted on returning

Plaintiff's daugnter, Deloween Sherry. is fourteen years
old. She is legally blind and deaf and she suffers from brain
damage and an emotional disorder which makes her self-
abusive. There is no question that she is a handicapped
individual within the meaning of the Rehabilnation Act of
1973,! and the Education of the Handicapped Act {**Handi- .
capped Act’'].? In September 1978 Deloween Sherry was
enrolled at the New York State School for the Blind in
Batavia, New York.? As a result of injuries resulting from her
sclf-abusive behavior. she was taken back to Olean, New
York on November 13, 1978 and hospitalized for medical
treatment.

~ the child, the school would suspend her and, if she

requested it, provide a suspension hearing. The local
school district concluded it had no appropriate program
for the child and discontinued day program assistance;
the mother requested an impartial due process hearing,
pursuant to EHA § 1415, from the State school. Within
a week, the school suspended the child, informing the
mother that the suspension would be revoked
whenever *'it appears to be in [the child's] and the
school’s best interests to 40 30" and that a hearing

Q
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1 29 US.C. §70(7).
1 20 U.S.C. §140K(D).

3 Prior to this time. Deloween was at the New York Institute
for the Blind in the Bronx, New York, 2 vate-supported

school. She was appointed to the School for the Biind pur-

suant to the regulations of the New York State Education
Department. 8 NYCRR % 200 6. Sec Supulations of Coun-

sel, para. 5.
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On November 21, 1978, Glenn E. Thompson, Superin-
tendent of the School for the Blind, wrote a letter to
Mn. Sherry stating that the school did not have sufficient
Jaff 1o supervise her daughter and that a retur to the residen-
tial program at the school would be impossible until her
condition sanged or more staff were hired. See Letter of
Glenn Thompson, dated November 21, 1978, attached to
Plainuff's Request for Admission. He stated that without a
better student-to-staff ratio, the school could not provide the
degree of supervision required to prevent Deloween from
seriously hurting herself.

A mecuing was held at the Olear: City School District
High School on November 29, 1978. The Olean City District
is the school district ip which Deloween Sherry resides and is
a “local educational agency,” as defined in 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401(8), which receives federal funds for educational pro-
grams. This meeting was attended by Mr. Thompson,
Mrs. Sherry, representatives of the Olean City Schootl Dis-
trict and its Committee on the Handicapp d, a regional asso-
ciate of the New York State Education Department, the
school. psychologist from the Schoot for the Blind, and a
children’s consultant from the New York State Commission
for the Visually Handicapped. Superintendent Thompson
interined Mrs. Sherry that if she insisted on retumning De-
{c ween to the School for the Blind, then the school would
suspend her and a suspension hearing would be provided
upon request.

In the meantime, the Olean City School District ar-
ranged a temporary program to assist Mrs. Sherry with Del-
oween’s behavior. On December 11 and 15, the school dis-
trict’s Committee on the Handicapped discussed whether the
district could provide an altemative education program for
her. The Committee concluded that it could ot and that the
most appropriate program available was at the School for the
Blind. ft reccommended that Deloween retum to the day
program until such time as she could return to the residential
program. The school district discontinued its program of
assistance 10 Mrs. Sherry as of the Chnstmas holidays in
December.

On December 27, 1978, plaintiff requested through hes
attomey that her daughter be reinstated in the residential
program of the School for the Bliad. It also was requested in
the letter that she be afforded the procedural protections
provided by the Handicapped Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1415. The
School for the Blind, consequently, suspended Deloween.
effective January 2, 1979. See Letter from Glean Thompson
10 Mrs. Sherry. dated December 29, 1978, attached to Plain-
uff's Complaint as Exhibit B. This letter informed
Mrs. Sherry that the suspension would be revoked whenever
“*it appears to be in Deloween's and the schooi’s best inter-
ests to do <o,"" and that **[ Y Jou and Deloween are entitled to
a hearing concemning this suspension at which you have the
right to representation by counsel.”’

On January t1. 1979. this action for injunctive and
declaratory relief was commenced, seeking the reinstatenient
f Delow een Sherry in her educational program at the Schiool
tor the Bhind and the revision of defendants’ procedures to
comply with 20 U.S.C. § 1415. Supenntendent Thompson

advised Mrs. Sherry on January 9. 1979. that addinonal
supervisary penonnel had been author.zed for the school and
that Deloween’s suspension would be revoked as of
January 22, 1979. Deloween returned to her residential pro-
gram at the School for the Blind on January 23. 1979

In addition to sketching the factual story o what oc-
curred to Defoween Sherry, itis important to set forth certain
additional circumstances. As noted above. Mr. Thompson’s
letter to Mrs. Sherry of January 2, 1979, suspending Delo-
ween, stated that plaintiff was entitled to a hearing. The
stipulation entered into by counsel with respect to the mo-
tions pending before the court makes reference to this offer
See Stipulations of Counsel Regarding Motion To Dismiss
and Cross Motion for Summary Judgment, filed May 8,
1979. Paragraph 15 of the stipulation states that this heariny
was offered

in order to comply with the provisions of 8
NYCRR § 200.6(a)(6) that no pupil appointed
to a state operated school be suspended for
disciplinary reasons without inahing avanlable
due process protections comparable to the
pravisions of Section 3214 of the New York
Education Law.

Paragraph 18 of the stipulation further states that prior to
Thompson's letter of December 29, 1978 wuspending
Detowezn. Mrs. Sherry was not advised ¢ the avalabality of
a hcz%\g pursuant to the provistons of the Hundieapped Act
1o reviéw the actions taken by the school. Moreover, para. 19
details the nature of the hearing which the State of New York
providés. 1t states:

The State fducation Departiment does not
appoint impartial hearing officers pursuant w
the provisions of P.L. 94142 |Education of
the Handicapped Act] at the state agency fevel
and does not proviue for heanings hefore -
partial hearing officers pursuant to the provie
sions of P.L. 94-142 1w review matters related
10 ine dennitication, evaluation, educational

' placement or pravision of a free approprite
public cducation of students appointed to
state-operated or state-supported schools
other than as would be nuide avalable at the
local school district tevel to review the appro-
priateness of a placement to such . sate
school recommended by the locat district. the
decision from which would be reviewable to
the State Commissioner of Education

Finally, the defendant New York State Education Depart-
ment [**Education Department™] is a “'state educational
agency'* within the meaning of the Handicapped Act Stipu-
lation, para. 2: 20 U.S.C. § 140K(7). The School for the
Blind, run directly by the Education Department. is part of
that state educational agency.

The defendants have made a moton to dismiss the
action. The plainuff has made 1 crose-motion for summary
judgment,

C.
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Discussion
Jurisdiction and Moorness

In order to understand what follows, the court must
discuss initially the statutory framework upon which plaintiff
relies. The plaintiff makes a claim under The Education of
the Handicapped Act | "Handiwcapped Act"}, as amended, 20
U.S.C. §1401-61, under § 504 of The Rehabilitati ct of
1973,29U.S.C. § 794, and under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 :ma\lze
Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution.

With respect to plaintiff's Handicapped Act claim, 20
U.S.C. § 1415 provides extensive procedural safcguards to
parents and handicapped children on quicstions relating to the
provision'of a free appropriate public education as required
under the Act.* These procedures include the requirement of

¢ This section provides as follows:

§ 1415, Procedurul safeguards
Eswablishment and maintenanc:

(2) Any State educational agency, any local cducational
agency, and any intermediate educational unit which re-
ceives assistance under this subchapier shalt esahlish and
maintain procedures in accordance with suhsection (h)
through subsection (€) of this section to assure that handi-
capped children and their parents or guardians are guarunteed
procedural safeguards with respect to the provisian of free
sppropriate public education by such agencies and units.

Required procedures: hearing

(X1} The procedures required by this section shall in-
clude, but shall not be limited to—

(A) an opportunity for the parents o guardian of a handi-
capped child to examine all relevant records with respect (o
e identification, 2valuation, and educational placement of
the child, and the provision of a frex appropriate public
education to such child, and to abtain an independent educa-
tional evaluation of the child;

(B) procedures to protect the rights of the child “~henever
the parents or guardian of the child are not known, unavail-
s~le, or the child is a ward nf the State, including the ussign-
mew of an individual (who shall not be an employee of the
State educational agency. lucal educational agency. of in-
termediate educational unit involved in the cducation or care
of the child) 10 act as a surrogate for the parents or guardian;

(C) writicn prior notice 10 the parents or guardian of the
child whenever such agency of unit—

(i) proposes to initiate or change, or
(1i) refuses 1o initiate or change,

the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of
the child or the provision of a free appropriate public educa-
tion 10 the child:

(D) procedures designed to assure that the notice required
by clause (C) fully inform the parents or guardian, in the
parents’ or guardian's native language, unless itclearly is not
feasible to do s0. of all procedures available pursusnt to this
section; and

(E) am opportunity to present complaints with respect to
any matter relating to the identification. evaluation, oreduca-
tional placement of the child, or the provision of a free
appropriaie public education to such child.

(2) Whenever a cnnguaint has been recesved under para-
graph (1) of this subsection. the parents or guardian shall
have an opportunity for an impartial due process heasing

'c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company, né
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written prior notice by the state of local education agency of 3
proposed change  the educational placeiient ol the child or

which shall be conducted hy the State educanonal ageney or
by the lor ] educational agency of intermiediate educational
unit, as deternmincd by State law or by the State educational
agency. Na hearing conducted punu.nt 1o the requirements
ot this paragraph shall be conducted by an cmployee ol such
agency or unit invalved in the cducanon ot care of the child

Review of local decision by Stute educational ageney

{c) If the heanng required 1n paragraph (23 of suhsection
(b) of this section is conducted by a local educational agency
or an intermediate cducanonal unit. any panty aggrieved by
the findings and decision rendered 1n such 4 heandg may
appeal to the State educational agency which shall conduct an
impartial review of <uch heanng The officer conducting
such review shall make an independens decivon upon com-
pletion of such revicw

Enumeration of richt accorded parties o hearings

{d) Any party to oy heanng conducted parsuant o sieb-
cections (b) and (<) of this section katl e accorded (1) the
right to be accompamed and advised by counsel and by
individuals with speciat ko tedge ur tranning with eespect to
the problems of handicapped chilifien, - Zethe aehtlepresent
evidence and confront, ctons-evaniine, and . ompel the atten
dance of witne ses, (30 the rght o a wnitten or electrons
verhatim record of such hearmg, and 141 the nght to wreticn
findings of fact and decismns twhich ndings and decistons
shall alvo be transnutted o the advisury panel established
punsuant to Section 1413 12) ot this e

Civil aetion: jeeindu 11

(eX 1) A decision madc in a heaning conducted pursuant o
paragraph (2) of subsection (b} of this scetion shail be final,
except that any party imnvolved in such heanng may appeal
such decision under the provisions i subsection i and
paragraph (2) of thiv subsection A decison made under
subsection (c) of this sectton shall be tial, except that any
party may bring an action under paragraph (21 of this
subsection.

(2) Any party aggrieved by the tmdiogs and decision
made under subsecnion (b) of this scction who does ot tave
the right to an appeal under subsection 1) of this sccton, and
any party aggnieved ny the findings and decvon under sub-
section {c) of this section, shatl have the nght to bang a cimil
action with respect to the complinnt presented pursusnt to this
<ection, which action niay he brought m gny State court ot
competent jurisdiction of 1n 4 dntnct count of the United
States without regard to the amount i contraversy  In an)y
action brought under this psragraph the court shall receve the
records of the adnunistrative provecdmys. shall hear addi-
tional evidence at the request of & party. and. hawng its
decision on the preporderance of the evidence, shall grant
such relief as the court determines v appropriate

(3) During the pendency of any proxecdings conducted
pursuant to this section. unless the State r loval educational
agency and the parents of guardian otherwise agree. the chitd
shall remain in the then cusrent cducational placement of
such child. or, 1f applying for inmal admission to a public
school, shall, with the consent of the parcnts or guartian, be
placed in the public school program until all such proceed-
ings have been completed

(4) The district courts of the Umted Siates shalf have
jurisdiction of actions brought under this subsection without
regard (o the ankiunt 10 controvein

-
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the pravision of a free appropriate education and the right to
present complaints with respect to such a matter. 20 U.S.C.

§ F4ISOONINC) and (B IXNE). When such-a complaint 1s-

teceived. the parents of guardian are entitled to an impartial
due process hearing. the precise nature of which is in dispute. -
Id . % 1415(}2). In addition, a party can appeal from this
iitisl, local beanng *to the State educauonal agency which
shall conduct an impatial review of such hearing.”’ /d.,
§ 1415(c) The final pravision of & [4:5, the most important
to this court on the question of junsdiction, gives a parent or
guardian aggricved by the decisions 1n the hearings discussed
above, the nght to bring a civil action in federal district coust.
ld.. 3% 1415(e)(1) - (e)(4).

The defendants contend that the court lacks jurisdiction
over plaintiff’s claim because she does not appeal from any
hearing held by a state educational zgency within the mcan-
ing of § 1415(eX(2). This is u.persuasive. If .0 aggrieved
party may bring an action to review the decision of the
impartial due process hearings provided for under the Handi-

capped Act. a person who claims that the state defe ¥
have not even provided the impartial hearing as reglired by
federal law u forniori asserts a claim ov. i 1s court has

junsdiction, See Stuart v. Nappi, 443 F. Supp. 1235 (DM
Copn. 1978) Plainuff 1s in that position and this count has
Junsdiction under § 1415(e). .

Defendants™ argument that jurisdiction is lacking over
plaintiff's claim under § 504 of The Rehabilitation Act is also
unavailing.®> Defendants arguz that plaintiff has failed to
exhaust her available administrative remedies and that the
court should defer to the pnmary jurisdiction or expertise of
the relevant agency. the Department o Health, Educaton,
and Welfare [""HEW""}. ‘The administrative remedies which
defendant refers to are set forth in regulations promulgated by
HEW. These are designed to ensure that recipients of federal
funding do not violate the prohibition of § 504. 45 C.F.R.
§84.61 adopts the compliance procedures used to enforce
Title VIof the Civil Rights Act of 1964. which are contained
i3S C.F.R. §§80.6-80.10 and Pant 81. After investigation,
discussion and hearings, the review created by these proce-
dures can resultin a cutoff of federal funds if a determination
1» made that a recipient is in violation, and voluntary com-
pliance 1» not forthcoming. The cutoff of funding, however,
1s HEW’s only sanction. Although this threat can act as an
incentive to recipient agenctes. an individual is not afforded
an immediate, effective means 1o vindicate her own rights
under § 504 through these administrative regulations.
Whitaker v. Board of Higher Educanion of Cits of New York,
461 F. Supp. 99, 106-09 (E.D. N.Y. 1978).

Given this admimistrauve structure, several circuit
counts, including our own, have sustained tne existence of a
private cause of action under & 504. Lears v. Crapsey, 566
F.2d 863 (2d Cir. 1977). Kumpmeier v. Nyvquistn 553 F.2d
296 (2d Cir. 1977); Llovd v. Regional Transp. Auth. . 548
F.2d 1277 (Tth Cir. 1977); United Handicapped Federation
v. Amdre, 558 F 2d 413 (8th Cir. 1977); see Whitaaer. supia,
at 107 If a meaningful administrative cnforcement
mechunism existed, judicial review might be precluded unul
after administrative avenues had been exhausted. Liov:!,

3§34 v ~et out 1n derad snfra
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supra, at 1286, n.29: Whauker, supra, at 107 Smc such a
mechanism is lacking, howeser. neither the exhaustion_ nor
the primary jurisdiction dotnne applies Lind s, at
1287, Whitaker. supra, 31 10709 The court, theretore, has
jurisdiction over plainuff’s Y504 clium under 28 U S.C
§1343. . -

The final jitisdicaonal ubjection of defendant. can be
disposed of without difficulty They arguc that tac court lacks
jurisdiction over plaintiffs 42U S C 8 1983 clann that her
due process rights under the Fourtesnth Amendinent were
violated. 28 U.S.C. § 1343(c) confers gurisdiction to cater-
tain the constitutional claim 1f 1t 1s of sufficient substance.
Hagans v. Lavine, 315U.5.528.94S.Ct. 1372, 3 1.Ed.2d
577 (1974). Without resalving the merits, plaintsft™s clann s
not a frivolous one and there can be no question that the count
has jurisdiction. ~

1n addition to jurisdictional questions. the courtis faced
with a question of mootne-s At the tune this action was
commenced. Deloween Shermy was suspended and notin her
residential program at the School tor the Bligdl Pat of the
relicf which plasntff secks iv an inpunction ordering
(1) Deloween’s remnstatement at the school and the pravision
of the necessary educational and retated services. and (2) her
local residential school district to provide her an appropriate
puﬁlic education untii that reinstatement Saee this acnon
was corinenced, Deloween was reiastated at the School for
the Blind and the defendants contend that the action s pow
mool. .

An issue becontes moot and no fonger jusiictable when,
as a result of interveming circumstances. there are ne longer
adverse parties with suffictent legal interests 1o mantan the
litigation. Super Tire Engmcersne Co MGk, 416
U.S. 115, 122,94 S.Cr. 16, w01 Ed 2d 11973 Yun
{and Casualns Co. v. Pactfic Coal K Od Co _ 3208 270,
273, 61 S.Ct. 510, 85 L. £d K26 {1941). Ahhcagh a deter
mination of such a question reguires an analy sis of the Afcle
{11 principles which mandate 4 “case orcontroversy . it also
requires a highly individuahized appraisal of cach case
Morcover, the perfonuunce of the particular act sought to be
enjoined nray noot the issue ot an inunction. but whete thete
is a likelthood that the act complained of will be repeated . the
issues remain qusticiabie and a declaratony judgment may be
rendered to define the nghts aud obligations of the parties
6A Moore's Federul Practice. para 87 <13 see Onted State s
v. Phosphate Export Assn (393U S 199,203 89S (1 361,

. 21 L.EQ.2d 344 11968). Even ¢ laterevems have reduced the

practical importance of a ¢ane 1o the parties. the guestion s
whether the alleged wrongtul behavior could not reasonably
be expected to recur. St. Pead Fire & Murine Insurantce Cor
. Barrv, 438 U.S. 531,538,985 Ct 2923.571. BEd 2d93.
(1978). Phosphate Eapart A, wpra at 203,89 S Ct 361,
see United States v. W. 1. Gram Co JA5U.S 629,632 33,
73 S.Ct. 894, 97 L.Ed. 1303 (1953). y
In this case. planuff’s complaint requests not ondy
injunctive relief but a declaratory judgtient that deteadants”
failure to comply with the requirements of 20U 8 C § 1415
was unlawful and that her suspension violated the Handi
capped Act. ¥ S04 of The Rehabiltaton Act. and the BGue
Process and Equal Protection clauses ot the Fourttenth
Amendtiient. She argues that despite her reinstatement, o
great likelihood exists that the ddtuation which tnggered this
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action could repeat itself. The court agrees with respect to the
state defendants. The review procedures about which the
- plaintiff and the defendants disagree are still those which the
defendants utilize. From the very beginning, the plaintiff has
<ought not only an injunction but also declaratory relief that
the state's procedures do not meet the requirements of 20
U.S.C. §1415. As the Supreme Couit has stated repeatedly,
in such a situation the district court has *° “the duty to decide
the appropriateness and the merits of the declaratory request
irrespective of its conclusion as to_the,propricty of the is-
suance of the injunction.’ Zwickler v. Koota, 389 U.S. 241,
254 [88 S.Ct. 391, 19 L.Ed.2d 444] (1967): Roe v. Wade,
410U.Sm 113, 166 (93 S.Ct. 705, 35 L.Ed.2d 147](1973);
Steffel v. Thompson, 415 U.S. 452,468d469 [94 S.Ct. 1209,
39 L.Ed.2d 5053 (1974)."" Super Tire. supra, at 121, 94
S.Ct. at 1698. The immediate relitf of reinstatement has been
obtained. But, given Deloween’s condition, tnere is a sig-
nificant likelihood that the problem could repeat itself and the
right to review, if any, would again become an issue. Given
these circumstances, plaintiff has a continuing interest in
having the court define the obligations and rights of the
parties.

With respect to the defendant Olean City Schodl Dis-
trict, plaintiff's single demand for ::lief is for an injunction
requiring it to provide an apprepriate education and services
until Deloween is reinstated at the School for the Blind. This
reinstatement has occurred. Plaintiff's interest and demands
for relief now are directed solely toward the state defendants
and their procedures. Plaintiff’s claim against the Olean City
School District, therefore is moot.”

Merits

As sketched out briefly above, the Handicapped Act and
its amendments are designed to assure that all handicapped
childr.: 1+ have available to them a free appropriate public
education and related services designed to meet their unique
needs. 20 U.S.C. § 1415 guarantees that these children and
their parents or guardians are afforded certain procedural
rights relating to this education. The plaintiff contends that
the defendants; (1) failed to provide her with written prior
notice of a change in Deloween's **educational placement,”
pursuant to § 1415(b)}(1)%C): (2) failed to afford her the op-
portunity for an impartial due process hearing conducted by
someone wio is not an employee of the Education Deparnt-
ment, pursuantto § 1415(c); and (3) failed to allow Deloween
to remain in her current educational placement pending the
administrative hearing and determination. -pursuant to

* As evidenced by the affidavit of Martin Welch, Superin-
tendent of the Olean City School Districi. considerable con-
fusion exists as to the exact scope of the duty under the
Handicapped Act of a local school district when a handi-
vapp=d child has been appointed to a state school. For exam-
ple. Mr. Welch states that the Education Depurtment has
promulgated no guidelines as o whether it is the duty of the
“*local educational agency'* or the state agency to provide
notice and a hearing when a parent [ike Mrs. Sherry has a
complaint sbout placement. When, as here, the child has .
been in 8 school directly run by the State Education Depart-
ment, it would seem that the respomsibility lies with the state
agency.

1980 CKRR Publishing Company,
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§ 1415(e)3). Plaintiff recognizes the need tor an agcﬁcy such

as the School for the Blind 10 be able to suspend someone like -

Deloween on an emergeney, temparary basis  Plaintiff as-
gues, however. that defendants” actions resulied 1n more‘than
a temporary suspension. and that m tuct a4 change in Delo-
ween's educational placement occurred without her parents
being afforded an opportunity tor an impartial duc process
hearing and without Deloween remaining in the School tor
the Blind pending its outcame  On December 27,1978, Mrs.
Sherry demanded that these procedural safeguards be pro-
vided. Defendants did not do so and. instead. formally sus-
pended Deloween for an indefimte penod.

The defendants arguz that no change in Deloween’s
educational placement occurred within the meaning of the
Handicapped Act: thus, these procedural \afeguards are not
technically applicable. Defendants rely on a regulation
promalgated under the Handicapped Act by HEW, cudified
as 45 C.F.R. Reg. 121a.513. This regulut-on rewerates the
dictate of 20 U.S.C § 1415(e) 3y that. dunng the pendency
of any administrative ar judictal procecding regarding a
complaint. the child mvolved must reman 1n her present
educational placement unless the agenes and the child’s
parents agree otherwise. The commgnt 1o thes regulation
includes the following statement. *"While the piacenient may
not be changed. this does not prelude a scfivol from using.its
normal procedures for dealing with children who are endan-
gering themselves ur others.” Deteadamts costend that the
suspension of Delow een was v ahd because suspension is the
school’s normal procedure for dealing with a child who is a
danger to herself.

Defendants potnt to § 200 6a)6) ot the Regulations of
the Commissioner of Education of the State ot New York,
which incorporates procedures comparable to thuse set forth
in § 3214 of the New York State Education Law.™ Section

7 N.Y.Ed.Law § 3214 provides in relevant j-part

3. Suspension of apupil. a The hoard of cdudation, hoard
of trustees of sole trustce. the supennieadem of schouls or
distnet'superintendent of schoots B suspend the toflowng '
puoils from required aftendance upen inslriction

» - ¢ - 04

(2). A pupil whose physical or mental conduien endan-
gen the health. safety , or morals of mselt or ot vther pupals;

* * s & +» s

(¢) No pupil may be suspended for 4 period 1n excess of
five school days unless such pupit and the person in parental
relation to such pupil shall have had an oppunumty for a faur
hearing. upon reasonable avnice. at which such pupit shall
have the right of representation by counsel. with ¢he nght to
question witnesses against such puptl und to preseit Wwitness-
es and other evidence on his behalf Where, a pupsl has been
suspended in accordance with this seciun by 4 supeninten-
dent of schools, district supenntendent of schools or com-
munity superintendent. the supenntendent shall peesonally
hear and determine the proceeding or wiay . 1n his dascretion,
designate a hearing officer to conduct the heanng The hear-
ing officer shall be authorized to adimumsier vathy and to issue
subpoenas in conjunction with the proceeding hetore him | A
record of the heanng shall he-mamuunced. but no seno-
graphic transcnpt shall be required and . tapg recording shall
be deemed a satistactory record  [he heudy ofticer shall

pora
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321413) authorizes suspension of a pupil whose physical or
mental condition endangers the health and safety of himself
or others: a right 1o a due process hearing where susperision
excecds five days is included. Defendants contend that plain-
uff chose not to avail herself of the school’s offer of such a
hearing on December 29. 1978. and that the specific proce-
dures provided forin 20U.S.C. § 1415 were notrequired. As
a final argument. defendants assert that their procedures for
administrative review substantially coniply with what is re-
quired by the Handicapped Act. **Certain adjustments -are
necessary due to the role of the State Commissioner of
Education in all educational matters within the state.”” De-
fendants’ Memorandum at 14.

Defendants” arguments are not persuasive. As plaintiff

concedes. and as HEW has suggested in its interpretation of .

§ 1415(c)(3). it is necessary that an agency like the School for
the Blind have the right to suspend a handicapped student-
who is adanger to herself onanemergency basis. Under a fair
reading of § 1415, one can appreciate that during Deloween’s
hospitalization and perhaps for a short period of time thereaf-
ter. no change in her educational placement occurred dy
remson of the suspension. Thus. no agency hearing or other
«afeguards under the Handicapped Act were required. On
Nowember 21, 1978, cight days after Deloween was hos-
pitahized, Superintendent Thompson notified Mrs. Sherry by
letter that it was in the bestinterests of Deloween that she not
reenter the School for the Blind without first meeting with
Mrs. Sherry. This letter strongly suggests that the school
recognized the necessarily temporary nature of Deloween's
absence. At least by December 27, 1978, however, the time
Mrs. Sherry requested reinstatement of Deloween at the
School for the Blind and an impartial hearing, it is clear that
Deloween's educational placement had changed. Deloween
was no longer in the school and its residential program and
the temporary program of assistance set up by the Olean
district to help Mrs. Sherry with Deloween’s behavior had

" terminated. Superintendent Thompson's letter of Decem-

ber 29. 1979, formally suspending Dcloween from the
School for the Blind. made certain that she was no longer
placed at this school. and this suspension was for an indefi-
mite period. In the ordinary sense of the word. a sigmficant

inake findings of tact and recommendations as to the appro-
priate measure of discipline tothe superintendent. The report

of 1the heaning officer shall be advisory only. and the superin-
tendent may accept all or any pant thereof An appeal will lie
froun the dectsion of the superintendent to the board of educa-

1ton who shall make its decision solely upon the recard before

it The board may adopt in whole of in partthedecisionof the
supenntendent of schools.

Where a pupil has been suspended in accordance with this
<ettion by 2 board of education. the board may in its discre-
tion_hear and determine the proceeding or appount i hearing
officer who shall have the same powers and duties with
respect t0 the board that a heanng officer has with respect 10 a
supenntendent where the.suspenston was ordered by him.
The findings and recommendations of the hearing officer
conducting the proceeding shall be advisory and subject t0
final sction by the board of education. cach member of
which shall before voling review the testimony and acquaint
Mimself with the evidence in the case. The board may reject.
confirm or niodify the conclusions of the heaning officer.
\Mehinneyis. Pocket Part for 1978-79
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change “.ad occurred in her situation The only reasonible
conclusion is that her cducational placemem had been
changed within the meamng of § 1415 The commnent to 45
C.F.R. Reg. 121a.513. providing for the usc of nonual state
procedures where a child is # danger to herself, may pernuta
temporary suspension. It does not permit defendaitts, how-
ever. to ignore the procedural safeguards of § 1415 whea that
temporary . emergency response 1o a handicapped students’
behavior becomes a change in her educanonal placement,
- See Stuart v. Nappi . 443 F. Supp. 1235, 1240-43 (D Conn.
1978). Defendants' argument that their procedural
safeguards substantially comply with § 1415 ix of no help. In
the first place. § 3214(3) and § 1415 differ 1n at least one
important respect. As defeadants have stipulated. the “*due
process hearing’* which they provide, and offered to plamtiff
without success, is not conducted by an impartial hearing
officer, that is, a hearing officer not employed by the educa-
tional agency providing the appropriatc education. Defen-
dants’ proffered explanation for this difference. thai the deci-
sion of un impartial hearing officer would be inconuistent
with the Commissioner of Educationis statutory role as the
highest authority on educational nuners. s unsatistactory
Morcover. unlike § 1415, there s no provision m & 3214
requinng the agency to allow a child to remam 1 place
pending resolution of a complum Second, the substannial
compliance term of ¥ 1416 refers 10 a state’s comphuanee for
purposcs of recewving federal funds  See §3 1416 and
1412(2). The defendants’ argue:nent 18 not without some

merit. The lunguage of § 1415, however, which provades that*

a state plan **shall include. but not be imuted to. [the follow-
ing procedural safeguards].”" strongly suggests that whearing
before an impartial hearing officer s the tunnnum for com.
pliance with the procedural guarantees of § 1415 Moteover,
the provision in § 1415(e) lor a pnvate cause of action indi-
cates that the procedural guarantees provide a separate, inde-
pendent enforcement mechanism. dustinet from the cutott of
federal funds. Failure to provide a major component of that
mechanism. such as an impartial hearing, cannot be circum-
vented by clainung substantial comphance

To sum up this discussion, the defendants” tadure 10
provide pluntiff with the procedural guarantees of 1l s
Handicapped Act, including their failure to mantam her in
her then-current educational placement and fulurd o provide

. a heanng before an impartial hearmg officer, Violated 20

U.S.C. §1415." Punuant to authonty granted undes 2§
U.S.C. § 2202, the defendants are directed to estabhish pro
cerdfires which comport with ¥ 1415, .

Plaintiff also requests a declaratory judgment that de-
fendants” suspension of Deloween Sherry vialated ¥ S04 of

* Plaintiff also complains af defendants’ filure to provick
notice within the meamng of § 1415 Under the factual i
cumtinces of this case. that 1sue i bot pardmount Section
1415 certainly requires notice pros 1o any proposed vhange
in a handicapped student's educational placement
§ 1415YIUC). Defendunty should recognite i NATISE T
this case. however, the partivular change i placement was
brought about by aaemergency and. i iizht of the obleco? s
heanng to M Shemy. same notice was given

17
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the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Fourteenth Amend-
ment. Section 504 provides, in relevant part:

No otherwise qualified handicapped indi-
vidual in the United States, as defined in Sec-
tion 706(7) of this title, shall, solely by reason
of his handicap, be excluded from the partici-
pation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any pro-
gram or activity receiving Federal fine icial
assistance or under any program or activity
conducted by any Executive agency or by the
United States Postal Service. The head of
each such agency shall promulgate such regu-
lations as may be necesary to carry out the
amendments to this section made by the Re-
habiliation, Comprehensive Services, and
Developmental Disabilities Act of 1978 . . .

29 U.S.C. §794. Defendan*= wrgue that the suspension of
Deloween Sherry was not uniz . ful because the suspension
was not solely by ccason of her handivzp. Rather, suspen-
sion, pending a satisfactory resolution of how to cope with
her-problem, was necessary because she posed a danger to
herself by virtue of her self-abusive character. This reason is
said to constitute a substantial justification for Deloween's
suspension from the School for the Blind.

Plaintiff contends that the HEW regulations effectuating
§ 504 provide a yardstick for measuring compliance with that
section and that defendants have failed to satisfy their re-
quirements. These regulations are fouad in 45 C.F.R. Part
84. Plaintiff specifically points to 45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.33
which provides, in relevant part:

(2) General. A recipient that operates a
public clementary or secondary education
program shall provide a free appropriate pub-
lic education to each qualified handicapped
person who is in the recipient’s jurisdiction,
regardless of the nature or severity of the
person’s handicap. .

(b)Appropriate education. (1) For the pur-
pose of this subpart: the provision of an
appropriate cducation is the provision of regu-
lar or special education and related aids and
services that (i) are designed to meet indi-

- vidual educational needs of handicapped per-

sons as adequately as the needs of nonhan.

dicapped persons are met and (ii) are based

vpon adherence to procedures that satisfy the

requirements of §§ 84.34, 84.35, and 84.36.
Plaintiff argues that the sole reason for Deloween's suspen-
sion from her educational program was the failure of defen-
dants to provide *‘refated aids and services' in the form of
adequate supervision. thus denying her access to a program
designed to meet her needs.

At first blush, defendunts’ argument is persuasive.
Decloween Sherry was sent home from the School for the
Blind, and subscquently suspended. because she was a
danger 10 herself without the supervisory staff which the
school did not have. Therefore, she was not excluded from
the federally-subsidized educational program solely by rea-
son of her handicap within the meamng of § S04. This initial
impression needs further cxploration. however.

Tre HEW regulations require a recipient agency to
provide an appropriate education to all children regardless of
the nature or severity of the child's handicaps. 45 C.F.R.
Reg. 84.33(a). This education include- the provision of **re-
lated aids and services'* designed to meet the individual
needs of handicapped persons. /., at Reg. 84.33(b). These
regulations are cntitled to considerable deference by the
court. Inthis case, they indicate that arecipient agency has an
obligation to provide the supervisory staff necessary to allow
a hangicapped student to benefit from the services of that
agency. Deloween Sherry certainly iy scriously handicapped:
not only is she deaf and blind. but she suffer from brain
damage and an emononal disorder which makes her self-
abusive. The regulations properly mandate., though, that

‘ regardless of the severity of a child"s handicap. an appropri-
ate education be provided. That education must encompass,
as arclated aid and service, the supervisory staff necessary te
make that educdation possible As evidenced by the reinuate-
ment of Deloween when more staff were hired it the school,
Give reason for her suspension was the failure of the School for
the Blind to provide the necessary related services.

In reaching this conclusion, the cou:t does not question
the defendants™ motivation: it is clear that they were con-
cerned for her safety. Nonetheless, this cannot be a substan-
tial justification when the concem could have been alleviated
or eliminated if the defendants had complied with their duty
to provide the service of supervision as part of her appropriate
educational program. A defense of lack of staff cannot Justify
a default by defendants in the provision of an appropriate
education to the plaintiff. See Lora v. Board of Education of
City of New York, 456 F. Supp. 1217 1292-93 (S.D_N.Y.
1978). The suspepsion of Deloween Sherry “*until it appears
to be in Deloween’s and the Schoal’s best interests to {revoke
it)** was unlawful withjn the meaning of § 504. We need not
reach the question of whether the exclusion violated her
rights 1o equal protecvion and ‘duc process under the Four-
teenth Amendment.

In conclusion defendants’ motion to dismiss under Rule
12 is denicd. Plaintiff's motion for summary judgment under
Rule 56 is granted insofar as the court declases that defen-

* dants’ failure 10 provide the procedural safeguards of 20

U.S.C. § 141510 plainuff was unlawful and that their indefi-
nite suspension of Deloween Sherry was an unlawful exclu-
sion within the ineaning of § 504 of the Rehatilitation Act. In
conjunction with this declaratory judgment. the defendants
are direcied 10 establish procedures which comport with
§ 1415. ) »
So ordered, :

(c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission. -
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Kathy STUART, by and through her
mother and next friend, Joan
Stuart, Plaintiffs,

v.

Pasquale NAPPI, Individually and in his
capacity as Superintendent, Danbury
Public Schools, Carl Susnitsky, Hen-
rique Antonio, Paul Werner, Paul Baird,
Theresa Boccuzzi, Bunny Jacobson, To-
nio Pepe, Barbara Buker, Henry Bessel,
Robert Jones, Individually and in their
capacities as Members of the Danbucy
Board of Education, Defendants.

Civ. No. B-77-381.

United States District Court,
D. Connecticut.

Jan. 4, 1978

Proceeding was instituted on motion.of
Plaintiff to obtain preliminary relicf against

disclosure. The Contract Compliance Officer
will inform the contractor of such a determi.
aation. The contractor may appes! that ryl-
fog to the Director of OFCC within 10 days
The Director of OFCC shall make a finat
determination within 10 days of the filing of
the appeal.

N

Reprinted from 443 F.Supp. 1235z
Copyright (c) 1981 West Publishing Co.

119




1236 443 FEDERAL SUPPLEMENT

her expulsion from high school by defend-
ants. The District Court, Daly, J., held that
preliminary injunction would issue to enjuin
defendants from corducting a hearing to
expel plaintilf from high school and to re-
quire defendants to conduct an immediate
review of plaintiff's special education pro-
gram wheré plaintiff made a persuasive
showing of possible irreparable injury in
that she had deficicnt scademic skills
caused by a complex of learning disabilities
and limited intelligence and, if expelled,
would be without any cducati~nal program
from date of expulsion ‘until such timé as
enother review was held and an appropriate
‘educational progrum developed, and plain-
tiff demonstrated probable suceess on mer-
its of federal claims that she was denied her

. rights under the Education of the Handi-

capped Act to appropriate public education,
to remsin in her present placemient uatil
resolution of her special “tducation cuni-
plaint, to an cducation in” the least restric-
tive environment, and to have all changes
of placement effectuated” in accordance
with prescribed procedures.
Preliminary relief ordered.

L. Injunction e>136(3), 137(4)

A phaintiff wishing to obtain a prelimi.
nary injunction must demuastrate either
probable success on the merits of the claim
and possible irreparable injury or sufficient-
ly serious questions going to the merits of
the claim and a balance of hardships tipping
decidedly in his favor.

2. Injunction o=136(3), 137(3)
Preliminary injunction would issue to
enjoin defendants from conducting a hear-
ing to expel plaintiff from high school and
to require defundants to con:luct an imme-
diate review of plaintiff’s special education
program where plaintiff made a persuasive
showing of pussible irreparable injury in
that she had deficient academic skills
caused by a complex of learnin disabilitivs
and limited intelligence and, if eapelled,

- would be without any cducational program
+ from date of expulsion until such time as

another revicw was held and sn appropriate

Reprinted from 443 F.Supp. 1235,
Copyright (c) 1981 West Publishing Co.

oducational program developed, and plain-
tiff demonstrated probable success on mer-
its of federal ctaims that she was denied her
rights under the Education of the Handi-
canped Act to appropriate public education,
to remain in her present placement until
resolution of her special education com-
plaint, to an education in the least restric.
tive environment, and to have all charges
of placement effectuated in accordunce
with prescribed procedures. Education of
the Handicappd Act, §§ 602(1). (15- 19),
612(5)(B). 615(k¥1XC, E. {c), (eX3, 4) as
amended 20 US.CA. §§ 1401Q2), (15 19),
HI2SKB), MISLYINC, E), (c), (eX2, 4).

3. Federal Courts c=14

Claim that act of defendants in expel-
liwy plaintiff from high school was in con-
traventive of Connecticut statutes was
based on argument that plaintiff was entj-
tled 19 a currént psychological evaluation
and a deterniinativn of the udequacy of her
specinl education placement prior to an ex-
pulsion hearing and, as such, was exclusive-
ly a state claim that was to he ruled upon
by a state court in first instance before a
district court vould exercise its pendent jur-
isdiction over sume. C.G.S.A. §§ 4-177, 4-
177(c), 10-2334,

{. Schools and School Districts ¢=169, 177

Provision of the Education of the
Hundicapped Act that during pendency of
any proceedings chi' shall remain in cur-
rent educational placement, unless state or
local educational agency and parents or
guardian otherwise agree, operates to pro-
hibit disciplinary measures which have ef-
fect of changing a chilid's placement and so
prohibits exg.ulsion of handicapped children
during pendency of a special education com-
plaint. Education of the Handicapped Act,
§ GIbY1NE), (eX3) as amended 20 US.
C.A. § WI5(LXIKE), (eX3).

5. Schools and School Districts &177
Use of expulsion proceedings as a
means of changing a placement of a disrup-
tive handicapped child contravenes provi-
sions of the Flucation of the Handicapped
Act governiry procedure whereby disrup-
tive children may be transferred to more
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restrictive placements when their hehavior
significantly impa.rs education of other

children.  Education of the Handiwapped

Act, §§ 612{5XB), 613(bX1XC), () as amend-
ed 20 US.CA. §§ 1412(5)B), 1415(b)(1%C),
(c).
6. Schools and School Districts c=169, 177
Handicapped children are neither im-
mune from a school's disciplinary process
nor arz they entitled to participate in pro-
grams when their behavior impairs educa-
tion of other children in program:. school
authorities can take swift disciplinary
measures, such as suspension, against dis-
ruptive handicapperd children, and can re-
quest a change in placement of handicapped
children who have demonstrated that their
present placement is inappropriate by dis-
ruptling education of other ehildren. Edu-
cation of the Handieapped  Act,
§3 612(5XB), 615(bX1XC), (c) as amended 20
US.CAA. §§ 412(3XB), 415(bYIXC), (c}.

7. Schools and School Districts e=169

Although there is little doult that
judgment of state and loca! schoo! authori-
ties is entitled to e.nsideruble deference, it
is equally clear that even a school's discipli-
pary procedures are subject to scrutiny of
federal judiciary in such instances as non-
compliance with p-oceduvai safeguards of
the Education of the Handicapped Act.
Education of t'e Handicapped Act,
§ 615(e}4) as imended 20 US.C.A.
§ 1415(e)X4).

8. Federal Courts «<=332

Provisions of the Education of the
Handicapped Act res:s jurisdiction in feder-
al district cour?s over all claims of noncom-
pliance with procedural safeguards of the
Act regardless of the amount in controver-
sy. Education of the Mandicapped-Act,
§ 615(eXd) as ame_pded 20 US.C.A.

§ 1415(e)4).

Wenner A. Lohe, Jr., Danbury, Conn.,
John A. Dziambs, Willimantic, Conn., for

plaintiffs.

1. Pursuant to coursel's request, plainuff is pro-
ceeding under a ’cutious name. “Those. sec-
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Russell Lee Post, Jr., Avon, Cornn., Robert
W. Garvey, Hartford, Conn., for defend-
ants.

MEMORAYDUM OF DECISION

DALY, District Judge.

Plaintiff, Kathy Stuart?, is in her third
year at Danbury High School. The records
kept by the Danbury School System con-
cerning plaintiff tell of a student with seri-
ous academic and emotional difficulties.
They deseribe her as having deficient aca-
demic shills caused by a complex of learning
disabilities and limited intelligence. Not
surprising, her recard also roflects a history
of hehavioral problems. It was precisely
for handicapped children such as plaintiff
that Congress enacted the Education of the
Handicapped At (Handicapped Act), 20
USC & M01 et soq. Sce 20 USC.
§ 1401(1). .

Plaigiff sccks a prefiminary injunction
of un cxpulsion hearing to be held by the
D:vibwry Bourd of Education. She claims
that she has been deniwd rights afforded
her by the Handieapped Act. Her claims
raise novel 1.sues concerning the impact of
recent reguiations to the Hundicapped Act
on the disciplinary process of focal schools,

The Handicapped Act was passed in 1970
and amended in 1975, iz purpose is to
provide states with federsl assistance for
the educatinn of handicapped children. Sce
45 C.F.R. § 121a at 374 (Appendix §21)
(1976). The regulations on which this deci-
sion turns tecame effective on Octaber 1,
1977 See 42 Fed.Reg. 42473 (1977) (to be
codified in 45 C.F.R. § 121a). State eligibil-
ity for federal funding under the Handi-
capped Act is made contingent upon the
impleinentution of a detajled state plan and
upon compliance with certain procedural
safeguards. Sce 20 USC. §§ 1413, 1415,
The state plan must .require all public
schools within the state to provide educa-
tional programs which meet tte unique
needs of handicapped children. “See Kruse
v. Campleli, 431 F.Supp. 150, 186 (E.B.Va),

. tions of the file reflecting her real name have
been sealed from public nspection.
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vaci’ed and remanded, — US. —,
—, 98 S.Ct. 38, 54 L.E:,2d 65 (October 4,
1977); ¢f. Cuyahoga County Association
For Retarded Children and Adults'v. Essex,
411 F.Supp. 46, 61 n. T (N.D.Ohio 1976).
Connecticut’s plan has been approved and
the state prusently receives federal funds.
As a handicapped student in a recipient
state, plaintiff is entitled to a special educa-
tion program that is responsive to her needs
and may insist 02 compliance with the pro-
ecdursl safeguards contained in the Handi-
capped Act. After scrutinizing the recent
regulaticns to the Handicapped Act and
reviewing both plaintiff’s involved school
record and the evidence introduced at the
preliminary injunction hearing, this Court is
persuaded that a preliminary injunction
shouid issue.

The events leading to the present contro-
versy begun in 1975 when one of plaintiff*s
teachers reported to the school guidunce
counselor that plaintiff was *'academically
unable to achieve success in his claxs.” As
a result of this report and ecorroboration
from her other teachers, it was suggested
that plaintiff be given a psychological cval-
uation and that she be referred to a Plan-
ning and Placement Team (PPT). The
mambers of a PPT are drawn from a varie-
ty of duﬂplmes. but in all cases they are

pmessnonal personnel” employed by the
locs! board of cducation® The PPT's func-
tion: are to identify children requiring spa-
cial education, to prescribe special education
programs, and to evaluate these pragrams.

A meeting of the PPT was held in Februs
ary of 1975, at which plaintiff was diag-
nosed as having & major learning disubility.
The PPT_recommended that plamuff be
scheduled on a tml basis in the_special
education program for remedmmg fearning
disabilities and that she be given a psycho-
Jogical exalustion.. Although the PPT re-
port specifically stated that the psychologi-
cal evaluation be given “at the carl _st feu-
sible time", n&_s_g_c!l evaluation was adminis-
und.

2. ‘nn PPT is dofired in Conn.Rep. § 10-76b-
1(Q) as “The group of persons chosen from the

443 FEDERAL SUPPLEMENT

A rocond PPT meeting was held in Max
in order to give plaintiff the annual review
mandated by Conn.Reg. § 10-7Gh-T(b).
The 'PPT reported plaintiff had n:ade en-
couraging gains, but she suffered from poor
learning behaviors and emotional difficul.
ties. A psychological evaluation was again
recommended.  Her continued participation
in the special educational program was alse
advised, but it was made contingent upon
the results of the psych.logical evaluation

When school commenced in Septemler of
1975, the PPT requested un immediate pay-
chological esaluation.  The PPT stated that
an evaluation was essentiaf in order to de-
velop an appropriate <pec.ad education pro-
gram. For reasens which have not been
explained to the Court, the psychologcul
evaluation was not admasiStered for some
time, and the clinical peychologist’s repart
of the evaluation was nat completed until

‘January 22, 1976} The ropert stated that

plaintifi had severe learr nye dinabilities de-
rived from cither a mininz! brain dsy fune.
tion or an organically roned jerceptaal dis-
order. It recomniended Rer continucd par-
ticipation in the special wlucation program
and concluded: “I can only imagine that
someone with such deficit and lack of devel-
opinent must feel utteriy j0st and humiliat-
ed at this point in adoleseence in a public
school where other studernts - ary
performing in such conirust to her.” The
report of plaintiff's p“c“nlnhu‘:! evalua-
tion was reviewed at a Sarch, 197 PPT
meeting. The PPT noted that plaintif? was
responding remarkably well to the intensive
one-to-one teaching she ruceived in the spu-
cial educution program, and recommended
that she continue the program until the
close of the 19751976 school year.

The first indication that the special cdu-
cation program was no longer appropriate
came in May of 1976. At that time plain-
tiff’s special cducation teacker reported
that plaintiff had all but stopped attending
the proggrant.  The teacher requested a PPT
meeting to consider whethér plaintifi’s pri.
mary handu:ap uas an cmetional’ dlaablht)

teaching. admm;smu\e and pup:l pmonncl
staff of ths schoo! dutnct
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rather thun a learning disability, Despite
is request, plaintiff's schedule was not
changed nor was a PPT meeting_held to
review her program before the close of the
school year. .

At the beginning of the 1976-1977 school
year, plaintill was scheduled to participate
in a learning disability program on a part.
time basis. Her attendance continued to
decline throughout the first half of the
school year. By late fall she had complete-
ly stopped atteading her special ediication
classes and had begun to spend this time
wandering the school corridors with her
friends. Although she was encouraged to
participate in the special education clusses,
the PPT meeting concerning plaintiff’s pro-
gram, which had been requested at the end
of the previous school year, was not con-
ducted in the fall of.1976.

In_December of 1976 plaintiff was in-
volved in several Tneidénts which resulted in
8 series of disciplinary conferences between
her mother and school authoritics, These
conferences were followed by a temporary
improvement in plaintiff’s attendance and
bebavior. In light of these improyements,
the annual PPT review held in'Mareh of
1317 concluded that plaintiff should c¢ntin-
ue to participate in the special education
program on a part-time basis for the re-
maining threc months of the school year.
The PPT aiso recommended that in the
next school year plaintiff be scheduled for
daily special education classes and that she
be considcred for ‘& special education voca-
tional training program. The PPT report
stated that it was of primary importance
for plaintiff to be given a program of study
in the 1977-197S school year which vys
based on a realistic assessment of her abili-
ties and interests.

Despite the PPT recommendation, plain-
tff has not bLeen attending any learning
disability program this school year. It is
unclear whether this resylted from the
school’s failure to schedufe plaintitt proper-
ly or from plaintiff's refusal to attend the
program. Regardless of the reason, the
school authorities were on notice in the
exrly part of Scpiember that the program

preseribed by the PPT in March of 1977 was
not being administered. In fact, 2 member
of the school staff who was familiar with
plaintiff requested that a new PPT poview
be conducted. This review has never been
undertaken. )

On September 14, 1977 plaintiff was in-
volved in school-wide disturbances which
erupred at Danbury High School. As a
result of her complicity in these distur-

bances, she received a ten-day disciplinary -

suspansion and was scheduled to appear at
a disciplinary hearing on November 30,
1977 The Superintendent of Danbury
Schools recommended to the Ddnhury
Board of Education that plaintiff ‘be-ex.

pelled for the remainder of the 1977-1978

school year at this hearing.

Plaintiff's counsel made  written request
on November 16, 1977 to the Danbury
Board of Education for u hearing and a
review of plaintiff's special education pro-
gram in accordance with Conn.Gen.Stat,
§ 10 76h. On November 29, 1977 plaintiff
obtained a temporary restraining  order
from this Court which ¢njuined the defend.
ants {rom conducting the disciplinary hear.
ing. This order was cont:nucd on Decem-
ber 12, 977 at the conclusion of the prelim.
inary injunction hearing. Between the
time the first temporary restraining crder
was jssued and the vreliminary injunction
hearing was held plaintiff was given a psy-
chologicat evaluation. However, the rosults
of this evaluution were unavailable at the
time of the hearing. A PPT review of
plaintff’s program has not been conducted
since March of 1977, nor has the school
devgloped a new special educatjon prugram
for plaintiff. Furthermorc, there was no
showing at the hearing that plaintifi’s at-
tendance at Danbury High School would
endanger her or others,

{1) Plaintiff is entitled to a preliminary
injunction enjoining Danbury Board of Eqd.
ucation from conducting a hearing to expel
her. The standard which governs the is-
suance of 2 preliminary itjunction is well-
settled.  Plaintiff must demonstrate cither
(1) prohable success on the merits of her
claim and possible irreparable injury, or (2)

123
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sufficiently serious questions going to the
merits of her claim and a bulance of hard-
ship tipping decidedly in ber favor. Trivh-
wasser & Katz v. American Tel. & Tel. Co.,
535 F.2d 1336, 1358 (2d Cir. 1976); Sonesta
Intl Hotels Corp. v. Wellington Associates,
483 F.2d 247, 250 (2¢ Cir. 1973); City of
Hartford v. Hills, 405 F.Supp. 879, 8a2
(D.Conn.1975). In Triebwasser supra at
13859 the Second Circuit stated that a dem
onstration of possible irreparable harm is
required under both of these alternatives.

{2] Plaintiff has made a persuasive
showing of possible irreparable injury. It is
important to note that the issuance of a
preliminary injunction is contingent upn
possitle injury. The irreparable injurics
claimed by plaintiff are those which will
result from her expulsion at the Bourd of
Education hearing. In this situation the
Court must assume that shie wil!, in fact, be
expelled, and then proceed to consider the
probable consequences of her expulsion__{f
plaintiff is expelled, she will be without xny

- ‘edueational program from the date of her

expulsion until such time- as another "PPT
review is held and an appropriate cduca-
tional program is developed. 1In light of
past Celays in the administration of plain-
tiff's special cducation program, the Court
is concerned that soine time may pass be-
fore tlaintiff is afforded the special eduva-
tion o which she is entitled. llo“e\cr,
even issuming her new program {5 Jevel-
oped “with dispatch. for a _Penod of time
plaintff will suffer the injury inhctent in
being without any educational program.
‘The second irreparable injury to which
plaintit will be subjected derives from the
fact that her expulsion will preclude her
from taking part in any special education
programs offered at Danbury High School.
I plaintiff is expelled, she will be restricted
3 Plaintiff makes an intniguing slate claim that

her expulsion contruvenes Conn.Gen Stat.

§8 10-233d, 4-177, This claim 1s based on the

argument that plainuff is enutled to a current

psychological evaluation ard 2 PPT deternunae.

tion of the adequacy of her special education

placement prior to an expulsion heanng. The

thrust of this srument 1s that without a cur.

remt ¢valuation and PPT determination plantilf
is being denied a2 meaninglul opportunity “'lo

their usé in fushioning & new special educa- .

tion program for plaintiff. Of particular
concern to the Court is the possibility that
an appropriate 'privatc placement will be
unavailable and plaintiff's education will be
reduced to some type of homebound tutor-
ing. Such a result can only serve to hinder
plaintiff’s social develupment and to perpet-
nate the vicious cycle in which she is
caught. Sce Hairston v. Drosick, 423
F.Supp. 180, 183 (5.D.W.V'4.1973) (holding
that it is “imperative that every child re-
ceive an cducauon with his or her peers
insofar as it .. at all possible™). Tae Court
is persuaded  that  plaiiff's  expulsion
would have heen sccompanicd by a very
real possibility of irreparable injury.

131 Plaintiff has also demonstrated
probable success on the merits of four fed-
eral claima3 The Handicapped Act and the
regulations thereunder detail specific rights
to which hundicapped children are entitled.
Anong these rights are. (1) the right to an
“appropriste  public educatien”; (2) the
right to remain in her present placement
until the resolution of her special education
complaint: (3) the right to an edueation in
the “least restrictive environment™; and (4)
the right to have all cnanges of placement
effectuated in accordance with preseribed
procedures.  Plaintifi cluims she has been
or wiil be denied these rights.

Plaintiff argues with na little foree that
she has been denied her nght to an appro-
priate publlc education.” The meaning of
this term is clarified in the definitional sec-

tion of the Handicapped Act. Essentially, ©

it is defined so as to require Danbury High

present evidence and argument on all issues
involved™ as required by Coan Gen Stat. § 4

177(c) This 1s exclusively a state claim and a
state court should rule on it in the first in.
siance. C/. Railroad Comrm'n v. Pullman Co.,
312 U S. 496, &1 S.Ct. 643, 85 L Ed. 971 (1940)
Lnul such time as a state court has clanfied
the meaning of Conn Gen.Stat. § 4-177, this
Court will decline to exercise it dnscmnon.\ry
pradent junsdiclion over this ¢laim.
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to placement in a private schoo! or to home-
bound tutoring. ~Regardlcss of whether
these two allernatives are responsise to
plamuffs needs, the PPT will be limited to
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School to provide plaintiff with an educa-
tional program specially designed to meet
her learning disabilitics. See 20 U.S.C.
§ 1401(1), (15)-(19). The record befora this
Court suggests that plaintiff has'not been
provided ‘with an appropriate education.

Evidence has been introduced which shows

that Danbury High School not only failed to
provide plamuf f with the special educauon

program rééommended by the PPT in.

March of 1977, but that the high school
neglected to respond adcquately when_jt
learned plaintiff was no longer participat-
: ing in the special education program it had
L. provided. The Court canrut disregard the
: possibility that Danbirv High School's han-
dling of plaintiff ‘may have contributed to
o : -her disrgptive behavior. The existence of a
: - causal relationshipsbetween plaintiff's aca-
demic program and her anti-social behavior
was supported by expert testimnny intro-
duced at the preliminary injunction hear-
ing. Cf Frederick v. Thomas, 408 F.Supp.
832, 835 (E.D.Pa.1976) (argnment that inup-
propriste educational phctmcnt caased
anti-socia) behavior.is raiséd). " .a_subsc:
"Quent PPT were to conclude that pluintiff
has not becn given an appropriate special
edycation placement, then the déféndant's
resort to'its disciplinary process is unjustifi-
. able. The Court is not making a final de-
- termination 6f Whether Bluintilf has been
affordcd an appropriate education.” The
resolution of this question is beyoad the
scope of the present inquiry. In order to
sustain a prellmlmry injunction plaintiff
need only demonstratc probable success on
the merits of her clam She has satisfied
this standard. .

Plaintiff al®d claims that her expulsion
prior to tke resolution of her special educa-
tion complaint would be in violation of 20

4. The tei.as “suspension™ and “expulsiun” are
used in accordance with the definitions appear-
ing in Conn.Gen .Stat. § 10-233a(c). (d):

(c) Suspension means an exclusion from
schoal privileges for no more than ten con-
secttive school days. provided such exclu.
sion shall not extend beyond the end of the
school year in which such suspension ~as
impased.

(d) Expulsion means an exclusion from
school privileges for more than ten consecu-

U.S.C. § 1415(e)3).* This subscetion of the
Handicapped Act states: “During the: pend-

‘ency of uny procecdings conducted pursuant
to - this—section,unless—the-stateor-local — — —

educational agency and the parents or
guardian otherwise agree, the child shall
remain in the then current educational
placement of such child until all
such proceedings have been completed.”
Plaintiff qualifics for the protection that
this subsection provides. She has filed )
complaint  pursuant to 20 US.C.
§ HIYIKE) requesting a hearing and a
review of her special education placement.
Moreover, there has been ne agrecment to
leave_her present special education place-
ment voluntar: ilv.  Thus, pl.unm’f has a
right to reman . in this plucement until her
co'nplamt J& resolved.  The Jhovel issuc
raised by plaisuff arises from the fact that
the rlght to remain in her resent place-
ment directly conflicts with Danbury High
Schools's dl:.uphnnr\ process. 1f the high

schonl e\pcl» plamuﬂ' during the pendency
of her special cdication Complaint] then her
placemenl wiil be changed in Lontravention
of 20 US.C. § 1415(e}(3). The Court must
determine whether this subscctinn of the
Handicapped Act prokibits the expulsion of
handicapped children during the pendency
of a special education complaint.

[4] This is a case of first impression.
Although there are no decisiond in v-hich
the relation between the special educaiion
processes and disciplinary procedures is dis-
cussed, the regulations promulgated under
the new law are helpful. The Department
of Health, Education and Welfare (HEW)
released regulations in August of this year
that are aimed at facilitating the implemen-
tation of the Handicapped Act. Sec 42
Fed.Reg. 42,473 (1977) (to be codified in 45

tive days and shall be deemed to include dut
nct be limited to. exclusion from the senool
to which such pupil was assigned at the ume
such discipiinary action v-as taken, provided
such exclusion shall nct extend beyond the
end of the schoo! Mear in which suzch exclu-
s10n was imposed.
This decision in no way affects the “removal”
of studsnts for all or part of a sinzle class
period  See Conn.Gen.Stat. § 10-233a(b).
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C.F.R. § 121a). Contained therein is & com-

ment addressing the conflict between 2
US.C. § 1415(2X3) and the disciplinary pro-
eedures of public schools: The comment
reiterates the rule that after a complaint
proceeding has been initiated, a change in a
child's placement is prohibited. It thea
states: “While the placement may not be
changed, this does not preclude a school
from using its normal procedures for deal-
ing with children who are endangering
themselves or others.” 42 Fed.Reg. 42,473,
42456 (1977) (to be cadified in 42 CF.R.
§ 121a513)." This somewhat cryptic state-
~ment suggests that subscction 1413(e)3)
peohibits disciplinary measures which have
the effect of chnnmng a child's placement,
'\vblle pcrmmmg the type of procedures
necdSary for désling with a student who
appears to be dengerous. This _interpreta-
tion is supported by a comment-to-the-com-
- ment which states that the comment was
added to make it.clear that schouls are
permitted to use their regular procedures
for dealing with emergencies$ See 42 Fed.
Reg. 42473, 42,512 (1977) (to follow the
codification at 45 C.F.R. § 121..513). Thcrc
is no indication in cither the regrulations or
the comments thereto that schools should he
permitted to expel a handicapped child
whille a special education complaint is pendl-
ing.

The Court zoncurs with HEW's reading
of sulicction T413(e)3). As will be dis-
cussed, the Handicapped Act establishes
procedures which replace cxpulsion as a
means ‘of removirg” Randicapped children
from school if they become disruptive.
- Furthermore, “school authorities can deal
with emergencies by suspending handi-
capped children. Suspensnon will permit
_ the child to remain in his or her prusent
placement, but will allow schools in Con-
necticut to exclude a student for up to tep

8. The complete text of the comment-to-the.
comment states.
Commenters suggested a provision be added
to allow change of placement for health or
safety reasons. One Commenter rcquested
that the regulations indicate that suspension
not be considered a change in placement.
Another commenter wanted more specificity
to make 1t clear thal where an inial place.

Reprinted from 443 F. Supp. 1235, .
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consccutive tchool da)s. Scc Conn.Gen.
Stat. £10 233a(c) and note 3 supra. There-
fore, plainuff's expulsion prior to the reso-
lution of her complaint would violate the
Handicapped Act.

Plaintiff makes a third claim that the
Handicappud Act prohilits’ het expulsion
even after her complaint procecdings have
termm.nted She bases this claim on her
right to an education in the “least restric-
tive environment™ and on the overall design
of the Hundicapped Act. An important
feature of the Handwn;ped Act is its re-
quirement that chiliren be educated in the
“least restrictive emviraoment”  This re-
quirement entitles hasdicnpped children to
be educated with nonhurdicapped children
whenever  possible.  See 20 US.C.
§ M412(54B); 42 FelReg. 42473, 42497,
42513 1977 (to be cwbified in 45 CF.R.
§ 1212.350). The right of handicapped chil-
dren o an education in the “leist restric-
tive environment” is implen.ented, in pert,
by requiring schools to pronidde a continuum
of alternative placemerss. Sve 20 U.SC.
§& 141205KB): 42 FedBeg. 42473, 42,497
(1877) (o bhe coditidi in 45 CF.R.
§ 1214.351). These alterns + .s include in-
struction in regular clasie. special clisaes,
private schouls, the child's home and other
institutions. By proviing handicapped
childrer with a range of pl.xcomcr.l« the
Handiripped Aet 2ltempts to insure that
each child receives an education which is
respone’ve to his or her individual needs -
while n aximizing the child’s opportunity to
learn w.th nonhandicapped peers. See 42
Fed.Reg. 42,473, 42,497 (1977) (to be codi-
fied in 45 C.F.R. § 1213.552).

The nght e an cducation in the kast
restrictive cn\lronmen! may be circumvent-
ed i schools are permittdd to expel handi-
capped children. An expulsion has the ef-

ment is invoived, the child be placed in the
regular education program or If the parents
agree. in an intenm speCial placement
Response: A comment has been added to
make it clear that this section would not
preciude a pubhic agencs from using its regu-
lar procedures for dealing with emergencies.
42 Fed.Reg. 42.473, 42.312 (1977) (to follow.
codificetion at 45 C.F.R. § 121a.513).
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fect not only of chunging s student’s place-
ment, but a’so of restricting the avaitubility”
of alternative placements. For example,.
plaintif{’s expulsion may well exclude her
from = placement that is appropriate for
ber scademic and social development. This
result flics in the face of tl. explicit man-
date of the Handiczpped Act whizh requires
that 21l placement decisions be made in
conformity with a child's right to an educa-
tion in the least restrictive environment.
See 42 Fed.Reg. 42,473, 42497 (1977 (to be
codified in 45 C.F.R § 121a.533(a)4)).

[5) The expulsion of handicapped chil-
dren not only jeopardizes their right to an
education in the least réstrictive environ-
ment, buf is inconsistent with the proce-
dures cstablished by the Handieapped Act
for changing the placement of disruptive
childrep. The Handicapped Act preseribes
a procedure whercby disruptive children are
transferred o more restrictive placements
when their behavior significuntly impirs
the education of other chililren. Sce 42
Fed.Regr. 42,473, 42,497 (1977) (to be codi-
fied in 45 CF.R. § 121a.352).% The respon-
sibility for shanging u Sandicapped child's
placement is  allocated to  professional
teams, such as Connccticut's FiTs. Sce 42
Fed.Reg. 12473, 42,497 (1977) (to e codi-
fied in 45 C.F.R. § 1212.533(aX2)). Further-
more, parcents of handicapped chilidren are
entitled to participate in and to appeal from
these placement decisions. Sce 42 Fed.Roy.
42473, 42490 (1977) (to bhe codified in 45
CFR § 121.313: 2 USC
§ MISDXIXC). (c). Thus, the use of expul-
sion proceedings as 8 mcans of changing
the placement of a disruptive handicapped
child contravenes the procedures of the
Handicapped Act. After considerable re-
flection the Caurt is persuadul that any
changes in plaintiif's placement must b
made by a PPT after considering the range
of available placements and plaintiff’s par-
ticular necds.

. -

6. The comment to 45 C.F.R § 1212.552 lex.
plains that a handicapped chiltsPaventent is
inappropnate whencier b chuld becomes sp
disruptive that 1he “education of other siudents
18 ighIlREIALY impaired™ This explanation 1s

3l .-

[6] It is impurtant that the paramoeters
of this decision are clear. This Court is
cugnizant of the need for schoul officials to
be vested with ample authority and discre-
tion. It is, therefore, with great reluctance
that the Court has intervened in the disci.
plinary process of Danbury High School.
However, this intervention is of a limited
nature. Handicapped children are neither
immune from school's disciplinary process

nor are they entitled to parlicipate in pro.”
grams when their behavior impairs the edu- ;

cation of other children in the program.

Firat, school uuthoritics can take swift dlis-

ciplinary meusures, such” as suspension,
against disruptive handicapped  children.
Secondly. « PPT can request a chanpe in
the jlaceitint of handieaped-childeen \Who
have demonstrated that their preseat. place-
ment_i> inappropriate by disrupting the ol
ucation of ather children .The Handi
capped Act therehy affords schouls with
bath shert-term and lung-term_methods of
dealing with handicapped children who are
behavioral protlems,

[7.8) Defendants contend that their dis-
ciplinary procedures are beyond the pur-
view of this Court. They are mistaken, [t
has long been funidlumental to our federal-
ism that public clucation is uader the con-
trol of state and local authoritics. See Ep-
person v. drAansas, 393 U.S. 97, 104, 89
S.Cu. 266, 21 L.Ed.2d 223 (1968); Buck v.
Board of Education os City of New York,
553 F.2u 315, 320 (24 Ci-. 1977). Although
there 1s little doubt that the judgment of
state and local school authorities is entitled
to cunsiderable defercnce, it is equally clear
that even a school's disciplinary procedures
are subject to the scrutiny of the federal

judiciary. Scee. g., Goss v. Lopez, 419 U.S.
565, 95 S.Cu. 729, 42 125 (1974);
Tinker v. Des Moines School L.t 393 U.S.
503, 89°5.C(_ 733, 2 LEd.2d 731 (1969);
Bourid of Eilue. v. Barnette, 319 U.S. 624, 63
S.Ct. 1178, &7 L.Ed. 1625 (1942). (Y, Yoo v.
Moynihan, 25 Conn.Sup. 875, 262 A.2d 814
(1969) ttemporary injunction issued by state

denved from 3 comment to the Rehahilitation

Actof 1973, 29 ULSC § 793 See 42 Fed Reg.
22.676, 22,69} €1977) (10 fullow cadification in

45 CF R, §53 34
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court against expulsion of student for viols.

tion of dress code). In the instunt case,

Judicial intervention in Danbury High

School’s disciplinary procedures is Congres-

sionally mandated. The Handicapped Act

vests jurisdiction in federat district courts *
over all claims of noncompliance with the
Act's procedural safeguards, repardless of
the amount in controversy. See 20 U.S.C.
§ 1415(e)1).

D.fendants’ principle objection to the is.
suance of a preliminary injunction is that
the procedures for securing a special educa.
tion are distinct from disciplinary proce.
dures and therefore one process shuuld not
interfere with the other. This contention is
based on a non sequitur. The inference
that the special education and disciplinary
procedures cannot conflict, does not follow
from the premise that these ame scparate
processes.  Defendunts are really asking
the Court to rcfuse to resulve an obwious
conflict between these procedures. This
Court will not oblige them.

Danbury Board of Education is RERERY
ORDERED to require an immdiate PPT
review of pluintiff’s special education pro-
gram and is preliminarily enjoined from ’
conducting 8 hearing to expel her.  Fur
thermore, any changes in her plicement
must be cffcctuated through the proper
special education procecures until the final
resolution of pluintiff's claims.

Reprinted from 443 F.Supp. 1235,
Copyright (c) 1981 West Publishing Co.
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§-1, 2 minor, by and through his mother and next friend, P-1 ¢ al.,
Plaintiffs-A ppellees ) ¢

v. \

RALPH D. TURLINGTON, individually, and in his official capacity as Commissioner of Educalion.’Sutéﬂ >
Florida, Iepartment of Education et al., .
Defendants-Appellants

No. 79-2742 <
United States Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. Unit B ‘
January 26, 1981‘ _

Appeals from the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida

Before Vance, Hatchett and Anderson, Circuit Judges '

Hatchett, Circuit Judge

Appeal from eni-v of preliminary injunction by District Coun for the Southem District of
Florida, 3 EHLR 551:%.1 {1979-8) DEC.]. compelling State and local officials to provide cduca-
tional services and procedural rights provided by EHA to students expelled for misconduct.

HELD, since trial court did not abuse its discretion in entering the preliminary injunction, its
decision is affirmed. Before a handicapped student can be expelled. a trained and hnowledgeable L
group of persons must determine whether the student’s misconduct bears a relationship to ms
handicapping condition. An expulsion is a change in educational placement which invokes the
procedural protections of EHA and § 504. Expulsion is a proper disciplinary tool uader EHA and
§3504. out a complete cessation of educational services is not. EHA, 20 U.S.C. § 1415¢b),
requirement that parcats have an opportunity for due process hearing makes no exception for -
handicapped students who voluntarily. withdraw trom school or previously agree tc an educational
placen:ent. State officials were properly included within scope of injunction since, under EHA, 20
U.S.C. §1412(6), SEA is responsible for ensuring implementation of EHA and expylsion proceed-
ings may deny benefits of EHA to children entitled to education under Act.

e —— s

In this appeat. we are called upon to decide whether nine
handicapped students were denied their rights under the pro-
visions of the Education for all Handicapped Children Act,
20 U.S.C. &% 13011415, or Section 504 of the Rehabilita-
ton Act of 1973, codificd at 29 U.S.C. § 794 and their
implementing regulations. The trial court found a denial of
rights and cntered a preliminary injunction agsinst the State
and local ofticials. Defendants attack the trial count®s entry of
2 preliminary injunction as an abusc of discretion. Because
we find that the trial court did not abusce its discretion in
entering the preliminary injunction, we affim. .

) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
~-repro,duceﬁ with pérmission.
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FACTS

Plaintiffs, S-1. S.2, S-3, §-4, S-5. S-6. and S-8, were
expelled from Clewision High School, Hendry County,
Florida, ir the carly part of the 1977-78 school year for
alleged misconduct.' Each was expelled for the remainder of
the 1977-78 school year and for the entire 1978-79 school

' The misconduct upon which tae expulsions were based
ranged from masturbation and other sexual acts againet fel-
low students to willful defiance of authonty. nsubording-
tion. vandalism, and the use of profane language.
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vear, the maximam time pemutted by State faw Al ot the
plamnits were classitied as either educable mentally retarded
(E MR aukiiy mentally retarded, or EMR dull normal. 1tis
andesputed that the expelled plamtitts were accorded the
provedural protectaoms repured™hy Geany Tapez, 4190 8
S65, 935,01 729424 d 2 725 (1975) bxeept tor 8-
thes were not ginen, nor did they request, heanings to deter-
sunc whether thewr ansconduct was a manitestation ot therr
tandicap  Regarding S-10 the supermtendent ot Hendny
C ity Schools deternuned that because S-1 was not clas-
st as seroashy emetenally distarbed. his miscondact, as
S et ob fas, could not be a manitestation of s handicap
At all matertal times, plamtitts $-7 and §-9 were nat

waderexplusion oraers. S-7 was not enrolled in high sehool by

hisoswn chorce 1n Octaber. 1978, he requested a due process
hearing te detenmine if he had been evalaated or it he had an
irdimidualized educational program. S-9 made a smular re-
yuest m October, 1978, Shontly betore her request. §-9°s
guardian had consented to the indivtdualized education pro-
aram being offered her during that schoal year. The supenin-
tendent dgmied bath student’s requests, but otfered to hold
confzrences in ongm discuss the appropriateness ot their
mdividualezed edu®tional programs.

Plaintiffs initiated this case alleging violations of their
rights under the Education for all Handicapped Children Act,
(EMA) 20 U S.C 8§ 14011415, and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S C. §794. Plainntts
sought prelmunany and permanent mjunctine reliet compel-
ling state and local officials to provide them with the educa-
nonal senvices and procedural nights required by the EHA,
Section 504, and their implementing regulanions.

TRIAL COURT DtCISION

The tnal court found that the EHA, eftective in Flonda
on September 1. 1978, provided all handicapped children the
nght to a free and appropriate public education. The coun
turther tound that the expelled students were demed this night
n vivlation of the EHA . In addition, the tnal coun decided
that under Section 504 and the EHA. no handicapped studest
could be expelled tor misconduct related to the handicap.
That in the case of S-2. S-3, §-4. §-5. 86, and S-8, no
determunation was ever made ot the relationship between
their handicaps and their behay oral problems. With regard to
S$-1. the trial count found that the superintendent’s deiermuna-
ton was taufticient under Section S04 and the EHA. The
court reasone d that an expulsion 1s a change in educational
placement. That under edacational placeinent procedures ot
Scction 514 and the EHA. only a trained and specialized
group could make this decision. For these reasons, the trial
cour concluded that the Jikehhoad ot success on the merits

"h...t been shown with respeet 1o the expelled plainttis.

With regard to S-7 and $-9, the trial coun stated that
Cler 20U0S.CL ¥ BHS(D(EED, students and their pat. ats

200 5 C X IHSMBAIRE) provides:

thily The procedures required by this section shall
1w bude, but shal! sor be Tnoned w

the anepportuniy ¢ s presentcomplamts wath respect to
ans anatter relaing to the wentitication, e aluation, or
Aducational placement ot the chald. or the provision of a
Inee approuprisie public education to such child

2) 1981 CRR Publicning Company,
reproduced with permission.

or gaarduns must be provided Jan opporiundy o present
complamts with respect to any matter relatng to the adentits-
cation, evalaation, or edudational placement ot the (ald, or
the provision of a tree appropriate education to such child ™
That ander 20 UV S C RIS whenever such a
complamt has been recened, the parenits or guardians shall
have an vpportuntty tor an impartial due process tearmg *
The trial qount tound that the sapermtendent’s tarluré to grant
$:7 and $-9 mupartial due process hearmgs contravened the
express provisions ot thie EHA  The court theretore con-
cluded that §-7 and $-9 had shown a kehhood of saccess on
the merits ot their claim ]

Fmally. the trial count tound that the plamtints had
suftered irreparable harm i that two years ot edacation had
been irretriev ably lost The court tarther determined that an
injunction was necessany (o ensure that plamttits would be
provided their nights. even though the expulvons had expired
at the time the injunction was entered

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

In an appeal from an order granting prelinunary relief,
the applicable standard of review 1s whether the 1ssuance of
the injunction, in light ot the applicable standard. consttutes
an abuse ot discretion.* Doran v. Salent Inn, {ne., 422U S.
922, 958.C1. 2561,45 L Ed.2d 648 (1975): Canal Atthorin
of State of Floreda . 489 F.2d 567 (51th Cir 1974). Therctore,
n order to decide whether the tnal coart abused its discretion
in entering the prehinunany ingunction, we must resolve the
tollowsng issues: (1) whether an expulsion s a change n
educational placement thereby imvohing the procedural pro-
tections ot the EHA and Sceetion 504, (2) whether the EHA,
Scction 504, and their implementing regelanons con-
template a dual system ot disciphine ot handicapped and
nonhandicapped students. (3) whether the burden ot ransing
the question whether a stadent’s ausconduct 1s a manitesta-
tion ol the student’s handicap. 1s on the State and local
otficials or on the student; (3) whether the EHA and s
implementing regulahions required the local detendants to
grant S-7 and S-9 due process heanings. and (51 whhether the
trial judge properly centered the prelinunary injunction
against the State detendants.

320 US.C. §1415(b)(2) provides:

(2) Whenever a complaint has been recened under
paragraph (1) ot this subsection, the parents o guardian
shall have an oppontumity lor an mpartial due process
hearing which shall be conducied by, the Siate educational
ageney  No hearing comducted pursuant 1o the requise-
menis of this paragraph shall be conducied by anemplovec
ot such agency or umit involved 1 the education or care of
the child

' Prerequisiles or granting of a prelimnnary injunction are
(1) substannial hkehihood that plamtitt will prevail on the
nicrits: (2) substannial thieat that plantits will sutter irrepara
ble injury 1f injunction is not granted. (3 threatened ingury to
plantdf outweighing thrediened harm inunction may do 1o
detendants. and, (41 absence of disservice to the public inter-
et it the mjuection should be granted  Deteadarts only
scrrously challenge the ndl court’s tindings regarding the
first two prerequisites Accordsngly . we confine our discus-
sion to those clements.
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DISCUSSION

Section S04 of the Relrabiluation Actand the EHA have
een the subject of mtre uent lgation No reported appel-
fate cases deal with these acts and the ssues presented in the

smstant case Theretore, a review of these statutes and their
“pertineiit regulations is necessany o the disposition of this
CONIFOVETSY .

\ Scetion 544, cttectne in Florida four nonths prior to the
expulstons in yuestion, provides:

No otherwise qualiticd handicapped indh-
vidual in the United States, as defined in Sec-
tion 706(7) of this tdde. shall. solely by
reason of his handicap. be excluded from the
participation i, be denied the benefits of, or
be subjected to discrinunation under any pro-
gram or acuvity recewving Federal financial
asststance . . .

Under 29 U.S C. §706(7%B). a handicapped indi-
vidual is defined as “"any person who (1) has a physical or
mental impairment which substantially mits one or more of
such person’s major life activitics . . .**, :

Under the EHA. 20 U.S.C. § 1412(1)* and' (5)(B)."
effective in Flonda on Scptember 1., 1978, a State réceiving
financial assistance under tnis Act is required to provide all
handicapped children a free and appropriate education in the
least restrictive environment. The detinition of hendicapped
children under’the EHA 1s similar to the definition under
Scction 504.

Florida. and the Hendry County Schoel Board. arc
recipicnts of Federal funds under both Scction 504 and the
EHA. The children in this suit are clearly handicapped within
the meaning of both Section S04 and EHA. The partics agree
that @ handicapped student may not be expelled for mjscon- -

- dugt which results from the handicap itself .t follows that an
expulsion must be accompanied by a determination as_to
wﬁ?ﬁg[\lj\g‘ handicapped student’s misconduct bears a scla-

togship to his, h,éud:czgg‘._ From a practical standpoint, this is

- © s e @ eweae LR PR

Y20 US.C § 142 provides:
" In oeder 1o quatity for assistance under this subchapter in
any fiscal ycar. a State shall demonstrate to the Commis-
sioner that the folfowing conditions are met;

{1) The State has in oftect a policy that assures ull
handicapped chiliiren the night to a free appropriate pub.ae
education

T USC $141ASKB) provides:

Inorder 1o quality tor assistance under this subchapter in
uny tiscal year, a State shall denronstrale to the Comimis-
sioner that the following conditions are et

(5) The State has established . . (B) procedures to
asgure that. to the maximum extent appropriate, handi.
capped children. including children in public or pnvaie
institutions or other care tacilitics. are educaied with chil- ~
dren who are not handicapped. and that special classes.
separate schoohing, o. other remwval of handicapped chil-
dren trom the regular educational environment uccurs only

( when the natuse or severity of the handicap is such that
education in regular classes with the use of supplementary
anls and services cannot be achieved satisfactonly{ )

Q

E lC(c) 1981 CRR Publishing "Company,
reproduced with permission.
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the only logical apprasch How cise would a school board
know whether it s violating Seetion S04

Defendant lodal oftterals argue that they complied with
Section SI4. As sapport tor their positien, they state shat
they determined. in the expulsion procecdings., thee the pliin-

‘ufts were capable of understanding rules and regulations or

right from wrong They also assert that they tound, based
upon a psychalogical evaluation, that plantitfs’ handwaps
were not behasional handicaps (as it would be if plaint:fis
were classified as seniously emotionally disturbed), thereby
precluding any relationship between the nusconduct and the

-applicable handicap We cannot agree that consideration of

the above factors sausfies the requirement of Section $04. A
deternunation that a handicapped student hnew the differeace
between right and wrong 1s nottantamount toa determingtion
that his misconduct was or was nut u'maml'cstal_iqn_.q_f_'&‘x'j__
handiSap THe sevarid promg of tfe school ofticials argunient
is unacceptable. Essenually, what the school officials assen
is that a handicapped student’s misconduct can never be 3
symptom of his handicap. unless he is classified as seriously
emationally disturbed. With regard 1o this argument., the trial
caurt stated:

The defendants concede that a handicapped
student cannot be expelied for misconduct
which is a manifestation of the handicap -
selt. However, they would lint application
of this principle to those students classitied as
seniously emotjonally disturbed. " o the
Court’y view such a generalization is congrany
to the emphasis which Congress hay placed on
individualized cvaluation and consideration
of the problets and needs of handicapped

students.

We agree. In addition, the uncontradicted testimony -
clicited at the prehmunary myunction heanng suggests other. ¢
wise. At the hearing. a prychologist testiigd that a connec-
tion between the nusconduct upon which the expulsions were
based and the plaimtitfs” handicaps may have existed She
reasoned that *"a child with low intellectual functions and
perhaps the lessening ot contral would respond 1o stress or
respond to a threat in the only way that they feel adequate.
which may be verbal aggressive behavior. ™ She further tes-
tified that an orthupedically handicapped child. whom she
had consulted,

[wlould behave in an extremely aggressive
way towards other children and pravoke
fights despute the fact that he was hikely to
come out very much on the short end of the
stick. That this was his way of dealing witn
stress and dealing with a teeling of physical
vulnerability. He would be both aggressive
and hope that he would turn off people and as
a result provoke an attack on him.

The record clearly belies the school officials”
contention.
First Issue

With regard 1o plainuft'S- . the trial court found that the
school officials entrusted with the expulsion decision deter-

S
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nuncd at the disciplinary proceedings that S-1's misconduct
was ungelated to ns handicap. The tnal court, however, held
that this deter:mnation wis made by school board otficrals
who Liched the necessan expertise o makessuch a deternima-
ton The trial court armi ed at ths conclitsion by holdmg that
an expulston is a change m educational placement Under 45
CER Y1210 83%andy and 45 CFR Y 83.351eudy."
cvaluations and placement decisions must be made by a
specttized and hnowledgeable group of perons

The tral coant’s indng presenis the novel issue m this
coroait whiether an expulsion is g change m educational
placesent. thereby invohing the procedural protections of
buth the EHA and Section 304 ot the Rehabihtation Act. In
deciding this wsue, the EHA and Secuon 504, as remedial
stintes. should be broadly applied and Iiberally construed in
lavor o proniding a tree and appropriate education to handi-
«dpped students.

The LHA, Section 504. and their implementing regula-
tons Jo not provide this court any dircetiun on this issue. We
tind the reasoning of the district court inStars v. Nappi . 443
F. Supp 1235 (D. Conn. 1978), persuasive. In Suiart, a
child was diagnosed as having a major leaming disability
caused by either abrain disfunction or a perceptual disorder.
She challenged the use of disciphnary procecdings which, it
completed, would have resulted in her expulsion tor par-
teigatng in a schoolwide disturbance. The trial count held
that the proposed expulsion constituted a change in educa-
tonal placement, thus requiring the school otficials to adhere
t the procedural protections of the EHA. In so holding. the
court stated: ’

The right to an education in the least restric-
tive cnvironment may be circurivented f
schools are permitted 1o expel handicapped
children {without tollowing the procedures
prescribed by ‘the EHA] . An expulsion
has the effect notonly of changing a student’s
placement, but also of restnicting the availa-
bility of altemative placements. For example,
plantiff’s expulston may well exclude her
fromn.a placement that 1s appropriate tor her
acadenic and social development. This result
flics.in the Sace of the explicit mandate of the
handicapped act which requires that_all
placement decisiops be made n conformity
with a child’s right 1o an educauon in the least
restrictive environment. [Citation omitted. |

FASC R 2 l2ta 533(aK3) provides m pertinent part that.

ta In interprenng evajuation data and m making
Placemeet veistons, cach public agency shall: )
-~
t3; :nsure that the placenient decision s made by a
group of persons, including persons knowledgeable about

e ld, the awaning of the évaluation data. and the
placenkent ophions

TS C R Y84 35(cud) provades in pertinent part that;

terIn merprehing evaliation data and m niak ing pla -
en deentons. d recipient shall (3y ensure that the place-
et devision as made by a group of persons, including
persoms know ledgeable about the child. the meaning of ihe
evaluation data. and the placesment options
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443 F. Supp at 129243

We agree with the district court i Suears . and theretar
hold that a termination ol educational services, oveasioned
by an expulsion. 1s a change n cducational placement
thereby mvoling the procedural protections of the £HA

The proposition that an expulsion is a change n cduca.
tonat placement has been cited with approval in Sherry
New York Staie Edweanon Deparonent, 379 ¢ Supp 1328
(W D.NY 1979) (legally blind and deat student that sut-
tered from brain damage and emotional disorder which mzde
her self” abusine suspended because of msuticient statt o
care tor herd,and Docy Aoger. 9301 Supp 225(N D lid.
1979) (EHA case in which nuldly ‘mentally handicapped
student was cxpetled for the remannder ot school erm tor
disciplinary reasons pursuant to the procedures provided tor
all Indiana public school disciphnany expulsions). As stated
by the district court in Doe v, Aoger . our holding that expuls
sion of a handicapped student constitutes a change 1n sduca-
tional placement distinguishes the handicapped student in
that, “"unlike any other disruptive child, betore a disruptine
handicapped child can be expelléd, it must be determined
whether the handicap 1s the cause of the child's propensity to
disrupt. This issuc must be deternuned through the change ot
placement procedures required by the handwapped act
Dae v. Koger, 480 F Supp. at 229."

Sceond Issue

The school ofticuals pomt out that a group of persons
entrusted with the cducational placenent decision could
never decide that expulsion s the correct placement tor a
handicapped student. thus sulating a handicapped student
from expulsion as a dusciplinary (ool They turther state inat
Florida law does not contemplate this result because expul-
sion is specitically provided tor under Florda law as a discr-
plinary tool for all students. While the tral count dechined 1o
decide the issue whether a handicapped stadent can ever be
expelled, we cannot ignore the gray arcas that may result if
we do not deeide this question We theretore find that expul-
sion is sull a proper disciplinan tool under the EHA and
Section S04 when proper procedures are utihized and under
proper circumstances. We cannot, however, authorize the .
complete cessation of educational services during an expul- -
sion period.

* This opinion does not infninge upon the traditionat author-
1ty and responsibility of the local school board to ensure a
sale school environiment. A comment to the regutations pro-
vides: " While the placement may not be changed, this does
not preclude dealing with children who are endangenng
themselves or others ** 45 C F.R 1212 513 (comment

Thus the local school board eetams the authonty to remove g
L adwezpped child from a particular setting upon a proper
tinding tha! the ehild is endangerimg himsclt or others: In
such case. the child would of course be remanded o the
special change of placement procedures for reassignment 1o
an appropnate placenient It s appropridie o superimpose
this very Inmited authority. as contemplated by the above
quoted comment, because nothing in the statute. the regutla-
tions. o the legistative history suggesis that Congress in-
tended to remose trom local school boards —who alone are
accountabic to the eatire schuul communny —their long

recognized suthorty and fespoasibility to ensure a sate
school environment. g
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Third lssue

State defendants focus their attention on the fact that,
with the exception ot S-1, none of the expelled plantitts
raised the argument, untl eleven months sdter expulston, that
they cauld not be expelled vnless the proper penons deter-
wined that thewr handicap did not bear a causai connechon to
their misconduct. By this assertion, we assume that State
defendants contend that the handicapped students waisved
their right to this determunation. The assue s thesetore
syuarely presented whether the burden of ruistng the question
whether a student’s nusconduct 1s @ manifestatgon ot the
student’s handicap 1s on the State amd local ofticials hron the
student. The EHA, Section S04, and their implementing
regulations do not preseribe who mustraise thisissuc. Inlight
of the remedial purposes of these statutes, we tind that the
burden 15 on the tocal and State detendants to make this
determinatton. OQur conclusion is buttressed by the fact that in
most cases, the handicapped students and their parents tack
the wherewithal erther 10 know or to assert thcnr rights under
the EHA and Scction 504,

Fourth Issue

The next issue 1s whether the EHA and its implementing
regulations required the loc '« detendantsto grant §-7 and §-9
due process heanings School wtficials suggest that because
S-7 and S-9 had voluntanly withdrawn from school. they
were not entitled to due process hearings. They also suggest
that the conference olfered by the superintendent was an
adequate substitute for the due process hearmgs. They cite 45
C F R 1214.506" as support tor their argument. Under thus
regulatior the Department of Health, Educaton, and Wel-
fare (HEW) (Health and Human Resources), states i a
comment that mediation can be used w resolve difterences
between parents and agencies without the developmient o an
adversanal relatonstup. The Jusuce Department, as amicues
curiac . and the tral court, point out that under 20 US.C.
$ 1315(b)( 1), parents and guardians of handicapped children
must have ‘"an opportunity to present complaints wath re-
spect fo anv matter relating to the identiticatton, evatuation,
of ‘educatianal placement of the child or the provision of a
(ree appropriate pubhe education to such child. " The statute
also states, in Section 1415(b), that **whenever a complaint

* The comment 10 45 C F R 121a.506 mplementing 20
US C §I4I6bK) provutes:

Comment: Many States have painied 1o the success of
using nediabion s 4 INICFvEnINg sICH PROF i conducting
a tormal due process heanng. Although the process of
medistion 1s nol regured by the satute o these reguola-
tony, an agency My winsh o suggestinediation sndispates
concerning the identitictson, evaluatton, and cducational
Maccinent of handicapped childeen, and the rovision of a
teee appropriate public educationto those chitdren Media:
twns have been conducted by members of Stake cduca-
tional agencies or focal educational ageney personnel who
were nof previously involy dl i the panticular case  In
many yases. mednation feads 1o resotution ot diterences
between parents and agencies withoot the des clopment of
an adversanal relat oship and with nummal emotional -
srens However. medunion misy oot be ased 1o deny or
delay o parent’s nigh' s under this subpan

(c) 1981 CRR PubTishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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has been recen ed under paragraph (1 at this subsection, the
parcats or guardian shatt hase an opporenity Tor an impartsat

due process heanng T No eveeption s made tor handi-
capped stdents who voluntanhy withdraw trom school or
previeusly agree to an educationdd placement. With segar tto .
deiendants™ argument under 45 C.F R, § 121a.506, HEW
states in the same comment that mediation may not be used to
deny or delay a parent’s nights under this subpart. In the
arcumstances. the tnal judge correctly found (hat plamtitfs
S$-7 and S-9 were ennitled 1o due process hearings.

fatth Issue

State defendants advance three arguments that descrve
comment  First, they assert that the nal judge erred 1n
analy zing Scction S04 hght ot the Supretne Court' s dect-
sion wn Southeastern Commuonin College v Davis, 44218
397.99S.Cr 2361, 601, Ed 2d980(1979). Inthat case, the
1ssue was whether Section S(4, which protub is discrinvina.
tion agamst an otherwise quahied handicapned indivicual
enrolled in a Federally tunded program, solely by reason of
his handicap. forbids professional schools trom imposing
physical qualificanons for adnussion to their clinical training
program. The Supreme Court held that Section 504 did not
forbid professional schools from imposing physical qualifi-
cations tor admission. Without discassing Southeastern any
turther, 1t is clear that it does ot apply to this case. Physical
guahiications are not at issue in this case Furthermord, we
do not deal here wath a protessional school.

Secondhy . Siate detendants argue that the tnal count
erred i mposing the FHA as @ requigement at the e ot the
expulsons beeause the FHA was not etteenve in Flonda unuid
September 1. 1978 “The tnal count did not impose the EHA
as a requirement at the teme of the expulsion The court tound
that the expelled plainutts became entiled to the protections
of the EHA on September 1, 1978 As such, the expelled
plaintiffs became entitled to a tree and appropnate education
n the least restnctive environment  In fact, under 20 U.S.C.
§1312(3),"! because plamntiffs were not receiving educa-
tional services on September 1, 1978, they fell within a
special class of handicapped students entitled to priosity
regarding the provision of a free and appropriate education.
The only way in which the expulsions dould have continued.
asof September 1, 1978, 15 if a qualified group of individuals
determined that no relationship existed between the pluin-
1iffs’ handicap and their misconduct. Furtherniore. Sec-
tion 504, cffecuve at the time of the expulsions, provides
protections and proccdurcs similar to those of the EHA. See,
North v. Dustrict of Colieabia Board of Education. 471 F.
Supp. 136 (D. D.C. 1979

Finally, the State officials arguc that the trial court
improperly entered the injunction against them. They asaest

20U S.C §1412(3) provades in pertinent part that:

tnorder to quahity tor aswistance vizz oo this subchapter in
any tiscal vear, a State shall demonstrate 1o the Comnus.
stoner that the totlowang condibons are met.

(3) The Staie has estabhshed prionities for providing a
free appropnate public edncation 1o all handieapped chil-
dren . . . tinst wuh respect 1o handicapped cluldren who
are not recetving an education| |




that they lacked the authority to intervene in the expulsion
proceedings because disciplinary matiers are exclusively
local. While this argument may be true regarding nonhandi-
capped students, it 1s inapplicable to handicapped students.
Expulsion proceedings are of the type that may serve to deny |,
an education {o those entitled to it under the EHA. Under 20
tL8.C. § 1412(6). the State educational agency is:

[R]esponsible for assuring that the require-
menfs of this subchapter be carried out and
that all educational programs tor handicapped
children within_ the Siate, including all such
programs administered by any other State or
local agency. will be under the general super-
vision of the persons responsible for educa-
tional programs for handicapped children in
the State educational agency and shall meet
educational standards of the State educational
agency.

~

Cleatly. the state officials were emipowered to intenvene 1n
the expulsion proccedings under 20 U.S.C. $ 1312¢6)

CONCLUSION

Accordingly, we hold that under the EHA. Section Sud,
and their implementing regulations: (1) betore a handicapped
student can be expelled, a trained and knowledgeable group
of peisons must determine whether the student's nusconduct
bears arelationship to his handicapping condition; (2) that an
expulsion is a change in educational placement thereby wn-
voking.the procedural protections of the EHA and Sec-
tion 504; (3) that expulsion is a proper disciplinary tool under
the EHA and Section 504, buta complete cessation of educa-
tionat services is not: (4) that -7 and -9 were entuled to due
process hearings: and (S) the tnal judge properly entered the
preliminary injunction against the Stute detendants In the
circumstances, the trial judge did not-abuse his discreton in
entering the injunction.

AFFIRMED.

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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APPENDIX E

C SUMMARY OF OCR COMPLAINTS LOFS

Community (11.) Unit School District Number 300
March 19, 1980

Complaint alleged school district denied handi-
capped student FAPE as result of expulsion. District
took posttion thut behasin ot student which led 10
expulsion (vandahzing schoal buses) had nothing 10 do
with his exceptionality. that he had been totally
mainstreamed and should be treated as a regular
student.

HELD , expulsion of student resulted in total denial
of FAPE. Distnct violated Section 504 by not timely
p recvaluating student hetore expulsion. Under Reg.

121a.534(b). an LEA must reevaluate at least every
three years, upon parental or teacher request, or when
warranted. Since student had not been reevaluated
prior to expulsion, which constituted significant
change in placeinent. district had no data upon which
. "to base an appropriate placement or its assertion that
C student’s behavior had nothing to do with his handicap.
The expulsion heanng held prior to the expulsion did
not meet due process requirements of Section 504,
Parents must be provided an opportunsty for due proc-
- ess hearing affer reevaluation it dissatitied with place-
- ment. District’s centention that studeni had been to-
tally mainstreamed due to removal from L. 1. resource
services was without ment due 10 fact district failed to
. vonduct an ¢valuation before discontinuing service,
Reg. 84.35tap OCR addiionally found that IEP de-
o veloped for student did not contain statement of short-
’ term anstructional goals as required by Reg. 121a.346,
" and that Jistrict had not provaded student with counsel-
ling services set forth :n tirst evaluation. District was
requested to recvaluate student’s placement, revise its
suspension dnd expulsion procedures. and assure that
student would reccive tutoring for time lost by
expulsion.

®

. (c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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Corinth Municipal Separate School Disirict

o

* June €, 1980

Parent alleged that school district discriminated
against student on basis of race and handicap in admin-
istration of disciplinary sanctions.

HELD, although allegation of racial discrimination
could not be substantiated, school district violated
§ 504 in its evaluation, placement, and suspension of

. student. First, district identified student as having pos-
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sible handivapping condition in November, 1978 but
failed to initiate required preplacement evaluation until
oae year later, not a **reasonable time'* under §504.

» student was temporarily placed in EMR pro-
gram, asalternative to more severe disciplinary action,
without preparation of preplacement evaluation or

" IEP. By moving student from regular class to EM&

program without taking appropriate procedural
safeguards, district could not determine whether EMR

1 - class would be least restrictive environment for pupil.
- Third, district assumed student was handicapped by

placing him in EMR class. Thercfore, by suspending

+#tudent subsequent to that placement, and subsequent
3., tohisidentification as qualified handicapped student in

1978, district violated §504 and State procedural
safeguards; under State law, district was prohibited

“from suspending any handicapped studént for more

than three days, and then only if bebavior constituted a
threat to others or an emergency, while under § 504
district was obligated to determine whether behavior
leading to suspension was related to handicap and
whether current placement and subsequent removal
were appropriate. Moreover, disirict violated § 504 by
failing to notify parent of right to challenge suspension

gh due process hearing. To remedy violations,
district was advised to evaluate and reinstate student,
provide for parent’s participation in evaluation and
placement, and provide compensatory assistance, in.
cluding tutorial and summer programs, to overcome
effects of discrimination,

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,

reproduced

with permission.
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Fayette (MO) R-11I Schoo! District
October 18, 1978

Complainant alleged ihat cighth-grade child was
denied a free and appropriate public education when
LEA failed 1o acknowledge child's handicap ard pro-
vide educational program suitable to his needs. and
then expelled him from school for disruptive behavior.
Complainant further maintained that expulsion hearing
denied child appropriate due process under § 504,

HELD, LEA violated § 504 and Reg. 84.33 by 7yl
ing to make: any attempt to identify child's special
education needs or recommend anpropriate placement,
in spite of clear and available evidence that child was
handicapped as defined under Reg. 84.3(j) and that
child's academigc and behavioral problems were related
§ 504 andsReg.
erpretation No.
without provid-
ing either an impartial hearing or due process review
procedures. Compliance with EHA, 20U .S.C. § 1415
is one means by which LEA can meet § S04 due proc-

to this handicap. LEA further violated

84.36, as intérpreted in OCR Policy Int

6, when it expelled child from schoo}

£3s requircments.

<

1979 CRR Publishing Company,
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lLower Snoqualmie Valley School District No. 407

September 24, 1980

.

Official with Washln;..lon Association for Children
with Learning Disabilitics brought complaint which
alleged school district violated § S04 by: (1) requininy
students ‘to participate in Saturday Alternative-to-
Suspension Program when such-program swas not in-

cluded in-1EPs, (2) making access to student records
contingent on paying fee, (3) tking retalistory wchion
against handicapped students by su-pending them in
direct relation to parents seching their righis,
(4) suspending/expetling students without takhing into
consideration handicapping condition. (5) failing o
notify parents vf district’s duty to provide FAPE and
ignoring reyuests for due process hearings and (6)
failing to follow required evwuation and plau:mcm
procedures.

HELD ., investigation of first three alicgations
showed no violution of § S04 because {11 evidence
demonstrated parents’ awareness that Saturday
Alternative-to-Suspension Program was optional. not
required; (2) fees charged parents were for copies of
records, not for right to inspect fiies: and (3) OCR
could not corroborate that district was suspending stu-
dents in direct relution to parents secking thewr right-
However, because it was impossible for OCR to de
termine whethicr violation occurred since district de-
stroyed discipline records at end of year, district was
sdvized (o retain files for at least three years in order to
meet § 504 requirements. OCR did find that district
violated § 504 by: (4) not differentiating between

- bandicapped and nonhandicapped students in terins of
soepznsion and corpcral punishmept; OCR informed
‘district it had 1 include in its disci procedures a
process for determining whether

cmsed by a haridicap; (5) failing to notify pa-
least an snnual basis of its duty to provide a FAPE,
requiring mediation before scheduling due process
hearings, and (6) failing to properly implement 1EPs
aad failing ‘o provide parental notification of pro-
cedwal safeguards concerning ecvaluation and

»

(c) 1980 CRR Pubiishing Company,
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, " Seattie (WA) School District No. §
- October 16, 1980. BTN

%.. - Complainant allcged that school district violated .
.- $504 because of its suspension and expulsion peoce- -
L dures for handicapped students, - ..

HELD, district violated § S04 by suspending/
expelling 323 special education students during 1977
78 and.1978-79 school years_for indefinite periods of

. time ﬂit;».ouifm.sgnductinu placement evaluation
and preplacement conference ar providin duc process
si:@gu%f]ﬁvcsﬁguﬁdﬁ'ﬁﬁ‘éﬁn istrict’s pol-

. icy called for pre-disciplinary conference to determine

- whether student’s disruptive behavior was related to:
handicapping condition or result of inappropriate ~
placement. However, procedure was insufficient to

B

" . - meet requirements of Reg. 104.35; 75 percent »f stu-

\ ) .. . dents sampled were a0t provided appropriate evalua-

\ ;... tion conference while 25 percent were not provided

) any conference. Morcover, of 75 percent who did

C ) attend conferznce, in 40 percent of cases, fio determi-

- nation was made as to whether reason for expulsion
was related to handicap and, in cases where it was
determined that hehavior was related to handicap,
specific program changes recommended by conference
participants were not implemiented. On issue of due

* process safeguards, district failed to provide students
and/or parents ‘with advance notice that it was con-
templitin'g a placement change and, although al* stu-
dents or parents received written notice of district's
intent to expel, none of notices indicated that student’s
removal from schoo! constituted a placement changeor
that reevaluation and placement conferences had or

, had not taken place. District was advised to review its

" procedures: specifically, to respond to seriously dis-
ruptive behavior through use of emengency removals
or short-term suspensions and to insure that student

- = “excluded for more than 10 days out of school year be
. -reevaluated aad placed as soon after removal as -
' T possible. s ‘ o
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| APPENDIX F

P OCR COMPLAINT LOFS: FULL TEXT
-’ .

Community (IL, Unit School District Number 300
March 19, 1980 -

Complaint alleged school district denied handi-

' capped. student FAPE as result of expulsion. District’ Theodore{ - |. Inthat complaint Mrs.{ —} I
o took position that behavior of student which led to that the Community Unit Sm)l District No. 300“.(*:::
expulsion (vandalizing school buses) had nothing to do inafter referred to as the District) has denied Theodore, a
with his exceptionality, that he had been totally special education student. a free appropriate education as a
* mainstreamed and should be treated as a regular result of his expulsion. Reg. 84.33(a) of the regulations
mﬁi‘TD expulsion of student resulted in total denial : f,tglalljcgbecltlin%Scctiananme Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
. S ! ; 9 US.C. 3§ 45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.33(a) states i
of FAPE. District violated Scction S04 by not timely . piens: ¥704. 45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.33(a) staes that reci
‘ reevaluating student before expulsion. Under Reg. . shall provide a free appropriate public educa.
1212.534(b), un LEA must reevaluate at least every tion to each qualified handicapped person
three years. upon parental or teacher request, or when who is in the recipient’s jurisdiction, regard-
warranted. Since student had not been reevaluated less of the nature or severity of the persons ;
prior to expulsion, which constituted significant handicap. \
change in placement. district had no data upon which Similarly, Reg. 84.35(a) requires: i

to base an appropriatc placement or its assertion that
student’s behavior had nothing to do with his handicap.
The expulsion hearing held prior 1o the expulsion did
not meet due process requirenients of Section 504.
Parents must be provided an opportunity for due rroc-
ess hearing after reevaluation if dissatified with place-

a recipient that operates a public elementary |
or secondary education program shall conduct |
an evaluation of any person who, becausc of |
his handicap, needs or 1 belicved 1o peed

special education or related services before

taking any action with respect 1o the initial

ment. District’s contention that student had been to- o e ) e
' C " tally mainstreamed duc to remaval from L.D. resource ﬁ’:;‘,'ﬂf,:' ;::(:::,,pn:t::?‘ l::vr‘:ﬁz{tr‘;,::.:ﬁt:,':l
services was without merit due to fact district failed to " nificant change iy placement. (Emphasis
conduct an evaluation before discontinuing service, added.) :
> Reg. 84.35(a). OCR additivnally found that 1EP de- . :
veloped for student did not contain statement of short- = Pursuam'lo .\'uc.h eqfonccmcm responsibility, this Office
term instructional goals as required by Reg. 121a.346, . conducted an investigation, which included informiation pro-
. and that district had not provided student with counsel- vided by your Districtand information gathezed by a memiber
ling services set forth in first evaluation. District was of our staff during the on-silc visit. As a result of this
requested 1o reevaluate swudent’s plucement, revise its investigation, we have determined thet the Dundee i)
suspension and expulsion procedures. and assure that Community Unit School District is failing to comply with
student would rzceive tutoring for time lost by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 reganding ity
* expulsion, provision of free appropriate educational services 1o Theo-
: . dore and other handicapped srudents suspendedrexpelled
without the procedural safeguards provided by Section 504.
- This letter sets forth a summary of our determinations.
Dr. Robert W. Trevarthen s L
Supmnlc_n_dcnl _ ' : Evaluation Procedures
Comninity Unit Sthool - )
District No. 300 A. Reevaluation
, ‘&ﬁ:e s;"l":j;f%', " ‘ Examination of Theodore's schooi records shows that
’ . . Theodore has not been given an evaluation since Feb.
Re: V.80-1018 ‘ fuary 28. 1976. Mrs. [ lullcgcsthatshehasasked for
o o a reevaiuation on several occasions but that the District said
This is to inform you of our deiermination with respect she would have to pay for it. There is no written evidence to
to the complaint filed by Mis | }on behalf of her son substantiate Mrs. [ I's request for a reevaluation.

' Y
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Reg. $4.35(d) of the Section 503 Regulations requires
the Recipient t0: .

provide periodic recvalustions of students
who Rhave beea provided special education
0d related services. Recvaluation procedures
consistent with the Edu~ation for the Handi-
capped Act (EHA), 20 U.S.C. § 1401 e1 5eq..
13 one.means of meeting this requirement.
(EHA"s implementing Regulation reguires
that a reevaluation be given at least every 3
years or anytime at parental ot teacher request
or if warranted. (45 C.F.R. Reg.
1212.534(b))

Based on the above, the preponderance of the evidence
established that the District has violated Reg.'84.35(d) by not
providing Theodore { 1 a tim dy reevaluation. The
District is required to evaluate handicapped children every 3
years; Theodore's last evaluation was over 3 years ago at the
time of his suspension. ,

B. Developmen: of IEP

Our investigation further revcaled that Theodore
t ] was fast provided an individualized educational
program (IEP) Apnil 8, 1979, In reviewiny this IEP we found
that it did not include a statement of short-term goals.
Section 1401(19) of the EHA defines an:! specifies the

required contents of an {EP. An appropriate TEP ust
include: ,

(A) a statement of present levels of educa-

tiona) performanceof such child. (B) a sate-

ment of annual goals, including, short-term

instructional objective, (C)a statement of the

specific educational services to be provided to

such child, and the extent to which such child

will be abic to participate in regular cduca-

tional programs, (D) the projected date for

initiastion and antidiputed duration’ of such

services, and (E) appropriate objective

critcria and evaluation procedures and

schedules for determining. on at Jeast an an-

nual basis, whether instructional objectives

are being achieved. (See also 45 C.F.R. Reg.

1212.346)

Section 9.18a(4) of The linois Rules dnd Regulations
To Govem the Administration und Operation of Special
Education at Section 9.18a(4) is identical to the abuve quoted
section of EHA. )

Reg. 84.33(b) of the Section S04 Regulations defines
the appropriate cducation as the provision of regular or spe-
cial education and related services that are designed to meet
individun! educational nceds of handicapped persons as

ly as the needs of the nonhandicapped are met. Reg.
84.33(bX2) states that one meuns of meeting this standard is
implementation of an IEP developed in accordance with
" EHA. Where adistrict is providing services to a handicapped
student purssant to an 1IEP, and pursuant to the Banon
Special Educatio~ regulations. Section S04 compliunce re-
quires that the 1EP conforns to EHA requirements.

9 .
~ERIC¢).1980 CRR Publishine Company,
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The 1EP contained in the filz of Theodor [ l
dated April 8, 1979, does not conply with the requireinents
of EHA in that it does not contain a statement of short-term
instructicnal objectives. Thercfore, it does not comply with
the requirements of Scction 504.

Based on the preponderance of the evidence as set forth
above, we find the District tn violation of Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 for not providing an appropnate
IEP to Theodere | ).

1.
Placement Procedures

A. Placement Chauge Resulting from Mother's Request

The School District has stated that Theodore has not
been receiving Learning Disability (L.D.) Resource services
since September, 1979 because of Mrs: | I's verbal
demand that Theodare not he required to attend. Mrs.
{ } concurred that she did want Theodore out of the
L.D. Resource room because of his complarnt thut he was not
receiving any instruction. There 15 nothing in Theodore's
record to substantiate what Mrs. | I's reasons were

It should also be noted that according to the District s
Special Education Department manual of page 42 11979 o
staffing is required before a change in placement. Reg.
84.35(a) of the Section 504 Regulations requires that before
taking uny action which anounts to a significant change in
placement an cvaluation inust be conducted.

There is noeviden  ihat the District conducted such an
evaluation before discontinuing L.D. Resource services fo
Theodore { ]. Upon discontinuance of these services
Theodoref - | nolonger received any spectial education
services. This constituted a signifi-ant change in placenient.
pric+to which the District was required to conduct an evalui-
tion. Therefore. tlic weight of the evidence establishes that
the district violated Section S04 by not conducting an evalua-
tion before discontinuing L.D. scrvices to Theodore
{ ]. 45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.35.))

B. Expulsion ;

Theodore { I, a sophomore student at Crown
High School, wis suspended on October 9. 1979 for van-_
dalizing school buses on school property . which took place
Scptember, 1979, Theodore was subsequentls cxpelted on
October 22. 1979 until September 1980. Untl that ume
Theodore had been classified ay # special education student,
enrolled in the Learning D: aodities Resource program siee
1976.

The District has justitied Theod:we's expulsion on the
premises that Theodore's behavior had nothing to do with his
exceptional charactenstic (a nunor awditory memory prob.
lem) and that the Wlinos Rules and Regulations To Govern
the Administration and Operatwon of Specral Education intemt

. istoestablish parity between the handicap;cd and nonhands

capped students for behavior that they can control.

The District alvo took the postion that ‘Theodore .
**totally mainstreanmed,”” nut using the L.D. Resource faci!
ity and should be treated the same as regular students

-
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In analyzing the last conzention of the District it should -

be noted that the fact that Theodore was no longer receiving
L.D. Resource services did not change his Special Education
classification. This classification cannot be changed prior to
reevaluation determining that he no longer required such
setvices. (See 4SC.F.R. Reg. 81.35(a)) Therefore, because
he was still cla. sified as a Special Educaion student, Theo-
dore { } was entitled to a reevaluation before any
significant change in placement.

‘sexpulsion constituted a change in pla.ement
which resulted in a total denial of a free appropriate educa-
tion. Before such 2 drasuc change a reevaluation was re-
quited. Theodore was entitled to remain in his present place-
ment (at the Crown High School) pending a reassessment or
reevaluation of his special education needs.

.. The fact that an expulsion hearing was held prior to the
expulsion does not discharge the District's ~responsibility
under Section S04. Without 2 timely reevaluation the Disirict

did not have adequate data to determine the appropriate

placement for Theodore |
ate defore reevaluation.

' Based on the weight of the evidence we find the District
has not complied “ith Section S04 of the Rehabilitation Act
and Reg. 84.35(2) of its implementing,_regulations.

Morcover, the District took this action in the absence of
both the results of a time:y reevaluation and an evaluation
prior to discontinuing L.D. services. a sigmificant change in
placeivent. Therefore, the District did not have the requircd
information to determine the relationship betwcen the stu-
dent’s handicap and hisbehavior. Additionally . this behavior
took place in the absence of recommended counselling ser-
vices as noted below.

1. Expulsion is inappropri-

’

. Il
Provision of Services

In his first evaluation, dated April 5. 1977, it was rec-
omsacnded that Theodor receive counselling services to
assist him in avoiding the influence of **fricnds who were not
achievers.” The complainant states that Theadore has not
received such services There is no evidence in Theodore's
file thut he received counselling services. ’

Based on the preponderance of the evidence we find the
District in violation of Scction S04 for not providing appro-
priate refated aids and services as required by the Section 504
Regulations, 45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.33(a). .

v,
District’s Policy on Suspensions and Expulsions

In regard to the District’s drafc copy of Special Educa-
tion Procedures und Policies., the section on Suspensions and
Expulsions should be revised to coniply with Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Actand Reg 84.33(2) of ity implementing
reguiations.

As stated above, suspension of a handicapped stusdent is
a change in placement for which a stafting is required. The
District’s rules merely sftord the parent a4 due process hear-
ing Such a hearing 1y nappropriate prior to a staffing. A duc
process hearing is approprisie atter a staffing it the parcut is
dissatisfied with the placcment, -

In summuary, we find that the Community Unit School
District No. 300 has denied Theodore ] a free appro-
priate education in violation of Section S04 of the Rehabilita-
ticn Actof 1973,29U.8.C. § 794, hecause of the tollowiny:

1. Failure to provide a timely reevaluation which is
required every three years;

2. Failure to provide an appropriate Individualized
Educational Program (IEP) to conform with EHA
standards; Teds last IEP did not include a statement
of short-term instructional objectives.

. Failure to conduct an evaluation before 3 change in
placement, L.D. services were suspended (at Mrs.
{ I's request).

- Failure to let Theodore remutin in his present place-
ment pending a rcassessment or reevaluation of his
special educational needs: expulsion represented
total denial of placement.

This Office is requesting that you provide us with
report within 30 days of the date of this letter regarding the
following:

1. The provision of a reevaluation and placement in the

least restrictive environment for Theodore |
in accordance with 45 C:F.R. Reps. 84.32, 84.35,
84.36.

. The revision of the Suspension and Expulsion pro-
cedures as cited in Sceuon 1V of this letter.

- Assurunce that Theadore | | will be provided
additional tutoring for the time he has lost (in school)
hy the expulsion.

You have 30 days to produce cvidence refuting our
finding, if you so desire. You also have the opportunity (o
distuss these findings personally with this Office if you
notify us within 10 days of the date of this letter. You should
abso be aware that we are notifying Mrs. { } of our
determination. .

Reg. 84 # | of the regulution implementing Section S04,
45 C.F.R. Reg. 84.61. adopts and incorporates the Title |V
procedural regulations contained at 45 C.F.R. Reg. 80.6.
80.11 and 45 C.F.R. Reg. -81. In accordance with Reg.
80.7(d) of the Title VI Regulation, 45 C.F.R. Reg. 80.7td).
this Office wishes to ohtitin voluntary compliance. it possi-
hle.

This letter is not intended and should not be constru 2d to
cover any other complaints under Section 504 of the Re-
habilitation Act of 1973 which mity <t in your Schoo!
District and which are not speciticalty discussed hereig.
Also, please be aware under the Frecdom of Information Act.
SUS.C. 582, 45C.F.R. Part 5. it s the policy of the Office
tor Civil Rights that copiss of this letter and related materials
ny be released upon request

If you have any questions, ~bzise do not hesitate to
contact Mr., Lawrence P. Washing...e. Director, Elementury
and Secondary Educatton Division at (312) 353-2540).

Kenneth A Munes
Director

Office for Civil Rights
Region V

1980 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.




IText Provided by ERIC

Corinth Municipal Separate School District
June 6. 1980

Parent alleged that school district discriminated
againststudent on basis of race and handicap in admin-
istration of disciplinary sanctions.

HELD , although allegation of racial discrimination
could not be substantiated. school district violated
§ 504 in its evaluation. placement. and suspension of
student. First, district identificd student as having pos-
sible handicapping condition’in November, 1978 but
failed to initiate required preplacement evaluation until

* one year later, not a *"reasonable time"" under § S04.
Second, student was temporarily placcd in EMR pro-
gram. as altemative to more severe disciplinary action,
without preparation of preplacement evaluation or
IEP. By moving student from regular (lass to EMR
program without taking appropriate procedural
safeguards, district could not determine whether EMR

— class would be least restrictive environment for pupil.

Third, district assumed studehit was handicapped by
placing him in EMR class. Therefore, by suspending
student subsequent to that placement. and subsequent
to kisidentification-as qualified handicapped student in
1978, distnct violated § 504 and State procedural
safeguards: under State law. district was prohibited
from suspending any handicapped swudent for more
than three days. and then only if behavior constituted a
threat to others or an emergency. while under § 504
district was obligated to determine whether behavior
leading to suspension was rclated to handicap and
whether cument placement and subsequent remova;
were appropriate. Moreover. district violated § 504 by
failing to notify parent of right to challenge suspenston
through due process hearing. To remcedy violations.
district was advised to evaluate and renstate student.
provide for parent’s participation in ¢valuation and
placement, and provide compensatory assistance, in-
cluding tutorial and summer programs. to overcome
effects of discrimination. ’

Dr. 0.Wayne Gann

Superintendent

Corinth Municipal Separate School Distnct
212 Chambers

Corinth. Mississippi 38834

Re No. (:4.80-1028

This isto notify you that we have completed our imesti-
gation of the above complaint against your school disinct
The complainant alleged discrimination on the basis of race
and handicap 1n the suspeesion of hier son trom school

Q
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We have detenmined that the disirict did not siolate Tatle
Vlof the Civil Rights Act of 1964 in that race was nut a tactor
in the suspension of | ]. the complamant’s sor. As vou
know. we are currently investigating another complaint al-
leging systemie discrimination on the basis of race in the
adminisiration of disciplinary sanctions agamst black stu-
dents Qur letier of findings will be released upon completion
of our investigation of that complant

We have determined that the district violated § S04 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 in the evaluation, placement.
and subsequent removal of | ]. a handwapped student,
trom school.

We arc enclosing a statement of findings that hsts the
specific violations. cites the regulanons of § S04 that apply.
and stipulates the requirements recessary to comet the
violations.

As you know. our office is under court order to resolve
investigations understrict time frames “The order provides for
a pericd of 90 days to ncgotiate comphance tollowing a
determination of noncomphance. {f we are unable to
negotiate voluntary compliance. the order requires that ad-
ministrative enforcement action be nitiated by the Depan-
ment within an additional 30 days We must remind you that
tailure 1o correct the violations cited can lead to eventual loss
of Federal financial assistance 14 the district. '

In order to meet the terms of the court. we request that
yoy submit, within’30 days of the date of this letter. the
district's plan to comrect the § 504 iolanons

Under the Freedom of Information Act,.at may be neces-
sary to relcase this document and related correspondence in
responsc (o inquiry.

The Office for Civit Rights remains willing at afl times
10 assist the district to achieve comphiance through voluntary
means. If you have any questions. or if we can offer any
assistance. please do not hesitate to call Mr. W. Lamar
Clements. Director. Elementary and Secondary Education
Division. at area code (404) 221.5930.

William E. Thomas. Director -
Office for Civil Rigiits
(Kegion 1IV)

Statement of Findings for
Corinth Municipal Separate School Distnct
Corinth, Mississippi

A desk investigation of the Corinth MSSD was con-
ducted beginning on January 10, 1980. in response to a
complaint of discrimination. The complainant, Ms.
{ 1. allcged that the district discriminated against

[
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€ [ J. onthe basis of race and handicap in the admimstra- (1) Pencil and paper actiy ities powr
tion .f disciphinary sanctions. (2) Listening and speaking o\ crage
Our otfice has concluded from the inforination provided activities “*fals to parha-
hy the complainant and the district that there is no violation of nate in oral actyities”
Title Viof the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Our decision 1s based L .
on the fact that the allegation of differential treatment on the (3) Listening _a'nd motor poot
bavis ot race 18 not valid because. although | | was the activities 5:""‘;“
only student suspended. the other student involved 1n the (hmugh.c_:'l.:ss dis-
fighung aerdent 1s black We have. therefore., deterquncd cussions
- that ruce was not a tactor in his suspension. {4 Reaction to new poor
We have determimed that the district is i violation of activities
§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and its iinplementing < ) _ )
Regulation occause of its lailuge totake appropriate actions in (5) Reaction to tathure usually 1gnores
the case of | | prior to: (1) initial placement in the {6) Questions does got have
dastrict’s educable mentally retarded program; and. (2) plac- " questions
g him on indetinite suspension. Specificaily. the district . .
l'uﬁcd to take the tollom‘r’lcg aclionspicn v'mlaryion of Regs. (7) Srengths recognizes hasic i
104.33. 104.34 and 104.35 of tue Regulation: . SEht words
a. Conduct a pre-placement evaluation and a reevalua- (8) Weaknesses ;{L?N,‘::); Tzdlng'r. 1
tion as requircd by Reg. 104.35(a)(b)(1) and (2). and vocab: 3 g B <8
(dj. aragranh-
b. Make the placement decision as required by Reg paragraph: 3.0
104.35(c;. Stanford Binet
¢. Develop an educational program designed to mect Total 3 |
the individua! necds of | I. Reg. 104.36(b). .
' d. Ensure that | I. @ qualified handicapped stu- (99 Grades ls,l 2nd 3{"
dent, was provided an educational opportunity in the . ¢ C ¥
_ least restrictive envitonment. Reg. 104,34(a), (b). (1) Weaknesses !‘\1_“'"[’“"3"“"
. ‘tans
(: A capy of the Regulation implementing § 504 1s en- ;::;:J:. problems
clesed tor your conveniencee, )
The bases for our findings arc as follows: The above assessment was made one year after he had
P tnstaal placemens been idenntied as a handicapped siudent and consent was
. ) . L . . Iven to conduct a comprehensine evaluaton The Specral
The .d"?".'c.l tailed lu‘mkc anpmgmu a‘"_‘"}'\ p(';";’r.‘;u !g-"lucutmn report shows that he remained in the rcp;uhr
II(M 34 jnil ';'(';‘;"; gl‘?ﬁ:l‘g\;:l 1;:(.::":;&:1(?»:?' 104.33. acadenie program although he was tailing m three out of four
- o : major academie subjects. The results of thes assessment and
a. Conduct a pre-placement cvaluation. Reg. l I's discipline record are cvidence that the regular
. 104.35@a)b;(1) and (2). academic setting was inappropnate and that there didexista
[ : fal ( b critical and immediate need for a comprehensive evaluation
was identificd as having a possible hap< .ap- to detcrmine appropriate placement tor { 1.
ping condition on November 7, 1978, The dual consent form, signed by the parent on 11/9/18,
Discipline records, interviews with school officials. and shows that | }was identified as a pos'.:lblc handicapped
Mr. Scat, Counselor, Timberhills Mental Health Center, student three months prior o recetving an indefinite three-
canfirm that | } was identified as having a possible month. end-of-the-year suspension Special Education rec-
““behavioral™ problem. and that he had been receiving coun- ords show that the evaluation process was not nitisted until
scling at the Tumbertulls Mental Health Center, at the request 1/22/79. Special Education records also show that the school
of the school distnet counsclor recommended on 1/22/79 that an addstional evalu.
Special education records show that | Jexhibited ation be considered 10 “'rule out the existence of social
weakness in the following arcas: maladjustment problems.* There 1s no evidence to show that
(O St it it xhesoromerciren 6030 Caton v om0 PO
., dggressive behavior . officially designated as a handicapped student on State rec-
(2) “*Emotional — daydreains and sleeps ds because the evaluatio ‘ess W t completed
(3) **Academics — Reading, numbers and spelling™ ords ThLau N process was not completed.
. ) : , . e Regulation (Reg. 104 3(j)) defines a handicapped
(4) *General classroom behavior (aggravates and rson as any person wha (i) has 2 physical or mental
picks on pecrs)™ gmncnt. wh{cﬁcs.uhslannally llml‘l‘s'u;lc or moﬁ rlllft: .:c‘-
C The £5ecial Education Report also shows that in leam- tivities, (i1) has a record of such impairment, or (in) 1s
ing strategies | Jexhibited the following performance: regarded as having such an impawrment. Our office has de.
144 .
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wrmvined that when |~ ] was identified as a qualified
handicapped student, the district was obligated to conduct an
evaluation within a reasonable period of time. One year afier
the initial identitication of | } as a qualified handi-
capped student the preplacement evaluation pro-ess was ni- |
tiated. but to date has not been completed.

The district maintains that there was insutficient nme to
conduct a comprehensive ey aluaton of | ] because ot
his trequent and intermittent suspensions We tound. how-
ever that the distnct had the tollowing number of davs avail-
able 1in which | ] could have been evaluated:

consent given L1978 - 11928778 — 13
12/5/68 1221718 — 35
1722i79 221179 — 22

fiest full school day 823179 ~ 9119779 — 20
919779 - 101579 —_ |6

106

A towal ¢ 106 days throughout 1978-79 and 1979-80
school years (to the date of aur on-sit: investigation) were
avarlable to the district to complete the evaluation process.
Forty -eight days were available aftcr consent for evaluation
was given and prior to | I's first suspension. The pre-
placement evaluation process was not initiated for 53 school
days after the parent gave consent to evaluate.

! The timetable shows that even with three suspensions,
subsequent to receipt of parent consent to evaluate, there was
sufticient opportunity for the district to administer an appro-
priate preplacement evaluation to determine eligibility and
appropriate educational placement.

b. Make the placement decision. Reg. 304.35(c).

The evidence also establishes that the district temporar-
ily placed ( } in Special Educanion (EMR) without an
appropriate preplacement evaluation in violauon of Regp
104.35(a) and (b) of the Regulation.

Interviews conducted with the complainant, e af . and
confirmed by district officials, show that | I's place-
ment in the EMR program was the result of recuning discip-
line problems. He was placed in EMR as an altemative to 2
more severe disciplinary action, pending the initial evalua-
tion and eligibility determination by the R~gionai Screenig
Team. At that time, { ] had been placed i the EMR
program for approximately three months. (The dual consent
for evaluation and placement form does not show the exact
date of placement.)

¢. Develop dn educational program designed 1o meet
the individual needs of { } Reg. 104.33(b).

The distnct circumvented the preplacenient process
when | ] was placed in special education as an altemna-
. uive disciplinary sanction without an snitial evaluation, staf-
fing, and the development of an individualized educational
program designed to meet his individual needs
The provision of an appropriate education. and related
aids and services (i e., counseling) tailored to meet the md:-
vidual needs of this qualified handicapped student, could not
have been provided untii the required evaluation process v s
completed, including all testing, statfing, and developmem
of an indvidualized educational program Therefore, no
individualized education program has been developed.

\

\
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The act of circumventing (e evaluation and statfing .
process docs not negate the distniet’s obligation for providing !
a free appropnate educaiton for this stadent. Section S04 and
its implementing Regulation prohibits the temporany special
educatien placement and provision »f related seryices prior to
a comprchensive evaluation to determme the appropnate
placement and relevant senices.

A umely evaluation was not attorded to | ] pnor
to his imual placement in the special educatnon (EMR)
program.

d. Ensurc that | ] was provided an educ ational
opportunity in the least restrictive eaviromment.
Reg.  104.34¢a)(b).

The district moved | } from the regutar class
sctting to a sell-contained EMR class setting without taking
appropriatc preplacement sateguards (o deternune that a
sell-contained EMR class was the least restrictive environ-
ment to meet kis educational needs.

We found that the district tatled to ensune that | R
a handicapped (EMR) student, was provided an educaiaral
oppodtunity 1 the least restrictive environment.

The district maintains that | I's behavior was
disruptive and constituted a clear danger 1o the other stu-
dents, which warranted immediate suspension The regula-
tion does pravide for removal ot a handicspped student under
tive above conditions. However, the regulation also states thar
& recipient may not exclude any qualitied handicapped
person from a public elementary or secondary education®
unless it 1s demonstrated that the education of the person i
the regular environment with the use of supplementary aids !
and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily ** Regs
104.33(d) and 104 33:)

I the distnict deternmined. through the appropriate re-
view process, that the removal ot { ] trom the cduca-
tional environment was necessary. an altemative education
setting should have been provided

Durning the suspensions, the district. in fact, excluded
f Jtrom "+ education environment and did not chsure
alternative educational program ¢ e.,
homebound) for ts quahfied handicapped student. The sus-
pensions excluded hin from the education process and re-
stricted his opportunity for an altemative educational place-
ment,

The faifure to make such provisions viclated | I's
right to education in the least restricuve environment in
violation of Reg 104.35.

2. Indefinite Suspension

We have found that the district failed to appropnately
review | I's placement pnor to his removal from
school. several times, (suspension) in violation ot Regs.
114.34,104.35and 104.36. The bases for our findings are as
follows:

{ ) was suspended seven times subsequent to his
identification as a qualified handicapped studenmt — from
November 1978 - October 1979 — for a total of 126 days as
of the date of our on-site visit, ([ }is currently serving
a suspension that began October 19, 1979.)

The following is a chronology taken from the disciplin-
ary and spectal education records provided by the district.

j=a
<
TR




C

.

El{[lc {c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

The actions histed oceurred prior to and including the Oc-
tober 19. 1979 ndelinite suspension (termed *expulsion™

by the dustrict) of | )
Date Action Offense
sem *suspended ~. lighting
92178 ¢ suspended (1 day), tighting
102378 3 liks tighting
7y vadl consent o aluation |
placement sent to parent
HY dual consent evaluation’
placement signed by
~ parent
2878 suspended (3 days) fighting
1/578 3 hicks tighting
1277.78 tn senuol suspenston fighung
L1179 in school suspension fighting
(3 days)
12X suspended (1 day) tighting
12279 . “*parent verbally agreed
o put | } in Special
Education (Mr. Johnson's Y
class)™
1122.3079 | ] placed in EMR class
12279 test administered (Boyd)
8178 referred for screening
(classroon teacher)
U819 test administered Adaptive ST
15179 three licks tighting
C221/79  ‘suspended (pending board fighting
hearing) (thre¢ months
end of year)
8/30/79 readnutied on probation on
condition that | ] would
s¢e a counselor at the
Timberhills Mental Health
Center 10 1miprove asaptive
behavior patterns with peers
911279 suspended (1 day) cutting class
10V15/79  suspended (1 day) lighting
10/19/79  suspended (3 months to date) tighting
10:25/79  heasing delayed
11779 Board hearing re 10/19/79 indetinitely
suspension suspended

* Reconds do not indicate the number ot days suspended.

The chronology reveals that { ] was placed in the
EMR program (Mr. Johnson's class) prior to the end of the
1978-79 school year without an initial evaluation and ap-
proval by the Regional Screening Team (RST). He remained
in the program until his 10/19/79 suspension (Ms. Bigger's
class).

The act of initially placing this student 1n the EMR
prograni constituted an assumption of a handicapping condi-
tion and. therefore. subject to the procedurai safcguards sct
forth in the § 504 Regulation Reg. 104.36.

We, therefore, conclude that the distnct failed to pro-
vide an appropriate education for | ). a qualified
handicapped student, in violation of Reg. 104.33(a), (b)(])
and (b)(2).

District officials stated that the school district has
adopted and implemented evaluation, placement, and due
process policies and procedures in accordance with the Mis-
sissippi State policics and operating procedures for excep-

-

reproduced with permission. 146

[ 59
(O
e

tional childrea. Mame 1.1 Holladay. 3 EHLR 5S1:109
[1979-80 DEC | |
We noted that Mississippr St Oepartment memoran-

dum DI-SE Bulleun No 79, ¢tieou.e Apnl 15, 1979, pro-
hibus the removal ot a handicapywed studént. except under |
certain vendiwons Only conditon “¢™ 15 relevant to this |
isstie. This condition states that, |
“"a handicapped student can be removed only |
il the child’s behaviog represents an im-
mediate physical danger o himvherself or
others or constitutes a clear emergency within
the school such that remenal trom school 1
essential Such removal shall be for no more
than three (3) days and shall tnigger a formal
comprehensie review ot the child's IEP. If
there is disagreement as to the appropriatc )
placement of the child. the child's parents

shall be noutied 1n writing ol their nghtto a

SPED :mpartial due process hearing. Scnal

3-day removals tram SPLD ane prohibted "

-

The district indetimtely suspended | ] on two
sepazate oceasions prior to the compleuon of the il pre.
placement process and the determmation of appropriate
placement, and appropriate ser rees

ltis evident, theretore. that the district tailed o comply
with State policy when | | was removed indehinitely
from the educaton program without 4 tonnal comprehensive
review of s individuabized education program ’

[ I was stially sdenuihied as a Gualified hands-
capped student on November 7. 197X The district did not,
however, ensure that all significant changes 1 placement
were reviewed by a group ot persons., knowledgeable of s
handicap. to determuine whether or not. (1) his behavioral
problems were manilestations of hay handicap; and (2) his
current placement and subsequent reinoval (suspension)... .
wcere appropriate

The district failed to notify the parent of her child's
rights to an impartial hearing. as a result of the disagreemient
regarding his suspension.

The failure to implement the appropnate procedural
safcguards prior to the mitial placement and prior to indefi-
nitely suspending the student violates Reg. 104.36 of the
Rehabilnation Act of 1973.

* A o

The Office for Civil Rights. within us authority as an
enforcenent agency tor'§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 requires that the Connth Municipal Separate School
District begin immeduately, to correct the violations outlined
above by taking the follo‘}ring corrective actions:

1. Upen receipt of this letter, rewmnstate [ } and
cvaluzte him as prescnbed by § 504;

2. Contact the parent, | 1. for participation in the
evaluation and placement process of her son:

3. Provide compensatory assistance, including tutorial
and summer programs for j } for as long as is
necessary 1o meet graduation or comparable certifi-
cation requirements to overcome the effects of the
discrimination; and,

E =

Assure that no sge requireinet will preclude the
district trom’ meeting the actions required above.
-
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Fayette (MO) R-1I1 School District
October 18, 1978

Complainarit alleged that eighth-grade child was
denied a free and appropriate public education when
" LEA failed to acknowledge child's handicap and pro-
vide educational program suitable to. his needs, and
then expelled him from school for disruptive behdvior.
Complainant further maintained that expulsion hearing
denied child appropriate due process under § 504.
HELD, LEA violated § 504 and Reg. 84.33 by fail-
ing to make any attempt to identify child’s special
education needs or recommend appropriate placement,
in spite of clear and available evidence that child was
handicapped as defined under Reg. 84.3(j) and that
child’s academic and behavioral problems were felated
to this. handicap. LEA further violated § 504 and Reg.
84.36, as interpreted in OCR Policy Interpretation No.

6, when it expelled child from school without provid-+

ing either an impartial hearing or due process review
procedures. Compliance with EHA, 20U.S.C. § 1415
is one means by which LEA can meet § 504 due proc-
¢33 requirements.

Frank McKenzie, Superintendent
Fayette R-1TI School District
Lucky Street. Roate No. 3
Fayette, Missouri 65248

The Office for Civil Rights has complcted its investiga-
tion of your District’s alleged failure to provide a free sppro- -
priate public education to a qualified handicapped studeat.
You were advised of this allegation in our letter of Aumt 4,
197.

Based on the analysis of the data and mformm ob-
tained during this investigation, there is sufficient evidénce
to conclude that the District discrimimated on the basis of
handicap by not providing a free appropriate public education
to & qualified handicapped student, [ 1. There is also
sufficient evidence to conclude that { ] was denied

appropnate due process at his expulsioa hearing before the

School Board. Therefore, it has been determined that the
Fayette R-111 School District is not in compliance with the
educational provisions (Section 24.33), nor with the pro-

cedural safeguards (Section 84.36) of Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and HEW Policy Interpretation
Number 6. [For text, see EHLR, p 251:03.)

Our investigation revealed the following basic facts
regarding [ I

A. During the 1975-76 school year, { ] was an
8th grade student st the Fayette Intermediate
School.

AR\£:1979 CRR Publishing Company,

; reproduced with permission.
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¥ one or more major life activities."

B. According to a memorandum in [ )'s file, he
was in the remedial reading program in the Fayette
Intermediate School for the year 1973-74. He was
not in the program for the 1975-76 year. It was
recommended by the remedial reading teacher that
{ } not be given pnomy placement for lhe
1975-76 caseload.

. C. During the period from Septcmber 9, 1975, to Oc-

tober 17, 1975, { ] was suspended from class
- five times for a total of 10% days. Two additional
times, from October 17, 1975, to November 13,
1975, and from November 13, 1975, until further

’ Board action, he was suspended for a total of almost

two months. -

D. On December 10, 1975, and January. i4, 1976, a
heanng was held before the School Board resulting
in the Board’s voting to expel { } from
school.

As stated above, the analysis of the data and informstion
obtained during this investigation indicated that there is suf-
fictentevidence to conclude that the District discriminated on
the-basis of handicap. The District is not providing a free
appropriate public education for { ], nor is theie evi-
dence to indicate the District has tried to place him in any
appropriate setting outside the District.

1t was established that { ] comes under the juris-
diction of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of .1973 in
that he has been defined as a *"handicapped person’” by the
Fulton State Hospital and the University of Missouri in that
he has, pursuant to Section 504, Subpart A (84.3(j)), a
“physical or mental impairment which substantially limits
This handicapis aresultof -
a specific learning disability (Section 84.3(j)(i)(8)). that pre-
vents him from performing satisfactorily in a regular class- .
room setting ’

Although { ] was at one time placed in the reme-
dial reading program, it appears that the District’s attempts to
appropriately place him were minimal at best. The recom-
mendation by the remedial reading teacher that { I1not
be given priority placement in the 1975-76 cascload was
based on his performance, attitude and lack of achievement,
However, there was no evidence to indicate that [ }
was properly evaluated before his placement in the remedial
reading program, nor was there evidence W indicate that the
District’s efforts at remediation were appropriate. This latter
pointisevidenced by the summary of testing at the University

"~ of Missouri’s Developmental Evaluation Center in Masch,

1976, which states that { } **has a learning disability
. that has never been remediated. ™
During the period from September 9, 1975, to Oc-
tober 17, 1975, { } was suspended trom class at least
five times for a total of 10% days. Two additional times, from
October 17, 1975, to November 13, 1975, and from

jma
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November 13, 1975, until further Board action, he was sus-
pended-for-a total of almost two months. { T's infrac-
tions included fighting, Jisturbing class, discespect and name
calling.

On December 10, 1975, and January 14, 1976, a hear-
ing was held before the School Board resulting in the Board's
voting to expel [ } from school. The procedures under
which this hearing was held are in violation of Section 504 in
that the hearing was not impartial, and that there appears to be
no review procedures.

In addition, the Board ruled that ‘‘except for some
reading deficiency, the ‘Student’ is not handicapped within
the purview of MRS, Chapter 162.'* Contrary to this ruling,
there is sufficient evidence to conclude that uEd hat d'n]cri:
indeed handicapped, pursuant to Section 504,
appears o be a direct correlation between { 1's leam-
ing disability and his behavior disorder. The *‘reading defi-
cieacy "’ referred to by the Board was diagnosed as a **Learn-
ing Jdisability in the area of reading’* by the Staff Physician at
the Warren E. Heames Children and Youth Center, Fulton
State Hospital. The Staff Physicjan, Dr. Craft, went on to
say that [ ] may-well be in circumstances at his schoot
that lead to a good deal of frustration and misunderstanding.
Over a period of time tnése Tactors seemto have led to somre
degree of negativism as évidenced in{ s attitude.**
Margaret Armento; Coupselor at Fulton State, reported in her
evahiation of [ ¢ Jthat he **seemed to have a need to
maintain a ‘tough guy'-vencer though it was my impression
that his basic personality characteristics are not of this na-
ture.>*-Ms. Armento went on to say that *'if anything,
{ } scems to be more a boy who is discouraged by his
problems and lack of success and who enjoys another per-
son’s taking a genuine interest in him.** It is important to note
that although these evaluations were maited to the District
‘before the January 14, 1976 hearing, postmarked Decem-
ber 12, 1978, they were not considered by the Board. There
was also no evidence that the Board coasidered the evalua-
tion by the school psychologist contained in a memo dated
September 16, 1975, which recommended individualized
instruction; nor was there any mention of a Student Progress
Report completed by’ Coach Grimes on October 8, 1978

which stated, *'{ ] has expressed to me that his poor
attitude and behavior stems from the fact that he cannot read
onaicvel with his peers. He does not seer.1 to care about what
bappens when he misbehaves.** _

Subsequentto J's expulsion, he was extensively
evaluated at the University of Missouri Medical Center's
Developmental Evaluation Center. This evaluation resulted
in the following impressions: .

1. “Undetermined intelligence but functioning at least
at an upper borderline level, with previous testing
suggesting probable average potential.**

2. "Leaming disability, as evidenced by poor sequen-
tial memory, reading disability, poor auditory per-
ception, and visual perception problems_.

3. *"Behavior problem characterized by acting out and
poor motivation for academic instruction.”’

Q . )
ERIC  (c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,

Full Tt Provided by ERIC.

reproduced with permission,
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The evaluation summary by the University of Missouri
wenton te advise that | J's reading disability is severe
enough to necessitate placemeni in a self-zontained class-
room for children with leaming disabilities for all academic
instruction. ‘The evaluation also stated that he will require a
supportive environment with considerable structure in order
to help him establish better behavioral controls; ‘his cur-

, ficulum should be oriented toward practical skills and, when

he isold enough, a work program would be beneficial; he wiil

, also require remediation for his auditory sequentiai memory

and auditory analytical skills in conjunction with 1.0 instruc-
tion. Supportive counseling in the school situation was also
recommended.

A Psychological Summary by Dr. Robeit C.
McMalion, Ph.D., at the University of Miscouri, with regard
to { J's intellectual evaluation statag tyat { ]
appears to be a youngster functioning either in the low normal
or high borderline range of intelligence whe appears to have
significant difficulties in areas of visual and auditory sequen-
tial short-term memory and in ability to absorb new material
in a visual associative context. Visua} motor integration skills
appear slightly decreased. | J's difficulties in these
areas are consistent with the diagnosis of specific leaming
disability.*

With regard to { J's social and bekavioral evalua-
tion, Dr. McMahon stated that [ ) appears to be a
youngster who entertains a quite unfavorable sell-concept.
He seems to fes! inadequately equipped to meet demands at
school and does seem to be a rather angry young man who is
easily frustrated. He talked at some length about his difficul-
ties in school and does appear to feel rather hopeless about the
prospects fcr success in this area. He does appear to fee! that
he has been unfairly treated in school and that too much has
been asked of him. A tendency to project blame for his own
failures is quite evident in | J's thinking. This strategy
is often used by children who have specific difficulties in
learning.** Dr. McMahon went on to recommend that
[ ] needs a special educational placemént and might be
best suited for either an LD classroom or behavior disorder
classroom.**

The results of the two previously mentioned evaluation '

(Fulton State Hospital and the University of Missouri) clzarly
indicate a strong correlation between [ I's leaming
disability and his behavior disorder. It appears that the Dis-
trict was well aware of { I's behavior disorder in that a
referral form to the State Departinent of Education was com-
pleted on December 6, 1976; however, a check of District
files and an interview with the Superintendent indicated that
the District did not follow through with, the referral.

Also found in [ I's file was a letter dated May S,
1976, from the Missouri Commissioner of Education, Mr.
Arthur Mallory, advising Mr. Gary Oxenhardler, [ I's
attorney, that the Assistant Commissioner for Special Educa-
tion, Dr. Leonard Hall, had discussed [ " J's situation
with the then Fayette Supenntendent. Mr. William Clark.
Mr. Mallory explained that Mr. Clark told Mr. Hall that in
light of the evaluation at the University of Missouri, Mr.

i
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Clark felt **certain the Board would want to recoasider its
earlier position.** Mr. Mallory went on to say that hopefully
the District would **initiate the necessary steps to provide for
{ jan appmptiue/special education service in com-
raance vith the law."" There was no evidence sound in
District files that indicated any such action, nor was there
evidence of any more recent attempt by the District (o re-
admit or appropriately place { ]. Thus, it is apparent
that [ ] is being denied a free and appropriate public
education.

Therefore, this Office is requesting that your District
submit a plan within 30 days that specificaily outlines your
intent to afford { ] due process as required by Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Compliance with the
procedural safeguamds of {§ 1415] of the Education of the
Handicapped Act is one means of meeting this requiremerx.
Furthemiore, we are requesting that your District, withia 30
days, forward to this Office a plan for providing [ la

) free and appropriate public education on or before
September 1, 1978. )

Under requirements of the Freedom of Information Act,
it may be necessary to release this document and relsted
correspondence in response to appropriate inquiries.: ,

I am sure your District shares our deep concern for a
quality education for ail children. If we can be of sny essis-
tance, please do not hesitate to contuct Jesse L. High, Acting

. Division Director, Elementary and Secondary raucation, of
my staff, ‘

Taylor D. August, Director
Office for Civil Rights -
. ’ Region VI

" (c) 1979 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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Lower Snogualmie Valley School District No. 407
September 24, 1980 - ’

Officiul with Washington Asucrationfor €hildren
with Leaming Disabilities brought compluint which
alleged school district violated 504 by: () heequising
students to participate in Saturday Alternative-to-
Suspension Program when \uch program was not in-
cluded in IEPs, (2) making access to student records
contingent on paying fee, (3) taking retaliatory action
against handicapped students by suspending them in
direct relation to parents sceking their rights,
) suspending/expelling students without taking into
consideration handicapping condition, (5 failing to
notify parents of district's duty to provide FAPE and
ignoring cequests for due process hearings and (6)

fuiling to follow required evaluation and placement
procedures.

HELD. investgation of first three ailegations °

showed no violation of § 504- because (1) evidence
demonstrated parents’ awareness that Saturday
Altemative-to-Suspension Program was optional, not
required; (2) fees charged parents were for copies of
records. not for right to inspect files; and (3) OCR
could not corrcborate that dastrict was suspending stu-
dents in direct relation to parents seeking their rights.
However, because it was impossible for OCR to de-
termine wheéther violation occurred since district de- .
stroyed discipline records at end of year, district was
- advised to retain files for at least three years in order to
mect & 504 requirements. OCR did find that district
violated §504 by: (4) not differentiating between
handicapped and nonhandicapped students in terms of .
suspension and corporal punishment; OCR informed
district it had to include in its discipline procedures a
; Process for determining whether student's inappropri-
“ate behavior leading to suspension or punishment was
caused by a handicap; (5) failing to notify parents on at
least an annual basis of it duty to provide a FAPE,
requiting mediation before scheduling due process
hearings, and (6) failing to properly implement 1EPs
and failing 10 provide parental notification of pro-
cedual safeguards concerning evaluat®n and-
placement.

(c) 1980-CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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— ———
Mr. Gene F. Maxim

Superintendent .

Lower Snoqualmie Valley School )
School District No. 407

Route One, Box 474

Camation, Washington 98014

RE: Complaint No. 1079103

“ This will nciify you that the Office for Civil Rights has
completed its investigation of the discrimination complaint
filed against Lower Snoqualmie Valley School District No.
407, by Gerri Seppi, Executive Secretary of the Washington
Association for Children with Learning Disabilities
(WACLD). Ms. Seppi alleged violation of Section S04 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. : :

We have concluded that the district viplates Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 because it has not provided
an appropriate education to handicapped children with re-
Spect w certain issues investigated. A detailed Statement of

. Findings is enclosed. which includes the evidence upou
.which our findings are based, our conclusions and required
cofrective action. ' .

We found the district in compliance with the Sec-
tion 504 Regulation with respect to other issues investigated.
These also are set forth in-the Statement of Findings.

This complaint initially was investigated in May, 1979,
Pursuant 1o a Headquarters directive, it was referred to our
Central Office for policy clarification. Investigation was
resumed in May, 1980,

We are grateful for the cooperation that your staff ex-

~tended to our investigators during our on-site investigation. |
want you to be assured that we will be available to answer any
questions you may have conceming the attached Statement of
Findings. ’

Please be advised that obligations of the Office for Civil
Rights under the Freedom of Information Act require that we
release this letter and other information about this case upon
request by the public,

Gary D, Jackson

Acting Regional Director
Office for Civil Rights
Region X

U
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STATEMENT OF FINDINGS
September 24. {980

Ms. Seppi. Executive Secretary of the Washington As.
sociation for Children with Leaming D.<abilities filed this
complaint on behalf of special educaticn stud=nts in e
district. She contends thit the district disc timinated against

special education students during the 1978-1979 schoolyear ™

by the followi;’lg acts:

1. The district used its Statement of Responsibilities
and Rights for students to suspend/expel special
education students, without taking their handicap-
ping condition into consideratine

2. Thedistrics failed to notify parenis of special educa-
tion students of their rights. and ignored their request
for a due process hearing.

3. The distric: required special education students to .

participate in an altemative program that is not a part
of their individuslized ectucation programs.

4. The district refused parents the right to inspect their
children’s files without paying_ for the service.

3. The district took action ugainst special educatioa
students by suspending them in direct relationshig to
their parents* seeking their rights.

6. The district failed to adhere to proper evaluation and
placement procedures for special education students

. and is not providing an appropriate, education
them on individual needs.

We huve concluded that the district violates Section 504
of the Rehubilitation Act of 1973 because it has not provided
an approprisic education to handicapped children, In this
statement, we shall explain our findings, identifying specific
violations.

The implementing Section 504 Regulation provides;

34 CRF Reg. 104.4 Discrimination
prohibited. '

(2) Géneral. No qualified handicapped
person shall, oa the basis of handicap, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to dis-
crimination under any Program,,or- activity
which receives or benefits from Federal fi-
nancial assistance. s

Reg. 104.32 Location and notification.

A recipient that operates a public elemen-
tary or secondary education program shall
annually:

.--(b) Take appropriate steps to notify
handicapped persons and their parents or
guardians of the recipient’s duty under this
subpart.

Reg. 104.33 Free appropriate public
education. -

(8) Generul. A recipient that operates a
public elementary or secondary education
progtam shall provide : free appropriate pub-
lic education to each qualified handicapped
person who is in the recipient’s jurisdiétion,
regardless of the nature or severity of the
person’s handicap.

s

(c) 1980 CRR Publishing Company ,
reproduced with permission.
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0) Appropriate educanon. (1) For the
putpose of this subpart. the provision of an
appropriate cducation is the provision of regu-
lar or special education and related aids and
services that (i) are designed 1o neet jnds-
vidua! educational needs of handicappad per.
sons as adequately as the peeds of nonhandi-
capped persons are met, and (n) are based
upon adiicrence to procedures that sittisly the
requirements of Reps, 104,34, 104,35, and
104.36,

Reg. 104.35 Evaluation and placement.

) Preplucement evaluation. A récipient
that operates u public elementary or second-
ary education program shall conduct an

« ~evaluation i accordince with the require-

ments of paragraph (b) of this section of any
gerson who, because of handicap, needs or 1s
believed to need special vducation or related
services before tahing any action with respect
to the inttial placement of the person in a
regular or sperial education program and any
subsequent significant change in placement.

(b) Evaluation procedures. A recipient to
which this subpart applies shall establish
standards and procedurcs for-the evaluation
and placement of persons who, hecatse of
handicap. need or are believed to need speciad
education or related services which ensure
that. 2

(1) Tests and other evaluation materials
have been validated for the specific purpose
for which they are used and are adnunistered
by trained personnel in conformance with in-
structicns provided by their producer:

(2) Tests and other cvaluation materials
include those tailored to assess specific areas

* of cducational need and not merely those

v

which are designed to provide a single general
intelligence quotient; . . . '

(<} Placement procedures. In interpreting
evaluation data and in making placemient de-
cisions, a recipient shall (1) draw upon infor-
mation from a variety of sources, mcluding
aptitude and achievement tests. teacher rec-
ommendations. physical condition. social or
cultural background, and adaptive behavior,
(2) establish procedures to ensure that infor-
mation obraned from ull such sources is
documented and carcfully considered. . . |

Reg. 104.36 Procedural sateguards.

A recipient that vperates a public clemen.
tary or secondary education program shall
establish and unplement. with respect to ac-
tions regarding the identification, evaluation,
or educational placement of persons wha, be-
cause of handitap, need or are believed to
need special instruction or related services, a
system of procedural safeguards that includes
notice, an opportunity for the parents or guard-
ian of the person 10 exarine relevant rec.
ords, an impartial hearing with opportunity
for participation by the person’s parents or
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guardian and representation by counsel, and a
review procedure. Compliance with the pro-
cedural safeguards of Section 615 of the Edu-
cation of the Handicapped Act is one means of
mieeting this requirement.

The investigating team interviewed district personnel,
parents of special education students and concerned citizens
during the on-site portion of the investigation. The team also
took i sampling of 16 folden. or 2077 of the total number of
80 special education, folders on file in the district’s special
education office. Of these folders. 11 were for Leamning
Disabled (LD) students, 3 for Behaviorally Disabled (BD)
students, 1 for a Mildly Mentally Retarded (MMR) student,
and 1 for a Neurologically Impared (NI student. Additional
special education files for the 16 students reviewed that are
kept.in the counseling office and 1n_the speciul education
classrooms also were reviewed.

The Office for Civil Rights has concluded that Allega.
tions 3 and 4 cannot be substantiated. zzd no violations of
Section S04 were proven. Our discussion of the allegations is
set forth below. :

N

Allegations -Nao Violations Feound

Allegation No. 3

The district requires spectial education students to partic-
ipate in an alternative program that i not @ pant of their
individualized education program.

Evidence

According to district documents and dwtrict personnet

" who described the pregram. the Saturday Alternative-to-

Suspension Program was one of the options offered to all
students whose behavior resulted i their suspension. Stu-
dents could cither (1) take the suspenasion, (2) attend one
Saturday morning sesson for cach duy of suspension, or
{3) do work under the custodsun™ supervision an hour per
day with four hours work equalling one day of suspension.
Since parents of special education students interviewed ac-
knowledged their awareness that the Saturday Program was
optional, this allegation could not be comroborated.

Finding

Special education students are not required to partici-
pate in the Saturday Alternative-to-Suspension Program, and
there is therefore no vinlation of 34 CFR Reg. 104.35(b)
concerning this allegation.

Allegation No. 4

The district refuses parents the right to inspect their
children’s files without paying for the service.

Evidence

Parents of special education students complained that
they had to pay a fee before they could tnspect their children's
files.

Ms. Roetcisoender. vice-principal at Tolt High School,
stated that student filcs may be inspected by their parents

Q .
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without a charge. She explained that it is a distric? policy that -
a fee be charged for the labor and materials involved in
providing copies of student file documents requested by any
district parent.

Upon inquiry. the parents involved acknowledged that
they had requested and received copies of files, rather than
access (o files.

Finding

The district does not charge parents of handicapped or
special education students fees to inspect their children’s
records. There is therefore no violation of 34 CFR Reg.
104.36 concerning this allegation.

Special Case : p

- Allegation No. §

The district takes action against special education stu-
dents by suspending them in direct relationship to their par-
ents’ seeking their rights. ’

Evidence

Parents claimed that district suspensions of their chil-
drep 'were accelcrated when the parents questioned district
policies.

In attempting to investigate Allegation'No. S, we found
that a vital source of information, the district discipline files,
had been destroyed as part of distnct policy to give each
student a clean slate for the following school year. It was thus
not possible to compare records of disciplinary actions
against the students before and after parents’ due process
requests, and to note the date of these actions to determine if
the disciplinary actions were received after the parents ex-
pressed their concems, as was alleged.

34 CFR 100.6(b), the' procedural provisions appli-
cable to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which also
apply to 34 CFR 104, requires recipients to keep such records
and submit to Department officialssuch reports as the re-
sponsible Department official may deem nccessary to enable
him to ascertain whether the recipient is complying or had
complied with the Regulation. In this instance no such rec-
ords were available to supply specific information in con-
nection with its disciplinary practices and procedures to de-
termine its compliance status in the area of discipline.

Such record keeping would enable the district to self-
monitor its disciplinary activities. Discipline files could be
maintained in confidentiality to protect swdents during the
school year and retired to an nactive file at the end of each
school year unavailable to district staff.

Fimling

There was insufficient evidence to conclude that the
district discriminates on the basis of handicap in the adminis-
tration of discipline to us spectal education students by in-’
creasing the suspensions of special cducation students whuse
parents sought their rights. We therefore found no violation
of 34 CFR Reg. 104.36 concerning this allegation.

-
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Allegutions-Violations Found

We found the district violared the civil rights statute
protecting handicapped students in the areas covered by the
remaining allegations as follows:

Allegativn No. 1

The district uses its Statement of Responsibilities and
Rights for Students to suspend/expel special education stu-
dents, without tuking their handicapping condition into
consideration.

This allegation included both suspension and expulsion,
The subject of corporal punishment was brought tv our atten-
tion on-site as an additional problen. In they section we will
address the findings in suspension. evpulsion and corporal
punishment in that order,

Evidence

“A. Suspension ,

Parents interviewed during the on-site investigation
_stated that the special education students were treated the
same as were nonhandicapped studdnts in the manner in
which the district disciplined its studints. The parents and
other concemed citizens interviewed felt that students with
behavioral problems reluted to their handicapping condition
were, in effect, being disciplined for being hundicapped.
These disciplinary actions frequently included short-term

suspensions.

' The district’s Statement of Responsibilities und Rights
for Students does not differentiate between handicapped and
nonhandicapped students in’its provisions for disciplinary
treatment. During the interviews with district personnel, 1t
became clear that they suw no necessity for recognizing a
difference between behavioral problems of handicupped and
. nonhandicapped students. District personnel treat all stu-
dents equally in meting out discipline for infractions of
swhool rules. Testimony from the Director of Special Educa-
tion, and from teachers of both special education and regular
classes revealed that special education students who exhibit
inappropriate behavior when attending regular classes are
disciplined in the same manner as are nonhandicapped stu-
"dents. Regular classroom teachers did not know which of
their students were special education students, during the
1978-1979 school year. A special education student in a
regular classroom was thercfore subject to the same disci-
pline procedures applied to nonhandicapped students, with-
oul consideration being .given to his/her handicapping
condition. ’

Finding No. | A-Suspension

Although there were no discipline files available for
review, statements by district personnel confirmed the par-
ent’s allegations that the district has denied special education
students un appropriate education by treating their behavioral
problems in the same manner in which they treat the disci-
pline problems of nonhandicupped students. The district
\ therefore is in violation of 34 CFR Regs. 104.33(a), (bX1).

\‘l
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* Finding No. | B—Expulsion

Where the relationship between the student’s behavior
and handicap is an issue, the school district has the burden of
establishing thtough an impartial dye process hearing that the
student’s handicap and behavior are unrelated. Where the
behavior the school district proposes to discipline is found to
be unrelated to either the student’s handicap or the appropri-
ateness of the educational placement, the student is subject to
the same disciplinary sanctions as nonhandicupped students.

Here again, a policy of maintiining discipline files is
necessary. It wonld provide the district with the ability to
anticipate the impaosition of suspensions which might consti-
tute a chanige in educational placemncnt. Suspensions amount-
ing to asignificant change in edicational placement of hand-
vapped students require the prior evaluation procedures st
out in 34 CFR Reyg. 104.35(a)

B. Expulsion

Evidence

Although the allegation included expulsion there was no
evidence or testimony obtained to corroborate the occurrence
of this type of disciplinary sanction. Again, no discipline
files were available 0 review.

There was no evidence to support the allegation thut the
district expelled special education students without consider
ing handicapping conditions. We therefore find ro violation
of 34 CFR Regs. 104.33(a), (bX1).

C. Corporul Punishment

Although corporal punishiment was not included in Al-
legation No. |.’'testimony obtained on-site required that thes
aspect of discipline be examined.

Evidence

Parents of Behaviorally Disabled and Learning Dis.
abled students claimed that during the 1978-1979 school year
their children were **swatted"* prior to their being informed
of the disciplinary action. Statements from district personnel
who administered discipline varied as follows: (1) speciat
education students were never swatted without prior parental
consent; (2) parents are notified. when possible, prior to the
disciplinary action, and if not available hy phone at the ime
of the swatting, they are notified later by phone and inail. All
disgrict personnel agree that such disciplinary action is-wit-
nessed and documented. and the documents are filed untii the
end of the school year, at which time they are destroyed.

Testimony of district personnel administering discipline
clearly indicated that handicapped und nonhandicapped stu-
dents were not treated differently with respect to disciplinary
actions, and thus the handicapping conditions of special
education students were not considered for any type of discip-
line, in vielation of 34 CFR Regs. 104.33(a). (b)(1).

Duning the 1978-1979 schoal year—the time period
under investigation—the district had no written policy for
administering, witnessing or documenting corporal punish-
ment. The district’s August 15, 1977 Board Polivy defines

e
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discipline. undcr No. 5300, Students’ Rights and Respon-
sibilities, 11l TArms Defined:

**A. Discipline—All forms of comrective uc-
tion or punishment other than suspension and
expulsion but including exclusion from a
smgle class or activity for the balance of the
périod.”"

Sections IV. Disciplins. Suspension and Erulsion
Critéria. and V, Discipline, Suspension and Expulsion Pro-
cedures describe criteria and procedures for suspension and
expulsion only. Corporal’ Runishment. which would be con-
sidered as dnsclplme under district’s definition, is not
addressed at 2ll in passages ribing critena and proce-
dures.. It was not until November, 1979, that No. 5380,
Discipline was added to the Board Policy document, address-
ing detention after schoot and corporal punishment.

It appears doubtful, therefore, that discipline files
would have contained documented **swatting™* reconds had
they been available for review, absent any requirements for
such documentation. .

Finding 1 C~Corporal Punishment

The district failed to consider the handicapping condi-
tivn of special education students in administering corporal
punishment, in violation of 34 CFR Regs. 104.33.(a). (bx 1).

Allegation No. 27

The district has failed to notify parents of special cduca.
tion students of their rights, and has ignored their requests for

- due process hearings.

A. Notification of Righty

 Evidence

Parents interviewed testified that they were ot in-
formed of their rights and those of their children in special
education. One parent was not aware that the district was
obligated to provide special education progranis. or that her.
child was entitled by law to participate in these classes. This
parent was not informed of the evaluation procedures. nor of
what should be included in an IEP when she participated in
the I[EP meeting.

During a telephone conversation. district Superinten-
dent Maxim explained that notice was not sent notifying the
community of the district’s obligation to serve all specist
education students in its jurisdiction during the 1978-1979
school year. He explaingd that the district had no special
education director at that time. and employed only two spe-
cial education teachers.

Finding No. 2 A 7 <

The district is in violation of 34 CFR Reg. 104 3b)
because of its failure to notify handicapped persons and their
parents on an annual basis, of its duty to provide a free and
appmpnate education to each qualified handzcapped pcxson
in its jurisdiction.

*
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B. Improper Response e Due Process Hearing Requests

This allegiuon was investigated m an individual com-
plaint filed agamnst the district in April, 1979, and also was
meluded 1n the class complaint filed by Ms. Seppi.

Evidence

An itteniew with Supenniendent Maxim revealed that
district policy was 10 mediate with parents prior to scheduling
4 due process heanng. This invstence upon mediation is not
supported by the requirements of the Regulations, which
require. at 34 CFR Reg. 104.36, notice, an opportunity for
pzrents o examine relevant records, an impartial hearing,
and a review procedure.

Finding

The district is in violation of 34 CFR Reg. 104.36, by
reqummz mediation pnor to schcuulmg hearings. The dis-
trict’s policy of requiring mediation prior to a heasing has
been used to delay the provision of prompt hearings for its
students. Such a policy places additionally upon special
education students the burden of a delay in the provision of
appropriz - education.

- Allkation No. 6

Failure to adhere to proper cvaluation and placement
procedures for special cducation students. and not providing
an appropriate education based on individual needs. -

v
A. Evaluation

Statcments provided by parents conceming this allega. -
tion aciually applied to the pre-placement procedure. There-
fore. these matters are addressed under Part B, Placement,
under evidence.

Part B Placement

(1) Inclusion of profcssional recommendations from
outside the district.

Evidence

Parents interviewed during the on-site visit expressed
concern that recommendaiions provided by social and/or
health agencies and private psychologists that were treating
or had treated special education students were not being used
in preparing students’ 1EPs.

Special education faculty members stated that they did
consider outside recommendations. The district psychologist
stated that such recommendations would have been taken
into account *if available.'” In addition, the OCR investiga-
tions found several reports and/or references to reports in
student folders. from the Children’s Orthopedic Hospital, the
Univenity of Washington. the Eastside Community Mental
Health Center, and from private psychologists that had
treated students.

There was no evidence that the recommendatiors from
sources outside the dlstmt were routinely included in
psychological reports. or ®that they were routinely lgnored
There was evidence that the school psychologists had in-




cloded comments from such sources in some of their own
recommendations.

Finding

Parents” allegations on this subject were not supported
by cvidence. There is no evidence that the district failed to
adhere to its placement procedures in recognizing and unliz-
ing professional recommendations from outstde the district.
We therefore find no violation of 33 CFR Regs. 104.35
(cX. ).

(2) Contpletencss of 1EPs and their implementation.

Evidence -

Several parents complained that their children were not
receiving an appropriate education because the 1EPs were
incomplete or hud not been reviewed on the projected review
date. Patents of three students stated that their children had
no current JEPs.

Evidence ]

During our entrunce confercnce with Superintendent
Maxim on Septemiber 25, 1979, he stated that the district
follows P.L. 94-142 in formulating the individual learning

. programs required by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973. This statute requires the preparation and implemen-
tation of an individual education program (IEP) for euch
student who qualified as eligible for a special education
programt, after prescribed evaluation procedures have been

* followed. The implementing Regutution of Section 503 pro-

vides, at 34 CFR Reg. 104, 33th)( 21 that an [EP isemie method
of meeting the stundurd estublished as **designed to meet
individual needs of handicapped persons iy adcquntel_v as the
needs of nonhundicapped penons are met."” The stundard
also requires that the progrant is based upon procedures that
s.mafy the Section 504 requirements for un educationul set-
ting, evaluation and placement and for procedural
safeguards.
. Of the 16 students’ folders perused:

7 (4472) contained no IEPs for {978-1979: and
S (3197) contained IEPs lucking parental signatures or
documented contact attempts.

Of the 9 folders containing IEPs:

7 (78%) lacked instructiona! objectives:
6 (677%) lacked initiation or duration dutes: and
6 (67%) indicated urobserved review dates.

Finding

The divrict has identificd the {EP required by P.L.
94-142 as the only method being used for defining the special
education students’ educational needs and outlining their
individuul learning programs. Failure to implement these
programs; i.e., not completing short-term instructional ob-
)ecnve«s. not meeting review dates and not specifying initia.
tion and duration dates for programs to guride the classroom
instruction, constitutes failure to implement the only pro- ~
gram the district recognizes for delineating special education
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students’ programs. By this failure to implement the indi-
vidual programs, the district is in violation of 34 CFR Neg.
104.33.

The district has failed to provide parental notification of
procedural safeguards conceming evaluation anc placement.
and has failed to secure parental involvement in indi-
vidualized education programs, regarding placement, in vio-
lation of 33 CFR Reg. 104.36.

The disrict has identified the IEP as the only program
used to meet the educationil aeeds of its handicapped stu-
dents: therefore, lack of complete implementation of the IEP
constitutes noncomphziice with Section 504, absent evi-
dence of any other type of programn being utilized by the
disirict.

Summary of Findings and Required Actions

Of the six allegations indicuted in this complaint. the
Office for Civil Rights finds the district to be in.compliance
with respect to Allegations 3, 4 and S, but fivds the district to
be in noncompliance conceming Allegations 1, 2 and 6.
These findings and required comective act.ons are sum-
marized below.

Finding in No. | A-Suspension

The district has denied special education students an
appropriate education in that it hus treated their behavioral
problems in the same maunner that it treats the discipline
problems of nonhandicapped students.

Specifically, the district made no provisions fof deter-
mining whether the imposition of suspensions penalizes a
student on the basis of the student's handicap. This ‘violutes
34 CFR Reg. 104.33(b) which requires that a program be
designed to meet individual educationyl needs of hundi-
capped persons as adequately as the needs of nonhandn-
capped persons are met.

Corrective. Action

School districts have the r-'spoasibility under Subpart D
of this Departiment’s Section 504 Regulation, to provide 2
free appropriate education regardless of the nature or severity
of a student’s handicap. A school district may not apply its
usual suspension policies when the behavior for which sus-
pension is being considered is an element of or reluted to 2
student’s handicup or the result of an i.lappropriate place-
ment. To do so would penalize the student on the basis of his
or her handicap.

The district must include in its discipline procedun.s a
process for dewermining whether a special education stu-
dent’s inappropriate or unacceptable behavior is part of that
student’s handicapping condition. orior to the imposition of
disciplinary sanctions. Such a process must include consulta-
tion with special education poréonne! knowledgrable of the
student’s handicag ing cond’iion and accompanying be-
havioral sympioms f any.

Findirg 1 C-Corporal Punishinent

By not considering handicapping conditions when ad
ministering corporal punishment. the district stands in viola.

tion of 34 CFR Regs. 104.33(a), (bX1). It is our pusition that '
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C corporal punishment should rot be included among disci- Correctiv. Aetion
. plinary sanctions uscd with special educauon students, Tradi- e
. tionally, these forms of discipline have subjected handi. The district must develop and implement notice proce-
capped children to the greatest abuse Such forms of disci- dures tor infonming annually all quahfied handicapped per-
pline should be used only udon prior agreement between Sons andvor their parents within its jurisdiction of its duties
parents and education professionals that such extreme mea- under Secuon S04. )
sures ure appropriate for special behavior prohlems. -
findimg
Correciive Action Duc Pracesd Hewring
_ The dist_rict must establish and implement a standard The district’s failure to provide a prompt due process
policy regarding the corporal punishment of special educa- hearing upon request delayed the provision of ar, appropriate
tion students, mcludugg priof agreenient between parents and ¢ducation to one of its students in violation of 34 CFR Reg.
district that such punishment 1 10 be admunistered, and for 104 33¢b)(1) and Reg. 104.36 of the implementing
what specific misbehavior. Such actions must be docu- Regulation.
mented und the records maintained for at least the 3-year -
omg;tiloring period already agreed upon by the district and Currective Action
Subpart G Reg. 104.61 of the Regulation implementing The dislri_ct must establish and implement procedural
Section 504 of the Rehahilitation Act of 1973 states: safeguards to insure prompt resolution of complaints and
. . ) appeals regarding the district’s educational procedures.
*‘the procedural provisions applicable to Ti-
g“f IVof the Civil Rights Actof 1964 apply 10 Findings No. 6 A-Placement
is pant.**
) o The district has failed to provide an appropriate educa-
Reg. !00.6!(!)) of the Regulation implementing Ti- tiop for its special education g(udcms witgprcs?pect to their
. te 1V of the Cavil Rights Act of 1964 states that: individual education needs, in violat . of 34 CFR Regs.
; ““Euch xccipient shall heep such records and 104 35(b)(1), (2).
supmt to the responsible Department official
C- ‘ or his designee timely. complete and accurate Corrective Action
reports at such times, and in such form and
- co‘r’l(x,uining such information, as the responsi- See No. 2 A.
3:;‘:?"‘;?::‘::;:“:&?:13; ‘::,\ :,::;,lf: c:":‘ ;(y) Finding No. 6 B-Notice and Procedural Safeguurdy
ascertain whether the recipient has complicd The district has failed to provide parental notification of
or is complying with this part.* procedural safeguards regarding placement, and has failed to
Relative to this same area of student discipline, the secure parental involvement regarding placement, in viola-
district retains no records of disciphine adnunistered to spe- " tion of 34 CFR 104.36.
cial education students subsequent to the end of cach school . .
year. Therefore, no data about the discipline with such stu. Corrective Action
dents werca_vmluble. lnprdcrtocumply with the requirement The district must establish and develop a set of pro-
to have available compliance reports. (hC_SChO{)l must retain cedural safeguards as required in 34 CFR Reg. 104.36 of the
complete and_accma!c records of all disciplinary actions implementing Regulation of Section 504, including the es-
imposed upon its special education students. These data must tablishment of prompt and equitable scheduling of due pro-
be retained throughout the 3-year period dunng which the cess hearings requested regarding the district’s special edu-
district’s compliance activities will be monitored by OCR; cation procedures.
ie.. from September 1980 through August, 1983. This Please provide this Office within thirty days of receipt of
Monitoning period is a fcature of the district’s Compliance this letter with a plan that will bring the district into com-
Plax: submitted to OCR March 28. 1980, as the result of the phance with the Regulation and Section S04 of the Rehahili-
investigations ot Case Nos. 19791028 and 10791029, The tation Act of 1973.
data may be retired to an inactive file and maintained in ’ ‘
confidentiality during this penod. to accommodate the dis-
trict’s policy of providing a **fresh start"* of its students cach
year.
Finding No. 2 A-Notice .
The district is in violation of 34 CFR Reg. 104.32(b)
" . regarding notice to handicapped persons and’or pareats of its
(, duty to provide education for qualified handicapped from
within its jurisdiction.
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Seattle (WA) School District No. 1
October 16, 1980

Complainant alleged that school distric’ violated
§ S04 becauae of 1s snspenzion and expussion proce -
dures tor handicapped students.

HELD, dis'nict violated § 504 by suspending/
expelling 323 special education students duning 1977-
78 and 1978-7Y school years 10r indelmite periods of
time without first conducting a placement evaluation
and preplacement conterence, or providing due process
safeguards. Investigation indicated that district’s pol-
1cy called for pre-disciphinary conference to determime
whether student’s distuptive behas tor was related to
handicepping condition or result of inappropniate
placemient. However, procedure was insutficient to
meet requirements of Reg. 104.35: 75 percent of sw-
dents sampled were not provided appropnate evalua-
tion conference while 25 percent were not provided
any conference. Morcover, of 75 percent who did
atiend confercuce, in 40 percent of cascs, no deternu-
nation was made as to whether reason for expulsion
was related to handicap and, in cases where it was
detcrmined that behavior was related to hand:cap,
specific program changes recommended by conference
participants were not implemented. On issue of due
process safeguards, district failed to provide students
and/or parents with advance notice that it was con-
templating a placement change and, although all stu-
dents or parents received written notice of district’s
intent to expel. none of notices indicated that student’s
reinoval from school constituted a placement change or
that rcevaluation and placement conterences had or
had not taken place District was advised to review its
procedures: specifically, to respond to serously dis-
miptive bel:avior through use of emcrgency removals
or short-term suspensions and to nsure that student
excluded for more than i0 days out of school year be
freevaluated and placed as soon after removal as
possible.

Dr. David Moberly
Superintendent

Seattle Schoot District No. |
815 Fourth Avenue North
Seattle, WA 98109

Re: Complaint No. 10780030 “

This will notity you that the Office for Civil Rights has
completed its investigation of the above referenced discrimi-
nation complaint against the Seattle School District No 1,
Searttle, Washington. We appreciate the cooperation that
your staff extended to our investigators during the on-site
portions of our investigation and by submitting the data we
requested. We have concluded that the district violates § 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 because of its suspension
and expulsion procedures tor handicapped children.

Our investigation concludes that the suspenston and
expulsion procedures utilized by the Seattie School District
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violate § 504 ot the Rehabititation Actot 1973 These proce-
dures remuove special education students trom their schoot
pmgrams for indefimie or long periods of ume without first
conducting a placement evaluaton aimd pre-placement con-
ference in accordance with 34 CER Reg. 104 33(a), (L) and
) or proy iding procedura! aaloguards as required by 34 CFR
Reg. 104.36. Vhus, these proceduics are defeating or sub-
stantially impairmg accomplishment of the district’s edrca-
tional objectives with respect to handicapped persons

The investigative findings which support this conclu-
sion are listed below:

1. The Seattle School District No. 1 sigmficantly
changed the educational placement of 223 special
education students, including those with behavioral
problems, durning the 1977-78 and 1978-79 school

“years through the imposition ot long-term suspen-
sions and expulsions. The use of these procedures
has the etfect of (i) removing stdents from their
school programs for indefunte or long periods of
time and thereby endangenng the student’s ability to
meet the educational objectives ot his'her indi-
viduahized educational program. and (11) changing a
“student’s educational nulicu by permanently remov-
ing him/her from one school and enrolling him/her in
a new school where the previous | EP may not reflect
the new school s ability to meet the student’s needs.

2. The district has a procedure for providing a pre-
disciphnary conference to deternunc whether the
student’s disruptive behavior 1s an element of or
rclated to the student’s handwapping condition or a
result of an inappropnate placememt. This proce-
dure, however. was found nsutficient to ineet the
requirements of ¥ CFR Ree 104 35(a), (b), and
(c). The deficiencies 1dentihied 1n the district’s pro-
cedures are:

a. The provision of a prc-placement evaluation
and placement conference prior to or within
one day of the imposition of discipline was
not uniformly available Qur investigation
found that seventy-five (75) percent of our
sample of the students expelled were not
provided an appropnate evaluation confer-
ence.

(1) In forty (40) percent of the conferences
that were held, the district made no de-
termination as to whether the students’
disruptive behavior was an element of
or related to his/her handicapping con-
dition, or the result of an inappropriate
placement. In sixty (60) percemt of the
conferences that were held, the district
made a determination that the students’
behavior was an element of or reiated to
his/her handicapping condition or tise
result of an inappropriatc placement. In
the cases in which 2 determination was
made, conference participants made
recommendations regarding specific
changes in the students” educntion pro-
gram which were not implemented.
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(s> In sixty-six (661 peseent of the conferences
conducted hy the district, the placement de-
cisiun was made without information from a
variety of sources and did not include par-
ticipation by persons hnowledgeable about
the child.

b. Our investgation found that twenty-five (25)
pereent of the students i our sampls were not
provided a pre-placemcnt cvaluation and place-
mcnt conference at all, because the Special
Educauen Depantment was not notified of the
local school’s decision to remove the studénts
trom his/er school program until several days
after the action had becn taken.

3. Scction 504 requires that the school district afford
handicapped students procedural safeguards in ac-
cordance with 34 CFR Reg. 104.36 when it consid-
ers significantly changing a student’s placement. A
disciplinary action in the form of a long term suspen-
sion or expulsion constitutes a significant change in
placement. Therefore, a school district must provide
procedural safeguards to handicapped students prior
10 the imposition of a long term suspension or expul-
sion. 2ur invest.gation found that: !

a. None of the students and/or parents of students in
our sample were provided advanceé notice that the
district was contemplating a significant change in
the student’s educational placement.

b. All students and/or parents of students were pro-
vided written notice of the district's decision to
expel the students, but none “of thesc notices
referenced the fact that: (i) the students’ removal
from school constitutes a signiticant change in
placement, and (11) a reevaluatior and placement
conference hud/had not taken place.

In order to remedy the deficiencies discavered during
our investigation, the Seattle School District No. |1 must
modify its disciplinary policies fo impose limitations on the
use of suspensions and expulsions as a disciplinary measure
for handicapped children as outlined below.

1. The district must not apply its long-term suspension
ard eapulsion policies to handicapped students when
the behavior for which suspension and expulsion is
being considered is an element of or related to the
student’s handicap or the result of an inappropriate
educational placement,

2. The district may respond to the seriously disruptive
or dangerous behavior of handicapped students
through the use of emergency removals or short-term
suspensions. However, as a general rule the .xclu-
sion of a handicapped student from his/her education
program for more than a total of 10 days during a

school year constitutes 1 significant change in educa-
tionat placement and shall he aceompanted by an
evaluation and new placement which must be cons-
pleted as expeditiousty as possible. During the
cvaluation and placement period, necessitated by a
sigmticant change in educational placement, the
student shall continue to receive educational
services.

3. If there arc disagreements as to whether the disrup-
tive or dangerous behavior is an element of or related
to astudent’s hanaicap or the result of gn inappropri-
ate educational placement, the issue must be re-

*  solved in an"impartial duc process hecaring prior to
making any change in the student's educational
placement.

4. The district shall develop and implement procedural
safeguards to be used when handicapped students are
subjected to disciplinary actions which will embaody
the remedial changes required. These procedures
must be consistent with 34 CFR Reg. 104.36 One
means of meeting this requirement would be the
adoption of procedures consistent with the Educa.
tion of the Handicapped Act.

Please contact this Office within 20 days of the receipt
of this letter informing us of your intentions for correctng the
vioidtions. Failure to correct the violations may lead to ad-
ministrative enforcement proceedings against the district and
deferral of Federal funds tor educational programs and ac-
tivities. Further, the order of the U.S. District Court for the
District of Columbia, in Adams v. Hufstedler, Civil Action
No. 3095-70 (D DC, December 29, 1977). requires that
enforcement proceedings be initiated within 90 days of the
date of this letter if voluntary compliance is not achieved.

The Office for Civil Rights is always available o pro-
vide whatever assistance we can to help your district to
develop an acceptable plan to remedy the situation. We
believe it is in the best interest of all parties if this issue is
settled without our having to resort to enforcement
procedures,

Obligations of the Office for Civil Rights under the
Freedom of Information Act require that we release this letter
and other information about this case upon request by the
public. In the event OCR receives such a request, we will
make every effort to protect information contained herein
that identifies individuals or that, if released, would consti-
tute an unwarranted invasion of privacy.

If you have further questions, please cali Mr Felix E.
Sandoval, Director, Elementary and Sccondary Education
Division or Ms. Patricia Yates, Branch Chief, at
(206) 442-1930.

Gary D. Jackson

Acting Regional Director
Office for Civil Rignts
Region X

(c) 1981 CRR Publishing Company,
reproduced with permission.
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